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CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
AND AFFIDAVIT
SECTION I -- GENERAL INFORMATION
A. Legal name of the Disclosing Party submitting this EDS. Include d/b/a/ if applicable:

U.S. Bank National Association

Check ONE of the following three boxes:

Indicate whether the Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is:
1. [_] the Applicant
OR

2. [X] alegal entity currently holding, or anticipated to hold within six months after City action
the onntract, transaction or other undertaking to which this EDS pertains (referred to below as the
"Matter"), a direct or indirect interest in excess of 7.5% in the Applicant. State the Applicant=s
legal name: U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

OR

3. [ ] alegal entity with a direct or indirect right of control of the Applicant (see Section II(B)(1))

State the legal name of the entity in which the Disclosing Party holds a right of control:

B. Business address of the Disclosing Party:

800 Nicollet Mall
Minneapolis, MN 55402

C. Telephone: (651) 466-6098 Fax: N/A Email: maria.bui@usbank.com

D. Name of contact person: Maria T. Bui-Clifford

E. Federal Employer Identification No. (if you have one): 31-0814368

F. Brief description of the Matter to which this EDS pertains. (Include project number and location of
property, if applicable):

2024 City of Chicago O’Hare Bonds

G. Which City agency or department is requesting this EDS? Department of Finance
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1F the Matter is a contract being handled by the City=s Department of Procurement Services, please

complete the following:

Specification # and Contract #
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SECTION II -- DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
A. NATURE OF THE DISCLOSING PARTY

1. Indicate the nature of the Disclosing Party:

[ ]Person [ 1 Limited liability company

[ ] Publicly registered business corporation [ ] Limited liability partnership

[ ] Privately held business corporation [ ] Joint venture

[ ]Sole proprietorship [ ] Not-for-profit corporation

[ ] General partnership (Is the not-for-profit corporation also a 501(c)(3))?
[ ] Limited partnership [ ] Yes [ ] No

[ ] Trust [ X ] Other (please specify)

A National Banking Association

2. For legal entities, the state (or foreign country) of incorporation or organization, if applicable:

Organized under the laws of the United States of America

3. For legal entities not organized in the State of [llinois: Has the organization registered to do
business in the State of Iilinois as a foreign entity?

[ ] Yes ’ [ X ]No [ ]Organized in Illinois

Note: As a national bank, U.S. Bank National Association is exempt from any requirement to
have a state registration or local business license. In accordance with 12 CFR 7.4007(a), “[a]
national bank may receive deposits and engage in any activity incidental to receiving deposits[.]”
Further, 12 CFR 7.4007(b) states that "[a] national bank may exercise its deposit-taking powers
without regard to statc law limitations concerning: . . . (6) State licensing or registration
requirements (except for purposes of service of process)[.]" Upon request, the organization will
provide documentation that shows the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency affirms that the
organization is a validly cxisting national bank in Good Standing authorized to provide hanking
services in all states of the United States.

B. IF THE DISCLOSING PARTY IS ALEGAL ENTITY:

1.

List below the full names and titles, if applicable, of: (i) all executive officers and all directors of

the entity; (ii) for not-for-profit corporations, all members, if any, which are legal entities (if there
are no such members, write "no members which are legal entities"); (iii) for trusts, estates or other
similar entities, the trustee, executor, administrator, or similarly situated party; (iv) for general or
limited partnerships, limited liability companies, limited liability partnerships or joint ventures,
each general partner, managing member, manager or any other person or legal entity that directly or
indirectly controls the day-to-day management of the Applicant.

NOTE: Each legal entity listed below must submit an EDS on its own behalf.
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Name Title

Please see aitached list of Executive Officers and Directors

2. Please provide the following information concerning each person or legal entity having a direct or
indirect, current or prospective (i.e. within 6 months after City action) beneficial interest (including
ownership) in excess of 7.5% of the Applicant. Examples of such an interest include shares in a
corporation, partnership interest in a partnership or joint venture, interest of a member or manager in a
limited liability company, or interest of a beneficiary of a trust, estate or other similar entity. If none,
state ANone.@

NOTE: Each legal entity listed below may be required to submit an EDS on its own behalf.

Name Business Address Percentage Interest in the Applicant

U.S. Bank National Association las T00% direct ownership nterest in U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association. 800 Nicollel Mall,
Minneapolis, MN 55402
U.S. Bancorp has 100% indirect ownership in U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, 800 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 55402

SECTION III -- INCOME OR COMPENSATION TO, OR OWNERSHIP BY, CITY ELECTED
OFFICIALS

Has the Disclosing Party provided any income or compensation to any City elected official during the
12-month period preceding the date of this EDS? [ ]Yes [x] No

Does the Disclosing Party reasonably expect to provide any income or compensation to any City
elected official during the 12-month period following the date of this EDS? [ ] Yes [x] No

If Ayes@ to either of the above, please identify below the name(s) of such City elected official(s) and
describe such income or compensation:

Does any City elected official or, to the best of the Disclosing Party=s knowledge after reasonable
inquiry, any City elected official=s spouse or domestic partner, have a financial interest (as defined in
Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago (AMCC®)) in the Disclosing Party?

[ ] Yes [x] No

If "yes," please identify below the name(s) of such City elected official(s) and/or spouse(s)/domestic
partner(s) and describe the financial interest(s).
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SECTION IV -- DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND OTHER RETAINED PARTIES

The Disclosing Parly must disclose the name and business address of each subcontractor, attorey,
lobbyist (as defined in MCC Chapter 2-156), accountant, consultant and any other person or entity
whom the Disclosing Party has retained or expects to retain in connection with the Matter, as well as
the nature of the relationship, and the total amount of the fees paid or estimated to be paid. The
Disclosing Party is not required to disclose employees who are paid solely through the Disclosing
Party's regular payroil. If the Disclosing Party is uncertain whether a disclosure is required under this
Section, the Disclosing Party must either ask the City whether disclosure is required or make the
disclosure,
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Name (indicate whether Business  Relationship to Disclosing Party ~ Fees (indicate whether

retained or anticipated  Address  (subcontractor, attorney, paid or estimated.) NOTE:
to be retained ) lobbyist, etc.) Ahoutly rate® or Atb.d.@ is

not an acceptable response.

E;f;ld sheets if necessary)
[1 Check here if the Disclosing Party has not retained, nor expects to retain, any such persons or entities.
SECTION V -~ CERTIFICATIONS

A. COURT-ORDERED CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE

Under MCC Section 2-92-415, substantial owners of business entities that contract with the City must
remain in compliance with their child support obligations throughout the contract=s term.

Has any person who directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party been declared in
arrearage on any child support obligations by any Tllinois court of competent jurisdiction?

[ ]Yes [ INo [x]No person directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party.

Tf Yes, has the person entered into a court-approved agreement for payment of all support owed and is
the person in compliance with that agreement?

[ ]VYes [ 1No
B. FURTHER CERTIFICATIONS

1. [This paragraph 1 applies only if the Matter is a contract being handled by the City=s Department of
Procurement Services.) In the 5-year period preceding the date of this EDS, neither the Disclosing
Party nor any Affiliated Entity [see definition in (5) below] has engaged, in connection with the
performance of any public contract, the services of an integrity monitor, independent private sector
inspector general, or integrity compliance consultant (i.e., an individual or entity with legal, auditing,
investigative, or other similar skills, designated by a public agency to help the agency monitor the
activity of specified agency vendors as well as help the vendors reform their business practices so they
can be considered for agency contracts in the future, or continue with a contract in progress).

2. The Disclosing Party and its Affiliated Entities are not delinquent in the payment of any fine, fee,
tax or other source of indebtedness owed to the City of Chicago, including, but not limited to, water
and sewer charges, license fees, parking tickets, property taxes and sales taxes, nor is the Disclosing
Party delinquent in the payment of any tax administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue.
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3. The Disclosing Party and, if the Disclosing Party is a legal entity, all of those persons or entifies
identified in Section II(B)(1) of this EDS:

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily
excluded from any transactions by any federal, state or local unit of government;

b. have not, during the 5 years before the date of this EDS, been convicted of a criminal offense,
adjudged guilty, or had a civil judgment rendered against them in connection with: obtaining.
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a
public transaction; a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; fraud; embezzlement; theft; forgery;
bribery; falsification or destruction of records; making false statements; or receiving stolen property;

c. are not presently indicted for, or criminally or civilly charged by, a governmental entity (federal,
state or Jocal) with committing any of the offenses set forth in subparagraph (b) above;

d. have not, during the 5 years before the date of this EDS, had one or more public transactions
(federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default; and

¢. have not, during the 5 years before the date of this EDS, been convicted, adjudged guilty, or found
liable in a civil proceeding, or in any criminal or civil action, including actions concerning
environmental violations, instituted by the City or by the federal government, any state, or any other
unit of local government.

4. The Disclosing Parly understands and shall comply with the applicable requirements of MCC

Chapters 2-56 (Inspector General) and 2-156 (Governmental Ethics).

3. Certifications (5), (6) and (7) concern:
» the Disclosing Party;
» any AContractor@ (meaning any contractor or subcontractor used by the Disclosing Party in
connection with the Matter, including but not limited to all persons or legal entities disclosed
under Section 1V, ADisclosure of Subcontraciors and Other Retained Parties@);
» any "Affiliated Entity" (meaning a person or entity that, directly or indirectly: controls the
Disclosing Party, is controlled by the Disclosing Party, or is, with the Disclosing Party, under
cominon control of another person or entity). Indicia of coatrol include, without limitation:
interlocking management or ownership; identity of interests among family members, shared
facilities and equipment; common use of employees; or organization of a business entity following
the ineligibility of a business entity to do business with federal or state or local government,
including the City, using substantially the same management, ownership, or principals as the
ineligible entity. With respect to Contractors, the term Affiliated Entity means a person or entity
that directly or indirectly controls the Contractor, is controlled by it, or, with the Contractor, is
under common control of another person or entity;
« any responsible official of the Disclosing Party, any Contractor or any Affiliated Entity or any
other official, agent or employee of the Disclosing Party, any Contractor or any Affiliated Entity,
acting pursuant to the direction or authorization of a responsible official of the Disclosing Party,
any Contractor or any Affiliated Entity (collectively "Agents").

Ver.2018-1 Page 7 of 18



Neither the Disclosing Party, nor any Contractor, nor any Affiliated Entity of either the Disclosing
Party or any Contractor, nor any Agents have, during the 5 years before the date of this EDS, or, with
respect to a Contractor, an Affiliated Entity, or an Affiliated Entity of a Contractor during the 5 years
before the date of such Contractor's or Affiliated Entity's contract or engagement in connection with the
Matter:

a. bribed or attempted 1o bribe, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of bribery or atiempting to bribe,
a public officer or employec of the City, the State of Illinois, or any agency of the federal government
or of any state or local government in the United States of America, in that officer's or employee's

official capacity;

b. agreed or colluded with other bidders or prospective bidders, or been a party to any such agreement,
or been convicted or adjudged guilty of agreement or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders,
in restraint of freedom of competition by agreement to bid a fixed price ot otherwise; or

. made an admission of such conduct described in subparagraph (a) or (b) above that is a matter of
record, but have not been prosecuted for such conduct; or

d. violated the provisions referenced in MCC Subsection 2-92-320(a)(4)(Contracts Requiring 2 Base
Wage); (a)(5)(Debarment Regulations); or (a)(6)(Minimum Wage Ordinance).

6. Neither the Disclosing Party, nor any Affiliated Entity or Contractor, or any of their employees,
officials, agents or partners, is barred from contracting with any unit of state or local government as 2
result of engaging in or being convicted of (1) bid-rigging in violation of 720 JLCS 5/33E-3: (2)
bid-rotating in violation of 720 1L.CS 5/33E-4; or (3) any similar offense of any state or of the United
States of America that contains the same elements as the offense of bid-rigging or bid-rotating.

7. Neither the Disclosing Party nor any Affiliated Entity is listed on a Sanctions List maintained by the
United States Department of Commerce, State, or Treasury, or any successor federal agency.

8. [FOR APPLICANT ONLY ] (i) Neither the Applicant nor any Acontrolling person® [sce MCC
Chapter 1-23, Article I for applicability and defined terms] of the Applicant is currently indicted or
charged with, or has admitted guilt of, or has ever been convicted of, or placed under supervision for,
any criminal offense involving actual, altempted, or conspiracy to commit bribery, thefl, fraud, forgery,
perjury, dishonesty or deceit against an officer or employee of the City or any Asister agency@; and (i1)
the Applicant understands and acknowledges that compliance with Article I is a continuing requirement
for doing business with the City. NOTE: Il MCC Chapter 1-23, Article I applies to the Applicant, that
Atticle=s permanent compliance timeframe supersedes 5-year com pliance timeframes in this Section V.

9. [FOR APPLICANT ONLY] The Applicant and its Affiliated Entities will not use, nor permit their
subcontractors to use, any facility listed as having an active exclusion by the U.S. EPA on the federal
System for Award Management (ASAM®).

10. [FOR APPLICANT ONLY| The Applicant will obtain from any contractors/subcontractors hired
or to be hired in connection with the Matter certifications equal in form and substance to those in
Certifications (2) and (9) above and will not, without the prior written conserit of the City, use any such
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contractor/subcontractor that does not provide such certifications or that the Applicant has reason to
believe has not provided or cannot provide truthful certifications.

11. If the Disclosing Party is unable to certify to any of the above statements in this Part B (Further
Certifications), the Disclosing Party must explain below:

Regarding #2: To the best of our initial knowledge, no, but due to the short turnaround for submission, we could not complete
our due diligence. As we complete our due diligence we will update the certification if needed.

Regarding #3a: To the best of our knowledge, U.S. Bank National Association is not presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from any transactions by any federal, state or
local unit of government.

Regarding #3d: U.S. Bank National Association has thousands of contracts with government entities, and it is likely that
contracts have been terminated early. Such terminations are generally not considered unusual and may occur fora

variety of reasons (¢.g., termination for convenience, trial periods, appropriation limitations, etc.). The bank is unable to
disclose information related to early terminations as that information constitutes contractual confidential information that may
not be disclosed. We do not believe any such terminations will have an adverse effect on the bank’s ability to provide services
to the City.

Regarding #3e: At any given time, including the present, U.S. Bank National Association is involved in disputes and litigation
which normally occur in banking operations and which often involve claims for money damages or injunctive relief. These
pending cases are generally not considered unusual in number or amount, and based on past experiences in similar litigation,
should not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the bank nor impact the delivery of banking

services to the City. As a practice, the bank does not comment on litigation unless pending litigation is significant. Furthermore,
like other major financial institutions, the bank has been and is subject to various regulatory activities and investigations relating
to certain aspects of its banking operations. Federal law prohibits the bank from disclosing confidential supervisory information
from its banking regulators (e.g., OCC, FRB, CFPB) without perm ission, which may include communication relating to
examination of records, reports, investigation, or regulatory activity. Please refer to the most recent annual report of U.S. Bancorp
and our 10-K and 10-Q filings.

If the letters "NA," the word "None," or no response appears on the lines above, it will be conclusively
presumed that the Disclosing Party certified to the above statements.

17. T'o the best of the Disclosing Party =s knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the following is a
complete list of all current employees of the Disclosing Party who were, at any time during the 12-
month period preceding the date of this EDS, an employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City
of Chicago (if none, indicate with AN/A@ or Anone@).

N/A

13. To the best of the Disclosing Party=s knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the following is a
complete list of all gifts that the Disclosing Party has given or caused to be given, at any time during
the 12-month period preceding the execution date of this EDS, to an employee, or elected or appointed
official, of the City of Chicago. For purposes of this statement, a Agift@ does not include: (i) anything
made generally available to City employees or to the general public, or (ii) food or drink provided in
the course of official City business and having a retail value of less than $25 per recipient, or (iii) a
political contribution otherwisc duly reported as required by law (if none, indicate with AN/A@ or
Anone®). As to any gift listed below, please also list the name of the City recipient.
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N/A

C. CERTIFICATION OF STATUS AS FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

1. The Disclosing Party certifies that the Disclosing Party (check one)
[X]is [ ]isnot

a "financial institution" as defined in MCC Section 2-32-455(b).
2. 1fthe Disclosing Party IS a financial institution, then the Disclosing Party pledges:
"We are not and will not become a predatory lender as defined in MCC Chapter 2-32. We further
pledge that none of our affiliates is, and none of them will become, a predatory lender as defined in

MCC Chapter 2-32. We understand that becoming a predatory lender or becoming an affiliate of a
predatory lender may result in the loss of the privilege of doing business with the City."
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If the Disclosing Party is unable to make this pledge because 1t or any of its affiliates (as defined in
MCC Section 2-32-455(b)) is a predatory lender within the meaning of MCC Chapter 2-32, explain
here (attach additional pages if necessary):

If the letlers "NA," the word "None,” or no response appears on the lines above, it will be
conclusively presumed that the Disclosing Party certified to the above staterents.

D. CERTIFICATION REGARDING FINANCIAL INTEREST IN CITY BUSINESS
Any words or terms defined in MCC Chapter 2-156 have the same meanings if used in this Part D.

1. Tn accordance with MCC Section 2-156-110: To the best of the Disclosing Party=s knowledge
afier reasonable inquiry, does any official or employee of the City have a financial interest in his or
her own name or in the name of any other person or entity in the Matter?

[ ]Yes [x]No

NOTE: If you checked "Yes" to Ttem D(1), proceed to Items D(2) and D(3). If you checked "No"
to ftem D(1), skip Items D(2) and D(3) and proceed to Part E.

2. Unless sold pursuant to a process of competitive bidding, or otherwise permitted, no City elected
official or employee shall have a financial interest in his or her own name or in the name of any
other person or entity in the purchase of any property that (i) belongs to the City, or (ii) is sold for
{axes or assessments, or (iii) is sold by virtue of legal process at the suit of the City (collectively,
"City Property Sale"). Compensation for property taken pursuant 1o the City's eminent domain
power does not constitute a {inancial interest within the meaning of this Part D.

Does the Matter involve a City Property Sale?
[1Yes [x] No

3. [fyou checked "Yes" to Item D(1), provide the names and business addresses of the City officials
or employees having such financial interest and identify the nature of the financial interest:

Name Buysiness Address : Nature of Financial Interest

4. The Disclosing Party further certifies that no prohibited financial interest in the Matter will be
acquired by any City official or employee.
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. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SLAVERY ERA BUSINESS

Please check either (1) or (2) below. Ifthe Disclosing Party checks (2), the Disclosing Party
must disclose below or in an attachment to this EDS all information required by (2). Failure to
comply with these disclosure requirements may make any contract entered into with the City in
connection with the Matter voidable by the City.

1. The Disclosing Party verifies that the Disclosing Party has searched any and all records of
the Disclosing Party and any and all predecessor entities regarding records of investments or profits
from slavery or slaveholder insurance policies during the slavery era (including insurance policies
issued to slaveholders that provided coverage for damage to or injury or death of their slaves), and
the Disclosing Party has found no such records.

X 2. The Disclosing Party verifies that, as a result of conducting the search in step (1) above, the
Disclosing Party has found records of investments or profits from slavery or slaveholder insurance
policies. The Disclosing Party verifies that the following constitutes full disclosure of all such
records, including the names of any and all slaves or slaveholders described in those records:

SECTION VI -- CERTIFICATIONS FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED MATTERS

NOTE: It the Matter is federally funded, complete this Section V1. If the Matter is not
federally funded, proceed to Section VIL. For purposes of this Section VI, tax credits allocated by
the City and proceeds of debt obligations of the City are not federal funding.

A. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
|. List below the names of all persons or entities registered under the federal Lobbying

Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended, who have made lobbying contacts on behalf of the Disclosing
Party with respect to the Matter: (Add sheets if necessary): i

(1f no explanation appears or begins on the lines above, or if the letters "NA" or if the word "None"
appear, it will be conclusively presumed that the Disclosing Party means that NO persons or entities
registered under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended, have made lobbying contacts on
behalf of the Disclosing Party with respect to the Matter.)

2. The Disclosing Party has not spent and will not expend any federally appropriated funds to pay
any person or entity listed in paragraph A(1) above for his or her lobbying activities or to pay any
person or entity to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, as defined
by applicable federal law, a member of Congress, an officer or employec of Congress, or an employee
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of a member of Congress, in connection with the award of any federally funded contract, making any
federally funded grant or loan, entering into any cooperative agreement, or to extend, continue, renew,
amend, or modify any federally funded contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

3. The Disclosing Party will submit an updated certification at the end of each calendar quarter in
which there occurs any event that materially affects the accuracy of the statements and information set
forth in paragraphs A(!) and A(2} above.

4. The Disclosing Party certifies that either: (i) it is not an organization described in section
501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; or (ii) it is an organization described in section
501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 but has not engaged and will not engage in "Lobbying
Activities," as that term is defined in the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended.

5. Ifthe Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party must obtain certifications equal in
form and substance to paragraphs A(1) through A(4) above from all subcontractors before it awards
any subcontract and the Disclosing Party must maintain all such subcontractors' certifications for the
duration of the Matter and must make such certifications promptly available to the City upon request.

B. CERTIFICATION REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

If the Matter is federally funded, federal regulations require the Applicant and all proposed
subcontractors to submit the following information with their bids or in writing at the outset of
negotiations.

Is the Disclosing Party the Applicant?
[x] Yes [ 1No

If AYes,® answer the three questions below:

1. Have you developed and do you have on file affirmative action programs pursuant to applicable
federal regulations? (See 41 CFR Part 60-2.)
[x] Yes [ 1No

2. Have you filed with the Joint Reporting Committee, the Director of the Office of Federal Contract
Compliance Programs, or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission all reports due under the
applicable filing requirements?

[x] Yes [ TNo [ ] Reports not required

3. Have you participated in any previous contracts or subcontracts subject to the
equal opportunity clause?

[x] Yes [ I No

1f you checked ANo@ to question (1) or (2) above, please provide an explanation:
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SECTION VII - FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND CERTIFICATION
The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

A. The certifications, disclosures, and acknowledgments contained in this EDS will become part of any
contract or other agreement between the Applicant and the City in connection with the Matter, whether
procurement, City assistance, or other City action, and are material inducements to the Cily's execution
of any contract or taking other action with respect to the Matter. The Disclosing Party understands that
it must comply with all statutes, ordinances, and regulations on which this EDS is based.

B. The City's Governmental Fthics Ordinance, MCC Chapter 2-156, imposes certain duties and
obligations on persons or entities seeking City contracts, work, business, or transactions. The full text
of this ordinance and a training program is available on line at www.cityofchicago.org/Ethics, and may
also be obtained from the City's Board of Ethics, 740 N. Sedgwick St., Suite 500, Chicago, IL 60610,
(312) 744-9660. The Disclosing Party must comply fully with this ordinance.

C. Ifthe City determines that any information provided in this EDS is false, incomplete or inaccurate,
any contract or other agreement in connection with which it is submitted may be rescinded or be void
or voidable, and the Cily may pursue any remedies under the contract or agreement (if not rescinded or
void), at law, or in equity, including terminating the Disclosing Party's participation in the Matter
and/or declining to allow the Disclosing Party to participate in other City transactions. Remedies at
law for a false staterment of material fact may include incarceration and an award to the City of treble
damages.

D. Ttis the City's policy to make this document available to the public on its Internet site and/or upon
request. Some or all of the information provided in, and appended to, this EDS may be made publicly
avajlable on the Internet, in response to a Freedom of Information Act request, or otherwise. By
completing and signing this EDS, the Disclosing Party waives and releases any possible rights or
claims which it may have against the City in connection with the public release of information
contained in this EDS and also authorizes the City to verify the accuracy of any information submitted
in this EDS.

€. The information provided in this EDS must be kept current. In the event of changes, the Disclosing
Party must supplement this EDS up to the time the City takes action on the Matter. If the Matter is a
contract being handled by the City=s Department of Procurement Services, the Disclosing Party must
update this EDS as the contract requires. NOTE: With respect to Matters subject to MCC Chapter
1-23, Article T (imposing PERMANENT INELIGIBILITY for certain specified offenses), the
information provided herein regarding eligibility must be kept current for a longer period, as required
by MCC Chapter 1-23 and Section 2-154-020.
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CERTIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is authorized to execute
this EDS, and all applicable Appendices, on behalf of the Disclosing Party, and (2) warrants that all
certifications and statements contained in this EDS, and all applicable Appendices, are true, accurate
and complete as of the date furnished to the City.

U.S. Bank National Association
(Print or type exact legal name of Disclosing Party)

By: W\zMé/(r

(Sign here)

Maria T. Bui-Clifford
(Print or type name of person signing)

Vice President

(Print or type title of person signing)

Signed and sworn to before me on (date) S ! (Sf {)*p}

at \B(L)& 6\(\ ounty, MM (state).

Notary Public

T R

\ DONNALEDER
:&i NOTARY PUBLIC - MINNESOTA
My Commiasion Expires Jan, 31, 2029
R R

039

=
-

Commission expires: 0\\3\ !l
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CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT
APPENDIX A

FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS
AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

This Appendix is to be completed only by () the Applicant, and (b) any legal entity which has a
divect ownership interest in the Applicant exceeding 7.5%. it is not to be completed by any legal
entity which has only an indirect ownership interest in the Applicant.

Under MCC Section 2-154-015, the Disclosing Party must disclose whether such Disclosing Party
or any AApplicable Party@ or any Spouse or Domestic Partmer thercof currently has a Afamilial
relationship@ with any elected city official or department head. A Afamilial relationship@ exists if, as of
the date this EDS is signed, the Disclosing Party or any AApplicable Party@ or any Spouse or Domestic
Partner thereof is related to the mayor, any alderman, the city clerk, the city treasurer or any city
department head as spouse or domeslic partner or as any of the following, whether by blood or
adoption: parent, child, brother or sister, aunt or uncle, niece or nephew, grandparent, grandchild,
father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, stepfather or stepmother, stepson or
stepdaughter, stepbrother or stepsister or half-brother or hatf-sister.

AApplicable Party@ means (1) all exceutive officers of the Disclosing Party listed in Section
11.B.1.a., if the Disclosing Party is a corporation; all partners of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing
Party is a general partnership; all general partners and limited partners of the Disclosing Party, if the
Disclosing Party is a limited partnership; all managers, managing members and members of the
Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a limited liability company; (2) all principal officers of the
Disclosing Party; and (3) any person having more than a 7.5% ownership interest in the Disclosing
Party. APrincipal officers@ means the president, chief operating officer, executive director, chiel
{inancial officer, treasurer or secretary of a legal entity or any person exercising similar authority.

Docs the Disclosing Party or any AApplicable Party@ or ainy Spouse or Domestic Partner thereof
carrently have a Afamilial relationship@ with an elected city official or department head?

[ ]Yes [x] No
[F'yes, please identify below (1) the name and title of such person, (2) the name of the Jegal entity to

which such person is connected; (3) the name and title of the elected city official or department head to
whom such person has a familial relationship, and (4) the precise nature of such familial relationship.
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CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT
APPENDIX B

BUILDING CODE SCOFFLAW/PROBLEM LANDLORD CERTIFICATION

This Appendix is to be completed only by (a) the Applicant, and (b) any legal entity which has a direct
ownership interest in the Applicant exceeding 7.5% (an "Owner"). It is not to be completed by any
legal entity which has only an indirect ownership interest in the Applicant.

1. Pursuant to MCC Section 2-154-010, is the Applicant or any Owner identified as a building code
scofflaw or problem landlord pursuant ta MCC Section 2-92-4167

[x] Yes [ JNo

2. Ifthe Applicant is a legal entity publicly traded on any exchange, is any officer or director of
the Applicant identified as a building code scofflaw or problem landlord pursuant to MCC Section
2-92-4167

[ ] Yes [ INo [x ] The Applicant is not publicly traded on any exchange.

3. Ifyes to (1) or (2) above, please identify below the name of each person or legal entity identified
as a building code scofflaw ot problem landlord and the address of each building or buildings to which
the pertinent code violations apply.

The property at 4842 W. Fulton Street, Chicago 60644 was owned by a residential morigage backed securilization trust named Mortgage
Equity Conversion Asset Trust 2011-1 for which U.S. Bank National Association served as Trustee and REO Management Solutions, LLC
was the mortgage servicer. The property was sold on November 22, 2022. U.S. Bank verified via the County’s Tax website that if no

longer reflects U.S. Bank as the property owner. The violations, therefore, are not obligations of U.S. Bank.
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CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT
APPENDIX C

PROHIBITION ON WAGE & SALARY HISTORY SCREENING - CERTIFICATION

This Appendix is to be completed only by an Applicant that is completing this EDS as a “contractor” as
defined in MCC Section 2-92-385. That section, which should be consulted (www.amlegal.com),
generally covers a party to any agreement pursuant to which they: (i) receive City of Chicago funds in
consideration for services, work or goods provided (including for legal or other professional services),
or (ii) pay the City money for a license, grant or concession allowing them to conduct a business on
City premises.

On behalf of an Applicant that is a contractor pursuant to MCC Section 2-92-3835, I hereby certify that
the Applicant is in compliance with MCC Section 2-92-3 83(b)(1) and (2), which prohibit: (i) screening
job applicants based on their wage or salary history, or (ii) seeking job applicants’ wage or salary
history from current or former employers. I also certify that the Applicant has adopted a policy that
includes those prohibitions.

[x] Yes

[ 1No

[ JN/A —1 am not an Applicant that is a “contractor” as defined in MCC Section 2-92-385.

This certification shall serve as the affidavit required by MCC Section 2-92-385(c)(1).

If you checked “no” to the above, please explain.
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List of Directors and Management Committee members for USBNA as of May 15, 2024

Directors

Baxter, Warner L.

Bridges, Dorothy |

Buse, Elizabeth L.

Cecere, Andrew

Chosy, James L.

Colberg, Alan B.

Ellison-Taylor, Kimberly N.

Harris, Kimberly J.

Hernandez, Roland A.

Kedia, Gunjan

McKenney, Richard P.

Mehdi, Yusuf I.

Reynolds, Loretta E.

Richard, Jodi L

Wiehoff, John P.

Wine, Scott W.

Management Committee Members

Andrew Cecere

Souheil Badran

Elcio RT. Barcelos

James L. Chosy

Greg Cunningham

Venkatachari Dilip

Terrance R. Dolan




Revathi (“Reba) N. Dominski

Gunjan Kedia

Shailesh Kotwal

Stephen L. Philipson

Jodi L. Richard

Mark G. Runkel

John C. Stern

Dominic Venturo

Timothy A. Welsh




ATTACHMENT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING SLAVERY ERA BUSINESS

U.S. Bank National Association was formed from the following major banks:

I. Star Bank, National Association (Cincinnati, Ohio) changed its name to Firstar Bank,
National Association (Cincinnati, Ohio) effective February 1999;

2. Mercantile Bank National Association (St. Louis, Missouri) merged into Firstar Bank,
National Association (Cincinnati, Ohio) effective April 2000;

3. United States National Bank of Oregon (Portland, Oregon) merged with First Bank,
National Association under the title U.S. Bank National Association effective August 1997;

4. U.S. Bank National Association merged into Firstar Bank, National Association, and the
succeeding bank, changed its name to U.S. Bank National Association effective August
2001.

These banks were acquired through mergers and acquisitions of numerous smaller banks. There
are five hundred and forty-two U.S. Bank National Association predecessors. Thirty-three
predecessors were founded before the abolition of slavery in December 1865. Thirteen of the pre-
1866 predecessors were established in southern slave-holding states and territories, including
Kansas, Kentucky, Missouri and Tennessee.

In 2005, the bank conducted a review of historical records held in various external repositories.
As a result of that review, U.S. Bank National Association has identified external records of its
predecessors which may necessitate disclosure. The conveyance records, while showing no
record of direct ownership of enslaved individuals contained records of founders and/or directors
of predecessor banks owning enslaved individuals, as well as a record where an enslaved
individual was the collateral for a loan. Specifically, the first president of predecessor Marion
National Bank of Lebanon, Kentucky (founded in 1856), Benedict Spalding, owned two enslaved
individuals in 1850. In 1860 someone with a similar name "Benidict Spalding" is also listed as
having owned fourteen enslaved individuals. In addition, certain members of the Marion National
Bank of Lebanon's board of directors (called "commissioners") owned approximately forty-seven
enslaved individuals in total (the records include abbreviated names which we conclude may be
references to commissioners). The first president of predecessor First National Bank of
Clarksville, Tennessee (founded in 1865), S.F. Beaumont, owned one enslaved individual in
1860. The first president of predecessor St. Louis Building and Savings Association, Missouri
(founded in 1857), Marshall Brotherton, owned ten enslaved individuals in 1850 and four
enslaved individuals in 1860. Merchants Bank (founded in 1857) and Bank of St. Louis (founded
in 1857), both predecessors, along with a group of other St. Louis firms, issued a mortgage to
Charles McLaran that was secured by his property, which included an unspecified number of
enslaved individuals. However, the 1860 Federal Census Slave Schedule for St. Louis provided
that Charles McLaran owned thirteen enslaved individuals.

In 2022, the bank conducted a review of U.S. Bancorp (the parent company of U.S. Bank
National Association) subsidiaries and affiliates formed or acquired since 2005. Based on
that internal review, none of the entities identified were formed prior to 1866.



FIRMWIDE

PLEASE POPULATE THE HIGHLIGHTED PORTIONS ONLY

lob Categories

Exec/Sr Officials & Mgrs
First/Mid Officials & Mgrs
Professionals
Technicians

Sales Workers
Administrative Support
Craft Workers
Operatives

Laborers & Helpers
Service Workers

Total

Job Categories

Exec/Sr Officials & Mgrs
First/Mid Officials & Mgrs
Professionals
Technicians

Sales Workers
Administrative Support
Craft Workers
Operatives

Laborers & Helpers
Service Workers

Total

Firm Name:

U.S. Bank National Association

Primary Representative:

Maria Bui-Clifford

Primary Representative Email and Telephone:

maria.bui

Headquarters Address:

usbank.com 651-466-6098

Minneapol

, MN 55402

Chicago Public Finance Office Address:

190 S La Salle Street, Chicago. IL 60604

Total Number of Employees:

72,223 Total U.S. Bancorp

Number of Employees in lllinois: 3,156
Number of Employees in Chicago: 1,164
Capital Position:
Minority Designation: n/a
Male Female
American Native American Native
Black or Indian or Hawaiian or Black or Indian or | Hawaiian or
Overall African Alaskan Other Pa Two or more African Hispanic or Alaskan Other Pacific | Two or more
Totals White American Latino Asian Native Islander races White American Latino Asian Native Islander races
4,311 2,264 63 110 378 7 5 31 1,159 51 57 158 2 4 22
9,266 3,137 233 440 494 14 22 76 3,503 352 456 390 15 12 122
26,693 9,035 825 898 2,681 33 33 268 8,399 1,120 861 2,162 46 40 292
12,609 3,022 354 1,199 418 22 35 158 3,913 497 2,053 682 32 51 173
19,344 2,551 825 609 404 18 19 172 7,066 4,142 1,742 1,136 81 58 521
72,223 20,009 2,300 3,256 4,375 94 114 705 24,040 6,162 5,169 4,528 176 165 1,130
American Native
Black or indian or Hawaiian or
Overall African Hispanic or Alaskan Other Pacific | Two or mare
Totals White American Latino Asian Native Island. races Male Female Total
4,311 79% 3% 4% 12% 0% 0% 1% 43% 57% 100%
9,266 72% 6% 10% 10% 0% 0% 2%
26,693 65% 7% 7% 18% 0% 0% 2%
12,609 55% 7% 26% 9% 0% 1% 3%
19,344 50% 26% 12% 3% 1% 0% 4%
72,223 61% 12% 12% 12% 0% 0% 3%




AFFIDAVIT
DEBT OBLIGATION AND BROKERAGE TRANSACTIONS

Name of Reporting Firm: U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

Description of Matter: 2024 City of Chicago O"Hare Bonds

Role of Reporting Firm: Trustee
This affidavit is submitted in conjunction with (check one):
X_ aCity of Chicago debt obligation transaction (Municipal Code Section 2-154-017)

brokerage services for the City Treasurer (Municipal Code Section 2-] 54-018)
Fill out below (and attach additional sheets using the same format, if necessary), the following
information for each person in the Reporting Firm who will direcily provide professional services
to the City in connection with the Matter described above: the individual's position in the

Reporting Firm and the role he or she will fill in the Matter, gender, and race or ethnicity.
Individuals' names need not be disclosed.

Individual# Position and Role Gender Race/Ethnicity
1 Vice President F Asian
2 Trust Review Analyst F ‘White
3 Product Operations Analyst M White
al Accounting Specialist F Asjan
5 Assistant Vice president F White

(if needed, please use additional sheets fo identify additional personnel.)

By signing below, I represent under penally of perjury that: (1) 1 am authorized Lo act on behalf of the
Reporting Firm, and (2) the information in this Affidavit and associated attachment are true, complete,

and correct.

By signing below, | understand and acknowledge, on behalf of the Reporting Firm, that failure to
accurately and completely supply the information requested herein may result in a declaration of
ineligibility to patticipate in future Matters for the City of Chicago.

Printed Name: Maria T. Bui-Clifford

\
Signature: ;m’ 4 %)6*;%\

Title: Vice President

Date: May 14, 2024
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“Safe Harbor” Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements about U.S. Bancorp. Statements that are not historical or current facts, including statements
about beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements and are based on the information available to, and assumptions and estimates made by, management as
of the date hereof. These forward-looking statements cover, among other things, future economic conditions and the anticipated future revenue, expenses, financial
condition, asset quality, capital and liquidity levels, plans, prospects and operations of U.S. Bancorp. Forward-looking statements often use words such as “anticipates,”
"targets,” “expects,” "hopes,” “estimates,” “projects,” “forecasts,” ‘intends,” ‘plans,” “goals,” “believes,” “continue” and other similar expressions or future or conditional
verbs such as “will," *“may,” "might,” "should,” "would" and "could.”

»ou » o

Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those set forth in forward-looking statements,
including the following risks and uncertainties:

Deterioration in general business and economic conditions or turbulence in domestic or global financial markets, which could adversely affect U.S. Bancorp's revenues
and the values of its assets and liabilities, reduce the availability of funding to certain financial institutions, lead to a tightening of credit, and increase stock price
volatility;

Turmoil and volatility in the financial services industry, including failures or rumors of failures of other depository institutions, which could affect the ability of depository
institutions, including U.S. Bank National Association, to attract and retain depositors, and could affect the ability of financial services providers, including U.S. Bancorp,
to borrow or raise capital;

Increases in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (‘FDIC”) assessments due to bank failures;

Actions taken by governmental agencies to stabilize the financial system and the effectiveness of such actions;

Uncertainty regarding the content, timing and impact of changes to regulatory capital, liquidity and resolution-related requirements applicable to large banking
organizations in response to adverse developments affecting the banking sector;

U.S. Bancorp 1




Changes to statutes, regulations, or regulatory policies or practices, including capital and liquidity requirements, and the enforcement and interpretation of such laws
and regulations, and U.S. Bancorp's ability to address or satisfy those requirements and other requirements or conditions imposed by regulatory entities;

Changes in interest rates;

Increases in unemployment rates;
+ Deterioration in the credit quality of U.S. Bancorp's loan portfolios or in the value of the collateral securing those loans;

Changes in commercial real estate occupancy rates;
Risks related to originating and selling mortgages, including repurchase and indemnity demands, and related to U.S. Bancorp's role as a loan servicer;

* Impacts of current, pending or future litigation and governmental proceedings;

Increased competition from both banks and non-banks;

Effects of climate change and related physical and transition risks:

Changes in customer behavior and preferences and the ability to implement technological changes to respond to customer needs and meet competitive demands:

Breaches in data security;

Failures or disruptions in or breaches of U.S. Bancorp’s operational, technology or security systems or infrastructure, or those of third parties, including as a result of
cybersecurity incidents;

Failures to safeguard personal information;

Impacts of pandemics, natural disasters, terrorist activities, civil unrest, international hostilities and geopolitical events;

» Impacts of supply chain disruptions, rising inflation, slower growth or a recession;

Failure to execute on strategic or operational plans;

Effects of mergers and acquisitions and related integration;

Effects of critical accounting policies and judgments;

Effects of changes in or interpretations of tax laws and regulations;
Management's ability to effectively manage credit risk, market risk, operational risk, compliance risk, strategic risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and reputation risk; and

The risks and uncertainties more fully discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” of U.S. Bancorp's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, and
subsequent filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC”).

In addition, U.S. Bancorp’s acquisition of MUFG Union Bank, N.A. ("MUB") presents risks and uncertainties, including, among others, the risk that any revenue synergies
and other anticipated benefits of the acquisition may not be realized or may take longer than anticipated to be realized.

In addition, factors other than these risks also could adversely affect U.S. Bancorp's results, and the reader should not consider these risks to be a complete set of all
potential risks or uncertainties. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the
date hereof, and U.S. Bancorp undertakes no obligation to update them in light of new information or future events.

2 U.S. Bancorp




Selected Financial Data

Three Months Ended March 31

(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2024 2023 (F:'ﬁ'acnegn;

Condensed Income Statement

Net interest income 3985 3§ 4,634 (14.0)%

Taxable-equivalent adjustment®® 30 34 (11.8)
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis)® 4,015 4,668 {(14.0)

Noninterest income 2,700 2,507 77
Total net revenue 6,715 7175 (6.4)

Noninterest expense 4,459 4,555 (2.1)

Provision for credit losses 553 427 29.5
Income before taxes 1,703 2,193 (22.3)

Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment 377 489 (22.9)
Net income 1,326 1,704 (22.2)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 7) (6) (16.7)
Net income attributable to U.S. Bancorp 1319 § 1,698 (22.3)
Net income applicable to U.S. Bancorp common shareholders 1,209 $ 1,582 (24.1)

Per Common Share

Earnings per share 78 3 1.04 (25.0)

Diluted eamings per share .78 1.04 (25.0)

Dividends declared per share .49 48 21

Book value per share!® 31.26 30.12 3.8

Market value per share 44,70 36.05 24.0

Average common shares outstanding 1,559 1,532 1.8

Average diluted common shares outstanding 1,559 1,532 1.8

Financial Ratios

Return on average assets 81 % 1.03 %

Return on average common equity 10.0 141

Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent basis)®® 2.70 3.10

Efficiency ratiot® 66.4 63.2

Net charge-offs as a percent of average loans outstanding .53 .39

Average Balances

Loans 371,070 $ 386,750 4.1)%

Loans held for sale 2,002 2,461 (18.7)

Investment securities'® 161,236 166,125 (2.9)

Earning assets 596,135 607,614 (1.9)

Assets 653,909 665,447 1.7)

Noninterest-bearing deposits 84,787 129,741 (34.6)

Deposits 503,061 510,324 (1.4)

Short-term borrowings 16,364 36,467 (55.1)

Long-term debt 52,713 41,024 28.5

Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders' equity 55,667 52,667 5.7

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Period End Balances

Loans 374,588 3 373,835 2

Investment securities 155,374 153,751 1.1

Assets 683,606 663,491 3.0

Deposits 528,063 512,312 3.1

Long-term debt 52,693 51,480 2.4

Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity 55,568 55,306 .5

Asset Quality

Nonperforming assets 1786 § 1,494 18.5

Allowance for credit losses 7,904 7,839 8

Allowance for credit losses as a percentage of period-end loans 211 % 2,10 %

Capital Ratios

Common equity tier 1 capital 10.0 % 9.9 %

Tier 1 capital 11.6 11.5

Total risk-based capital 13.7 13.7

Leverage 8.1 8.1

Total leverage exposure 6.6 6.6

Tangible common equity to tangible assets® 5.2 53

Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets(® 7.8 7.7

Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, reflecting the full implementation of the current expected credit 0.9 97

losses methodology®




*  Not meaningful

(a) Based on a federal income tax rate of 21 percent for those assets and liabilities whose income or expense is not included for federal income fax purposes

{b) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures beginning on page 27.

Calculated as U.S. Bancorp common shareholders’ equity diviged by common shares outstanding at end of the period.

Excludes unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale investment securities and any premiums or discounts recorded relaled fo the transfer of investment securities at fair value from

U.S. Bancorp

for-sale to held-te




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Overview

Earnings Summary U.S. Bancorp and its subsidiaries (the “Company”)
reported net income attributable to U.S. Bancorp of $1.3 billion for the first
quarter of 2024, or $0.78 per diluted common share, compared with $1.7 billion,
or $1.04 per diluted common share, for the first quarter of 2023. Return on
average assets and return on average common equity were 0.81 percent and
10.0 percent, respectively, for the first quarter of 2024, compared with 1.03
percent and 14.1 percent, respectively, for the first quarter of 2023. The results
for the first quarter of 2024 included the impact of $265 million ($199 million net-
of-tax) of notable items, including $155 million of merger and integration charges
associated with the acquisition of MUFG Union Bank, N.A, (“MUB") and a $110
million charge for the anticipated increase in the FDIC special assessment to
recover losses to the Deposit Insurance Fund related to certain 2023 bank
failures. Combined, these items decreased diluted earnings per common share
by $0.12. The results for the first quarter of 2023 included the impact of $244
million ($183 million net-of-tax) of merger and integration charges, which
decreased diluted earnings per common share by $0.12.

Total net revenue for the first quarter of 2024 was $460 million (6.4 percent)
lower than the first quarter of 2023, reflecting a 14.0 percent decrease in net
interest income and a 7.7 percent increase in noninterest income. The decrease
in net interest income from the first quarter of 2023 was primarily due to the
impact of higher interest rates on deposit mix and pricing, partially offset by
higher rates on earning assets. The increase in noninterest income was driven
by higher fee revenue across most categories.

Noninterest expense in the first quarter of 2024 was $96 million (2.1 percent)
lower than the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to prudent expense
management, continued focus on operational efficiency, and synergies from the
MUB acquisition, partially offset by the impact of the FDIC special assessment
charge and higher compensation and employee benefits expense to support
business growth.

The provision for credit losses for the first quarter of 2024 of $553 million
was $126 million (29.5 percent) higher than the first quarter of 2023, driven by
normalization in the credit environment, partially offset by relative stability in the
economic outlook. Net charge-offs in the first quarter of 2024 were $488 million,
compared with $373 million in the first quarter of 2023. Refer to *Corporate Risk
Profile” for further information on the provision for credit losses, net charge-offs,
nonperforming assets and other factors considered by the Company in
assessing the credit quality of the loan portfolio and establishing the allowance
for credit losses.

Statement of Income Analysis

Net Interest Income Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent basis, was
$4.0 billion in the first quarter of 2024, representing a decrease of $653 million
(14.0 percent) compared with the first quarter of 2023. The decrease was
primarily due to the impact of higher interest rates on deposit

mix and pricing, partially offset by higher rates on earning assets. Average
eaming assets for the first quarter of 2024 were $11.5 billion (1.9 percent) lower
than the first quarter of 2023, reflecting decreases in loans and investment
securities, partially offset by an increase in interest-bearing deposits with banks.
The net interest margin, on a taxable-equivalent basis, in the first quarter of
2024 was 2.70 percent, compared with 3.10 percent in the first quarter of 2023.
The decrease in net interest margin from the first quarter of 2023 was primarily
due to the impact of deposit mix and pricing. Refer to the *Consolidated Daily
Average Balance Sheet and Related Yields and Rates” table for further
information on net interest income.

Average total loans in the first quarter of 2024 were $15.7 billion (4.1
percent) lower than the first quarter of 2023. The decrease was primarily due to
lower other retail loans, commercial loans and commercial real estate loans,
partially offset by higher credit card loans. Average other retail loans decreased
$9.9 billion (18.5 percent), driven by lower auto loans primarily due to balance
sheet repositioning and capital management actions taken in the second quarter
of 2023. Average commercial loans decreased $4.9 billion (3.6 percent)
primarily due to decreased demand as corporate customers accessed the
capital markets. Average commercial real estate loans decreased $2.6 billion
(4.6 percent) primarily due to payoffs exceeding a reduced level of new
originations. Average credit cards loans increased $2.4 billion (9.3 percent)
primarily driven by higher spend volume and lower payment rates.

Average investment securities in the first quarter of 2024 were $4.9 billion
(2.9 percent) lower than the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to balance sheet
repositioning and liquidity management.

Average total deposits for the first quarter of 2024 were $7.3 billion (1.4
percent) lower than the first quarter of 2023. Average noninterest-bearing
deposits for the first quarter of 2024 were $45.0 billion (34.6 percent) lower than
the first quarter of 2023, driven by decreases in Wealth, Corporate, Commercial
and Institutional Banking, and Consumer and Business Banking balances.
Average time deposits for the first quarter of 2024 were $19.7 billion (55.5
percent) higher than the first quarter of 2023, mainly due to increases in
Consumer and Business Banking balances, partially offset by decreases in
Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking balances. Changes in
time deposits are primarily related to those deposits managed as an alternative
to other funding sources, based largely on relative pricing and liquidity
characteristics. Average total savings deposits for the first quarter of 2024 were
$18.0 billion (5.2 percent) higher than the first quarter of 2023, driven by
increases in Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking, and
Consumer and Business Banking balances.

Provision for Credit Losses The provision for credit losses was $553 million in
the first quarter of 2024, compared with $427 million in the first quarter of 2023.
The $126 million (29.5
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percent) increase was driven by normalization in the credit environment, partially
offset by relative stability in the economic outlook. Net charge-offs increased
$115 million (30.8 percent) in the first quarter of 2024, compared with the first
quarter of 2023, reflecting higher charge-offs in most loan categories consistent
with normalizing credit conditions, partially offset by the impact of charge-offs in
the first quarter of 2023 related to the uncollectible amount of acquired loans
associated with the acquisition of MUB. Refer to "Corporate Risk Profile" for
further information on the provision for credit losses, net charge-offs,
nonperforming assets and other factors considered by the Company in
assessing the credit quality of the loan portfolio and establishing the allowance
for credit losses.

Noninterest Income Noninterest income was $2.7 billion in the first guarter of
2024, representing an increase of $193

.:IA B Noninterest Income

million (7.7 percent) compared with the first quarter of 2023. The increase from
the prior year reflected higher commercial products revenue, trust and
investment management fees, payment services revenue and mortgage banking
revenue. Commercial products revenue increased $54 million (16.2 percent)
primarily due to higher corporate bond fees. Trust and investment management
fees increased $51 million (8.6 percent), driven by business growth and
favorable market conditions. Payment services revenue increased $41 million
(4.4 percent) primarily due to higher card revenue driven by higher spend
volume and favorable rates, along with higher merchant processing services
revenue due to higher spend volume. Mortgage banking revenue increased $38
million (29.7 percent) primarily driven by higher gain on sale margins.

Three Months Ended

March 31

{Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 Eﬁ;%eg"e‘
Card revenue $ 392 § 360 8.9%
Corporate payment products revenue 184 189 (2.6)
Merchant processing services 401 387 3.6
Trust and investment management fees 641 580 8.6
Service charges 315 324 (2.8)
Commercial products revenue 388 334 16.2
Mortgage banking revenue 166 128 29.7
Investment products fees 77 68 13.2
Securities gains (losses), net 2 (32) v
Other 134 158 (15.7)

Total noninterest income $ 2,700 $ 2,507 77 %
* Not meaningful
Noninterest Expense

Three Monlhs Ended
March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 Eﬁracnegnet
Compensation and employee benefits $ 2691 % 2,646 1.7%
Net occupancy and equipment 296 321 (7.8)
Professional services 110 134 (17.9)
Marketing and business development 136 122 1.5
Technology and communications 507 503 8
Other intangibles 146 160 (8.8)
Other 418 425 (1.6)

Total before merger and integration charges 4,304 4,311 (.2)
Merger and integration charges 155 244 (36.5)

Total noninterest expense $ 4458 % 4,555 2.1%
Efficiency ratio®® 66.4 % 63.2 %
a) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures beginning on page 27.
U.S. Bancorp 5




Noninterest Expense Noninterest expense was $4.5 biflion in the first quarter
of 2024, representing a decrease of $96 million (2.1 percent) from the first
quarter of 2023. The decrease from the prior year reflected prudent expense
management, continued focus on operational efficiency, synergies from the
MUB acquisition and lower merger and integration charges, partially offset by
the impact of the FDIC special assessment and higher compensation and
employee benefits expense. Net occupancy and equipment expense decreased
$25 million (7.8 percent) and professional services expense decreased $24
million (17.9 percent), primarily due to continued focus on prudent expense
management and operational efficiency. Compensation and employee benefits
expense increased $45 million (1.7 percent) primarily due to merit increases,
higher performance-based incentives and higher employee benefits.

Income Tax Expense The provision for income taxes was $347 million (an
effective rate of 20.7 percent) for the first quarter of 2024, compared with $455
million (an effective rate of 21.1 percent) for the first quarter of 2023. For further
information on income taxes, refer to Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Loans The Company's loan portfolio was $374.6 billion at March 31, 2024,
compared with $373.8 billion at December 31, 2023, an increase of $753 million
(0.2 percent). The increase was driven by higher commercial loans and
residential mortgages, partially offset by lower other retail loans, commercial real
estate loans and credit card loans.

Commercial loans increased $2.8 billion (2.2 percent) at March 31, 2024,
compared with December 31, 2023, primarily due to growth in corporate
banking.

Residential mortgages held in the loan portfolio increased $548 million (0.5
percent) at March 31, 2024, compared with December 31, 2023, driven by
originations. Residential mortgages originated and placed in the Company's
loan portfolio include jumbo mortgages and branch-originated first lien home
equity loans to borrowers with high credit quality.

Other retail loans decreased $1.1 billion (2.6 percent) at March 31, 2024,
compared with December 31, 2023, primarily due to a decrease in auto loans.

Commercial real estate loans decreased $778 million (1.5 percent) at
March 31, 2024, compared with December 31, 2023, primarily due to payoffs
exceeding a reduced level of new originations.

Credit card loans decreased $716 million (2.5 percent) at March 31, 2024,
compared with December 31, 2023, primarily the result of customers seasonally
paying down balances.

The Company generally retains portfolio loans through maturity; however,
the Company's intent may change over

time based upon various factors such as ongoing asset/liability management
activities, assessment of product profitability, credit risk, liquidity needs, and
capital implications. If the Company’s intent or ability to hold an existing portfolio
loan changes, it is transferred to loans held for sale.

Loans Held for Sale Loans held for sale, consisting primarily of residential
mortgages to be sold in the secondary market, were $2.1 billion at March 31,
2024, compared with $2.2 billion at December 31, 2023. The decrease in loans
held for sale was principally due to a lower level of mortgage loan closings in the
first quarter of 2024, compared with the fourth quarter of 2023. Almost all of the
residential mortgage loans the Company originates ar purchases for sale follow
guidelines that allow the loans to be sold into existing, highly liquid secondary
markets, in particular in government agency transactions and to government-
sponsored enterprises (‘GSEs”).

Investment Securities Investment securities totaled $155.4 billion at March 31,
2024, compared with $153.8 billion at December 31, 2023. The $1.6 billion (1.1
percent) increase was primarily due to $2.1 billion of net investment purchases,
partially offset by a $173 million unfavorable change in net unrealized gains
(losses) on available-for-sale investment securities.

The Company’s available-for-sale investment securities are carried at fair
value with changes in fair value reflected in other comprehensive income (loss)
unless a portion of a security's unrealized loss is related to credit and an
allowance for credit losses is necessary. At March 31, 2024, the Company’s net
unrealized losses on available-for-sale investment securities were $7.1 billion
($5.3 billion net-of-tax), compared with $6.9 billion ($5.2 billion net-of-tax) at
December 31, 2023. The unfavorable change in net unrealized gains (losses)
was primarily due to decreases in the fair value of mortgage-backed and state
and political subdivisions securities as a result of changes in interest rates.
Gross unrealized losses on available-for-sale investment securities totaled $7.2
billion at March 31, 2024, compared with $7.1 billion at December 31, 2023.
When evaluating credit losses, the Company considers various factors such as
the nature of the investment security, the credit ratings or financial condition of
the issuer, the extent of the unrealized loss, expected cash flows of the
underlying collateral, the existence of any government or agency guarantees,
and market conditions. At March 31, 2024, the Company had no plans to sell
securities with unrealized losses, and believed it is more likely than not that it
would not be required to sell such securities before recovery of their amortized
cost.

Refer to Notes 3 and 14 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for further information on investment securities.

U.S. Bancorp




TABLE 4 Investment Securities

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Weighled- Weighled-
Average Average
Malurity in Weighted- Amortized Maturity in Weighted-
(Doliars in Millions) Amortized Cost Fair Value Years Average Yield Cost Fair Value Years Average Yield
Held-to-Maturity
U.S. Treasury and agencies $ 1,345 § 1,303 2.0 2.85 %S 1,345 § 1,310 2.3 2.85%
Mortgage-backed securitiest? 81,502 69,745 8.9 2.21 82,692 72,770 8.8 2.21
Other 101 101 2.8 2.79 8 8 2.8 2.56
Total held-to-maturity $ 82948 3 71,149 8.8 2.22%|5 84,045 § 74,088 8.7 2.22%
Available-for-Sale
U.S. Treasury and agencies $ 23,722 3 21,518 5.5 2.60 %% 21,768 $ 19,542 5.9 219 %
Mortgage-backed securities(® 38,501 34,777 6.5 3.33 36,895 33,427 6.3 3.09
Asset-backed securities® 6,218 6,204 2.4 5.31 6,713 6,724 2.2 5.33
Obligations of state and political subdivisions®¢) 10,826 9,787 11.2 3.75 10,867 9,989 8.9 3.75
Other 140 140 24 4,92 24 24 1.7 4.51
Total available-for-sale(® $ 79407 $ 72426 6.5 3.33 %% 76,267 $§ 68,706 6.3 3.12%

(a) Information related to asset and mortgage-backed securities included above is presented based upon weighted-average maturities that take info account anticipated future prepayments.
(b) Information rélated to obligations of state and polifical subdivisions is presented based upon yield to first optional call date if the security is purchased at a premium, and yiakd fo maturily if the securily is purchased st par or a discount.
fc) Maturily calculations for obligalions of state and polltical subdivisions ara based on the first optianal call dale for securities With a fair value above par and the contractual maturity date for securitiss with a fair value equal to or belaw par.

(d) Amortized cost excludes portfolio level basis adjustments of $88 million at March 31, 2024 and $335 million at December 31, 2023.
{e) Weighted-average ylelds for obligations of stale and polilical subdivisions are presented on a lully-taxable equivalent basis based on a federal income tax rate of 21 percent. Yields on i ities are Jo based on

cost b # g any pr ar

Deposits Total deposits were $528.1 billion at March 31, 2024, compared with
$512.3 billion at December 31, 2023. The $15.8 billion (3.1 percent) increase in
total deposits reflected increases in total savings deposits, time deposits and
noninterest-bearing deposits. Money market deposit balances increased

$11.6 billion (5.8 percent), primarily due to higher Consumer and Business
Banking, and Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking
balances. Interest checking balances increased $1.7 billion (1.3 percent),
primarily due to higher Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking
balances. Savings account balances decreased $2.5 billion (5.9 percent), driven
by lower Consumer and Business Banking balances. Time deposits increased
$3.8 billion (7.3 percent) at March 31, 2024, compared with December 31, 2023,
driven by higher Consumer and Business Banking balances. Changes in time
deposits are primarily related to those deposits managed as an alternative to
other funding sources, based largely on relative pricing and liquidity
characteristics. Noninterest-bearing deposits increased $1.2 billion (1.4 percent)
at March 31, 2024, compared with December 31, 2023, primarily due to the
impacts of seasonally higher trust and corporate deposit inflows and delays in
planned institutional deposit outflows at the end of the first quarter of 2024,
resulting in temporarily higher balances.

Borrowings The Company utilizes both short-term and long-term borrowings as
part of its asset/liability management and funding strategies. Short-term
borrowings, which include federal funds purchased, commercial paper,
repurchase agreements, borrowings secured by high-grade assets and other
short-term borrowings, were $17.1 billion at March 31,
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2024, compared with $15.3 billion at December 31, 2023. The $1.8 billion (11.9
percent) increase in short-term borrowings was primarily due to an increase in
repurchase agreement balances. Long-term debt was $52.7 billion at March 31,
2024, compared with $51.5 billion at December 31, 2023, The $1.2 billion (2.4
percent) increase was primarily due to $3.5 billion of medium-term note
issuances, partially offset by $2.1 billion of medium-term note repayments. Refer
to the “Liquidity Risk Management” section for discussion of liquidity
management of the Company.

Corporate Risk Profile

Overview Managing risks is an essential part of successfully operating a
financial services company. The Company's Board of Directors has approved a
risk management framework which establishes governance and risk
management requirements for all risk-taking activities. This framework includes
Company and business line risk appetite statements which set boundaries for
the types and amount of risk that may be undertaken in pursuing business
objectives and initiatives. The Board of Directors, primarily through its Risk
Management Committee, oversees performance relative to the risk
management framework, risk appetite statements, and other policy
requirements.

The Executive Risk Committee ("ERC"), which is chaired by the Chief Risk
Officer and includes the Chief Executive Officer and other members of the
executive management team, oversees execution against the risk management
framework and risk appetite statements. The ERC focuses on current and
emerging risks, including strategic and




reputation risks, by directing timely and comprehensive actions. Senior
operating committees have also been established, each responsible for
overseeing a specified category of risk.

The Company’s most prominent risk exposures are credit, interest rate,
market, liquidity, operational, compliance, strategic, and reputation. Credit risk is
the risk of loss associated with a change in the credit profile or the failure of a
borrower or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. Interest rate risk is
the current or prospective risk to earnings and capital, or market valuations,
arising from the impact of changes in interest rates. Market risk arises from
fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and security prices that
may result in changes in the values of financial instruments, such as trading and
available-for-sale investment securities, mortgage loans held for sale
("MLHFS"), mortgage servicing rights ("MSRs") and derivatives that are
accounted for on a fair value basis. Liquidity risk is the risk that financial
condition or overall safety and soundness is adversely affected by the
Company's inability, or perceived inability, to meet its cash flow obligations in a
timely and complete manner in either normal or stressed conditions. Operational
risk is the risk to current or projected financial condition and resilience arising
from inadequate or failed internal processes or systems, people (including
human errors or misconduct), or adverse external events, including the risk of
loss resulting from breaches in data security. Operational risk can also include
the risk of loss due to failures by third parties with which the Company does
business. Compliance risk is the risk that the Company may suffer legal or
regutatory sanctions, financial losses, and reputational damage if it fails to
adhere to compliance requiremients and the Company's compliance policies.
Strategic risk is the risk to current or projected financial condition and resilience
arising from adverse business decisions, poor implementation of business
decisions, or lack of responsiveness to changes in the banking industry and
operating environment. Reputation risk is the risk to current or anticipated
earnings, capital, or franchise or enterprise value arising from negative public
opinion. This risk may impair the Company’s competitiveness by affecting its
ability to establish new relationships or services, or continue serving existing
relationships. In addition to the risks identified above, other risk factors exist that
may impact the Company. Refer to "Risk Facters” in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, for a detailed
discussion of these factors.

The Company's Board and management-level governance committees are
supported by a “three lines of defense” model for establishing effective checks
and balances. The first line of defense, the business lines, manages risks in
conformity with established limits and policy requirements. In turn, business line
leaders and their risk officers establish programs to ensure conformity with
these limits and policy requirements. The second line of defense, which includes
the Chief Risk Officer's organization as well as policy and oversight activities of
corporate support functions, translates risk appetite and strategy into actionable
risk limits and policies. The second line of defense monitors first line of defense
conformity with limits and policies and

provides reporting and escalation of emerging risks and other concerns to senior
management and the Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors.
The third line of defense, internal audit, is responsible for providing the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors and senior management with independent
assessment and assurance regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s
governance, risk management and control processes.

Management regularly provides reports to the Risk Management Committee
of the Board of Directors. The Risk Management Committee discusses with
management the Company’s risk management performance and provides a
summary of key risks to the entire Board of Directors, covering the status of
existing matters, areas of potential future concern and specific information on
certain types of loss events. The Risk Management Committee considers
quarterly reports by management assessing the Company's performance
relative to the risk appetite statements and the associated risk fimits, including:

Macroeconomic environment and other qualitative considerations, such as
regulatory and compliance changes, litigation developments, geopolitical
events, and technology and cybersecurity;

Credit measures, including adversely rated and nonperforming loans,
leveraged transactions, credit concentrations and lending limits;

Interest rate and market risk, including market value and net income
simulation, and trading-related Value at Risk ("VaR”);

Liquidity risk, including funding projections under various stressed scenarios:

Operational and compliance risk, including losses stemming from events such
as fraud, processing errors, control breaches, breaches in data security or
adverse business decisions, as well as reporting on technology performance,
and various legal and regulatory compliance measures;

Capital ratios and projections, including regulatory measures and stressed
scenarios; and

Strategic and reputation risk considerations, impacts and responses.

Credit Risk Management The Company’s strategy for credit risk management
includes well-defined, centralized credit policies, uniform underwriting criteria,
and ongoing risk monitoring and review processes for all commercial and
consumer credit exposures. The strategy also emphasizes diversification on a
geographic, industry and customer level, regular credit examinations and
management reviews of loans exhibiting deterioration of credit quality. In
evaluating its credit risk, the Company considers changes, if any, in underwriting
activities, the loan portfolio composition (including product mix and geographic,
industry or customer-specific factors), collateral values, trends in loan
performance and macroeconomic factors, such as changes in unemployment
rates, gross domestic product levels, inflation, interest rates and consumer
bankruptcy filings. The Risk Management Committee oversees the Company’s
credit risk management process.
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In addition, credit quality ratings, as defined by the Company, are an
important part of the Company's overall credit risk management and evaluation
of its allowance for credit losses. Loans with a pass rating represent those loans
not classified on the Company's rating scale for problem credits, as minimal
credit risk has been identified. Loans with a special mention or classified rating,
including consumer lending and small business loans that are 90 days or more
past due and still accruing, nenaccrual loans and loans in a junior lien position
that are current but are behind a first lien position on nonaccrual, encompass all
loans held by the Company that it considers to have a potential or well-defined
weakness that may put full collection of contractual cash flows at risk. The
Company'’s internal credit quality ratings for consumer loans are primarily based
on delinquency and nonperforming status. Refer to Note 4 in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the Company’s loan
portfolios including internal credit quality ratings. In addition, refer to
"Management's Discussion and Analysis — Credit Risk Management” in the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2023, for a more detailed discussion on credit risk management processes.

The Company manages its credit risk, in part, through diversification of its
loan portfolio which is achieved through limit setting by product type criteria,
such as industry, and identification of credit concentrations. The Company
categorizes its loan portfolio into two segments, which is the level at which it
develops and documents a systematic methodology to determine the allowance
for credit losses. The Company's two loan portfolio segments are commercial
lending and consumer lending.

The commercial lending segment includes loans and leases made to small
business, middle market, large corporate, commercial real estate, financial
institution, non-profit and public sector customers. Key risk characteristics
relevant to commercial lending segment loans include the industry and
geography of the borrower’s business, purpose of the loan, repayment source,
borrower’s debt capacity and financial flexibility, loan covenants, and nature of
pledged collateral, if any, as well as macroeconomic factors such as
unemployment rates, gross domestic product levels, corporate bond spreads
and long-term interest rates. These risk characteristics, among others, are
considered in determining estimates about the likelihood of default by the *
borrowers and the severity of loss in the event of default. The Company
considers these risk characteristics in assigning internal risk ratings to, or
forecasting losses on, these loans, which are the significant factors in
determining the allowance for credit losses for loans in the commercial lending
segment.

The consumer lending segment represents loans and leases made to
consumer customers, including residential mortgages, credit card loans, and
other retail loans such as revolving consumer lines, auto loans and leases and
home equity loans and lines. Key risk characteristics relevant to consumer
lending segment loans primarily relate to the borrowers’ capacity and willingness
to repay and include unemployment rates, consumer bankruptcy filings,
household debt levels, real disposable income and other macroeconomic
factors, customer payment history and credit scores, effect of higher interest
rates on variable rate or
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adjustable rate loans, and in some cases, updated loan-to-value (“LTV")
information reflecting current market conditions on secured loans. These and
other risk characteristics are reflected in forecasts of delinquency levels,
bankruptcies and losses which are the primary factors in determining the
allowance for credit losses for the consumer lending segment.

The Company further disaggregates its loan portfolio segments into various
classes based on their underlying risk characteristics. The two classes within the
commercial lending segment are commercial loans and commercial real estate
loans. The three classes within the consumer lending segment are residential
mortgages, credit card loans and other retail loans.

The Company's consumer lending segment utilizes several distinct business
processes and channels to originate consumer credit, including traditional
branch lending, mobile and online banking, indirect lending, alliance
partnerships and correspondent banks. Each distinct underwriting and
origination activity manages unique credit risk characteristics and prices its loan
production commensurate with the differing risk profiles.

Residential mortgage originations are generally limited to prime borrowers
and are performed through the Company’s branches, loan production offices,
mobile and online services, and a wholesale network of originators. The
Company may retain residential mortgage loans it originates on its balance
sheet or sell the loans into the secondary market while retaining the servicing
rights and customer relationships. Utilizing the secondary markets enables the
Company to effectively reduce its credit and other asset/iability risks. For
residential mortgages that are retained in the Company'’s portfolio and for home
equity and second mortgages, credit risk is managed by adherence to LTV and
borrower credit criteria during the underwriting process.

The Company estimates updated LTV information on its outstanding
residential mortgages quarterly, based on a method that combines automated
valuation model updates and relevant home price indices. LTV is the ratio of the
loan's outstanding principal balance to the current estimate of property value.
For home equity and second mortgages, combined loan-to-value (“CLTV") is the
combination of the first mortgage original principal balance and the second lien
outstanding principal balance, relative to the current estimate of property value,
Certain loans do not have an LTV or CLTV, primarily due to lack of availability of
relevant automated valuation model and/or home price indices values, or lack of
necessary valuation data on acquired loans.




The following tables provide summary information of residential mortgages and
home equity and second mortgages by LTV at March 31, 2024:

Credit card and other retail loans are diversified across customer segments
and geographies. Diversification in the credit card portfolio is achieved with
broad customer relationship distribution through the Company'’s and financial
institution partners' branches, retail and affinity partners, and digital channels.

The following table provides a summary of the Company's credit card loan
balances disaggregated based upon updated credit score at March 31, 2024:
Percent of Total®

Residenlial Mortgages (Dollars in Percent of
Millions) Interest Only Amorlizing Total Total
Loan-to-Value
Lessthanorequalto80% $ 13,777 $ 85,892 § 99,669 85.9 %
Over 80% through 90% 377 7,357 7,734 6.7
Over 90% through 100% 42 1,418 1,460 1.2
Over 100% 10 548 558 5
No LTV available 1 8 9 —
Loans purchased from
GNMA mortgage pools‘® — 6,649 6,649 57
Total $ 14207 § 101,872 8 116,079 100.0 %

(a) Represents ioans purchased and loans that could be purchased from Government National Mortgage
A jon (“GNMAY) 'gage pools under deling loan rep options whose payments are
primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranleed by the United States Department of
Veeterans Affairs,

Home Equity and Second Mortgages

(Dallars in Millions) Lines Loans Total Percent of Tolal

Loan-to-Value / Combined
Loan-to-Value

Less than or equal to 80% $ 10,043 $ 1,920 § 11,963 92.5%
Over B0% through 90% 623 142 765 59
Over 90% through 100% 107 21 128 1.0
Over 100% 41 7 48 4
No LTV/CLTV available 27 1 28 2
Total $ 10,841 § 2,001 $§ 12,932 100.0 %

10

Credit score > 660 85 %
Credit score < 660 15
No credit score —_

(a) Credit score distribution excludes loans serviced by others

Loan Delinquencies Trends in delinquency ratios are an indicator, among other
considerations, of credit risk within the Company's loan portfolios. The entire
balance of a loan account is considered delinquent if the minimum payment
contractually required to be made is not received by the date specified on the
billing statement. Delinquent loans purchased and loans that could be
purchased from GNMA mortgage pools under delinquent loan repurchase
options, whose repayments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing
Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans
Affairs, are excluded from delinquency statistics.

Accruing loans 90 days or more past due totaled $714 million at March 31,
2024, compared with $698 million at December 31, 2023. Accruing loans 90
days or more past due are not included in nonperforming assets and continue to
accrue interest because they are adequately secured by collateral, are in the
process of collection and are reasonably expected to result in repayment or
restoration to current status, or are managed in homogeneous portfolios with
specified charge-off timeframes adhering to regulatory guidelines. The ratio of
accruing loans 90 days or more past due to total loans was 0.19 percent at
March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.
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Delinquent Loan Ratios as a Percent of Ending Loan Balances

March 31, December 31,
90 days or more past due 2024 2023
Commercial
Commercial .08 % .09 %
Lease financing — —_
Total commercial .08 .09
Commercial Real Estate
Commercial mortgages —_ —_
Construction and development .02 .03
Total commercial real estate —_ .01
Residential Mortgages@ 12 A2
Credit Card 1.42 1.31
Other Retail
Retail leasing .05 .05
Home equity and second mortgages .27 .26
Other .1 1
Total other retail .~ . B 15 .15
Total loans A9 % 19 %
March 31, December 31,
90 days or more past due and nonperforming loans 2024 2023
Commercial 49 % 37 %
Commercial real estate 1.71 1.46
Residential mortgages .26 .25
Credit card 1.42 1.31
Other retail 47 48
Total loans .66 % 57 %

(a) Delinquent loan ratios exclude $1.6 billion at March 31, 2024, and $2.0 billion at December 31, 2023, of loans purchased and loans that could be purchased from GNMA mortgage poals under delinquent loan repurchase options whose
repayments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing Adminisiration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs. including these loans, the ratio of residential mortgages 30 days or more past due and
nonperforming to fotal residential morigages was 1.85 percent at March 31, 2024, and 2.00 percent at December 31, 2023
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The following table provides summary delinquency information for residential mortgages, credit card and other retail loans included in the consumer lending segment:

Amount As a Percent of Ending Loan Balances
March 31, December 31, March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Residential Mortgages'®
30-89 days 3 143§ 169 2% A5 %
90 days or more 145 136 12 12
Nonperforming 155 158 A3 .14
Total $ 443 § 463 .38 .40
Credit Card
30-89 days $ 390 § 406 1.40 1.42
90 days or more 396 375 1.42 1.31
Nonperforming _ — — s
Total $ 786 % 781 2.82 2.73
Other Retail
Retail Leasing
30-88 days $ 21 % 25 .51 .60
90 days or more 2 .05 .05
Nonperforming 8 8 .19 .19
Total $ 31§ 35 75 .85
Home Equity and Second Mortgages
30-89 days $ 71 8 77 .55 .58
90 days or more 35 34 .27 .26
Nonperforming 112 113 .87 .87
Total $ 218 % 224 1.69 1.72
Other!d
30-89 days $ 144 % 176 .55 .65
90 days or more 29 31 A1 .1
Nonperforming 17 17 .06 .06
Total $ 190 § 224 73 .82

{a) Excludes $491 million of loans 30-89 days past due and $1,8 billion of loans 90 days of more past due at March 31, 2024, purchased and that could be purchased from GNMA mortgage pools under delinquent loan repurchase oplions

thal continue o accrue interest, compared with $595 million and $2,0 billion at D) 31, 2023,

(b) Includes revolving credit, installment and automobile loans.

Modified Loans In certain circumstances, the Company may modify the terms
of a loan to maximize the collection of amounts due when a borrower is
experiencing financial difficulties or is expected to experience difficulties in the
near-term. In most cases the modification is either a concessionary reduction in
interest rate, extension of the maturity date or reduction in the principal balance
that would otherwise not be considered.

Modified loans accrue interest if the borrower complies with the revised
terms and conditions and has demonstrated repayment performance at a level
commensurate with the modified terms over several payment cycles, which is
generally six months or greater.

The Company continues to work with customers to modify loans for
borrowers who are experiencing financial difficulties. Many of the Company's
loan modifications are determined on a case-by-case basis in connection with
ongoing loan coliection processes. The modifications vary within each of the
Company's loan classes. Commercial lending segment modifications generally
include extensions of the maturity date and may be accompanied by an increase
or decrease to the interest rate. The Company may
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also work with the borrower to make other changes to the loan to mitigate
losses, such as obtaining additional collateral and/or guarantees to support the
loan.

The Company has also implemented certain residential mortgage loan
medification programs. The Company modifies residential mortgage loans under
Federal Housing Administration, United States Department of Veterans Affairs,
and its own internal programs. Under these programs, the Company offers
qualifying homeowners the opportunity to permanently modify their loan and
achieve more affordable monthly payments. These modifications may include
adjustments to interest rates, conversion of adjustable rates to fixed rates,
extensions of maturity dates or deferrals of payments, capitalization of accrued
interest and/or outstanding advances, or in limited situations, partial forgiveness
of loan principal. In most instances, participation in residential mortgage loan
modification programs requires the customer to complete a short-term trial
period. A permanent loan modification is contingent on the customer
successfully completing the trial period arrangement, and the loan documents
are not modified until that time.
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Credit card and other retail loan madifications are generally part of distinct
modification programs providing customers modification solutions over a
specified time period, generally up to 60 months.

The Company also makes short-term modifications, in limited
circumstances, to assist borrowers experiencing temporary hardships. Short-
term consumer lending modification programs include payment reductions,
deferrals of up to three past due payments, and the ability to return to current
status if the borrower makes required payments. The Company may also make
short-term modifications to commercial lending loans, with the most common
modification being an extension of the maturity date of three months or less.
Such extensions generally are used when the maturity date is imminent and the
borrower is experiencing some level of financial stress, but the Company
believes the borrower will pay all contractual amounts owed.

Nonperforming Assets The level of nonperforming assets represents another
indicator of the potential for future credit losses. Nonperforming assets include
nonaccrual loans, modified loans not performing in accordance with modified
terms and not accruing interest, modified loans that have not met the
performance period required to return to accrual status, other real estate owned
("OREQ") and other
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nonperforming assets owned by the Company. Interest payments collected from
assets on nonaccrual status are generally applied against the principal balance
and not recorded as income. However, interest income may be recognized for
interest payments if the remaining carrying amount of the loan is believed to be
collectible.

At March 31, 2024, total nonperforming assets were $1.8 billion, compared
to $1.5 billion at December 31, 2023. The $292 million (19.5 percent) increase in
nonperforming assets was primarily due to higher nonperforming commercial
and commercial real estate loans, including the commercial real estate office
sector. Office nonperforming loans as a percent of total office loans increased to
10.0 percent at March 31, 2024, compared to 7.6 percent at December 31,
2023. The ratio of total nonperforming assets to total loans and other real estate
was 0.48 percent at March 31, 2024, compared with 0.40 percent at
December 31, 2023.

OREO was $25 million at March 31, 2024, compared with $26 million at
December 31, 2023, and was related to foreclosed properties that previously
secured loan balances. These balances exclude foreclosed GNMA loans whose
repayments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or
guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs.
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Nonperforming Assets®

March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Commercial
Commercial $ 522 § 349
Lease financing 27 27
Total commercial 549 376
Commercial Real Estate
Commercial mortgages 755 675
Construction and development 145 102
Total commercial real estate 900 777
Residential Mortgages® 155 158
Credit Card = =
Other Retail
Retail leasing 8 8
Home equity and second mortgages 112 113
Other 17 17
Total other retail 137 138
Total nonperforming loans™ 1,741 1,449
Other Real Estatelc 25 26
Other Assets 20 19
Total nonperforming assets $ 1,786 § 1,494
Accruing loans 90 days or more past duef® $ 714§ 698
Period-end loans? ' $ 374,585 § 373,835
Nonperforming loans to total loans!"2 A48 % 39 %
Nonperforming assets to total loans plus other real estatef® 48 % 40 %
Changes in Nonperforming Assets
Commercial and Residenlial Mortgages,
(Dollars in Millions) Commercial Real Estate Credit Card and Other Retail Total
Balance December 31, 2023 $ 1,155 § 339 § 1,494
Additions to nonperforming assets
New nonaccrual loans and foreclosed properties 528 50 578
Advances on loans 6 — 6
Total additions 534 50 584
Reductions in nonperforming assets
Paydowns, payoffs (73) (16) (88)
Net sales — (8) (8)
Return to performing status (66) (25) (91)
Charge-offs'® (100) (4) (104)
Total reductions (239) (53) (292)
Net additions to (reductions in) nonperforming assets 285 (3) 292
Balance March 31, 2024 $ 1,450 $ 336 § 1,786

(a) Throughout this document, nonperforming assets and related ralios do not include accruing loans 90 days or more past due.

(b) Excludes $1.8 billion at March 31, 2024, and $2.0 billion at December 31, 2023, of loans purchased and loans that could be purchased from GNMA mortgage pools under delinquent loan repurchase options that are 90 days or more past
due that continue to accrue interest, as their repayments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Velerans Affairs.

(c) Foreclosed GNMA loans of $43 million at March 31, 2024, and $47 million at December 31, 2023, continue to accrue inferest and are recorded as other assets and excluded from nonperforming assets because they are insured by the
Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United Stales Department of Velerans Affairs.

(d) Charge-offs exclude actions for certain card producls and loan sales that were not classified as nonperforming at the time the charge-off occurred.
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Net Charge-offs as a Percent of Average Loans Outstanding

Three Months Ended March 31

2024 2023
Average Loan Average Loan
(Dollars in Millions) Balance  Net Charge-offs Percent Balance  Net Charge-offs Percent
Commercial
Commercial 5 126,602 $ 109 35 %|$ 131,227 § 42 13 %
Lease financing 4,165 74 .68 4,456 5 46
Total commercial 130,767 116 .36 135,683 47 .14
Commercial Real Estate
Commercial mortgages 41,545 15 .15 43,627 115 1.07
Construction and development 11,492 6 .21 11,968 2 07
Total commercial real estate 53,037 21 .16 55,595 17 .85
Residential Mortgages 115,639 - — 116,287 (&) —
Credit Card 27,842 296 4,30 25,569 175 2.78
Other Retail
Retail leasing 4,082 5 49 5,241 1 .08
Home equity and second mortgages 12,983 -_ —_ 12,774 (1) (.03)
Other 26,620 50 .76 35,601 35 .40
Total other retail 43,685 55 .51 53,616 35 .26
Total loans $ 371,070 $ 488 .53 %|$ 386,750 $ 373 39 %

Analysis of Loan Net Charge-offs Total loan net charge-offs were $488 million
for the first quarter of 2024, compared with $373 million for the first quarter of
2023. The $115 million (30.8 percent) increase refiected higher charge-offs in
most loan categories consistent with normalizing credit conditions, partially
offset by the impact of charge-offs in the first quarter of 2023 related to the
uncollectible amount of acquired loans associated with the acquisition of MUB.
The ratio of total loan net charge-offs to average loans outstanding on an
annualized basis for the first quarter of 2024 was 0.53 percent, compared with
0.39 percent for the first quarter of 2023.

Analysis and Determination of the Allowance for Credit Losses The
allowance for credit losses is established for current expected credit losses on
the Company’s loan and lease portfolio, including unfunded credit commitments.
The allowance considers expected losses for the remaining lives of the
applicable assets, inclusive of expected recoveries. The allowance for credit
losses is increased through provisions charged to earnings and reduced by net
charge-offs.

Management evaluates the appropriateness of the allowance for credit
losses on a quarterly basis. Multiple economic scenarios are considered over a
three-year reasonable and supportable forecast period, which includes
increasing consideration of historical loss experience over years two and three.
These economic scenarios are constructed with interrelated projections of
multiple economic variables, and loss estimates are produced that consider the
historical correlation of those economic variables with credit losses. After the
forecast period, the Company fully reverts to long-term historical loss
experience, adjusted for
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prepayments and characteristics of the current loan and lease portfolio, to
estimate losses over the remaining life of the portfolio. The economic scenarios
are updated at least quarterly and are designed to provide a range of
reasonable estimates from better to worse than current expectations. Scenarios
are weighted based on the Company's expectation of economic conditions for
the foreseeable future and reflect significant judgment and consideration of
economic forecast uncertainty. Final loss estimates also consider factors
affecting credit losses not reflected in the scenarios, due to the unique aspects
of current conditions and expectations. These factors may include, but are not
limited to, changes in borrower behavior or conditions in specific lending
segments, loan servicing practices, regulatory guidance, and/or fiscal and
monetary policy actions.

Because business processes and credit risks associated with unfunded
credit commitments are essentially the same as for loans, the Company utilizes
similar processes to estimate its liability for unfunded credit commitments, which
is included in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Both the
allowance for loan losses and the liability for unfunded credit commitments are
included in the Company’s analysis of credit losses and reported reserve ratios.

The allowance recorded for credit losses utilizes forward-looking expected
loss models to consider a variety of factors affecting lifetime credit losses. These
factors include, but are not limited to, macroeconomic variables such as
unemployment rates, real estate prices, gross domestic product levels, inflation,
interest rates, and corporate bond spreads, as well as loan and borrower
characteristics, such as internal risk ratings on commercial loans and consumer
credit scores, delinquency status, collateral type and




available valuation information, consideration of end-of-term losses on lease
residuals, and the remaining term of the loan, adjusted for expected
prepayments. For each loan portfolio, including those loans modified under
various loan modification programs, model estimates are adjusted as necessary
to consider any relevant changes in portfolio composition, lending policies,
underwriting standards, risk management practices, economic conditions or
other factors that may affect the accuracy of the model. Expected credit loss
estimates also include consideration of expected cash recoveries on loans
previously charged-off or expected recoveries on collateral-dependent loans
where recovery is expected through sale of the collateral at fair value less
selling costs. Where loans do not exhibit similar risk characteristics, an
individual analysis is performed to consider expected credit losses.

The allowance recorded for individually evaluated loans greater than $5
million in the commercial lending segment is based on an analysis utilizing
expected cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate, the
observable market price of the loan, or the fair value of the collateral, less selling
costs, for collateral-dependent loans as appropriate.

When evaluating the appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses for
any loans and lines in a junior lien position, the Company considers the
delinguency and modification status of the first lien, based on either servicing
data for first lien accounts serviced by the Company or the status of first lien
mortgage accounts reported on customer credit bureau files when the first lien is
not serviced by the Company. This information is considered within the overall
assessment of economic conditions, problem loans, recent loss experience and
other factors in determining the allowance for credit losses.

When a loan portfolio is purchased, the acquired loans are divided into those
considered purchased with more than insignificant credit deterioration ("PCD")
and those not considered PCD. An allowance is established for each population
and considers product mix, risk characteristics of the portfolio and delinquency
status and refreshed LTV ratios when possible. PCD loans also consider
whether the loan has experienced a charge-off, bankruptcy or significant
deterioration since origination. The allowance established for purchased loans
not considered PCD is recognized through provision expense upon acquisition,
whereas the allowance established for loans considered PCD at acquisition is
offset by an increase in the basis of the acquired loans. Any subsequent
increases and decreases in the allowance related to purchased loans,
regardless of PCD status, are recognized through provision expense, with
charge-offs charged to the allowance. The Company had a total net book
balance of $3.0 billion of PCD loans, primarily related to the MUB acquisition,
included in its loan portfolioc at March 31, 2024.

The Company's methodology for determining the appropriate allowance for
credit losses also considers the imprecision inherent in the methodologies used
and allocated to the various loan portfolios. As a result, amounts determined
under the methodologies described above are adjusted by management to
consider the potential impact of other qualitative factors not captured in
quantitative model
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adjustments which include, but are not limited to, the following: model
imprecision, imprecision in economic scenario assumptions, and emerging risks
related to either changes in the economic environment that are affecting specific
portfolios, or changes in portfolio concentrations over time that may affect madel
performance. The consideration of these items results in adjustments to
allowance amounts included in the Company’s allowance for credit losses for
each loan portfolio.

Although the Company determined the amount of each element of the
allowance separately and considers this process to be an important credit
management tool, the entire allowance for credit losses is available for the entire
loan portfolio. The actual amount of losses can vary significantly from the
estimated amounts.

At March 31, 2024, the allowance for credit losses was $7.9 billion,
compared with an allowance of $7.8 billion at December 31, 2023. The $65
million (0.8 percent) increase in the allowance for credit losses at March 31,
2024, compared with December 31, 2023, was primarily driven by credit
migration in consumer and small business cards. The Company continued to
monitor economic uncertainty related to high interest rates, persistent
inflationary pressures and other economic factors that affect the financial
strength of corporate and consumer borrowers. Commercial real estate
valuations were also affected by rising interest rates and the changing demand
for office properties. The Company has monitored the commercial real estate
office portfolio and established an allowance to loan coverage ratio of
approximately 10 percent at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. In
addition to these broad economic factors, expected loss estimates considered
various factors including customer specific information impacting changes in risk
ratings, projected delinguencies and the impact of economic deterioration on
selected borrowers' liquidity and ability to repay.

The ratio of the allowance for credit losses to period-end loans was 2.11
percent at March 31, 2024, compared with 2.10 percent at December 31, 2023.
The ratio of the allowance for credit losses to nonperforming loans was 454
percent at March 31, 2024, compared with 541 percent at December 31, 2023.
The ratio of the allowance for credit losses to annualized loan net charge-offs
was 403 percent at March 31, 2024, compared with 411 percent of full year
2023 net charge-offs at December 31, 2023.

Economic conditions considered in estimating the allowance for credit losses
at March 31, 2024 included changes in projected gross domestic product and
unemployment levels. These factors were evaluated through a combination of
quantitative calculations using multiple economic scenarios and additional
qualitative assessments that considered the degree of economic uncertainty in
the current environment. The projected unemployment rates for 2024
considered in the estimate range from 3.1 percent to 7.7 percent.
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The following table summarizes the baseline forecast for key economic
variables the Company used in its estimate of the allowance for credit losses at

March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

March 31, December 31,
2024 2023
United States unemployment rate for the
three months ending'®
March 31, 2024 3.8 % 3.9%
December 31, 2024 4.0 4.0
United States real gross domestic product for
the three months ending®
March 31, 2024 29% 22%
December 31, 2024 1.5 1.3

(8) Reflects quarterly average of forecasted reported United States unemployment rale.

(b) Reflects year-over-year growih rates,
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The allowance for credit losses related to commercial lending segment loans
increased $49 million during the first quarter of 2024, reflecting credit
downgrades in commercial and commercial real estate portfolios.

The allowance for credit losses related to consumer lending segment loans
increased $16 million during the first quarter of 2024, due to credit migration in
credit card portfolios, partially offset by reduced portfolio exposures.




Summary of Allowance for Credit Losses

Three Months Ended March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of period 7838 § 7,404
Change in accounting principle® —_ (62)
Allowance for acquired credit losses® —_ 127
Charge-Offs
Commercial
Commercial 129 56
Lease financing 10 7
Total commercial 139 63
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages 28 121
Construction and development 6 2
Total commercial real estate 34 123
Residential mortgages 4 4
Credit card 337 215
Other retail
Retail leasing 8 5
Home equity and second mortgages 4 2
Other 63 57
Total olher retalil 81 84
Total charge-offs'® 595 469
Recoveries
Commercial
Commercial 20 14
Lease financing 3 2
Total commercial 23 16
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages 13 6
Conslruction and development — —
Total commercial real estate 13 5]
Residential mortgages 4 5
Credit card 41 40
Other retail
Retail leasing 3 4
Home equity and second mortgages 4 3
Other 19 22
Total other retail 26 29
Total recoveries 107 96
Net Charge-Offs
Commercial
Commercial 109 42
Lease financing 7 5
Total commercial 116 47
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages 15 115
Construction and development 6 2
Total commercial real estate 21 17
Residential mortgages — (1)
Credit card 296 175
Other retail
Retail leasing 5 1
Home equity and second mortgages — 1
Other 50 35
Total other retail 55 35
Total net charge-offs 488 373
Provision for credit losses 553 427
Balance at end of period 7904 § 7,523
Components
Allowance for loan losses 7514 § 7,020
Liability for unfunded credit commitments 380 503
Total allowance for credit lossest® 7904 § 7,523
Period-end loans®@ 374588 § 387,866
Nonperforming loans® 1,741 1,139
Allowance for Credit Losses as a Percentage of
Period-end loans12 211 % 1.94 %
Nonperforming loans("3) 454 660
Nonperforming and accruing loans 90 days or more past due 322 461



Nonperforming assets 443 637
Annualized net charge-offs 403 497

(a) Effective January 1, 2023, the Company adopied g gui which the separate recognition and measurement of troubled debt restructurings.
(b) Alownnce far purchased credt deleriorated and charged-off loans acquired from MUB.
{c) Includes 391 millian of charge-offs in the first quarter of 2023 related to uncollectible amounts on acquired loans
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Residual Value Risk Management The Company manages its risk to changes
in the residual value of leased vehicles, office and business equipment, and
other assets through disciplined residual valuation at the inception of a lease,
diversification of its leased assets, regular residual asset valuation reviews and
monitoring of residual value gains or losses upon the disposition of assets. As of
March 31, 2024, no significant change in the amount of residual values or
concentration of the portfolios had occurred since December 31, 2023, Refer to
"Management's Discussion and Analysis — Residual Value Risk Management”
in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2023, for further discussion on residual value risk management.

Operational Risk Management The Company operates in many different
businesses in diverse markets and relies on the ability of its employees and
systems to process a high number of transactions. Operational risk is inherent in
all business activities, and the management of this risk is important to the
achievement of the Company's objectives. Business lines have direct and
primary responsibility and accountability for identifying, controlling, and
monitoring operational risks embedded in their business activities, including
those additional or increased risks created by economic and financial
disruptions.

The Company maintains a system of controls with the objective of providing
proper transaction authorization and execution, proper system operations,
proper oversight of third parties with whom it does business, safeguarding of
assets from misuse or theft, and ensuring the reliability and security of financial
and other data. The Company also maintains a cybersecurity risk program
which provides centralized planning and management of related and
interdependent work with a focus on risks from cybersecurity threats. The
Company's cybersecurity risk program is integrated into the Company's overall
business and operational strategies and requires that the Company allocate
appropriate resources to maintain the program. Refer to “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — Operational Risk Management” in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, for further
discussion on operational risk management.

Compliance Risk Management The Company may suffer legal or regulatory
sanctions, material financial loss, or damage to its reputation if it fails to comply
with laws, regulations, rules, standards of good practice, and codes of conduct,
including those related to compliance with Bank Secrecy Act/anti-money
laundering requirements, sanctions compliance requirements as administered
by the Office of Foreign Assets Control, consumer protection and other
requirements. The Company has controls and processes in place for the
assessment, identification, monitoring, management and reporting of
compliance risks and issues, including those created or increased by economic
and financial disruptions. Refer to "Management's Discussion and Analysis —
Compliance Risk Management” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2023, for further discussion on compliance risk
management.
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Interest Rate Risk Management In the banking industry, changes in interest
rates are a significant risk that can impact earnings as well as the safety and
soundness of an entity. The Company manages its exposure to changes in
interest rates through asset and liability management activities within guidelines
established by its Asset Liability Management Committee ("ALCO") and
approved by the Board of Directors. The ALCO has the responsibility for
approving and overseeing compliance with the ALCO management policies,
including interest rate risk exposure. One way the Company measures and
analyzes its interest rate risk is through analysis of net interest income
sensitivities across a range of scenarios.

Net interest income sensitivity analysis includes evaluating all of the
Company’s assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments, inclusive of
new business activity under various interest rate scenarios that differ in the
direction, amount and speed of change over time, as well as the overall shape
of the yield curve. The balance sheet includes assumptions regarding loan and
deposit volumes and pricing which are based on quantitative analysis, historical
trends and management outlook and strategies. Deposit balances, mix and
pricing are dynamic across interest rate scenarios and will change both with the
absolute level of rates as well as the assumed interest rate shock. Deposit
pricing changes, commonly referred to as the deposit beta, represents the
amount by which the Company's interest-bearing deposit rates have or will
change given a change in short-term market rates. Base case and net interest
income sensitivities are reviewed monthly by the ALCO and are used to guide
asset/liability management strategies.

The Company also manages interest rate sensitivity by utilizing market value
of equity modeling, which measures the degree to which the market values of
the Company's assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments will
change given a change in interest rates. Management measures the impact of
changes in market values due to interest rates under a number of scenarios,
including immediate and sustained parallel shifts, and flattening or steepening of
the yield curve. The Company manages its interest rate risk position by holding
assets with desired interest rate risk characteristics on its balance sheet,
executing certain pricing strategies for loans and deposits and deploying
investment portfolio, funding and derivative strategies.

Table 9 summarizes the projected impact to net interest income over the
next 12 months of various potential interest rate changes. The sensitivity of the
projected impact to net interest income over the next 12 months is dependent on
balance sheet growth, product mix, deposit behavior, pricing and funding
decisions. From December 31, 2023 to March 31, 2024, interest rate sensitivity
to higher rates decreased, primarily due to changes in deposit composition and
rates paid on deposits as a result of the elevated interest rate environment
throughout the first quarter of 2024. As of March 31, 2024, the Company is
relatively neutral to further parallel upward moves in interest rates while the
sensitivity to lower rates has improved driven by the projected repricing of the
deposit portfolio in declining rate scenarios. While the Company utilizes models
and assumptions based on historical information and expected behaviors, actual
outcomes could vary significantly.
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Sensitivity of Net Interest Income

March 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Down 50 bps
Immediate Up 50 bps Immediate

Down 200 bps
Gradual Up 200 bps Gradual

Down 50 bps
Immediate Up 50 bps Immediate

Down 200 bps
Gradual Up 200 bps Gradual

Net interest income .32 % 21 % 1.03 %

(.33)% (.19)% 71 % (. 15)% 91 %

Use of Derivatives to Manage Interest Rate and Other Risks To manage the
sensitivity of earnings and capital to interest rate, prepayment, credit, price and
foreign currency fluctuations (asset and liability management positions), the
Company enters into derivative transactions. The Company uses derivatives for
asset and liability management purposes primarily in the following ways:

To convert fixed-rate debt and available-for-sale investment securities from
fixed-rate payments to floating-rate payments;

To convert floating-rate loans and debt from floating-rate payments to fixed-
rate payments;

To mitigate changes in value of the Company's unfunded mortgage loan
commitments, funded MLHFS and MSRs;

To mitigate remeasurement volatility of foreign currency denominated
balances; and

To mitigate the volatility of the Company's net investment in foreign operations
driven by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

In addition, the Company enters into interest rate, foreign exchange and
commodity derivative contracts to support the business requirements of its
customers (customer-related positions). The Company minimizes the market
and liquidity risks of customer-related positions by either entering into similar
offsetting positions with broker-dealers, or on a portfolio basis by entering into
other derivative or non-derivative financial instruments that partially or fully offset
the exposure from these customer-related positions. The Company may enter
into derivative contracts that are either exchange-traded, centrally cleared
through clearinghouses or over-the-counter. The Company does not utilize
derivatives for speculative purposes.

The Company does not designate all of the derivatives that it enters into for
risk management purposes as accounting hedges because of the inefficiency of
applying the accounting requirements and may instead elect fair value
accounting for the related hedged items. In particular, the Company enters into
interest rate swaps, swaptions, forward commitments to buy to-be-announced
securities ("TBAs"), U.S. Treasury and Eurodollar futures and options on U.S,
Treasury futures to mitigate fluctuations in the value of its MSRs, but does not
designate those derivatives as accounting hedges. Refer to Note 6 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding MSRs,
including management of the changes in fair value.

Additionally, the Company uses forward commitments to sell TBAs and other
commitments to sell residential mortgage loans at specified prices to
economically hedge the interest rate risk in its residential mortgage loan
production activities. The forward commitments to sell and the unfunded
mortgage
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loan commitments on loans intended to be sold are considered derivatives
under the accounting guidance related to accounting for derivative instruments
and hedging activities. The Company has elected the fair value option for the
MLHFS.

Derivatives are subject to credit risk associated with counterparties to the
contracts. Credit risk associated with derivatives is measured by the Company
based on the probability of counterparty default. The Company manages the
credit risk of its derivative positions by diversifying its positions among various
counterparties, by entering into master netting arrangements, and, where
possible, by requiring collateral arrangements. The Company may also transfer
counterparty credit risk related to interest rate swaps to third parties through the
use of risk participation agreements. In addition, certain interest rate swaps,
interest rate forwards and credit contracts are required to be centrally cleared
through clearinghouses to further mitigate counterparty credit risk. The
Company also mitigates the credit risk of its derivative positions, as well as the
credit risk on loans or lending portfolios, through the use of credit contracts.

For additional information on derivatives and hedging activities, refer to
Notes 12 and 13 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Market Risk Management In addition to interest rate risk, the Company is
exposed to other forms of market risk, principally related to trading activities
which support customers' strategies to manage their own foreign currency,
interest rate risk, commodities risk and funding activities. For purposes of its
internal capital adequacy assessment process, the Company considers risk
arising from its trading activities, as well as the remeasurement volatility of
foreign currency denominated balances included on its Consolidated Balance
Sheet (collectively, “Covered Positions”), emplaying methodologies consistent
with the requirements of regulatory rules for market risk. The Company's Market
Risk Committee ("MRC"), within the framework of the ALCO, oversees market
risk management. The MRC monitors and reviews the Company's Covered
Positions and establishes policies for market risk management, including
exposure limits for each portfolio. The Company uses a VaR approach to
measure general market risk. Theoretically, VaR represents the statistical risk of
loss the Company has to adverse market movements over a one-day time
horizon. The Company uses the Historical Simulation method to calculate VaR
for its Covered Positions measured at the ninety-ninth percentile using a one-
year look-back period for distributions derived from past market data. The
market factors used in the calculations include those pertinent to market risks
inherent in the underlying trading portfolios, principally those that affect the
Company'’s corporate bond trading business, foreign currency transaction
business, client derivatives
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business, loan trading business and municipal securities business, as well as
those inherent in the Company’s foreign denominated balances and the
derivatives used to mitigate the related measurement volatility. On average, the
Company expects the one-day VaR to be exceeded by actual losses two to
three times per year related to these positions. The Company monitors the
accuracy of internal VaR models and modeling processes by back-testing model
performance, regularly updating the histerical data used by the VaR models and
regular model validations to assess the accuracy of the models' input,
processing, and reporting components. All models are required to be
independently reviewed and approved prior to being placed in use. If the
Company were to experience market losses in excess of the estimated VaR
more often than expected, the VaR models and associated assumptions would
be analyzed and adjusted.

The average, high, low and period-end one-day VaR amounts for the
Company's Covered Positions were as follows:
Three Months Ended March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Average $ 39 5
High 4 6
Low 2 4
Period-end 3 5

trader marks are evaluated against third-party prices, with significant variances
approved by senior management in the Company’s corporate functions.

The Company also measures the market risk of its hedging activities related
to residential MLHFS and MSRs using the Historical Simulation method. The
VaRs are measured at the ninety-ninth percentile and employ factors pertinent
to the market risks inherent in the valuation of the assets and hedges. A one-
year look-back period is used to obtain past market data for the models.

The average, high and low VaR amounts for the residential MLHFS and related
hedges and the MSRs and related hedges were as follows:
Three Months Ended March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Residential Mortgage LLoans Held For Sale and Related
Hedges
Average 3 18 1
High 2 1
Low 1 —
Mortgage Servicing Rights and Related Hedges
Average $ 33 8
High 3 12
Low 2 4

The Company did not experience any actual losses for its combined
Covered Positions that exceeded VaR during the three months ended March 31,
2024 and 2023. The Company stress tests its market risk measurements to
provide management with perspectives on market events that may not be
captured by its VaR models, including worst case historical market movement
combinations that have not necessarily occurred on the same date.

The Company calculates Stressed VaR using the same underlying
methodology and model as VaR, except that a historical continuous one-year
look-back period is utilized that reflects a period of significant financial stress
appropriate to the Company’s Covered Positions. The period selected by the
Company includes the significant market volatility of the last four months of
2008.

The average, high, low and period-end one-day Stressed VaR amounts for the
Company's Covered Positions were as follows:
Three Months Ended March 31

{Dallars in Millions) 2024 2023
Average $ 9% 12
High 12 16
Low 7 10
Period-end 10 14

Valuations of positions in client derivatives and foreign currency activities are
based on discounted cash flow or other valuation techniques using market-
based assumptions. These valuations are compared to third-party quotes or
other market prices to determine if there are significant variances. Significant
variances are approved by senior management in the Company’s corporate
functions. Valuation of positions in the corporate bond trading, loan trading and
municipal securities businesses are based on trader marks. These
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Liquidity Risk Management The Company’s liquidity risk management process
is designed to identify, measure, and manage the Company's funding and
liquidity risk to meet its daily funding needs and to address expected and
unexpected changes in its funding requirements. The Company engages in
various activities to manage its liquidity risk. These activities include diversifying
its funding sources, stress testing, and holding readily-marketable assets which
can be used as a source of liquidity if needed. In addition, the Company’s
profitable operations, sound credit quality and strong credit ratings and capital
position have enabled it to develop a large and reliable base of core deposit
funding within its market areas and in domestic and global capital markets.

The Company’s Board of Directors approves the Company’s liquidity policy.
The Risk Management Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors
oversees the Company’s liquidity risk management process and approves a
contingency funding plan. The ALCO reviews the Company’s liquidity policy and
limits, and regularly assesses the Company's ability to meet funding
requirements arising from adverse company-specific or market events.

The Company regularly projects its funding needs under various stress
scenarios and maintains a contingency funding plan consistent with the
Company’s access to diversified sources of contingent funding. The Company
maintains a substantial level of total available liquidity in the form of on-balance
sheet and off-balance sheet funding sources. These liquidity sources include
cash at the Federal Reserve Bank and certain European central banks,
unencumbered liquid assets, and capacity to borrow from the Federal Home
Loan Bank ("FHLB") and at the Federal Reserve Bank’s Discount Window.
Unencumbered liquid
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assets in the Company's investment securities portfolio provide asset liquidity
through the Company's ability to sell the securities or pledge and borrow against
themn. Refer to Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and
“Balance Sheet Analysis” for further information on investment securities
maturities and trends. Asset liquidity is further enhanced by the Company's
practice of pledging loans to access secured borrowing facilities through the
FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank.

The following table summarizes the Company’s total available liquidity from on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet funding sources:

March 31, December 31,

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Cash held at the Federal Reserve

Bank and other central banks $ 68,945 $ 52,403
Available investment securities 52,359 34,220
Borrowing capacity from the

Federal Reserve Bank and

FHLB 177,811 215,763

Total available liquidity $ 299,115 § 302,386

Borrowing capacity from the Federal Reserve Bank and FHLB declined from
December 31, 2023 to March 31, 2024 primarily due to the expiration of the
Federal Reserve Bank's Bank Term Funding Program (“BTFP"). This decline
was partially offset by an increase in available investment securities as a portion
of the securities previously pledged through the BTFP were made available for
sale or pledging. Cash increased from December 31, 2023 primarily driven by
customer deposit inflows.

The Company'’s diversified deposit base provides a sizeable source of
relatively stable and low-cost funding, while reducing the Company's reliance on
the wholesale markets. Total deposits were $528.1 billion at March 31, 2024,
compared with $512.3 billion at December 31, 2023, Average first quarter 2024
noninterest-bearing deposit balances reflected decreases of 34.6 percent and
6.4 percent compared with the first quarter of 2023 and fourth quarter of 2023,
respectively. These decreases reflected the continuing shift of noninterest-
bearing balances into interest-bearing deposit products resulting from the higher
interest rate environment. Average total deposits for both the first quarter of
2024 and 2023 funded approximately 77 percent of the Company's total assets
of these same periods, respectively. Refer to "Balance Sheet Analysis” for
further information on the Company's deposits.

Additional funding is provided by long-term debt and short-term borrowings.
Long-term debt was $52.7 billion at March 31, 2024, and is an important funding
source because of its multi-year borrowing structure. Short-term borrowings
were $17.1 billion at March 31, 2024, and supplement the Company'’s other
funding sources. Refer to “Balance Sheet Analysis” for further information on the
Company's long-term debt and short-term borrowings.

In addition to assessing liquidity risk on a consolidated basis, the Company
monitors the parent company’s liquidity. The parent company'’s routine funding
requirements consist primarily of operating expenses, dividends paid to
shareholders, debt service, repurchases of common stock
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and funds used for acquisitions. The parent company obtains funding to meet its
obligations from dividends collected from its subsidiaries and the issuance of
debt and capital securities. The Company establishes limits for the minimal
number of months into the future where the parent company can meet existing
and forecasted obligations with cash and securities held that can be readily
monetized. The Company measures and manages this limit in both normal and
adverse conditions. The Company maintains sufficient funding to meet expected
capital and debt service obligations for 24 months without the support of
dividends from subsidiaries and assuming access to the wholesale markets is
maintained. The Company maintains sufficient liquidity to meet its capital and
debt service obligations for 12 months under adverse conditions without the
support of dividends from subsidiaries or access to the wholesale markets. The
parent company is currently in excess of required liquidity minimums.

At March 31, 2024, parent company long-term debt outstanding was $35.7
billion, compared with $34.3 billion at December 31, 2023. The increase was
primarily due to $3.5 billion of medium-term note issuances, partially offset by
$2.1 billion of medium-term note repayments. As of March 31, 2024, there was
$3.6 billion of parent company debt scheduled to mature in the remainder of
2024. Future debt maturities may be met through medium-term note and capital
security issuances and dividends from subsidiaries, as well as from parent
company cash and cash equivalents.

The Company is subject to a regulatory Liquidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR")
requirement which requires large banking organizations to maintain an adequate
level of unencumbered high quality liquid assets to meet estimated liquidity
needs over a 30-day stressed period. For the three months ended March 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company's average daily LCR was 109.4
percent and 109.2 percent, respectively. The Company was compliant with this
requirement for both of these periods.

The Company is also subject to a regulatory Net Stable Funding Ratio
("NSFR”) requirement which requires large banking organizations to maintain a
minimum level of stable funding based on the liquidity characteristics of their
assets, commitments, and derivative exposures over a one-year time horizon.
The Company was compliant with this requirement at March 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023.

Refer to “Management's Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity Risk
Management” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2023, for further discussion on liquidity risk management.

European Exposures The Company provides merchant processing and
corporate trust services in Europe either directly or through banking affiliations in
Europe. Revenue generated from sources in Europe represented approximately
2 percent of the Company’s total net revenue for the three months ended

March 31, 2024. Operating cash for these businesses is deposited on a short-
term basis typically with certain European central banks. For deposits placed at
other European banks, exposure is mitigated by the Company placing deposits
at multiple banks and managing the amounts on deposit at any bank based on
institution-specific deposit limits. At March 31, 2024, the
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Company had an aggregate amount on deposit with European banks of
approximately $6.8 billion, predominately with the Central Bank of Ireland and
Bank of England.

In addition, the Company provides financing to domestic multinational
corporations that generate revenue from customers in European countries,
transacts with various European banks as counterparties to certain derivative-
related activities, and through a subsidiary, manages money market funds that
hold certain investments in European sovereign debt. Any deterioration in
economic conditions in Europe, including the impacts resulting from the Russia-
Ukraine conflict, is not expected to have a significant effect on the Company
related to these activities.

Commitments, Contingent Liabilities and Other Contractual Obligations
The Company participates in many different contractual arrangements which
may or may not be recorded on its balance sheet, with unrelated or consolidated
entities, under which the Company has an obligation to pay certain amounts,
provide credit or liquidity enhancements or provide market risk support. These
arrangements include commitments to extend credit, letters of credit and various
forms of guarantees. Refer to Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information on guarantees and contingent liabilities.
These arrangements also include any obligation related to a variable interest
held in an unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, credit
enhancement or market risk support. Refer to Note 5 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information related to the
Company's interests in variable interest entities.

Capital Management The Company is committed to managing capital to
maintain strong protection for depositors and creditors and for maximum
shareholder benefit. The Company also manages its capital to exceed
regulatory capital requirements for banking organizations. To achieve its capital
goals, the Company employs a variety of capital management tools, including
dividends, common share repurchases, and the issuance of subordinated debt,
non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock, common stock and other capital
instruments. The regulatory capital requirements effective for the Company
follow Basel Ill, with the Company being subject to calculating its capital
adequacy as a

Regulatory Capital Ratios

percentage of risk-weighted assets under the standardized approach. Beginning
in 2022, the Company began to phase into its regulatory capital requirements
the cumulative deferred impact of its 2020 adoption of the accounting guidance
refated to the impairment of financial instruments based on the current expected
credit losses (*CECL") methodology plus 25 percent of its quarterly credit
reserve increases during 2020 and 2021. This cumulative deferred impact will
continue to be phased into the Company’s regulatory capital during 2024,
culminating with a fully phased in regulatory capital calculation beginning in
2025. Table 10 provides a summary of statutory regulatory capital ratios in effect
for the Company at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. All regulatory
ratios exceeded regulatory “well-capitalized” requirements.

In July 2023, the U.S. federal bank regulatory authorities proposed a rule
implementing the Basel Committee’s finalization of the post-crisis regulatory
capital reforms. The proposal provides for a July 1, 2025 effective date, subject
to a three-year transition period. The proposal includes the Fundamental Review
of the Trading Book, which replaces the market risk rule, and introduces new
standardized approaches for credit risk, operational risk and credit valuation
adjustment (CVA) risk, which would replace the current models-based
approaches. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the proposed
rule and expects that any final rule would result in the Company being required
to maintain increased levels of regulatory capital.

The Company believes certain other capital ratios are useful in evaluating its
capital adequacy. The Company's tangible common equity, as a percent of
tangible assets and as a percent of risk-weighted assets determined in
accordance with transitional regulatory capital requirements related to the CECL
methodology under the standardized approach, was 5.2 percent and 7.8
percent, respectively, at March 31, 2024, compared with 5.3 percent and 7.7
percent, respectively, at December 31, 2023. In addition, the Company's
common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets ratio, reflecting the full
implementation of the CECL methodology was 9.9 percent at March 31, 2024,
compared with 9.7 percent at December 31, 2023. Refer to “Non-GAAP
Financial Measures” beginning on page 27 for further information on these other
capital ratios.

(Dollars in Millions) ME'C'Z‘S;‘; Decembezroa;j

Basel |ll standardized approach:
Common equity tier 1 capital $ 45239 $ 44,947
Tier 1 capital 52,491 52,199
Total risk-based capital 62,203 61,921
Risk-weighted assets 452,831 453,390
Common equity tier 1 capital as a percent of risk-weighted assets® 10.0 % 9.9 %
Tier 1 capital as a percent of risk-weighled assets 11.6 1.5
Total risk-based capital as a percent of risk-weighted assets 13.7 13.7
Tier 1 capital as a percent of adjusted quarterly average assets (leverage ratio) 8.1 8.1

Tier 1 capital as a percent of total on- and off-balance sheet leverage exposure (total leverage exposure ratio) 6.6 6.6

(a) The Company's common equity tier 1 capital fo risk-weighted assets ratio, ing the full i
GAAFP Financial Measures beginning on page 27.
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of the CECL methodology, was 9.9 percent at March 31, 2024, compared with 9.7 percent at December 31, 2023. See Non-
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Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity was $55.6 billion at March 31, 2024,
compared with $55.3 billion at December 31, 2023. The increase was primarily
the result of corporate earnings, partially offset by dividends paid and changes
in unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale investment securities
included in other comprehensive income (loss).

The Company announced on December 22, 2020 that its Board of Directors
had approved an authorization to repurchase $3.0 billion of its common stock
beginning January 1, 2021. The Company suspended all common stock
repurchases at the beginning of the third quarter of 2021, except for those done
exclusively in connection with its stock-based compensation programs, due to
its acquisition of MUB. The Company will evaluate its share repurchases in
connection with the potential capital requirements given proposed regulatory
capital rules and related landscape. Capital distributions, including dividends
and stock repurchases, are subject to the approval of the Company's Board of
Directors and compliance with regulatory requirements.

The following table provides a detailed analysis of all shares of common stock of
the Company purchased by the Company or any affiliated purchaser during the
first quarter of 2024

Tolal Number Approximate Dollar

of Shares Value of Shares

Purchased that May Yet Be

Total Number Average as Part of Publicly Purchased Under

i of Shares Price Paid Announced the Program

Period Purchased Per Share Program (In Miflions)
January 99,347 §  40.94 9,347 § 1,313
February 816 42.50 816 1,313
March 1,165,104 41,99 1,165,104 1,264
Total 1265267 §  41.90 1,175,267 § 1,264

(a) Includes 90,000 shares of common stock purchased, at an average price per share of $40.72, in open-
market transactions by U.S. Bank National A iation, the Company's banking idiary, in its capacity as
trustee of the U.S. Bank 401(k) Savings Plan, which is the Company's employee retirement savings plan.

Refer to “Management's Discussion and Analysis — Capital Management” in
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2023, for further discussion on capital management.

Line of Business Financial Review

The Company’s major lines of business are Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and
Institutional Banking, Consumer and Business Banking, Payment Services, and
Treasury and Corporate Support.

Basis for Financial Presentation Business line results are derived from the
Company’s business unit profitability reporting systems by specifically attributing
managed balance sheet assets, deposits and other liabilities and their related
income or expense. Refer to Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information on the business lines' basis for financial
presentation.

Designations, assignments and allocations change from time to time as
management systems are enhanced, methods of evaluating performance or
product lines change or business segments are realigned to better respond to
the
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Company's diverse customer base. During 2024 and 2023, certain organization
and methodology changes were made, including the Company combining its
Wealth Management and Investment Services and Corporate and Commercial
Banking lines of businesses to create the Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and
Institutional Banking line of business during the third quarter of 2023. Prior
period results were restated and presented on a comparable basis.

Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking Wealth,
Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking provides core banking,
specialized lending, transaction and payment processing, capital markets, asset
management, and brokerage and investment related services to wealth, middle
market, large corporate, government and institutional clients. Wealth, Corporate,
Commercial and Institutional Banking contributed $651 million of the Company’s
net income in the first quarter of 2024, or a decrease of $291 million (30.9
percent) compared with the first quarter of 2023.

Net revenue decreased $192 million (7.5 percent) in the first quarter of 2024,
compared with the first quarter of 2023. Net interest income, on a taxable-
equivalent basis, decreased $285 million (18.4 percent) in the first quarter of
2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to the impact of
deposit mix and pricing, partially offset by higher rates on earning assets.
Noninterest income increased $93 million (9.1 percent) in the first quarter of
2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to higher trust and
investment management fees driven by business growth and favorable market
conditions, and higher commercial products revenue mainly due to higher
corporate bond fees.

Noninterest expense increased $32 million (2.4 percent) in the first quarter of
2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to higher
compensation and employee benefits expense. The provision for credit losses
increased $164 million in the first quarter of 2024, compared with the first
quarter of 2023, primarily due to commercial real estate credit quality and select
commercial downgrades.

Consumer and Business Banking Consumer and Business Banking
comprises consumer banking, small business banking and consumer lending.
Products and services are delivered through banking offices, telephone
servicing and sales, online services, direct mail, ATM processing, mobile
devices, distributed mortgage loan officers, and intermediary relationships
including auto dealerships, mortgage banks, and strategic business partners.
Consumer and Business Banking contributed $601 million of the Company's net
income in the first quarter of 2024, or a decrease of $169 million (21.9 percent)
compared with the first quarter of 2023.

Net revenue decreased $305 million (11.1 percent) in the first quarter of
2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023. Net interest income, on a taxable-
equivalent basis, decreased $327 million (14.0 percent) in the first quarter of
2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023, due to the impact of deposit mix
and pricing, partially offset by higher rates on eamning assets. Noninterest
income increased $22 million (5.5 percent) in the first quarter of 2024, compared
with the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to higher
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mortgage banking revenue driven by higher gain on sale margins, partially offset
by a decrease in service charges.

Noninterest expense decreased $127 million (7.4 percent) in the first quarter
of 2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to lower net
shared services expense and compensation and employee benefits expense.
The provision for credit losses increased $48 million in the first quarter of 2024,
compared with the first quarter of 2023, due to normalizing credit conditions.

Payment Services Payment Services includes consumer and business credit
cards, stored-value cards, debit cards, corporate, government and purchasing
card services and merchant processing. Payment Services contributed $248
million of the Company’s net income in the first quarter of 2024, or a decrease of
$62 million (20.0 percent) compared with the first quarter of 2023.

Net revenue increased $123 million (7.7 percent) in the first quarter of 2024,
compared with the first quarter of 2023. Net interest income, on a taxable-
equivalent basis, increased $80 million (12.2 percent) in the first quarter of 2024,
compared with the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to higher loan yields driven
by higher interest rates and customer revolve rates, along with higher loan
balances, partially offset by higher funding costs. Noninterest income increased
$43 million (4.6 percent) in the first quarter of 2024, compared with the first
quarter of 2023, driven by higher card revenue due to higher spend volume and
favorable rates, along with increased merchant processing services due to
higher spend volume.

Noninterest expense increased $66 million (6.9 percent) in the first quarter of
2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023, reflecting higher net shared
services expense driven by investment in infrastructure and technology
development. The provision for credit losses increased $139 million (63.2
percent) in the first quarter of 2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023,
primarily due to increasing delinquency rates and charge-offs.

U.8. Bancorp

Treasury and Corporate Support Treasury and Corporate Support includes
the Company's investment portfolios, funding, capital management, interest rate
risk management, income taxes not allocated to the business lines, including
most investments in tax-advantaged projects, and the residual aggregate of
those expenses associated with corporate activities that are managed on a
consolidated basis. Treasury and Corporate Support recorded a net loss of $181
million in the first quarter of 2024, compared with a net loss of $324 million in the
first quarter of 2023.

Net revenue decreased $86 million (31.7 percent) in the first quarter of 2024,
compared with the first quarter of 2023. Net interest income, on a taxable-
equivalent basis, decreased $121 million (99.2 percent) in the first quarter of
2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to higher funding
costs, partially offset by higher yields on the investment securities portfolio and
cash balances. Noninterest income increased $35 million (23.5 percent) in the
first quarter of 2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to
prior year losses on securities and an increase in commercial products revenue,
partially offset by a decrease in other revenue.

Noninterest expense decreased $67 million (12.2 percent) in the first quarter
of 2024, compared with the first quarter of 2023, primarily due to prudent
expense management, continued focus on operational efficiency, synergies from
the MUB acquisition and lower merger and integration charges, along with a
decline in the future delivery exposure for merchant and airline processing and
other liabilities. These decreases were partially offset by the impact of the FDIC
special assessment, higher compensation and employee benefits expense and
higher net shared services expense. The provision for credit losses decreased
$225 million (99.6 percent) in the first quarter of 2024, compared with the first
quarter of 2023, primarily due to relative stability in the economic outlook in the
current quarter. )

Income taxes are assessed to each line of business at a managerial tax rate
of 25.0 percent with the residual tax expense or benefit to arrive at the
consolidated effective tax rate included in Treasury and Corporate Support.
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TABLE 11 Line of Business Financial Performance

Wealth, Corporale, Commercial and

Instilulional Banking

Consumer and

Business Banking

Payment Services

Three Months Ended March 31 Percent Percent! Percent
(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change
Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) 1,265 $ 1,550 (18.4)%|S 2,014 § 2,341 (14.0)%{$ 735 % 655 122 %
Noninterest income 1,113 1,020 9.1 423 401 55 980 937 4.6
Total net revenue 2,378 2,570 (7.5) 2,437 2,742 (11.1) 1,715 1,692 7.7
Noninterest expense 1,372 1,340 2.4 1,580 1,707 (7.4) 1,025 959 6.9
Income (loss) before provision and income taxes 1,006 1,230 (18.2) 857 1,035 (17.2) 690 633 9.0
Provision for credit losses 138 (26) = 55 7 = 359 220 63.2
Income (loss) before income taxes 868 1,256 (30.9) 802 1,028 (22.0) 331 413 (19.9)
Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment 217 314 (30.9) 201 258 (22.1) 83 103 (19.4)
Net income (loss) 651 942 (30.9) 601 770 (21.9) 248 310 (20.0)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests - — —_ — — —_ — —_ —
Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Bancorp 651 $ 842 (30.9) |$ 601 $ 770 21.9) |$ 248 § 310 (20.0)
Average Balance Sheet
Loans 170,965 $ 177,011 (3.4) |§ 154993 § 167,409 (7.5) |$ 39803 § 36,935 7.8
Goodwill 4,825 4,614 46 4,325 4,493 (3.7 3,332 3,315 5
Cther intangible assels 1,059 1,034 24 4,696 5,594 (16.1) 300 385 (22.1)
Assets 199,085 201,182 (1.0 169,177 185,245 8.7) 46,816 42,858 9.2
Noninterest-bearing deposits 58,446 82,403 (29.1) 21,500 41,269 (47.9) 2,781 3,184 (12.3)
Interest-bearing deposits 203,980 196,843 3.6 203,343 176,797 15.0 97 108 (10.2)
Total deposits 262,426 279,246 (6.0) 224,843 218,066 3.1 2,888 3,292 (12.3)
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity 21,749 21,536 1.0 14,848 16,565 (10.4) 9,965 8,968 11.1
Treasury and Consolidated
Corporate Support Company
Three Manths Ended March 31 Percent Percent|
{Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change
Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) 18 122 {99.2)%|$ 4,015 § 4,668 (14.0)%
Noninterest income 184 149 23.5 2,700 2,507 7.7
Total net revenue 185 271 (31.7) 6,715 7,175 (6.4)
Noninterest expense 482 549 (12.2) 4,459 4,555 (2.1)
Income (loss) before provision and income taxes (297) (278) (6.8) 2,256 2,620 (13.9)
Provision for credit losses 1 226 (99.6) 553 427 28.5
Income (loss) before income taxes (298) (504) 40.9 1,703 2,193 (22.3)
Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment (124) (186) (33.3) 377 489 (22.9)
Net income (loss) (174) (318) 453 1,326 1,704 (22.2)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests {7) (6) (16.7) (7) 6) (16.7)
Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Bancorp (181) $ (324) 441 % 1,319 § 1,698 (22.3)
Average Balance Sheet
Loans 5369 $ 5,395 (5) [$ 371,070 3 386,750 (4.1)
Goodwill — —_ —_ 12,482 12,422 .5
Other intangible assets 10 36 (72.2) 6,065 7,048 (14.0)
Assetls 238,831 236,162 11 653,909 665,447 (1.7)
Noninterest-bearing deposils 2,050 2,885 (28.9) 84,787 129,741 (34.6)
Interest-bearing deposits 10,854 6,835 58.8 418,274 380,583 9.9
Total deposits 12,904 9,720 32.8 503,081 510,324 (1.4)
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders' equity 9,105 5598 62.6 55,667 52,667 5.7

= Not meaningful
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to capital ratios defined by banking regulators, the Company
considers various other measures when evaluating capital utilization and

adequacy, including:

- Tangible common equity to tangible assets,

subject to certain transitional provisions, temporarily exclude the impact of the
2020 adoption of accounting guidance related to impairment of financial
instruments based on the CECL methodology. As a result, these capital
measures disclosed by the Company may be considered non-GAAP financial
measures, Management believes this information helps investors assess trends
in the Company’s capital adequacy.

» Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets, and The Company also discloses net interest income and related ratios and

+ Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, reflecting the full

implementation of the CECL methodology.

These capital measures are viewed by management as useful additional
methods of evaluating the Company's utilization of its capital held and the level

of capital available to withstand unexpected negati

conditions. Additionally, presentation of these measures allows investors,
analysts and banking regulators to assess the Company's capital position
relative to other financial services companies. These capital measures are not
defined in generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"), or are not

analysis on a taxable-equivalent basis, which may also be considered non-
GAAP financial measures. The Company believes this presentation to be the
preferred industry measurement of net interest income as it provides a relevant
comparison of net interest income arising from taxable and tax-exempt sources.
In addition, certain performance measures, including the efficiency ratio and net
interest margin utilize net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis.

There may be limits in the usefulness of these measures to investors. As a
result, the Company encourages readers to consider the consolidated financial
statements and other financial information contained in this report in their
entirety, and not to rely on any single financial measure.

ve market or economic

currently effective or defined in banking regulations. In addition, certain of these
measures differ from currently effective capital ratios defined by banking
regulations principally in that the currently effective ratios, which are

The following tables show the Company’s calculati

on of these non-GAAP financial measures:

(Dollars in Millions) March 81, e
Total equity $ 56,033 % 55,771
Preferred stock (6,808) (6,808)
Noncontrolling interests (465) (465)
Goodwill (net of deferred tax liability)(® (11,459) (11,480)
Intangible assets (net of deferred tax liability), other than mortgage servicing rights (2,158) (2,278)
Tangible common equity™ 35,143 34,740
Common equity tier 1 capital, determined in accordance with transitional regulatory capital requirements related to the CECL methodology
implementation 45,239 44,947
Adjustments(b) (433) (866)
Common equity tier 1 capital, reflecting the full implementation of the CECL methodology® 44,806 44,081
Total assets 683,606 663,491
Goodwill (net of deferred tax liability)® (11,459) (11,480)
Intangible assets (net of deferred tax liability), other than mortgage servicing rights (2,158) (2,278)
Tangible assets® 669,989 649,733
Risk-weighted assets, determined in accordance with prescribed regulatory capital requirements effective for the Company!4 452,831 453,390
Adjustments(® (368) (736)
Risk-weighted assets, reflecting the full implementation of the CECL methodology® 452,463 452,654
Ratios
Tangible common equity to tangible assets!"3) 52% 53%
Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets!"4) 7.8 7.7
Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, reflecting the full implementation of the CECL methodology/21® 9.9 9.7
{a) includes goodwill related to certain i in unconsolid: financial institutions per p. ribed regulatory requirements.
{b) Includes the esti i in the all for credit losses related to the adoption of the CECL methodology net of deferred taxes.
{c) Includes the impact of the esti ir in the alk for credit losses related to the adoption of the CECL methodology.
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Three Months Ended March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Net interest income $ 3,885 3 4,634
Taxable-equivalent adjustment(® 30 34
Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent basis 4,015 4,668
Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent basis (as calculated above) 4,015 4,668
Noninterest income 2,700 2,507
Less: Securities gains (losses), net 2 (32)
Total net revenue, excluding net securities gains (losses)" 6,713 7,207
Noninterest expense(? 4,458 4,555
Efficiency ratiot™2 66.4 % 63.2 %

(a) Based on a federal income tax rate of 21 percent for those asseis and liabilities whose income or expense is not included for federal income tax purposes.

Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company comply with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and conform to general
practices within the banking industry. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions. The Company's financial position and results of operations can be
affected by these estimates and assumptions, which are integral to
understanding the Company'’s financial statements. Critical accounting policies
are those policies management believes are the most important to the portrayal
of the Company’s financial condition and results, and require management to
make estimates that are difficult, subjective or complex. Most accounting
policies are not considered by management to be critical accounting policies.
Management has discussed the development and the selection of critical
accounting policies with the Company’s Audit Committee. Those policies
considered to be critical accounting policies relate to the aliowance for credit
losses, fair value estimates, MSRs, and income taxes. These accounting
policies are discussed in detail in "Management's Discussion and Analysis —
Critical Accounting Policies” and the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2023.
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Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management,
including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the
Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act")). Based
upon this evaluation, the principal executive officer and principal financial officer
have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

During the most recently completed fiscal quarter, there was no change
made in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal
control over financial reporting.
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U.S. Bancorp
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Dollars in Millions) Marct2103214, D:zcembe:;'::zz‘l:i
(Unaudited)
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 76,985 $ 61,192
Investment securities
Held-to-maturity (fair value $71,149 and $74,088, respectively) 82,948 84,045
Available-for-sale ($356 and $338 pledged as collateral, respectively)® 72,426 69,706
Loans held for sale (including $1,885 and $2,011 of mortgage loans carried at fair value, respectively) 2,080 2,201
Loans
Commercial 134,726 131,881
Commercial real estate 52,677 53,455
Residential mortgages 116,079 115,530
Credit card 27,844 28,560
Other retail 43,262 44,409
Total loans 374,588 373,835
Less allowance for loan losses (7,514) (7,379)
Net loans 367,074 366,456
Premises and equipment 3,537 3,623
Goodwill 12,479 12,489
Other intangible assets 6,031 6,084
Other assets (including $4,878 and $3,548 of trading securities at fair value pledged as collateral, respectively)@ 60,046 57,695
Total assets 3 683,606 $ 663,491
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing $ 91,220 $ 89,989
Interest-bearing (including $4,668 and $2,818 of time deposits carried at fair value, respectively) 436,843 422,323
Total deposits 528,063 512,312
Short-term borrowings 17,102 15,279
Long-term debt 52,693 51,480
Other liabilities 29,715 28,649
Total liabilities 627,573 607,720
Shareholders' equity
Preferred stock 6,808 6,808
Common stock, $.01 par value per share, authorized: 4,000,000,000 shares; issued; 3/31/24 and 12/31/23—2,125,725,742 shares 21 21
Capital surplus 8,642 8,673
Retained earnings 74,473 74,026
Less cost of common stock in treasury: 3/31/24—565,322,411 shares; 12/31/23—567,732,687 shares (24,023) (24,126)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (10,353) (10,096)
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity 55,568 55,306
Noncontrolling interests 465 465
Total equity 56,033 55,771
Total liabilities and equity $ 683,606 $ 663,491

(3} Includes only collateral pledged by the Company where counlerparties have the right to sell or pledge the colfateral.
See Notes to C idated Financial
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U.S. Bancorp

Consolidated Statement of Income

Three Months Ended

(Doliars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Data) March 31
(Unaudiled) 2024 2023
Interest Income
Loans $ 5712 5,277
Loans held for sale 37 31
Investment securities 1,175 1,074
Other interest income 840 582
Total interest income 7,764 6,964
Interest Expense
Deposits 2,884 1,505
Short-term borrowings 270 449
Long-term debt 625 376
Total interest expense 3,779 2,330
Net interest income 3,985 4,634
Provision for credit losses 553 427
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 3,432 4,207
Noninterest Income
Card revenue 382 360
Corporate payment products revenue 184 189
Merchant processing services 401 387
Trust and investment management fees 641 590
Service charges 315 324
Commercial products revenue 388 334
Mortgage banking revenue 166 128
Investment products fees 77 68
Securities gains (losses), net 2 (32)
Other 134 159
Total noninterest income 2,700 2,507
Noninterest Expense
Compensation and employee benefits 2,691 2,646
Net occupancy and equipment 296 321
Professional services 110 134
Marketing and business development 136 122
Technology and communications 507 503
Other intangibles 146 160
Merger and integration charges 1565 244
Other 418 425
Total noninterest expense 4,458 4,555
Income before income taxes 1,673 2,159
Applicable income taxes 347 455
Net income 1,326 1,704
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 7) (6)
Net income attributable to U.S. Bancorp $ 1,319 § 1,698
Net income applicable to U.S. Bancorp common shareholders $ 1,209 § 1,592
Earnings per common share 3 78 % 1.04
Diluted earnings per common share $ 78 % 1.04
Average common shares outstanding 1,559 1,532
Average diluted common shares outstanding 1,559 1,532

See Noles lo C idated Financial
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U.S. Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Three Months Ended

(Dollars in Millions) March 31

(Unaudited) 2024 2023

Net income 1,326 § 1,704

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities available-for-sale (171) 1,305
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) on derivative hedges {343) 204
Foreign currency translation 6 (1)
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) on retirement plans — 1
Reclassification to earnings of realized (gains) losses 161 158
Income taxes related to other comprehensive income (loss) 90 (413)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) (257) 1,254

Comprehensive income (loss) 1,069 2,958

Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (7) (6)

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to U.S. Bancorp 1,062 $ 2,952

See Notes fo C i d Financial Sk
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U.S. Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

U.S. Bancorp Shareholders

Accumulaled Total U.S.
— Common Other Bancorp
(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Shares Preferred Common Capital Retained  Treasury Comprehensive Shareholders’ Noncontrolling Total
Share Data) (Unaudited) Outstanding Slock Stock Surplus Earnings Stack Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
Balance December 31, 2022 1,531 % 6,808 § 218 87128 71801 § (25269) % (11,407) § 50,766 $ 466 § 51,232
Change in accounting principle® 48 46 46
Net income (loss) 1,688 1,698 B 1,704
Other comprehensive income (loss) 1,254 1,254 1,254
Preferred stock dividends® (98) (98) (98)
Common stock dividends ($.48 per share) (740) (740) (740)
Issuance of common and treasury stock 3 (114) 120 6 6
Purchase of treasury stock {1 (44) (44) (44)
Distributions to nonconlrolling interests —_ (7) (7
Stock oplion and restricted stock granls 101 101 101
Balance March 31, 2023 1533 % 6,808 § 21 8 8,699 § 72,807 $§ (25,193) (10,163} § 52,989 § 465 3§ 53,454
Balance December 31, 2023 1,558 § 6,808 § 21§ 68,673 $ 74026 5 (24,126) $ (10,098) $ 55,308 5 465 § 55,771
Net income (loss) 1,318 1,319 7 1,326
Other comprehensive income (Joss) (257) (257) (257)
Preferred stack dividends® (102) (102) (102)
Common stock dividends (3,49 per share) (770) (770) (770)
Issuance of common and treasury stock 3 (138) 152 13 13
Purchase of treasury stock (%)) (49) (49) 49)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests - 7 (6]
Stock option and restricted stock grants 108 108 108
Balance March 31, 2024 1,560 § 6,808 5 21 § 8BB4z § 74473 § (24,023) $ (10,353) $ 55,568 $ 465 § 56,033
(a) Effective January 1, 2023, the G i ing guit which P and measurement of troubled debt restr ings. Upon adoption, the Company reduced its all for credit losses and
i retained ings net of taxes through & cumulative-effect adjustmeant.

() Reflects dividends declared per share on the Company's Series A, Series B, Series J, Series K, Series L, Series M, Se)
$234.375, $250.00, $231.25 and $281.25, respectively.

(c) Reflects dividends declared per share on the Company’s Series A, Series B, Series J, Series K, Series L, Series M, Series N and Series O Non-
$234.375, $250.00, 5231.25, and $281.25, respectively

See Notes to Ci d Financial
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ries N and Series O Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock of $1,462.428, $339.357, 3662.50, $343. 75,

Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock of $1,667.221, $390.264, $662 50, $343.75,
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U.S. Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Three Months Ended

(Dollars in Millions) March 31

{Unaudited} 2024 2023
Operating Activities
Net income attributable to U.S. Bancorp $ 1,319 § 1,698
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for credit losses 553 427
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 90 97
Amortization of intangibles 146 160
(Gain) loss on sale of loans held for sale (36) 7
(Gain) loss on sale of securities and other assets (9) 32
Loans originated for sale, net of repayments (4,674) (7,024)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 4,740 6,728
Other, net 532 (1,283)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,661 842
Investing Activities
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investment securities 172 7,720
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity investment securities 1,301 1,317
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale investment securities 1,412 1,407
Purchases of held-to-maturity investment securities (93) (924)
Purchases of available-for-sale investment securities (4,851) (217)
Net (increase) decrease in loans outstanding (1,128) 165
Proceeds from sales of loans 36 257
Purchases of loans (296) (339)
Net increase in securities purchased under agreements to resell (1,274) (1,531)
Other, net (232) (2,912)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (4,953) 4,943
Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 15,751 (19,237)
Net increase in short-term borrowings 1,823 24,876
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 3,565 3,701
Principal payments or redemption of long-term debt (2,172) (1,594)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 13 6
Repurchase of common stock (49) (44)
Cash dividends paid on preferred stock (76) 67)
Cash dividends paid on common stock (770) (740)
Net cash provided by financing activities 18,085 6,901
Change in cash and due from banks 15,793 12,686
Cash and due from banks at beginning of period 61,192 53,542
Cash and due from banks at end of periodf® $ 76,985 § 66,228

{8) Excludes a §1.0 billion interest-bearing due from bank balance with a term greater than 90 days at March 31, 2023,
See Notes to C: i Financial
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

NOTE1 Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and, therefore, do not include all information
and notes necessary for a complete presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flow activity required in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. In the opinion of management of U.S. Bancorp (the "Company"), all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments)
necessary for a fair statement of results for the interim periods have been made. These financial statements and notes should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and notes included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. Certain amounts in prior periods have
been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Accounting Changes

Reference Interest Rate Transition In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued accounting guidance, providing temporary optional
expedients and exceptions to the guidance in United States generally accepted accounting principles on contract modifications and hedge accounting, to ease the
financial reporting burdens related to the expected market transition from the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR”) and other interbank offered rates to alternative
reference rates. Under the guidance, a company can elect not to apply certain modification accounting requirements to contracts affected by reference rate transition, if
certain criteria are met. A company that makes this election would not be required to remeasure the contracts at the modification date or reassess a previous accounting
determination. This guidance also permits a company to elect various optional expedients that would allow it to continue applying hedge accounting for hedging
relationships affected by reference rate transition, if certain criteria are met. The guidance is effective upon issuance and generally can be applied through December 31,
2024. The Company is applying certain optional expedients and exceptions for cash flow hedges and will continue to evaluate these for eligible contract modifications and
hedging relationships.

Income Taxes - Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures In December 2023, the FASB issued guidance, effective for the Company for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2024, related to income tax disclosures. This guidance requires additional information in income tax rate reconciliation disclosures and
additional disclosures about income taxes paid. The guidance is required, at a minimum, to be adopted on a prospective basis, with an option to apply it retrospectively.
The Company expects the adoption of this guidance will not be material to its financial statements.

Segment Reporting - Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures In November 2023, the FASB issued guidance, effective for the Company for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2024, related to segment disclosures. This guidance
requires disclosures of significant segment expenses and other segment items and expands interim period disclosure requirements to include segment profit or loss and
assets, which are currently only required to be disclosed annually. The guidance is required to be adopted retrospectively to all periods presented in the financial
statements. The Company expects the adoption of this guidance will not be material to its financial statements.
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Investment Securities

The Company’s held-to-maturity investment securities are carried at historical cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. The Company's
available-for-sale investment securities are carried at fair value with unrealized net gains or losses reported within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in
shareholders' equity.

The amortized cost, gross unrealized holding gains and losses, and fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment securities were as follows:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
S—. Amortized Unrealized Unrealized R Amorlized Unrealized Unrealized .
(Dollars in Millions} Cost Gains Losses Fair Valus Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Held-to-Maturity
U.S. Treasury and agencies $ 1,345 § — $ (42) $ 1,303 |$ 1,345 § — 3 (35) % 1,310
Mortgage-backed securities
Residential agency 79,805 — (11,736) 68,069 80,997 6 (9,829) 71,074
Commercial agency 1,697 — 21 1,676 1,695 6 (5) 1,696
Other 101 —_ -_ 101 8 — —_ 8
Total held-to-maturity § B2948 § — $ (11,799) % 71,149|$ 84,045 § 12 § (9,969) § 74,088
Available-for-Sale
U.S. Treasury and agencies $ 23722 % 1 8 (2,215)$ 21,5188 21768 $ 8 % (2,234) $ 19,542
Mortgage-backed securities
Residential agency 29,798 84 (2,395) 27,487 28,185 104 (2,211) 26,078
Commercial
Agency 8,696 — (1,412) 7,284 8,703 — (1,360) 7,343
Non-agency 74 —_ (1) 6 7 _ 1) 6
Asset-backed securities 6,218 11 (25) 6,204 6,713 25 (14) 6,724
Obligations of state and political subdivisions 10,826 23 (1,062) 9,787 10,867 36 (914) 9,989
Other 140 — — 140 24 —_ —_ 24
Total available-for-sale, excluding portfolio level basis adjustments 79,407 129 (7,110) 72,426 76,267 173 (6,734) 69,706
Portfolio level basis adjustmentsfa 88 — (88) —_ 335 — (335) —_
Total available-for-sale $ 79495 % 129 § (7,198)$ 72,4263 76,602 $ 173 § (7.069) 8 69,706
(a} zepre:enrs fair value hedge basis adjustments related to active portfolio layer method hedges of available-for-sale i ities, which are not al to individual ities in the portfolio. For iti i ion, refer to
lote 12,

Investment securities with a fair value of $21.6 billion at March 31, 2024, and $20.5 billion at December 31, 2023, were pledged to secure public, private and trust
deposits, repurchase agreements and for other purposes required by contractual obligation or law. Included in these amounts were securities where the Company and
certain counterparties have agreements granting the counterparties the right to sell or pledge the securities. Investment securities securing these types of arrangements
had a fair value of $356 million at March 31, 2024, and $338 million at December 31, 2023.

The following table provides information about the amount of interest income from taxable and non-taxable investment securities:
Three Months Ended

March 31
(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Taxable 3 1,099 § 994
Non-taxable 76 80
Total interest income from investment securities $ 1,175 § 1,074
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The following table provides information about the amount of gross gains and losses realized through the sales of available-for-sale investment securities:
Three Months Ended

March 31
{Dollars in Millions}) 2024 2023
Realized gains $ 38 60
Realized losses (1) (92)
Net realized gains (losses) $ 2% (32)
Income tax (benefit) on net realized gains (losses) $ 1% (8)

The Company conducts a regular assessment of its available-for-sale investment securities with unrealized losses to determine whether all or some portion of a
security’s unrealized loss is related to credit and an allowance for credit losses is necessary. If the Company intends to sell or it is more likely than not the Company will be
required to sell an investment security, the amortized cost of the security is written down to fair value. When evaluating credit losses, the Company considers various
factors such as the nature of the investment security, the credit ratings or financial condition of the issuer, the extent of the unrealized loss, expected cash flows of
underlying collateral, the existence of any government or agency guarantees, and market conditions. The Company measures the allowance for credit losses using
market information where available and discounting the cash flows at the original effective rate of the investment security. The allowance for credit losses is adjusted each
period through earnings and can be subsequently recovered. The allowance for credit losses on the Company’s available-for-sale investment securities was immaterial at
March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,

At March 31, 2024, certain investment securities had a fair value below amortized cost. The following table shows the gross unrealized losses excluding portfolio level
basis adjustments and fair value of the Company’s available-for-sale investment securities with unrealized losses, aggregated by investment category and length of time
the individual investment securities have been in continuous unrealized loss positions, at March 31, 2024:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
{Dollars in Millions) Fair Value Umf:gifag | Fair Value U”'EEE?Z? Fair Value U"’Eﬁgiig
U.S. Treasury and agencies 3 1,219 § 6)|3 17,077 § (2,209) (8 18,296 $ (2,215)
Mortgage-backed securities
Residential agency 1,580 (9) 20,617 (2,386) 22,197 (2,395)
Commercial
Agency — — 7,284 (1,412) 7,284 (1,412)
Non-agency — — 7 1 7 (1)
Asset-backed securities 2,942 (5) 1,806 (20) 4,748 (25)
Obligations of state and political subdivisions 1,121 (9) 7,707 (1,053) 8,828 (1,062)
Other 115 — 4 — 119 —_
Total investment securities $ 6,977 $ (29)|$ 54,502 § (7,081)|8 61,478 § (7,110)

These unrealized losses primarily relate to changes in interest rates and market spreads subsequent to purchase of these available-for-sale investment securities.
U.S. Treasury and agencies securities and agency mortgage-backed securities are issued, guaranteed or otherwise supported by the United States government. The
Company's obligations of state and political subdivisions are generally high grade. Accordingly, the Company does not consider these unrealized losses to be credit-
related and an allowance for credit losses is not necessary. In general, the issuers of the investment securities are contractually prohibited from prepayment at less than
par, and the Company did not pay significant purchase premiums for these investment securities. At March 31, 2024, the Company had no plans to sell investment
securities with unrealized losses, and believes it is more likely than not it would not be required to sell such investment securities before recovery of their amortized cost.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company did not purchase any investment securities that had more-than-insignificant credit
deterioration.

Predominately all of the Company's held-to-maturity investment securities are U.S. Treasury and agencies securities and highly rated agency mortgage-backed
securities that are guaranteed or otherwise supported by the United States government and have no history of credit losses. Accordingly the Company does not expect to
incur any credit losses on held-to-maturity investment securities and has no allowance for credit losses recorded for these securities.
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The following table provides information about the amortized cost, fair value and yield by maturity date of the investment securities outstanding at March 31, 2024:

Weighted- Average

i ey Amortized Maturay in Weighted-Average
(Dollars in Millions) Cest Fair Value Yeats ieid )
Held-to-Maturity
U.S. Treasury and agencies
Maluring in one year or less & 50 5 50 0.1 2867 %
Maluring after one year lhrough five years 1,285 1.253 2.1 2.85
Maturing after five years through ten years —_ —_ _— _—
Maturing afler ten years - —_— -_— _—
Total 5 1345 § 1,303 20 2.85 %
Martgage-backed securities®
Maluring in one year or less 3 22 % 22 07 444 %
Maturing after one year through five years 1,286 1,273 26 4.52
Maturing afler five years lhrough ten years 74,832 64,221 89 219
Maturing afier ten years 5,362 4,229 10.2 1.92
Total s 81,502 § 69,745 8.8 221 %
Other
Maluring in one year or less 5 16 8 16 1.0 3.24%
Maturing after one year through five years 85 85 3.1 2.70
Maturing after five years through ten years - —_ — _
Maturing afler ten years —-— _— — —_
Total 3 101 § 101 2.8 279%
Tolal held-to-maturilyt» s 82,948 § 71,149 88 222 %
Available-for-Sale
U.S. Treasury and agencies
Maturing In one year or less $ 18 1 0.3 535%
Maturing afler one year through five years 13,321 12,738 37 2,92
Maluring afier five years through fen years 8,608 7,445 74 2.20
Maturing after ten years 1,712 1,324 10.6 2.02
Total 3 23722 $ 21,518 55 2.60 %
Morlgage-hacked securilies®
Maturing in one year or [ess 5 95 § 92 0.8 216 %
Maturing after one year through five years 8,877 8,408 3.3 3.25
Maluring afier five years through len years 28,399 25,324 7.3 3.35
Maturing afier ten years 1,130 953 10.9 345
Tolal 5 38,501 § 34,777 6.5 3.33%
Assel-backed securitias™
Maluring in one year or less 5 10 3 10 0.8 757 %
Maturing after one year through five years 5,150 5,133 1.7 4.95
Maturing after five years through len years 1,058 1,061 5.8 7.05
Maluring afler ten years N e e —
Total 5 6218 § 6,204 24 531%
Obligations of stale and political subdivisions(
Maturing in one year or less $ 137 8 138 0.3 591%
Maluring afler one year lhrough five years 2,441 2,425 2.9 4.65
Maturing after five years Ihrough ten years 1,666 1,605 7.2 3.85
Maturing afier len years 6,582 5619 16.5 3.34
Total s 10,826 § 9,787 11.2 3.75%
Other
Maturing in one year or less 5 — § - — —%
Maluring afier one year through five years 140 140 24 4.92
Maluring afler five years through ten years _ —_— = -_—
Maturing after ten years — _— _— —
Tolal 3 140 § 140 24 4.92%
Total available-for-sale™ L] 79,407 § 72,426 6.5 333%
fa) information related to asset and gage-backed ifies i shove i p ! based upon weighled-average maturities thal take into account anticipated fulure prepayments,
(b) The weighled-average maturity of tofal held-4 iy f was 8.7 years af December 31, 2023, with & correaponding weighted-average yivdd of 2.22 parcent. The weig g ity of tofal avaitabie-for-sate

o4
investment securities was 6.3 years af Dacember 31, 2023, wih a e Vield of 3.12 percent.

(c} fon related to obligations of state and paliical subdivisions is presented based upan yield to first optional call date if the securlty is purchiosed at o peemium, and yield to maturity if the securily i purchasad at par or a discounf,
(d) Maturity calculations for obligations of state and political subdivisions are based on the first aptional call date for securities with a fair value above par and the maturily dafte for ifies with @ fair volue equal o or below par.
(e} ighted e yi for ehligations of stale and political subdivisions are presented on & lully-taxable equivalent basis based on a federal income tax rate of 21 parcent Yields on jr itiss are puted based an

ired cost bal ing any fums or ded related fo the fransler of investment securifies al fair value from available-far-sale to held-to.maturity.

() Amonized cost excludes portfolio level basis adjustments of 388 million.
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BESE Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses

The composition of the loan portfolio, by class and underlying specific portfolio type, was as follows:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
(Dollars in Millions) Amount Percent of Total Amounl Percent of Total
Commercial
Commercial $ 130,530 34.8 %|$ 127,676 34.2 %
Lease financing 4,196 1.2 4,205 1.1
Total commercial 134,726 36.0 131,881 35.3
Commercial Real Estate
Commercial mortgages 41,157 11.0 41,934 1.2
Construction and development 11,520 3.1 11,521 3.1
Total commercial real estate 52,677 14.1 53,455 14.3
Residential Mortgages
Residential mortgages 109,396 29.2 108,605 29.0
Home equity loans, first liens 6,683 1.8 6,925 1.8
Total residential mortgages 116,079 31.0 115,530 30.9
Credit Card 27,844 7.4 28,560 7.6
Other Retail
Retail leasing 4,137 1.1 4,135 1.1
Home equity and second mortgages 12,932 3.5 13,056 3.5
Revolving credit 3,473 .9 3,668 1.0
Installment 13,921 3.7 13,889 3.7
Automobile 8,799 2.3 9,661 2.6
Total other retail 43,262 11.5 44,409 11.9
Total loans $ 374,588 100.0 %[8 373,835 100.0 %

The Company had loans of $124.7 billion at March 31, 2024, and $123.1 billion at December 31, 2023, pledged at the Federal Home Loan Bank, and loans of
$80.0 billion at March 31, 2024, and $82.8 billion at December 31, 2023, pledged at the Federal Reserve Bank.

Originated loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of uneamed interest and deferred fees and costs, and any partial charge-offs recorded.
Purchased loans are recorded at fair value at the date of purchase. Net unearned interest and deferred fees and costs on originated loans and unamortized premiums and
discounts on purchased loans amounted to $2.7 billion at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The Company evaluates purchased loans for more-than-insignificant
deterioration at the date of purchase in accordance with applicable authoritative accounting guidance. Purchased loans that have experienced more-than-insignificant
deterioration from origination are considered purchased credit deteriorated loans. All other purchased loans are considered non-purchased credit deteriorated loans.

Allowance for Credit Losses The allowance for credit losses is established for current expected credit losses on the Company's loan and lease porifolio, including
unfunded credit commitments. The allowance considers expected losses for the remaining lives of the applicable assets, inclusive of expected recoveries. The allowance
for credit losses is increased through provisions charged to earnings and reduced by net charge-offs. Management evaluates the appropriateness of the allowance for
credit losses on a quarterly basis.

Multiple economic scenarios are considered over a three-year reasonable and supportable forecast period, which includes increasing consideration of historical loss
experience over years two and three. These economic scenarios are constructed with interrelated projections of multiple economic variables, and loss estimates are
produced that consider the historical correlation of those economic variables with credit losses. After the forecast period, the Company fully reverts to long-term historical
loss experience, adjusted for prepayments and characteristics of the current loan and lease portfolio, to estimate losses over the remaining life of the portfolio. The
economic scenarios are updated at least quarterly and are designed to provide a range of reasonable estimates, from better to worse than current expectations.
Scenarios are weighted based on the Company's expectation of economic conditions for the foreseeable future and reflect significant judgment and consideration of
economic forecast uncertainty. Final loss estimates also consider factors affecting credit losses not reflected in the scenarios, due to the unique aspects of current
conditions and expectations. These factors may include, but are not limited to, loan servicing practices, regulatory guidance, and/or fiscal and monetary policy actions.
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The allowance recorded for credit losses utilizes forward-looking expected loss models to consider a variety of factors affecting lifetime credit losses. These factors
include, but are not limited to, macroeconomic variables such as unemployment rates, real estate prices, gross domestic product levels, inflation, interest rates and
corporate bonds spreads, as well as loan and borrower characteristics, such as internal risk ratings on commercial loans and consumer credit scores, delinquency status,
collateral type and available valuation information, consideration of end-of-term losses on lease residuals, and the remaining term of the loan, adjusted for expected
prepayments. For each loan portfolio, including those loans modified under various loan modification programs, mode! estimates are adjusted as necessary to consider
any relevant changes in portfolio composition, lending policies, underwriting standards, risk management practices, economic conditions or other factors that would affect
the accuracy of the model. Expected credit loss estimates also include consideration of expected cash recoveries on loans previously charged-off or expected recoveries
on collateral dependent loans where recovery is expected through sale of the collateral at fair value less selling costs. Where loans do not exhibit similar risk
characteristics, an individual analysis is performed to consider expected credit losses. The allowance recorded for individually evaluated loans greater than $5 million in
the commercial lending segment is based on an analysis utilizing expected cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate, the observable market price of
the loan, or the fair value of the collateral, less selling costs, for collateral-dependent loans as appropriate. For smaller commercial loans collectively evaluated for
impairment, historical loss experience is also incorporated into the allowance methodology applied to this category of loans.

The Company's methodology for determining the appropriate allowance for credit losses also considers the imprecision inherent in the methodologies used and
allocated to the various loan portfolios. As a result, amounts determined under the methodologies described above are adjusted by management to consider the potential
impact of other qualitative factors not captured in the quantitative mode! adjustments which include, but are not limited to, the following: model imprecision, imprecision in
economic scenario assumptions, and emerging risks related to either changes in the environment that are affecting specific portfolios, or changes in portfolio
concentrations over time that may affect model performance. The consideration of these items resuits in adjustments to allowance amounts included in the Company'’s
allowance for credit losses for each loan portfolio.

The Company also assesses the credit risk associated with off-balance sheet loan commitments, letters of credit, investment securities and derivatives. Credit risk
associated with derivatives is reflected in the fair values recorded for those positions. The liability for off-balance sheet credit exposure related to loan commitments and
other credit guarantees is included in other liabilities. Because business processes and credit risks associated with unfunded credit commitments are essentially the same
as for loans, the Company utilizes similar processes to estimate its liability for unfunded credit commitments.

The results of the analysis are evaluated quarterly to confirm the estimates are appropriate for each specific loan portfolio, as well as the entire loan portfolio, as the
entire allowance for credit losses is available for the entire loan portfolio.
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Activity in the allowance for credit losses by portfolio class was as follows:

Commercial Residential

Three Months Ended March 31 (Dollars in Millions) Commercial Real Estale Mortgages Credit Card Other Retail Tolal Loans
2024
Balance at beginning of period $ 2,119 $ 1,620 $ 827 % 2,403 $ 870 § 7,839
Add

Provision for credit losses 156 30 16 318 33 553
Deduct

Loans charged-off 139 34 4 337 81 595

Less recoveries of loans charged-off (23) (13) (4) 41) (26) (107)

Net loan charge-offs (recoveries) 116 21 —_— 296 55 488

Balance at end of period $ 2159 $ 1,629 $ 843 $ 2,425 $ 848 § 7,904
2023
Balance at beginning of period $ 2163 § 1,325 $ 926 3§ 2,020 $ 970 $ 7,404
Add

Change in accounting principle® —_ —_ (31) (27) (4) (82)

Allowance for acquired credit losses(® —_ 127 —_ — — 127

Provision for credit losses 64 24 51 294 (6) 427
Deduct

Loans charged-off 63 123 4 215 64 469

Less recoveries of loans charged-off (18) (6) (5) (40) (29) (96)

Net loan charge-offs (recoveries) 47 117 (1) 175 35 373

Balance at end of period $ 2,180 $ 1,359 § 947 § 2112 § 925 § 7,523
{a) Effective January 1, 2023, the Company P ing guid: which d the separate r ition and of bled debt restr gs.

{b) Represents allowance for acquired credit deteriorated and charged-off loans.

The increase in the allowance for credit losses at March 31, 2024, compared with December 31, 2023, was primarily driven by increasing economic uncertainty,

normalizing credit conditions and select commercial real estate loan deterioration.

The following table provides a summary of loans charged-off by portfolio class and year of origination:

Three Months Ended March 31 (Dollars in Millions) Commercial RS,?{"ETSﬁ:g% }Kﬂe:;;ﬂgzr;t;asl Credit Card® Other Retail Total Loans
2024
Originated in 2024 $ — % 5% — 3 — § 2% 7
Originated in 2023 26 4 — —_ 10 40
Originated in 2022 18 24 —_ —_ 14 56
Originated in 2021 8 . s = 1 19
Originated in 2020 4 —_ —_ —_ 8 12
Originated prior to 2020 10 1 4 —_ 11 26
Revolving 73 — — 337 25 435
Total charge-offs $ 139 § 34 % 4% 337 § 81 § 595
2023
Originated in 2023 $ — % — 3 — 3% — 3 — 3 ==
Originated in 2022 6 88 — — 10 104
Originated in 2021 4 - — = 11 15
Originated in 2020 4 — — — 6 10
Originated in 2019 5 3 1 —_ 7 16
Originated prior to 2019 11 32 3 —_ 8 54
Revalving 33 — — 215 22 270
Total charge-offs $ 63 $ 123 $ 4 3% 215 § 64 § 469
Note: Year of origination is based on the origination date of a loan, or for existing loans the date when the maturity date, pricing or i amount is
(a) Includes §91 million of charge-offs in the first quarier of 2023 related to uncollectible amounts on acquired loans.
(b) Predominantly all credit card loans are idered revolving loans. I an immaterial amount of charge-offs related lo revoiving converted to term loans.
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Credit Quality The credit quality of the Company's loan portfolios is assessed as a function of net credit losses, levels of nonperforming assets and delinquencies, and
credit quality ratings as defined by the Company.

For all loan portfolio classes, loans are considered past due based on the number of days delinguent except for monthly amortizing loans which are classified
delinquent based upon the number of contractually required payments not made (for example, two missed payments is considered 30 days delinquent). When a loan is
placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid accrued interest is reversed, reducing interest income in the current period.

Commercial lending segment loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status when the collection of principal and interest has become 90 days past due or is
otherwise considered doubtful. Commercial lending segment loans are generally fully charged down if unsecured by collateral or partially charged down to the fair value of
the collateral securing the loan, less costs to sell, when the loan is placed on nonaccrual.

Consumer lending segment loans are generally charged-off at a specific number of days or payments past due. Residential mortgages and other retail loans secured
by 1-4 family properties are generally charged down to the fair value of the collateral securing the loan, less costs to sell, at 180 days past due. Residential mortgage
loans and lines in a first lien position are placed on nonaccrual status in instances where a partial charge-off occurs unless the loan is well secured and in the process of
collection. Residential mortgage loans and lines in a junior lien position secured by 1-4 family properties are placed on nonaccrual status at 120 days past due or when
they are behind a first lien that has become 180 days or greater past due or placed on nonaccrual status. Any secured consumer lending segment loan whose borrower
has had debt discharged through bankruptcy, for which the loan amount exceeds the fair value of the collateral, is charged down to the fair value of the related collateral
and the remaining balance is placed on nonaccrual status. Credit card loans continue to accrue interest until the account is charged-off. Credit cards are charged-off at
180 days past due. Other retail loans not secured by 1-4 family properties are charged-off at 120 days past due, and revolving consumer lines are charged-off at 180 days
past due. Similar to credit cards, other retail loans are generally not placed on nonaccrual status because of the relative short period of time to charge-off. Certain retail
customers having financial difficulties may have the terms of their credit card and other loan agreements modified to require only principal payments and, as such, are
reported as nonaccrual.

For all loan classes, interest payments received on nonaccrual loans are generally recorded as a reduction to a loan's carrying amount while a loan is on nonaccrual
and are recognized as interest income upon payoff of the loan. However, interest income may be recognized for interest payments if the remaining carrying amount of the
loan is believed to be collectible. In certain circumstances, loans in any class may be restored to accrual status, such as when a loan has demonstrated sustained
repayment performance or no amounts are past due and prospects for future payment are no longer in doubt, or when the loan becomes well secured and is in the
process of collection. Loans where there has been a partial charge-off may be returned to accrual status if all principal and interest (including amounts previously charged-
off) is expected to be collected and the loan is current.

The following table provides a summary of loans by portfolio class, including the delinquency status of those that continue to accrue interest, and those that are
nonperforming:

Accruing
(Dollars in Millions) Current 30;’22?33; Man%E:IYSL?er Nonperforming® Total
March 31, 2024
Commercial $ 133,763 § 309 § 105 3 549 $ 134,726
Commercial real estate 51,753 22 2 900 52,677
Residential mortgages'® 115,636 143 145 155 116,079
Credit card 27,058 390 386 —_— 27,844
Other retail 42,823 236 66 137 43,262
Total loans $ 371,033 § 1,100 $ 714 % 1,741 § 374,588
December 31, 2023
Commercial $ 130,925 $ 464 % 116 $ 376 $ 131,881
Commercial real estate 52,619 55 4 777 53,455
Residential mortgages'® 115,067 169 136 158 115,530
Credit card 27,779 4086 375 —_ 28,560
Other retail 43,926 278 67 138 44 409
Total loans $ 370,316 $ 1,372 § 698 § 1,449 § 373,835

(a) At March 31, 2024, §491 million of loans 30-89 days past due and $1.8 billion of loans 90 days or more past due purchased and that could be purchased from GNMA morigage pools under delinquent loan repurchase options whose
repayments are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs, were classified as current, compared with $595 million and $2.0 billion at December 31, 2023,
respectively.

(b) Substantially all nonperforming loans at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, had an associated allowance for credit losses. The Company recognized interest income on nonperforming loans of $5 million and $4 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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At March 31, 2024, the amount of foreclosed residential real estate held by the Company, and included in OREO, was $25 million, compared with $26 million at
December 31, 2023. These amounts excluded $43 million and $47 million at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, of foreclosed residential real estate
related to mortgage loans whose payments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans
Affairs. In addition, the amount of residential mortgage loans secured by residential real estate in the process of foreclosure at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
was $681 million and $728 million, respectively, of which $445 million and $487 million, respectively, related to loans purchased and that could be purchased from GNMA
mortgage pools under delinquent loan repurchase options whose repayments are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States
Department of Veterans Affairs.

The Company classifies its loan portfolio classes using internal credit quality ratings on a quarterly basis. These ratings include pass, special mention and classified,
and are an important part of the Company's overall credit risk management process and evaluation of the allowance for credit losses. Loans with a pass rating represent
those loans not classified on the Company's rating scale for problem credits, as minimal credit risk has been identified. Special mention loans are those loans that have a
potential weakness deserving management's close attention. Classified loans are those loans where a well-defined weakness has been identified that may put full
collection of contractual cash flows at risk. It is possible that others, given the same information, may reach different reasonable conclusions regarding the credit quality
rating classification of specific loans.
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The following table provides a summary of loans by portfolio class and the Company's internal credit quality rating:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Criticized Crilicized
I Special . Total Special _ Total
{Dollars in Millions) Pass Mention Classified® Critici Total| Pass Menlion Classified® Criticized Total
Commercial
Originated in 2024 $ 12,040 § 118 § 323 § 441 § 12,481 |§ — § — 8 — 8 — 3 _
Originated in 2023 38,505 513 1,008 1,521 40,026 43,023 827 856 1,683 44 706
Originated in 2022 35,074 298 791 1,089 36,163 40,076 274 632 906 40,982
Originated in 2021 8,307 180 117 297 8,604 9,218 117 154 271 9,490
Originated in 2020 2,866 70 17 187 3,053 3,169 92 71 163 3,332
Originated prior to 2020 4,902 8 149 157 5,059 5,303 30 209 239 5542
Revolving® 27,819 288 1,223 1,521 29,340 26,213 362 1,254 1,616 27,829
Total commercial 129,513 1,485 3,728 5,213 134,726 127,003 1,702 3,176 4,878 131,881
Commercial real estate
QOriginated in 2024 1,472 59 637 696 2,168 —_ —_ —_ —_— _
Originated in 2023 8,149 460 1,845 2,305 10,454 8,848 465 2,206 2,671 11,518
Originated in 2022 11,087 856 1,251 2,107 13,194 11,831 382 1,141 1,523 13,354
Originated in 2021 8,546 544 431 975 9,521 8,235 500 385 885 10,120
Originated in 2020 3,465 36 140 176 3,641 3,797 51 87 138 3,935
Originated prior to 2020 10,168 91 899 980 11,158 10,759 458 619 1,077 11,836
Revolving 2,468 4 69 73 2,541 2,613 6 70 76 2,689
Revolving converted to term — — - —_ == 2 = — —_ 2
Total commercial real estate 45,355 2,050 5,272 7,322 52,677 47,085 1,862 4,508 6,370 53,455
Residential mortgages®
Originated in 2024 2,127 —_ - —_ 2,127 _ — —_ — —_
Originated in 2023 9,414 — 4 4 9,418 9,734 _ 5 5 9,739
Originated in 2022 29,117 - 18 18 29,135 29,146 - 17 17 29,163
Originated in 2021 36,061 —r 16 16 36,077 36,365 — 16 16 36,381
Originated in 2020 14,542 - 14 14 14,556 14,773 Fead 9 9 14,782
Originated prior to 2020 24,510 — 256 256 24,766 25,202 == 262 262 25,464
Revolving — —_ — — — 1 — — — 1
Total residential mortgages 115,771 _ 308 308 116,079 115,221 —_ 309 309 115,530
Credit card® 27,448 — 386 396 27,844 28,185 == 375 375 28,560
Other retail
Originated in 2024 1,837 — - _ 1,837 _ —_ —_ —_ —_
Originated in 2023 4,875 — 6 6 4,881 5,184 —_ 4 4 5,188
Originated in 2022 5,228 —_ 11 1 5,239 5,607 —_ 12 12 5,618
Originated in 2021 9,401 —_ 14 14 9,415 10,398 —_ 15 15 10,413
Originated in 2020 3,946 _— 7 7 3,953 4,541 —_ 9 9 4,550
Originated prior to 2020 3,656 —_ 19 19 3,675 4,008 — 20 20 4,028
Revolving 13,386 —_ 106 106 13,492 13,720 — 104 104 13,824
Revolving converted to term 722 — 48 48 770 735 —_ 52 52 787
Total other retail 43,051 _ 211 211 43,262 44,193 —_ 216 216 44,409
Total loans $ 361,138 § 3,535 § 9,915 § 13,450 $ 374,588 |3 361,687 § 3,564 $ 8,584 § 12,148 $ 373,835
Total outstanding commitments $ 763,786 $ 5147 § 11,915 § 17,062 $ 780,848 |$ 762,869 $ 5,053 % 10,470 $ 15,523 § 778,392
Node: Year of origination is based an the prigination date of a loan, or for existing loans the date when the matunfy date, pricing or i amount is d. Predomij all current year and near term loan origination years for
crificized loans relate to existing loans that have had recent maturily date, pricing or amount

(a)
(b)
fc)

(d)

Classified rarmg on consumer loans primarily based on delinquency stalus.

Incl an ial amount of r fving d to term loans.

At March 31, 2024, $1.8 billion of GNMA loans 30 days or more past due and §1.4 billion of modified GNMA loans whose repayments are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of
Veterans Alffairs were classified with a puss rnrmg. compar!d wilh §2.0 !than and 81.2 biltfon at D ber 31, 2023,

Pradominately all credit card loans are ¢ loans  Inch an iad amount al ing to term loans.
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Loan Modifications In certain circumstances, the Company may modify the terms of a loan to maximize the collection of amounts due when a borrower is experiencing
financial difficulties or is expected to experience difficulties in the near-term. The Company recognizes interest on modified loans if full collection of contractual principal
and interest is expected. The effects of modifications on credit loss expectations, such as improved payment capacity, longer expected lives and other factors, are
considered when measuring the allowance for credit losses. Modification performance, including redefault rates and how these compare to historical losses, are also
considered. Modifications generally do not result in significant changes to the Company's allowance for credit losses.

The following table provides a summary of pericd-end balances of loans modified during the periods presented, by portfolio class and modification granted:

Interest Rate Payment Term . - Total Percent of
Three Months Ended March 31 (Dollars in Millions) Reduction Delay Extension Multiple Modifications®! Modifications Class Total
2024
Commercial $ 25 % — $ 328 § — § 353 3%
Commercial real estate — — 282 50 332 .6
Residential mortgagestb! — 20 5 2 27 —_
Credit card 126 — —_ — 126 5
Other retail 3 1 38 — 42 A
Total loans, excluding loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools 154 21 653 52 880 2
Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools® 1 480 68 93 652 .6
Total loans $ 155 § 511 % 721 % 145 § 1,532 4 %
2023
Commercial $ 114 § — § 68 $ — % 182 1%
Commercial real estate — —_ 12 28 40 1
Residential mortgagest® — 130 10 12 152 A
Credit card 94 — — — 94 4
Other retail 2 11 63 2 78 A
Total loans, excluding loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools 210 141 153 42 546 A
Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage poolst® - 243 63 47 353 3
Total loans $ 210 $ 384 $ 216 § 88 § 89S 2%

{a) Includes 888 million of total loans receiving a payment delay and term extension, $53 million of total loans receiving an interest rate reduction and term extension and $4 million of total loans receiving an interest rate reduction, payment
delay and term extension for ihe three months ended March 31, 2024. includes $52 million of lotal loans receiving a payment delay and lerm extension, $32 million of tolal loans receiving an interest rate reduction and lerm extension and
85 mitlion of total loans receiving an interes! rate reduction, payment delay and term extension for the three months ended March 31, 2023.

(b) Percent of class total amounts expressed as a percent of total resi i loan bal. A

Loan madifications included in the table above exclude trial period arrangements offered to customers and secured loans to consumer borrowers that have had debt
discharged through bankruptcy where the borrower has not reaffirmed the debt during the periods presented. At March 31, 2024 the balance of loans modified in trial
period arrangements was $53 million, while the balance of secured loans to consumer borrowers that have had debt discharged through bankruptcy was not material.
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The following table summarizes the effects of loan modifications made to borrowers on loans modified:

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Interest Rate l\ﬂonlhs of Term
Three Months Ended March 31 Reduclion Extension
2024
Commercial2) 19.3 % 7
Commercial real estate 4.3
Residential mortgages 2.5 84
Credit card 16.4 —
Other retail 9.3 4
Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools 4 114
2023
Commercial 24 % 5
Commercial real estate 5.0 6
Residential mortgages 1.2 120
Credit card 16.0 _
Other retail 6.6 151
Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools 7 66

Note: The weighted-average payment deferral for all portfolio classes was less than $1 million for both the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023. Forbearance payments are required to be paid at the end of the original term loan.
(a) The weighted-average interest rate reduction for commercial loans for the three months ended March 31, 2024, was primarily driven by commercial cards.

For the commercial lending segment, modifications generally result in the Company working with borrowers on a case-by-case basis. Commercial and commercial real
estate modifications generally include extensions of the maturity date and may be accompanied by an increase or decrease to the interest rate. In addition, the Company
may work with the borrower in identifying other changes that mitigate loss to the Company, which may include additional collateral or guarantees to support the loan. To a
lesser extent, the Company may provide an interest rate reduction.

Modifications for the consumer lending segment are generally part of programs the Company has initiated. The Company modifies residential mortgage loans under
Federal Housing Administration, United States Department of Veterans Affairs, or its own internal programs. Under these programs, the Company offers qualifying
homeowners the opportunity to permanently modify their loan and achieve more affordable monthly payments. These modifications may include adjustments to interest
rates, conversion of adjustable rates to fixed rates, extension of maturity dates or deferrals of payments, capitalization of accrued interest and/or outstanding advances, or
in limited situations, partial forgiveness of loan principal. In most instances, participation in residential mortgage loan modification programs requires the customer to
complete a short-term trial period. A permanent loan modification is contingent on the customer successfully completing the trial period arrangement, and the loan
documents are not modified until that time.

Credit card and other retail loan modifications are generally part of distinct modification programs providing customers experiencing financial difficulty with
modifications whereby balances may be amortized up to 60 months, and generally include waiver of fees and reduced interest rates.

Loans that receive a forbearance plan generally remain in default until they are no longer delinquent as the result of the payment of all past due amounts or the
borrower receiving a term extension or modification. Therefore, loans only receiving forbearance plans are not included in the table below.

The following table provides a summary of loan balances at March 31, 2024, which were modified during the prior twelve months, by portfolio class and delinquency
status:

(Dollars in Millions) Current aol—f'aagslogzg Morggggyélf; Total
Commercial $ 498 § 16 § 83 § 597
Commercial real estate 712 2 281 995
Residential mortgages® 1,509 17 15 1,541
Credit card 275 67 34 376
Other retail 130 18 7 155

Total loans $ 3,124 § 120 $ 420 $ 3,664

{a) At March 31, 2024, 3333 million of loans 30-89 days pas! due and $198 million of loans 90 days or more past due purchased and that could be purchased from GNMA 'gage pools under deling loan repurchase oplions whose
payments are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs, were classified as current.
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The following table provides a summary of loan balances at March 31, 2023, which were modified on or after January 1, 2023, the date the Company adopted accounting
guidance which removed the separate recognition and measurement of troubled debt restructurings, through March 31, 2023, by portfolio class and delinquency status:

(Dollars in Millions) Current 30;365951003\{: Mor:%g:.ys.f; Total
Commercial $ 146 § 6 $ 30 8% 182
Commercial real estate 6 — 34 40
Residential mortgages® 319 3 10 332
Credit card 56 28 10 94
Other retail 64 3 2 69

Total loans $ 591 $ 40 $ 86 $ 717

{a) At March 31, 2023, $32 million of loans 30-89 days past due and $1 million of loans 90 days or more past due purchased and that could be purchased from GNMA morigage pools under delinquent loan repurchase options whose
payments are insured by the Federal Housing Adminisiration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Velerans Affairs, were classified as current.

The following table provides a summary of loans that defaulted (fully or partially charged-off or became 90 days or more past due) that were modified within twelve months
prior to default.

(Dollars in Millions) Interest Rate Reduclion Payment Delay Term Extension Multiple Modificationst
Three Months Ended March 31, 2024
Commercial $ 6§ — § — 3 —
Residential mortgages — 5 3 2
Credit card 29 —_— —_ —_—
Other retail — 1 6 =
Total loans, excluding loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools 35 6 9 2
Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools —_ 77 31 42
Total loans $ 35 % 83 $ 40 $ 44

(a) Includes §43 million of total loans receiving a payment delay and term extension and $1 million of total loans receiving an interest rate reduction, payment delay and term extension.

There were no loans that defaulted (fully or partially charged-off or became 90 days or more past due) that were modified on or after January 1, 2023, the date the
Company adopted accounting guidance which removed the separate recognition and measurement of troubled debt restructurings, through March 31, 2023.

As of March 31, 2024 the Company had $435 million of commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers whose terms of their outstanding owed balances have been
modified.
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Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Variable
Interest Entities

The Company transfers financial assets in the normal course of business. The majority of the Company's financial asset transfers are residential mortgage loan sales
primarily to GSEs, transfers of tax-advantaged investments, commercial loan sales through participation agreements, and other individual or portfolio loan and securities
sales. In accordance with the accounting guidance for asset transfers, the Company considers any ongoing involvement with transferred assets in determining whether
the assets can be derecognized from the balance sheet. Guarantees provided to certain third parties in connection with the transfer of assets are further discussed in Note
15.

For loans sold under participation agreements, the Company also considers whether the terms of the loan participation agreement meet the accounting definition of a
participating interest. With the exception of servicing and certain performance-based guarantees, the Company's continuing involvement with financial assets sold is
minimal and generally limited to market customary representation and warranty clauses. Any gain or loss on sale depends on the previous carrying amount of the
transferred financial assets, the consideration received, and any liabilities incurred in exchange for the transferred assets. Upon transfer, any servicing assets and other
interests that continue to be held by the Company are initially recognized at fair value. For further information on MSRs, refer to Note 6. On a limited basis, the Company
may acquire and package high-grade corporate bonds for select corporate customers, in which the Company generally has no continuing involvement with these
transactions. Additionally, the Company is an authorized GNMA issuer and issues GNMA securities on a regular basis. The Company has no other asset securitizations or
similar asset-backed financing arrangements that are off-balance sheet.

The Company is involved in various entities that are considered to be variable interest entities ("VIEs"). The Company’s investments in VIEs are primarily related to
investments promoting affordable housing, community development and renewable energy sources. Some of these tax-advantaged investments support the Company's
regulatory compliance with the Community Reinvestment Act. The Company’s investments in these entities generate a return primarily through the realization of federal
and state income tax credits, and other tax benefits, such as tax deductions from operating losses of the investments, over specified time periods. These tax credits are
recognized as a reduction of tax expense or, for investments qualifying as investment tax credits, as a reduction to the related investment asset. The Company recognized
federal and state income tax credits related to its affordable housing and other tax-advantaged investments in tax expense of $139 million and $138 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company also recognized $63 million and $164 million of investment tax credits for the three months ended
March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company recognized $138 million and $130 million of expenses related to all of these investments for the three months
ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which were primarily included in tax expense.

The Company is not required to consolidate VIEs in which it has concluded it does not have a controlling financial interest, and thus is not the primary beneficiary. In
such cases, the Company does not have both the power to direct the entities’ most significant activities and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits
that could potentially be significant to the VIEs.

The Company's investments in these unconsolidated VIEs are carried in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company’s unfunded capital and other
commitments related to these unconsolidated VIEs are generally carried in other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company’s maximum exposure to loss
from these unconsolidated VIEs include the investment recorded on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet, net of unfunded capital commitments, and previously
recorded tax credits which remain subject to recapture by taxing authorities based on compliance features required to be met at the project level. While the Company
believes potential losses from these investments are remote, the maximum exposure was determined by assuming a scenario where the community-based business and
housing projects completely fail and do not meet certain government compliance requirements resulting in recapture of the related tax credits.

The following table provides a summary of investments in community development and tax-advantaged VIEs that the Company has not consolidated:

(Dollars in Millions) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Investment carrying amount 3 7,259 $ 6,659
Unfunded capital and other commitments 4,104 3,619
Maximum exposure to loss 8,959 9,002

The Company also has noncontrolling financial investments in private investment funds and partnerships considered to be VIEs, which are not consolidated. The
Company's recorded investment in these entities, carried in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, was approximately $227 million at March 31, 2024 and
$219 million at December 31, 2023. The maximum exposure to loss related to these VIEs was $317 million at March 31, 2024 and $319 million at December 31, 2023,
representing the Company’s investment balance and its unfunded commitments to invest additional amounts.

The Company also held senior notes of $4.7 billion as available-for-sale investment securities at March 31, 2024, compared with $5.3 billion at December 31, 2023.
These senior notes were issued by third-party securitization vehicles that held $5.4 billion at March 31, 2024 and $6.1 billion at December 31, 2023 of indirect auto loans
that collateralize the senior notes. These VIEs are not consolidated by the Company.
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The Company's individual net investments in unconsolidated VIEs, which exclude any unfunded capital commitments, ranged from less than $1 million to $89 million
at March 31, 2024, compared with less than $1 million to $86 million at December 31, 2023.

The Company is required to consolidate VIEs in which it has concluded it has a controlling financial interest. The Company sponsors entities to which it transfers its
interests in tax-advantaged investments to third parties. At March 31, 2024, approximately $6.0 billion of the Company's assets and $4.2 billion of its liabilities included on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet were related to community development and tax-advantaged investment VIEs which the Company has consolidated, primarily related to
these transfers. These amounts compared to $6.1 billion and $4.4 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2023. The majority of the assets of these consolidated VIES are
reported in other assets, and the liabilities are reported in long-term debt and other liabilities. The assets of a particular VIE are the primary source of funds to settle its
obligations. The creditors of the VIEs do not have recourse to the general credit of the Company. The Company's exposure to the consolidated VIEs is generally limited to
the carrying value of its variable interests plus any related tax credits previously recognized or transferred to others with a guarantee.

In addition, the Company sponsors a municipal bond securities tender option bond program. The Company controls the activities of the program'’s entities, is entitled to
the residual returns and provides liquidity and remarketing arrangements to the program. As a result, the Company has consolidated the program’s entities. At March 31,
2024, $476 million of available-for-sale investment securities and $381 million of short-term borrowings on the Consolidated Balance Sheet were related to the tender
option bond program, compared with $607 million of available-for-sale investment securities and $381 million of short-term borrowings at December 31, 2023.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company capitalizes MSRs as separate assets when loans are sold and servicing is retained. MSRs may also be purchased from others. The Company carries
MSRs at fair value, with changes in the fair value recorded in earnings during the period in which they occur. The Company serviced $232.9 billion of residential mortgage
loans for others at March 31, 2024, and $233.4 billion at December 31, 2023, including subserviced mortgages with no corresponding MSR asset. Included in mortgage
banking revenue are the MSR fair value changes arising from market rate and model assumption changes, net of the value change in derivatives used to economically
hedge MSRs. These changes resulted in net losses of $3 million and $11 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Loan servicing and
ancillary fees, not including valuation changes, included in mortgage banking revenue were $180 million and $190 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

Changes in fair value of capitalized MSRs are summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended

March 31
(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of period $ 3377 % 3,755
Rights purchased —_ 1
Rights capitalized 55 96
Rights sold‘® —_ 1
Changes in fair value of MSRs
Due to fluctuations in market interest ratest® 103 (38)
Due to revised assumptions or models(® 8 5
Other changes in fair value® (81) (96)
Balance at end of period $ 3,462 % 3,724

fa)  MSRs sold include those having a negative fair value, resulting from the loans being severely delinquent.

(b)  Includes changes in MSR value associsted with changes in martket inferesi rafes, including estimated propayment rates and anficipated earnings on escrow deposits.

fc) Includes changes in MSR value not caused by changes in marke! inferes! rates; such as changes in assumed cost (o service, ancillary incoma and option adjusted spread, as well as the impact of any model changes.

(d)  Primarily the change in MSR value from passage of time and cash flows realized (decay), but also includes the impact of changes to expected cash flows not associated with changes in market interest rates, such as the impact of
delinquencies.

The estimated sensitivity to changes in interest rates of the fair value of the MSR portfolio and the related derivative instruments was as follows:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
i pp— Down Down Down Up Up Up Down Down Down Up Up Up
(Dollars in Millions) 100 bps 50 bps 25 hps 25 bps 50 bps 100 bps 100 bps 50 bps 25 bps 25 bps 50 bps 100 bps
MSR portfolio $ (349) $ (163) 8 (78) $ 718 136 § 248 (§ (370) $ (173} (84) % 77 % 147 § 268
Derivative instrument hedges 369 165 77 71) (137) (258) 381 178 86 (79) (152) (289)
Net sensitivity $ 20 $ 23 (1) 8 — 3 (1) (10)[$ 18 5% 23 (2) 8 (58 (21)
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The fair value of MSRs and their sensitivity to changes in interest rates is influenced by the mix of the servicing portfolio and characteristics of each segment of the
portfolio. The Company’s servicing portfolio consists of the distinct portfolios of government-insured mortgages, conventional mortgages and Housing Finance Agency
("HFA") mortgages. The servicing portfolios are predominantly comprised of fixed-rate agency loans with limited adjustable-rate or jumbo mortgage loans. The HFA
servicing portfolio is comprised of loans originated under state and local housing authority program guidelines which assist purchases by first-time or low- to moderate-
income homebuyers through a favorable rate subsidy, down payment and/or closing cost assistance on government- and conventional-insured mortgages.

The following table provides a summary of the Company's MSRs and related characteristics by portfolio:

March 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

(Dollars in Millions} HFA Government Conventional® Total HFA Governmenl Conventional’® Total
Servicing portfoliot® 3 49,275  $ 25961 % 150,250 $ 225,486 |§ 48,286 § 25996 § 151,056 §$ 225,338
Fair value $ 809 § 521  § 2132 % 3462 |% 769 § 507 % 2101 § 3,377
Value (bps)® 164 201 142 154 159 195 139 150
Weighted-average servicing fees

(bps) 36 44 26 30 36 44 26 30
Multiple (value/servicing fees) 4.60 4.51 5.52 5.11 4.45 4.41 5.41 5.00
Weighted-average note rate 4.66 % 4.27 % 3.85% 4,08 % 4.56 % 4,23 % 3.81% 4.02 %
Weighted-average age (in years) 4.4 57 4.5 4.8 4.3 5.5 4.3 4.4
Weighted-average expected

prepayment (constant

prepayment rate) 10.2 % 10.7 % 8.8 % 9.3% 10.5% 11.1 % 9.1 % 9.6 %
Weighted-average expected life (in

years) 7.2 6.6 7.1 71 7.2 6.5 7.0 7.0
Weighted-average option adjusted

spread© 5.4 % 5.9 % 4.6 % 5.0 % 5.4 % 5.9 % 4.6 % 4.9%

(a) Represents principal balance of morigages having corresponding MSR asset.

(b) Calculated as fair value divided by the servicing portfolio

(c) Option adjusted spread is the incremental spread added to the risk-free rate to reflect optionality and other risk inherent in the MSRs.
(d) Repi nts loans sold primarily to GSEs.

NOTE 7 Preferred Stock

At March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had authority to issue 50 million shares of preferred stock. The number of shares issued and outstanding and

the carrying amount of each outstanding series of the Company's preferred stock were as follows:
March 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Shares Issued and Liquidation Carrying | Shares Issued and Liquidation Carrying
(Dollars in Millions) Outstanding Preference Discount Amaunt Qulstanding Preference Discount Amount
Series A 12,510 % 1,251 $ 145 § 1,108 12,510 % 1,251 § 145 § 1,106
Series B 40,000 1,000 —_ 1,000 40,000 1,000 — 1,000
Series J 40,000 1,000 7 993 40,000 1,000 7 993
Series K 23,000 575 10 565 23,000 575 10 565
Series L 20,000 500 14 486 20,000 500 14 486
Series M 30,000 750 21 729 30,000 750 21 729
Series N 60,000 1,500 8 1,492 60,000 1,500 8 1,492
Series O 18,000 450 13 437 18,000 450 13 437
Total preferred stock!® 243,510 % 7,026 $ 218 § 6,808 243,5108% 7,026 $ 218 § 6,808
(a) The par value of all shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, was $1.00 per share.
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BIEEE Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Shareholders’ equity is affected by transactions and valuations of asset and liability positions that require adjustments to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
The reconciliation of the transactions affecting accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) included in shareholders’ equity is as follows:

Unrealized Gains

Unrealized Gains

(Losses) on {Losses) on Investment

Investment Securities Transferred Unrealized Gains  Unrealized Gains
- - iSecurilies] * whrom Av_ail?hle- .  (Losses) on ! tLusses? on  Foreign Currency
Three Months Ended March 31 (Dollars in Millions) Available-for- Sale Sale o Held-to-Maturity Derivative Hedges  Retirement Plans Translation Total
2024
Balance at beginning of period $ (5,151) $ (3,537) 8 (242) $ (1,138) $ (28) $ (10,096)
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) (171) - (343) — — (514)
Foreign currency translation adjustment(® —_ —_ — —_ 6 6
Reclassification to earnings of realized (gains) losses (2) 114 49 — —_ 161
Applicable income taxes 45 (29) 75 —_ (1) 90
Balance at end of period $ (5,279) $ (3,452) $ (461) $ (1,138) $ (23) $ (10,353)
2023
Balance at beginning of period $ (6,378) $ (3,933) $ (114) $ (939) (43) & (11,407)
Changes in unrealized gains (Josses) 1,305 — 204 1 — 1,510
Foreign currency translation adjustment(® — — — — 1) (1)
Reclassification to earnings of realized (gains) losses 32 121 7 (2) —_ 158
Applicable income taxes (328) (31) (54) —_ — (413)
Balance at end of period 3 (5,369) $ (3,843) 43 % (940) $ (44) (10,153)

(a) Represents the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on the Company's investment in foreign operations and related hedges.

Additional detail about the impact to net income for items reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and into earnings is as follows:

Impact to Net Income

Three Months Ended

March 31 Affected Line ltem in the Consolidated Statement
{Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 of Income
Unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities available-for-sale
Realized gains (losses) on sale of investment securities $ 2% (32) Securities gains (losses), net
= (1) 8 Applicable income taxes
1 (24) Net-of-tax
Unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities transferred from available-for-sale to held-to-maturity
Amortization of unrealized gains (losses) (114) (121) Interest income
29 31 Applicable income taxes
(85) (90) Net-of-tax
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative hedges
Realized gains (losses) on derivative hedges (49) (7) Net interest income
13 1 Applicable income taxes
(36) (6) Net-of-tax
Unrealized gains (losses) on retirement plans
Actuarial gains (losses) and prior service cost (credit) amortization —_ 2 Other noninterest expense
— — Applicable income taxes
—_ 2 Net-of-tax
Total impact to net income $ (120) $ (118)
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Earnings Per Share

The components of earnings per share were:
Three Months Ended

March 31

(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2024 2023
Net income attributable to U.S. Bancorp $ 1,319 § 1,698
Preferred dividends (102) (98)
Earnings allocated to participating stock awards (8) (8)

Net income applicable to U.S. Bancorp common shareholders $ 1,209 $ 1,592
Average common shares outstanding 1,559 1,632
Average diluted common shares outstanding 1,559 1,532
Earnings per common share $ 78 § 1.04
Diluted earnings per common share $ .78 § 1.04

The net effect of the exercise and assumed purchase of outstanding stock awards at March 31, 2024 and 2023 on average diluted common shares outstanding for the
three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 was not material. Options outstanding at March 31, 2024 to purchase 1 million common shares for the three months ended
March 31, 2024, and outstanding at March 31, 2023 to purchase 1 million common shares for the three months ended March 31, 2023 were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share because they were antidilutive.

Employee Benefits

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the Company's pension plans were:
Three Months Ended March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Service cost $ 55 § 56
Interest cost 94 93
Expected return on plan assets (1486) (137)
Prior service cost (credit) amortization m —_
Actuarial loss (gain) amortization 2 1

Net periodic benefit cost!® $ 43 13
(a) Service cost is included in comp ion and empi benefiis exp on the C d of income. Alf other components are included in other noninterest exp on the C i of Income,

NOTE 11 Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense were:
Three Manths Ended

March 31
{Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Federal
Current $ 180 $ 397
Deferred 133 (32)
Federal income tax 313 365
State
Current 2 96
Deferred 13 (6)
State income tax 34 90
Total income tax provision $ 347 $ 455
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A reconciliation of expected income tax expense at the federal statutory rate of 21 percent to the Company'’s applicable income tax expense follows:
Three Months Ended

March 31
{Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Tax at statutory rate $ 351 % 453
State income tax, at statutory rates, net of federal tax benefit 81 102
Tax effect of
Tax credits and benefits, net of related expenses 61) (77)
Exam resolutions (65) —
Tax-exempt income (31) (34)
Other items 72 1
Applicable income taxes $ 347 $ 455

The Company's income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal, state, local and foreign government authorities. On an ongoing basis, numerous
federal, state, local and foreign examinations are in progress and cover multiple tax years. As of March 31, 2024, federal tax examinations for all years ending through
December 31, 2016 are completed and resolved. The Company’s tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2017 through December 31, 2020 are under examination
by the Internal Revenue Service. The years open to examination by foreign, state and local government authorities vary by jurisdiction.

The Company’s net deferred tax asset was $6.3 billion at March 31, 2024 and $6.4 billion at December 31, 2023.

NOTE 12 Derivative Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into derivative transactions to manage various risks and to accommodate the business requirements of its
customers. The Company recognizes all derivatives on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair value in other assets or in other liabilities. On the date the Company enters
into a derivative contract, the derivative is designated as either a fair value hedge, cash flow hedge, net investment hedge, or a designation is not made as itis a
customer-related transaction, an economic hedge for asset/liability risk management purposes or another stand-alone derivative created through the Company's
operations ("free-standing derivative”). When a derivative is designated as a fair value, cash flow or net investment hedge, the Company performs an assessment, at
inception and, at a minimum, quarterly thereafter, to determine the effectiveness of the derivative in offsetting changes in the value or cash flows of the hedged item(s).

Fair Value Hedges These derivatives are interest rate swaps the Company uses to hedge the change in fair value related to interest rate changes of its underlying
available-for-sale investment securities and fixed-rate debt. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges, and changes in the fair value of the
hedged items, are recorded in earnings.

Cash Flow Hedges These derivatives are interest rate swaps the Company uses to hedge the forecasted cash flows from its underlying variable-rate loans and debt,
Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) until the cash flows of the hedged items are
realized. If a derivative designated as a cash flow hedge is terminated or ceases to be highly effective, the gain or loss in other comprehensive income (loss) is amortized
to earnings over the period the forecasted hedged transactions impact earnings. If a hedged forecasted transaction is no longer probable, hedge accounting is ceased
and any gain or loss included in other comprehensive income (loss) is reported in earnings immediately, unless the forecasted transaction is at least reasonably possible
of occurring, whereby the amounts remain within other comprehensive income (loss). At March 31, 2024, the Company had $461 million (net-of-tax) of realized and
unrealized losses on derivatives classified as cash flow hedges recorded in other comprehensive income (loss), compared with $242 million (net-of-tax) of realized and
unrealized losses at December 31, 2023. The estimated amount to be reclassified from other comprehensive income (loss) into earnings during the next 12 months is a
loss of $172 million (net-of-tax). All cash flow hedges were highly effective for the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Net Investment Hedges The Company uses forward commitments to sell specified amounts of certain foreign currencies, and non-derivative debt instruments, to hedge
the volatility of its net investment in foreign operations driven by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The carrying amount of non-derivative debt instruments
designated as net investment hedges was $1.3 billion at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

Other Derivative Positions The Company enters into free-standing derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk and for other risk management purposes. These derivatives
include forward commitments to sell TBAs and other commitments to sell residential mortgage loans, which are used to economically hedge the interest rate risk related to
MLHFS and unfunded mortgage loan commitments. The Company also enters into interest rate swaps, swaptions, forward commitments to buy TBAs, U.S. Treasury and
Eurodollar futures and options on U.S. Treasury futures to economically hedge the change in the fair value of the Company's MSRs. The Company enters into foreign
currency forwards to economically hedge remeasurement gains and losses the Company
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recognizes on foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. The Company also enters into interest rate swaps as economic hedges of fair value option elected
deposits. In addition, the Company acts as a seller and buyer of interest rate, foreign exchange and commaodity contracts for its customers. The Company mitigates the
market and liquidity risk associated with these customer derivatives by entering into similar offsetting positions with broker-dealers, or on a portfolio basis by entering into
other derivative or non-derivative financial instruments that partially or fully offset the exposure to eamings from these customer-related positions. The Company's
customer derivatives and related hedges are monitored and reviewed by the Company's Market Risk Committee, which establishes policies for market risk management,
including exposure limits for each portfolio. The Company also has derivative contracts that are created through its operations, including certain unfunded mortgage loan
commitments and swap agreements related to the sale of a portion of its Class B common and preferred shares of Visa Inc. Refer to Note 14 for further information on
these swap agreements. The Company uses credit derivatives to economically hedge the credit risk on its derivative positions and loan portfolios.

The following table summarizes the asset and liability management derivative positions of the Company:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Fair Value Fair Value
(Dollars in Millions) Naolional Value Assets Liabilities| Notional Value Assets Liabilities
Fair value hedges
Interest rate contracts
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps $ 13,800 $ — % — s 12,100 $ - 3 16
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps 19,631 —_ —_ 24,139 —_ —_

Cash flow hedges
Interest rate contracts
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps 24,400 — _— 18,400 — ey
Net investment hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts 901 4 —_ 854 - 10
Other economic hedges
Interest rate contracts
Futures and forwards

Buy 4,764 6 6 5,006 29 5
Sell 2,371 2 8 4,501 7 34
Options
Purchased 6,660 217 — 6,085 237 —
Written 2,571 19 60 3,696 14 75
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps 8,395 37 1 7,029 9 3
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps 2,964 —_ —_ 3,801 — —_
Foreign exchange forward contracts 721 1 1 734 2 5
Equity contracts 246 8 —_ 227 2 e
Credit contracts 2,933 1 & 2,620 1 —
Other'® 2,988 11 148 2,136 11 93
Total $ 93,345 § 304 § 230 |$ 91,328 § 312 § 241

fa) Includes derivalive liability swap agreements related to the sale of a portion of the Company’s Class B common and preferred shares of Visa inc. The Visa swap agreements had a tolal notional value and fair value of $2.1 billion and
$145 million at March 31, 2024, respectively, compared to $2.0 billion and $91 million at D 31, 2023, respectively. In addition, i hort-term underwriting purchase and sale commitments with total notional values of
$862 million at March 31, 2024, and $28 million at December 31, 2023,
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The following table summarizes the customer-related derivative positions of the Company:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Fair Value Fair Value
Notional MNotianal
(Dollars in Millions) Value Assets Liabilities Value Assels Liabilities
Interest rate contracts
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps $ 373670 $ 391 § 5,291 |8 363,375 § 791 § 4,395
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps 338,302 2,182 183 330,539 1,817 280
Otherf@ 79,395 15 48 82,209 17 51
Options
Purchased 94,801 889 2 102,423 1,026 18
Written 90,927 4 1,034 97,680 20 1,087
Foreign exchange rate contracts
Forwards, spots and swaps 109,255 2,036 1,789 121,119 2,252 1,942
Options
Purchased 785 186 — 1,532 28 —
Written 785 — 16 1,532 — 28
Commodity contracts
Swaps 3,303 141 133 2,498 1186 110
Options
Purchased 2,464 178 1 1,936 151 —_
Wiritten 2,464 1 177 1,936 — 151
Futures
Sell 5 1 1 = — —_
Credit contracts 12,576 _ 4 13,053 1 B
Total $ 1,108,732 $ 5,854 § 8,679 |5 1,119,842 $ 6,219 § 8,068

(a)  Primarily represents fioating rate interest rate swaps that pay based on differentials between specified inferest rate indexes.
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The table below shows the effective portion of the gains (losses) recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) and the gains (losses) reclassified from other
comprehensive income (loss) into earnings (net-of-tax) for the three months ended March 31:

Gains (Losses) Recognizedin ~ Gains (Losses) Reclassified
Other Comprehensive Income  from Olher Comprehensive

(Loss) Income (Loss) into Eamings

(Dallars in Millions) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Asset and Liability Management Positions
Cash flow hedges

Interest rate contracts $ (255) $ 151 (8 (36) $ (6)
Net investment hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts 69 3) _— —_—

Non-derivative debt instruments 34 (18) — —

Note: The Company does not exclude components from effectiveness testing for cash flow and net investment hedges.

The table below shows the effect of fair value and cash flow hedge accounting on the Consolidated Statement of Income for the three months ended March 31:

Interest Income Interest Expense

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Total amount of income and expense line items presented in the Consolidated Statement of Income in which the effects of fair

value or cash flow hedges are recorded $ 7,764 $ 6,964 |$ 3,779 § 2,330
Asset and Liability Management Positions
Fair value hedges

Interest rate contract derivatives 468 (178) (57) (114)

Hedged items (469) 174 57 114
Cash flow hedges

Interest rate contract derivatives (42) — 7 7

Note: The Company does not exclude components from effecliveness testing for fair value and cash flow hedges. The Company reclassified losses of $7 million into earnings during both the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, as
a result of realized cash flows on discontinued cash flow hedges. No amounts were reclassified info eamings on disconlinued cash flow hedges because it is probable the original hedged forecasled cash flows will not occur.

The table below shows cumulative hedging adjustments and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities currently designated in fair value hedges:
Carrying Amount of the Hedged Assets

and Liabilities Cumulalive Hedging Adjustment
(Dollars in Millions) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Line Item in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
Available-for-sale investment securities!® 3 18,981 § 23,924 |3 (474) 3 (93)
Long-term debt 13,683 12,034 (87) (32)
Note: The table above exch: the ive hedging adjt related to di it hedging relati ips on ik fe e ir ities and long-term debt of $(108} million and $(110) million, respectively, ai March 31,
2024, compared with $(18) million and $(116) million at D ber 31, 2023, respeclively. The carrying amount of available-for-sale investment securities and long-term debt related to di: i hedging relati ips was $7.1 billion
and $6.7 billion, respectively, at March 31, 2024, compared with 8830 million and $7.2 billion at D 31, 2023, fvely.
(a} related lo available-fc le i iti Wy i d as the hedged item in a fair value hedge using the portfolio layer method. At March 31, 2024, the amortized cost of the closed portfolios used in
these hedging relationships was $15.4 billion, of which $9.5 billion was designated as hedged. At March 31, 2024, the cumulative amount of basis adjt i with these hedging r i ips was 388 million. At

December 31, 2023, the amortized cost of the closed portfolios used in these hedging relationships was $15.6 bitlion, of which $9.6 billion was designated as hedged. At December 31, 2023, the cumulative amount of basis adjustments
associated with these hedging relationships was $335 million.
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The table below shows the gains (losses) recognized in earnings for other economic hedges and the customer-related positions for the three months ended March 31:

Location of Gains (Losses)
(Daollars in Millions) Recognized in Eamings 2024 2023

Asset and Liability Management Positions
Other economic hedges
Interest rate contracts

Futures and forwards Mortgage banking revenue § (12) $ 7
Purchased and written options Mortgage banking revenue 39 2)
Swaps Mortgage banking revenue/Interest expense (86) 58
Foreign exchange forward contracts Other noninterest income 4 (5)
Equity contracts Compensation expense — (3)
Credit contracts Commercial products revenue (2) —
Other Other noninterest income (75) 2

Customer-Related Positions
Interest rate contracts

Swaps Commercial products revenue 131 52

Purchased and written options Commercial products revenue 47) —_

Futures Commercial products revenue —_ 1)
Foreign exchange rate contracts

Forwards, spots and swaps Commercial products revenue 24 28
Commodity contracts

Swaps Commercial products revenue 2 —

Purchased and written options Commercial products revenue 2 e
Credit contracts Commercial products revenue (1) —

Derivatives are subject to credit risk associated with counterparties to the derivative contracts. The Company measures that credit risk using a credit valuation
adjustment and includes it within the fair value of the derivative. The Company manages counterparty credit risk through diversification of its derivative positions among
various counterparties, by entering into derivative positions that are centrally cleared through clearinghouses, by entering into master netting arrangements and, where
possible, by requiring collateral arrangements. A master netting arrangement allows two counterparties, who have multiple derivative contracts with each other, the ability
to net settle amounts under all contracts, including any related collateral, through a single payment and in a single currency. Collateral arrangements generally require the
counterparty to deliver collateral (typically cash or U.S. Treasury and agency securities) equal to the Company’s net derivative receivable, subject to minimum transfer and
credit rating requirements.

The Company's collateral arrangements are predominately bilateral and, therefore, contain provisions that require collateralization of the Company’s net liability
derivative positions. Required collateral coverage is based on net liability thresholds and may be contingent upon the Company’s credit rating from two of the nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations. If the Company’s credit rating were to fall below credit ratings thresholds established in the collateral arrangements, the
counterparties to the derivatives could request immediate additional collateral coverage up to and including full collateral coverage for derivatives in a net liability position.
The aggregate fair value of all derivatives under collateral arrangements that were in a net liability position at March 31, 2024, was $2.6 billion. At March 31, 2024, the
Company had $2.3 billion of cash posted as collateral against this net liability position.

Netting Arrangements for Certain Financial Instruments and Securities
Financing Activities

The Company's derivative portfolio consists of bilateral over-the-counter trades, certain interest rate derivatives and credit contracts required to be centrally cleared
through clearinghouses per current regulations, and exchange-traded positions which may include U.S, Treasury and Eurodollar futures or options on U.S. Treasury
futures. Of the Company's $1.2 trillion total notional amount of derivative positions at March 31, 2024, $526.1 billion related to bilateral over-the-counter trades,

$675.2 billion related to those centrally cleared through clearinghouses and $777 million related to those that were exchange-traded. The Company's derivative contracts
typically include offsetting rights (referred to as netting arrangements), and depending on expected volume, credit risk, and counterparty preference, collateral
maintenance may be required. For all derivatives under collateral support arrangements, fair value is determined daily and, depending on the collateral maintenance
requirements, the Company and a
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counterparty may receive or deliver collateral, based upon the net fair value of all derivative positions between the Company and the counterparty. Collateral is typically
cash, but securities may be allowed under collateral arrangements with certain counterparties. Receivables and payables related to cash collateral are included in other
assets and other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, along with the related derivative asset and liability fair values. Any securities pledged to counterparties as
collateral remain on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Securities received from counterparties as collateral are not recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, unless
the counterparty defaults. In general, securities used as collateral can be sold, repledged or otherwise used by the party in possession. No restrictions exist on the use of
cash collateral by either party. Refer to Note 12 for further discussion of the Company’s derivatives, including collateral arrangements.

As part of the Company’s treasury and broker-dealer operations, the Company executes transactions that are treated as securities sold under agreements to
repurchase or securities purchased under agreements to resell, both of which are accounted for as collateralized financings. Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase include repurchase agreements and securities loaned transactions. Securities purchased under agreements to resell include reverse repurchase agreements
and securities borrowed transactions. For securities sold under agreements to repurchase, the Company records a liability for the cash received, which is included in
short-term borrowings on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. For securities purchased under agreements to resell, the Company records a receivable for the cash paid,
which is included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Securities transferred to counterparties under repurchase agreements and securities loaned transactions continue to be recognized on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, are measured at fair value, and are included in investment securities or other assets. Securities received from counterparties under reverse repurchase
agreements and securities borrowed transactions are not recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet unless the counterparty defaults. The securities transferred
under repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions typically are U.S. Treasury and agency securities, residential agency mortgage-backed securities, corporate debt
securities or asset-backed securities. The securities loaned or borrowed typically are corporate debt securities traded by the Company’s primary broker-dealer subsidiary.
In general, the securities transferred can be sold, repledged or otherwise used by the party in possession. No restrictions exist on the use of cash collateral by either party.
Repurchase/reverse repurchase and securities loaned/borrowed transactions expose the Company to counterparty risk. The Company manages this risk by performing
assessments, independent of business line managers, and establishing concentration limits on each counterparty. Additionally, these transactions include collateral
arrangements that require the fair values of the underlying securities to be determined daily, resulting in cash being obtained or refunded to counterparties to maintain
specified collateral levels.

The following table summarizes the maturities by category of collateral pledged for repurchase agreements and securities loaned transactions:

Overnight and Greater Than 90
{Dollars in Millions) Continuous  Less Than 30 Days 30-89 Days Days Total
March 31, 2024
Repurchase agreements
U.S. Treasury and agencies $ 3,598 § — § — $ — § 3,598
Residential agency mortgage-backed securities 355 — — —_ 355
Corporate debt securities 838 — — — 838
Asset-backed securities 18 64 —_ — 82
Total repurchase agreements 4,809 64 — — 4,873
Securities loaned
Corporate debt securities 328 —_ —_ —_ 328
Total securities loaned 328 —_ — —_ 328
Gross amount of recognized liabilities $ 5137 % 64 $ — 3 — 3 5,201
December 31, 2023
Repurchase agreements
U.S. Treasury and agencies $ 2,375 $ — $ — % — 3 2,375
Residential agency mortgage-backed securities 338 —_ —_ _ 338
Corporate debt securities 821 — — — 821
Asset-backed securities —_ 45 —_ —_ 45
Total repurchase agreements 3,534 45 — — 3,579
Securities loaned
Corporate debt securities 290 — —_ -_— 290
Total securities loaned 290 _ — —_— 290
Gross amount of recognized liabilities 3 3,824 § 45 § — & — § 3,869
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The Company executes its derivative, repurchase/reverse repurchase and securities loaned/borrowed transactions under the respective industry standard

agreements. These agreements include master netting arrangements that allow for multiple contracts executed with the same counterparty to be viewed as a single
arrangement. This allows for net settlement of a single amount on a daily basis. In the event of default, the master netting arrangement provides for close-out netting,
which allows all of these positions with the defaulting counterparty to be terminated and net settled with a single payment amount.

The Company has elected to offset the assets and liabilities under netting arrangements for the balance sheet presentation of the majority of its derivative

counterparties. The netting occurs at the counterparty level, and includes all assets and liabilities related to the derivative contracts, including those associated with cash
collateral received or delivered. The Company has not elected to offset the assets and liabilities under netting arrangements for the balance sheet presentation of
repurchase/reverse repurchase and securities loaned/borrowed transactions.

The following tables provide information on the Company's netting adjustments, and items not offset on the Consolidated Balance Sheet but available for offset in the
event of default;

Gross Amounts Not Offsel on the Consolidated

Gross Amounts Offset Net Amounts Presented Balance Sheet

Gross Recognized on the Consolidaled on the Consolidated

(Dallars in Millions) Assets Balance Sheet® Balance Sheet Financial Inslruments®  Collateral Received® Net Amount
March 31, 2024
Derivative assets'? $ 6,128 $ (3.485) $ 2643 § (110) $ 2)% 2,531
Reverse repurchase agreements 3,786 —_ 3,786 (401) (3,385) —_
Securities borrowed 1,843 —_ 1,843 —_ (1,777) 66
Total $ 11,757 § (3,485) $ 8,272 § (511) § (5,164) § 2,597
December 31, 2023
Derivative assets(® $ 6,504 $ (3,666) $ 2,838 § (141) $ ()] 2,694
Reverse repurchase agreements 2,513 —_ 2,513 (568) (1,941) 4
Securities borrowed 1,802 — 1,802 (14) (1,717) 71
Total $ 10,819 $ (3,666) $ 7,153 § (723) $ (3,661) $ 2,768
(a) Includes $1.8 billion and $1.6 billion of cash collateral related payables that were nefied against derivative assets at March 31, 2024 and D ber 31, 2023, respectively
{b) For derivative assets this includes any derivative liability fair values that could be offset in the event of counterparty default; for reverse repurchase agreements this includes any repurchase agreement payables that could be offset in the
event of counterparty defaull; for ities b this includes any ities loaned payables that could be offset in the event of counterparty default.
(c) Includes the fair value of securities received by the Company from the counlterparty. These ities are not inch on the C: i Bal. Sheet uniess the counterparty defaults
(d} Excludes $30 million and $27 miltion at March 31, 2024 and D ber 31, 2023, respectively, of derivalive assets not subject to nelting arrangements.
Gross Amounts Not Offset on lhe Consolidated
Gross Amounts Offset Net Amounts Presented Balance Sheet
Gross Recognized on lhe Consolidated on lhe Consolidated
(Dollars in Millions) Liabilities Balance Sheel® Balance Sheet Financial Inskruments®™  Collateral Pledged® Net Amount
March 31, 2024
Derivative liabilities'® 3 8,761 § (3,984) $ 4777 $ (110) $ — 8 4,667
Repurchase agreements 4,873 —_ 4,873 (401) (4,471) 1
Securities loaned 328 _ 328 — (322) 6
Total $ 13,862 $ (3,984) $ 9,978 § G111 $ (4,793) § 4,674
December 31, 2023
Derivative liabilities'® $ 8,217 § (3,720) $ 4,497 $ (141) $ — % 4,356
Repurchase agreements 3,579 —_ 3,579 (568) (3,008) 3
Securities loaned 290 — 290 (14) (270) 6
Total $ 12,086 $ (3,720) $ 8,366 § (723) $ (3,278) 3 4,365
(a) Includes §2.3 billion and 81,7 billion of cash collateral related receivables that were netled against derivative liabilities at March 31, 2024 and D ber 31, 2023, respectively
(b) For derivative liabilities this includes any derivative asset fair values that could be offset in the event of counterparty default; for repurch, agr this inclt any reverse repurchase agreement receivables that could be offset in
the event of counlterparty default; for securities loaned this i any ities borrowed receivables that could be offset in the event of counterparty default.
(c) Includes the fair value of securities pledged by the Company to the counterparty. These ities are included on the Ct i Bal: Sheet unless the Company defaults.
(d) Excludes $148 million and §92 million at March 31, 2024 and D ber 31, 2023, respectively, of derivative liabilities not subject io netting arrangements,
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Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

The Company uses fair value measurements for the initial recording of certain assets and liabilities, periodic remeasurement of certain assets and liabilities, and
disclosures. Derivatives, trading and available-for-sale investment securities, MSRs, certain time deposits and substantially all MLHFS are recorded at fair value on a
recurring basis. Additionally, from time to time, the Company may be required to record at fair value other assets on a nonrecurring basis, such as loans held for sale,
loans held for investment and certain other assets. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve application of lower-of-cost-or-fair value accounting or
impairment write-downs of individual assets. Other financial instruments, such as held-to-maturity investment securities, loans, the majority of time deposits, short-term
borrowings and long-term debt, are accounted for at amortized cost. See “Fair Value of Financial Instruments" in this Note for further information on the estimated fair
value of these other financial instruments. In accordance with disclosure guidance, certain financial instruments, such as deposits with no defined or contractual maturity,
receivables and payables due in one year or less, insurance contracts and equity investments not accounted for at fair value, are excluded from this Note.

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market
for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. A fair value measurement reflects all of the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about the risk inherent in a particular valuation technique, the effect of a restriction on
the sale or use of an asset and the risk of nonperformance.

The Company groups its assets and liabilities measured at fair value into a three-level hierarchy for valuation technigues used to measure financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value. This hierarchy is based on whether the valuation inputs are observable or unobservable. These levels are:

* Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 includes U.S. Treasury securities, as well as exchange-traded instruments.

* Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. Leve! 2 includes debt securities
that are traded less frequently than exchange-traded instruments and which are typically valued using third party pricing services; derivative contracts and other
assets and liabilities, including securities, and certain time deposits, whose value is determined using a pricing model with inputs that are observable in the market
or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data; and MLHFS whose values are determined using quoted prices for similar assets or
pricing models with inputs that are observable in the market or can be corroborated by observable market data.

* Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and
liabilities include financial instruments whose values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as
instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation. This category includes MSRs and certain derivative
contracts.

Valuation Methodologies

The valuation methodologies used by the Company to measure financial assets and liabilities at fair value are described below. In addition, the following section includes
an indication of the level of the fair value hierarchy in which the assets or liabilities are classified. Where appropriate, the descriptions include information about the
valuation models and key inputs to those models. During the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no significant changes to the valuation techniques
used by the Company to measure fair value.

Available-for-Sale Investment Securities When quoted market prices for identical securities are available in an active market, these prices are used to determine fair
value and these securities are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Level 1 investment securities include U.S. Treasury and exchange-traded securities.

For other securities, quoted market prices may not be readily available for the specific securities. When possible, the Company determines fair value based on market
observable information, including quoted market prices for similar securities, inactive transaction prices, and broker quotes. These securities are classified within Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy. Level 2 valuations are generally provided by a third-party pricing service. Level 2 investment securities are predominantly agency mortgage-
backed securities, certain other asset-backed securities, obligations of state and palitical subdivisions and agency debt securities.

Mortgage Loans Held For Sale MLHFS measured at fair value, for which an active secondary market and readily available market prices exist, are initially valued at the
transaction price and are subsequently valued by comparison to instruments with similar collateral and risk profiles. MLHFS are classified within Leve! 2. Included in
mortgage banking revenue were net losses of $1 million and $3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, from the changes to fair value
of these MLHFS under fair value option accounting guidance. Changes in fair value due to instrument specific credit risk were immaterial. Interest income for MLHFS is
measured based on contractual interest rates and reported as interest income on the Consolidated Statement of Income. Electing to measure MLHFS at fair value
reduces certain timing differences and better
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matches changes in fair value of these assets with changes in the value of the derivative instruments used to economically hedge them without the burden of complying
with the requirements for hedge accounting.

Time Deposits The Company elects the fair value option to account for certain time deposits that are hedged with derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Electing to measure these time deposits at fair value reduces certain timing differences and better matches changes in fair value of these deposits with changes in the
value of the derivative instruments used to economically hedge them. The time deposits measured at fair value are valued using a discounted cash flow model that utilizes
market observable inputs and are classified within Level 2. Included in interest expense on deposits were net gains of $8 million for the three months ended March 31,
2024 from the changes in fair value of time deposits under fair value option accounting guidance.

Mortgage Servicing Rights MSRs are valued using a discounted cash flow methodology, and are classified within Level 3. The Company determines fair value of the
MSRs by projecting future cash flows for different interest rate scenarios using prepayment rates and other assumptions, and discounts these cash flows using a risk
adjusted rate based on option adjusted spread levels. There is minimal observable market activity for MSRs on comparable portfolios and, therefore, the determination of
fair value requires significant management judgment. Refer to Note 6 for further information on MSR valuation assumptions,

Derivatives The majority of derivatives held by the Company are executed over-the-counter or centrally cleared through clearinghouses and are valued using market
standard cash flow valuation technigues. The models incorporate inputs, depending con the type of derivative, including interest rate curves, foreign exchange rates and
volatility. All derivative values incorporate an assessment of the risk of counterparty nonperformance, measured based on the Company's evaluation of credit risk including
external assessments of credit risk. The Company monitors and manages its nonperformance risk by considering its ability to net derivative positions under master netting
arrangements, as well as collateral received or provided under collateral arrangements. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure the fair value of derivatives, at
a counterparty level, on a net basis. The majority of the derivatives are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as the significant inputs to the models, including
nonperformance risk, are observable. However, certain derivative transactions are with counterparties where risk of nonperformance cannot be observed in the market
and, therefore, the credit valuation adjustments result in these derivatives being classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Company also has other derivative contracts that are created through its operations, including commitments to purchase and originate mortgage loans and swap
agreements executed in conjunction with the sale of a portion of its Class B common and preferred shares of Visa Inc. (the “Visa swaps"). The mortgage loan
commitments are valued by pricing models that include market observable and unobservable inputs, which result in the commitments being classified within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. The unobservable inputs include assumptions about the percentage of commitments that actually become a closed loan and the MSR value that is
inherent in the underlying loan value. The Visa swaps require payments by either the Company or the purchaser of the Visa Inc. Class B common and preferred shares
when there are changes in the conversion rate of the Visa Inc. Class B common and preferred shares to Visa Inc. Class A common and preferred shares, respectively, as
well as quarterly payments to the purchaser based on specified terms of the agreements. Management reviews and updates the Visa swaps fair value in conjunction with
its review of Visa Inc. related litigation contingencies, and the associated escrow funding. The expected litigation resolution impacts the Visa Inc. Class B common share
to Visa Inc. Class A common share conversion rate, as well as the ultimate termination date for the Visa swaps. Accordingly, the Visa swaps are classified within Level 3.
Refer to Note 15 for further information on the Visa Inc. restructuring and related card association litigation.

Significant Unobservable Inputs of Level 3 Assets and Liabilities

The following section provides information to facilitate an understanding of the uncertainty in the fair value measurements for the Company's Level 3 assets and liabilities
recorded at fair value on the Consclidated Balance Sheet. This section includes a description of the significant inputs used by the Company and a description of any
interrelationships between these inputs. The discussion below excludes nonrecurring fair value measurements of collateral value used for impairment measures for loans
and OREO. These valuations utilize third party appraisal or broker price opinions, and are classified as Level 3 due to the significant judgment involved.

Mortgage Servicing Rights The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company’s MSRs are expected prepayments and the option
adjusted spread that is added to the risk-free rate to discount projected cash flows. Significant increases in either of these inputs in isolation would have resulted in a
significantly lower fair value measurement. Significant decreases in either of these inputs in isolation would have resulted in a significantly higher fair value measurement.
There is no direct interrelationship between prepayments and option adjusted spread. Prepayment rates generally move in the opposite direction of market interest rates.
Option adjusted spread is generally impacted by changes in market return requirements.

60 U.S. Bancorp




The following table shows the significant valuation assumption ranges for MSRs at March 31, 2024:

Weighted-

Minimum Maximum Average®

Expected prepayment 7% 22% 9%
Option adjusted spread 4 11 5

(a) Determined based on the relative fair value of the related morigage loans serviced.

Derivatives The Company has two distinct Level 3 derivative portfolios: (i) the Company's commitments to purchase and originate mortgage loans that meet the
requirements of a derivative and (i) the Company's asset/liability and customer-related derivatives that are Level 3 due to unobservable inputs related to measurement of
risk of nonperformance by the counterparty. In addition, the Company’s Visa swaps are classified within Level 3.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company's derivative commitments to purchase and originate mortgage loans are the
percentage of commitments that actually become a closed loan and the MSR value that is inherent in the underlying loan value. A significant increase in the rate of loans
that close would have resulted in a larger derivative asset or liability. A significant increase in the inherent MSR value would have resulted in an increase in the derivative
asset or a reduction in the derivative liability. Expected loan close rates and the inherent MSR values are directly impacted by changes in market rates and will generally
move in the same direction as interest rates.

The following table shows the significant valuation assumption ranges for the Company's derivative commitments to purchase and originate mortgage loans at March 31,
2024:

Weighted-

Minimum Maximum Average®

Expected loan close rate 10 % 100 % 76 %
Inherent MSR value (basis points per loan) 55 184 103

(a) Determined based on the refative fair value of the related mortgage loans.

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of certain of the Company’s assetfliability and customer-related derivatives is the credit
valuation adjustment related to the risk of counterparty nonperformance. A significant increase in the credit valuation adjustment would have resulted in a lower fair value
measurement. A significant decrease in the credit valuation adjustment would have resulted in a higher fair value measurement. The credit valuation adjustment is
impacted by changes in market rates, volatility, market implied credit spreads, and loss recovery rates, as well as the Company’s assessment of the counterparty’s credit
position. At March 31, 2024, the minimum, maximum and weighted-average credit valuation adjustment as a percentage of the net fair value of the counterparty’s
derivative contracts prior to adjustment was 0 percent, 1,224 percent and 1 percent, respectively.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Visa swaps are management's estimate of the probability of certain litigation scenarios
occurring, and the timing of the resolution of the related litigation loss estimates in excess, or shortfall, of the Company's proportional share of escrow funds. An increase
in the loss estimate or a delay in the resolution of the related litigation would have resulted in an increase in the derivative liability. A decrease in the loss estimate or an
acceleration of the resolution of the related litigation would have resulted in a decrease in the derivative liability.
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The following table summarizes the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

(Dollars in Millions}) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting Total

March 31, 2024
Available-for-sale securities

U.S. Treasury and agencies $ 16,817 § 4701 § — $ — § 21,518
Mortgage-backed securities
Residential agency — 27,487 —_ — 27,487
Commercial
Agency — 7,284 —_ —_ 7,284
Non-agency — 6 —_ — 6
Asset-backed securities — 6,204 — — 6,204
Obligations of state and political subdivisions — 9,787 - — 9,787
Other _ 140 —_ — 140
Total available-for-sale 16,817 55,609 — — 72,426
Mortgage loans heild for sale —_ 1,885 —_ _ 1,885
Mortgage servicing rights — — 3,462 —_ 3,462
Derivative assets 3 4,791 1,364 (3,485) 2,673
Other assets 372 2,263 — — 2,635
Total 5 17,192 § 64,548 $ 4,826 $ (3,485) $ 83,081
Time deposits $ — 3 4,668 $ — 8 — 3 4,668
Derivative liabilities — 5,184 3,725 (3,984) 4,925
Short-term borrowings and other liabilities®® 436 1,823 — — 2,259
Total $ 436 $ 11,675 § 3,725 § (3,984) § 11,852

December 31, 2023
Available-for-sale securities

U.S. Treasury and agencies $ 14,787 $ 4755 § — % — % 19,542
Mortgage-backed securities
Residential agency —_ 26,078 —_ —_ 26,078
Commercial
Agency — 7,343 — — 7,343
Non-agency —_ 6 —_ —_ 6
Asset-backed securities — 6,724 —_ —_ 6,724
Obiligations of state and political subdivisions — 9,989 — — 9,989
Other —_ 24 —_ - 24
Total available-for-sale 14,787 54,919 — — 69,706
Mortgage loans held for sale — 2,011 — — 2,011
Mortgage servicing rights —_ — 3,377 —_ 3,377
Derivative assets — 5,078 1,453 (3,666) 2,865
Other assets 550 1,991 — — 2,541
Total $ 15,337 $ 63,999 § 4,830 § (3,6686) § 80,500
Time deposits $ — $ 2,818 $ — § — § 2,818
Derivative liabilities 16 4,955 3,338 (3,720) 4,589
Short-term borrowings and other liabilitiest® 517 1,786 — — 2,303
Total $ 533 § 9,559 § 3,338 § (3,720) $ 9,710
Note: Exciuded from the lable above are equity investments without readily determinable fair values. The Company has elected to carry these i al historical cost, adjt for impair 1t and any changes resulting from observable
price ges for it ical or similar i of the issuer. The aggregate carrying amount of these equity investmenls was $137 million and §133 million at March 31, 2024 and D 31, 2023, respectively, and reflect no impairment
or observable price change adjustment at March 31, 2024, compared with a cumulative impairment of $5 million and no observable price change adjustment at December 31, 2023. The Gompany did not r any impair or

adjustments for observable price changes during the first three months of 2024 and 2023
(a} Primarily represents the Company's obligation on securities sold short required to be accounted for at fair value per applicable accounting guidance
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The following table presents the changes in fair value for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level

3):
Net Change in

Net Gains Unrealized Gains
(Losses) {Losses) Relating lo
N Beginning of Included in Net End of Period Assels and Liabilities
Three Months Ended March 31 (Dollars in Millions) Period Balance Income Purchases Sales Issuances Settlements Balance Held at End of Period
2024
Mortgage servicing rights $ 3,377 % 30@ g — 3 — 5 55 @ g — 3% 3462 § 30 @
Net derivative assets and liabilities (1,885) (1,683) 378 @ - 831 (2,361) (181) @
2023
Available-for-sale securities
Obligations of state and political subdivisions $ 18 — $ — § — § — $ — § 13 ==
Total available-for-sale 1 —_ — — — = 1 =
Mortgage servicing rights 3,755 (129) @ 1 1 96 © - 3,724 (129) @
Net derivative assets and liabilities (3,199) (316) ® 423 (12) — 839 (2,265) 529 O
(a) Included in morigage banking revenue.
(b) Approximately $44 million, $(1.7) billion and §{75) million included in mortgage banking revenue, commercial products revenue and other noni t income, i
{c) Represents MSRs capitalized during the perfod
(d) Approximately $19 million, ${125) million and ${75) millicn n 'gage banking 3 ! products revenue and other income, y
(e) Approximalely $51 million, ${365) millivn and 5(2) million i in morgage banking 3 ial pr e ard ather noni income, respechivaly
(0 Approximately $22 million, $509 million and $(2) million included in mortgags banking revente, ial p and ather nonh income, ly

The Company is also required periodically to measure certain other financial assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. These measurements of fair value usually
result from the application of lower-of-cost-or-fair value accounting or write-downs of individual assets.

The following table summarizes the balances as of the measurement date of assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, and still held as of the reporting date:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
(Dallars in Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tnlall Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Loans® $ — $ — 3 268 $ 268 |$ — § — § 354 § 354
Other assets!® — — 23 23 — — 27 27

(a) Represents the carrying value of loans for which adjustments were based on the fair value of the collateral, excluding loans fully charged-off.
(b) Primarily represents the fair value of foreclosed properties that were measured at fair value based on an appraisal or broker price opinion of the collateral subsequent to their initial acquisition,

The following table summarizes losses recognized related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of individual assets or portfolios:
Three Monlhs Ended March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Loans®@ $ 87 $ 142
Other assets™® 2 1
(a) Represents write-downs of loans which were based on the fair value of the collateral, excluding loans fully charged-off,
{b) Primarily represents related losses of foreclosed properties that were d at fair value subseq to their initial
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Fair Value Option

The following table summarizes the differences between the aggregate fair value carrying amount of the assets and liabilities for which the fair value option has been
elected and the aggregate remaining contractual principal balance outstanding:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Contractual Carrying Amount Over (Under) Contractual Carrying Amount Over (Under)
Fair Value Principal Contractual Principal Fair Value Principal Contractual Principal
(Dollars in Millions) Carrying Amount Qutstanding Outstanding| Carrying Amount Outstanding Outstanding
Total loans® $ 1,885 $ 1,880 $ 518 2,011 $ 1,994 § 17
Time deposits 4,668 4,680 (12) 2,818 2,822 (4)
(a) Includes nonaccrual loans of $1 million carried at fair value with conlractual principal outstanding oI 1 million at March 31, 2024 and §1 million carried at fair value with ! principal ing of $1 miltion at December 31,
2023. Includes loans 90 days or more past due of 33 million carried at fair value with co principal ing of $3 million at March 31, 2024 and $4 million carried at fair vaiue wﬂh co principal outstanding of 84 million

at December 31, 2023.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following section summarizes the estimated fair value for financial instruments accounted for at amortized cost as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. In
accordance with disclosure guidance related to fair values of financial instruments, the Company did not include assets and liabilities that are not financial instruments,
such as the value of goodwill, long-term relationships with deposit, credit card, merchant processing and trust customers, other purchased intangibles, premises and
equipment, deferred taxes and other liabilities. Additionally, in accordance with the disclosure guidance, receivables and payables due in one year or less, insurance
contracts, equity investments not accounted for at fair value, and deposits with no defined or contractual maturities are excluded.

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are shown in the table below:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Carnying Fair Value Carying Fair Value

(Dollars in Millions} Amaount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 76985 3% 76,985 §$ — 3 — $ 76985|5 61,192 3 61,192 § — 3 — & 61,192
Federal funds sold and securities purchased

under resale agreements 3,788 —_ 3,788 —_ 3,788 2,543 —_ 2,543 —_ 2,543
Investment securities held-to-maturity 82,948 1,303 69,846 — 71,149 84,045 1,310 72,778 — 74,088
Loans held for sale® 195 —_ — 195 195 190 — — 180 180
Loans 367,074 — — 358,357 358,357 366,456 —_ —_ 362,849 362,849
Other® 2,140 — 1,588 552 2,140 2,377 — 1,883 514 2,377
Financial Liabilities
Time deposits(© 51,395 — 51,568 — 51,568 49,455 — 49 607 — 49,607
Short-term borrowings'® 14,843 —_ 14,549 _ 14,548 12,976 —_ 12,729 —_ 12,729
Long-term debt 52,693 — 50,805 — 50,805 51,480 — 49,697 —_ 49,697
Other® 5,176 — 1,341 3,835 5176 5,432 — 1,406 4,026 5,432

(a) Excludes mortgages held for sale for which the fair value option under applicable accounting guidance was elected.

{b) Includes investmenis in Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock and tax-advantaged investments.

{c) Excludes time deposits for which the fair value option under applicable accounting guidance was elected

(d) Excludes the Company's obligation on securities sold short required to be accaunfed for at fair value per applicable accounting guidance.
(e) Includes operating lease liabilities and liabilities related to ¢ ch

The fair value of unfunded commitments, deferred non-yield related loan fees, standby letters of credit and other guarantees is approximately equal to their carrying
value. The carrying value of unfunded commitments, deferred non-yield related loan fees and standby letters of credit was $420 million and $489 million at March 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. The carrying value of other guarantees was $184 million and $198 million at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
respectively.
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Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

Visa Restructuring and Card Association Litigation The Company’s Payment Services business issues credit and debit cards and acquires credit and debit card
transactions through the Visa U.S.A. Inc. card association or its affiliates (collectively “Visa"). In 2007, Visa completed a restructuring and issued shares of Visa Inc.
common stock to its financial institution members in contemplation of its initial public offering (*IPO") completed in the first quarter of 2008 (the “Visa Reorganization”). As
a part of the Visa Reorganization, the Company received its proportionate number of shares of Visa Inc. common stock, which were subsequently converted to Class B
shares of Visa Inc. (“Class B shares"). As of March 31, 2024, the Company has sold substantially all of its Class B shares.

Visa U.S.A. Inc. ("Visa U.8.A.") and MasterCard International (collectively, the "Card Brands”) are defendants in antitrust lawsuits challenging the practices of the Card
Brands (the "Visa Litigation"). Visa U.S.A. member banks have a contingent obligation to indemnify Visa Inc. under the Visa U.S.A. bylaws (which were modified at the
time of the restructuring in October 2007) for potential losses arising from the Visa Litigation. The indemnification by the Visa U.S.A. member banks has no specific
maximum amount. Using proceeds from its 1PO and through reductions to the conversion ratio applicable to the Class B shares held by Visa U.S.A. member banks, Visa
Inc. has funded an escrow account for the benefit of member financial institutions to fund their indemnification obligations associated with the Visa Litigation. The
receivable related to the escrow account is classified in other liabilities and fully offsets the related Visa Litigation contingent liability.

in October 2012, Visa signed a settlement agreement to resolve merchant class action claims associated with the multidistrict interchange litigation pending in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York (the "Multi-District Litigation”). The U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit reversed the approval of
that settlement and remanded the matter to the district court, Thereafter, the case was split into two putative class actions, one seeking damages (the "Damages Action”)
and a separate class action seeking injunctive relief only (the “Injunctive Action"). The Damages Action was settled and is fully resolved. A number of merchants opted out
of the Damages Action class settlement and filed individual cases in various federal district courts. Some of those cases have been settled and others are still being
litigated. In March 2024, Visa signed a settlement agreement to resolve the Injunctive Action. The proposed settlement, which provides lower interchange rates and
various other rules changes for U.S. merchants, requires court approval.

Other Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

The following table is a summary of other guarantees and contingent liabilities of the Company at March 31, 2024

Maximum
Potential
Fulure
(Dollars in Millions) Collateral Held ~ Carrying Amount Payments
Standby letters of credit 5 — % 21 $ 11,114
Securities lending indemnifications 9,173 — 8,985
Asset sales — 99 9,881 @
Merchant processing 802 64 140,347
Tender option bond program guarantee 4786 —_ 466
Other —_ 21 2,935
(a) The i ial future pay ts do not include loan sales where the Company provid! repr ion and warranties to the buyer against losses relaled to loan underwriting documentation defects that may have
existed at the time of sale that generally are identified after the occurrence of a triggering event such as delinquency. For these types of loan sales, the i P ial future pay, is generally the unpaid principal balance of
loans sold measured at the end of the current reporting period. Actual losses will be significantly less than the maximum exposure, as only a fraction of joans sold will have a representation and warranty breach, and any losses on

Jol would g iy be mitigated by any collateral held against the loans

Merchant Processing The Company, through its subsidiaries, provides merchant processing services. Under the rules of credit card associations, a merchant processor
retains a contingent liability for credit card transactions processed. This contingent liability arises in the event of a billing dispute between the merchant and a cardhalder
that is ultimately resolved in the cardholder's favor. In this situation, the transaction is “charged-back” to the merchant and the disputed amount is credited or otherwise
refunded to the cardholder. If the Company is unable to collect this amount from the merchant, it bears the loss for the amount of the refund paid to the cardholder.

The Company currently processes card transactions in the United States, Canada and Europe through wholly-owned subsidiaries. In the event a merchant was unable
to fulfill product or services subject to future delivery, such as airline tickets, the Company could become financially liable for refunding the purchase price of such products
or services purchased through the credit card associations under the charge-back provisions. Charge-back risk related to these merchants is evaluated in a manner
similar to credit risk assessments and, as such, merchant processing contracts contain various provisions to protect the Company in the event of default. At March 31,
2024, the value of airline tickets purchased to be delivered at a future date through card transactions processed by the Company was $12.9 billion. The Company held
collateral of $682 million in escrow deposits, letters of credit and indemnities from financial institutions, and liens on various assets. In addition to specific collateral or
other credit enhancements, the Company maintains a liability for its implied guarantees associated with future delivery. At March 31, 2024, the liability was $40 million
primarily related to these airline processing arrangements.
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Asset Sales The Company regularly sells loans to GSEs as part of its mortgage banking activities. The Company provides customary representations and warranties to
GSEs in conjunction with these sales. These representations and warranties generally require the Company to repurchase assets if it is subsequently determined that a
loan did not meet specified criteria, such as a documentation deficiency or rescission of mortgage insurance. If the Company is unable to cure or refute a repurchase
request, the Company is generally obligated to repurchase the loan or otherwise reimburse the GSE for losses. At March 31, 2024, the Company had reserved $12 million
for potential losses from representation and warranty obligations, compared with $13 million at December 31, 2023. The Company’s reserve reflects management's best
estimate of losses for representation and warranty obligations. The Company's repurchase reserve is modeled at the loan level, taking into consideration the individual
credit quality and borrower activity that has transpired since origination. The model applies credit quality and economic risk factors to derive a probability of default and
potential repurchase that are based on the Company's historical loss experience, and estimates loss severity based on expected collateral value. The Company also
considers qualitative factors that may result in anticipated losses differing from historical loss trends.

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had $11 million and $18 million, respectively, of unresolved representation and warranty claims from
GSEs. The Company does not have a significant amount of unresolved claims from investors other than GSEs.

Litigation and Regulatory Matters

The Company is subject to various litigation and regulatory matters that arise from the conduct of its business activities. The Company establishes reserves for such
matters when potential losses become probable and can be reasonably estimated. The Company believes the ultimate resolution of existing legal and regulatory matters
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations or cash flows of the Company. However, in light of the uncertainties inherent in these
matters, it is possible that the ultimate resolution of one or more of these matters may have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations for a
particular period, and future changes in circumstances or additional information could result in additional accruals or resolution in excess of established accruals, which
could adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, potentially materially.

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities Litigation Starting in 2011, the Company and other large financial institutions have been sued in their capacity as trustee for
residential mortgage—backed securities trusts for losses arising out of the 2008 financial crisis. In the lawsuits brought against the Company, the investors allege that the
Company's banking subsidiary, U.S. Bank National Association ("USBNA”), as trustee caused them to incur substantial losses by failing to enforce loan repurchase
obligations and failing to abide by appropriate standards of care after events of default allegedly occurred. The plaintiffs in these matters seek monetary damages in
unspecified amounts and most also seek equitable relief.

Regulatory Matters The Company is continually subject to examinations, inquiries, investigations and other forms of regulatory and governmental inquiry or scrutiny
covering a wide range of issues in its financial services businesses including in areas of heightened regulatory scrutiny, such as compliance, risk management, third-party
risk management and consumer protection. In some cases, these matters are part of reviews of specified activities at multiple industry participants; in others, they are
directed at the Company individually. For example, the Division of Enforcement of the SEC has been investigating U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC (“USBFS"), a
subsidiary of USBNA, relating to its role providing fund administration services to a third-party investment fund. This investment fund was advised by an investment
adviser who engaged in fraud, and USBFS was not affiliated with the investment adviser and did not provide any advisory services to the fund. The Division of
Enforcement has made a preliminary determination to recommend that the SEC file an enforcement action against USBFS, and USBFS is in the process of responding to
the SEC on this matter. The Company is cooperating fully with all pending examinations, inquiries and investigations, any of which could lead to administrative or legal
proceedings or settlements. Remedies in these proceedings or settlements may include fines, penalties, restitution or alterations in the Company's business practices
(which may increase the

Company’s operating expenses and decrease its revenue).

On February 9, 2024, the SEC announced a settlement with U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc., resolving the previously disclosed inquiry regarding record retention
requirements relating to electronic business communications. Also, on March 19, 2024, the Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC") announced a settlement
with USBNA resolving similar issues. The financial impact of the resolution of these matters was not material to the Company's financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows.

Outlook Due to their complex nature, it can be years before litigation and regulatory matters are resolved. The Company may be unable to develop an estimate or range
of loss where matters are in early stages, there are significant factual or legal issues to be resolved, damages are unspecified or uncertain, or there is uncertainty as to a
litigation class being certified or the outcome of pending motions, appeals or proceedings. For those litigation and regulatory matters where the Company has information
to develop an estimate or range of loss, the Company believes the upper end of the range of reasonably possible losses in aggregate, in excess of any reserves
established for matters where a loss is considered probable, will not be material to its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. The Company’s estimates are
subject to significant judgment and uncertainties, and the matters underlying the estimates will change from time to time. Actual results may vary significantly from the
current estimates.
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(=R Business Segments

Within the Company, financial performance is measured by major lines of business based on the products and services provided to customers through its distribution channels.
These operating segments are components of the Company about which financial information is prepared and is evaluated regularly by management in deciding how to allocate
resources and assess performance. The Company has the following reportable operating segments and functional activities in Treasury and Corporate Support:

Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking provides core banking, specialized lending, transaction and
payment processing, capital markets, asset management, and brokerage and investment related services to wealth, middle market, large corporate, government and institutional
clients.

Consumer and Business Banking Consumer and Business Banking comprises consumer banking, small business banking and consumer lending. Products and services are
delivered through banking offices, telephone servicing and sales, online services, direct mail, ATM processing, mobile devices, distributed mortgage loan officers, and intermediary
relationships including auto dealerships, mortgage banks, and strategic business partners,

Payment Services Payment Services includes consumer and business credit cards, stored-value cards, debit cards, corporate, government and purchasing card services and
merchant processing.

Treasury and Corporate Support Treasury and Corporate Support includes the Company's investment portfolios, funding, capital management, interest rate risk management,
income taxes not allocated to business segments, including most investments in tax-advantaged projects, and the residual aggregate of those expenses associated with corporate
activities that are managed on a consolidated basis.

Basis of Presentation Business segment results are derived from the Company’s business unit profitability reporting systems by specifically attributing managed balance sheet
assets, deposits and other liabilities and their related income or expense. The allowance for credit losses and related provision expense are allocated to the business segments
according to the volume and credit quality of the loan balances managed, but with the impact of changes in economic forecasts recorded in Treasury and Corporate Support.
Goodwill and other intangible assets are assigned to the business segments based on the mix of business of an entity acquired by the Company. Within the Company, capital levels
are evaluated and managed centrally; however, capital is allocated to the business segments to support evaluation of business performance. Business segments are allocated
capital on a risk-adjusted basis considering economic and regulatory capital requirements. Generally, the determination of the amount of capital allocated to each business segment
includes credit allocations following a Basel Ill regulatory framework. Interest income and expense is determined based on the assets and liabilities managed by the business
segment. Because funding and asset/liability management is a central function, funds transfer-pricing methodologies are utilized to allocate a cost of funds used or credit for funds
provided to all business segment assets and liabilities, respectively, using a matched funding concept. Also, each business unit is allocated the taxable-equivalent benefit of tax-
exempt products. The residual effect on net interest income of asset/liability management activities is included in Treasury and Corporate Support. Noninterest income and expenses
directly managed by each business segment, including fees, service charges, salaries and benefits, and other direct revenues and costs are accounted for within each segment's
financial results in a manner similar to the consolidated financial statements. Occupancy costs are allocated based on utilization of facilities by the business segments. Generally,
operating losses are charged to the business segment when the loss event is realized in a manner similar to a loan charge-off. Noninterest expenses incurred by centrally managed
operations or business segments that directly support another business segment's operations are charged to the applicable business segment based on its utilization of those
services, primarily measured by the volume of customer activities, number of employees or cther relevant factors. These allocated expenses are reported as net shared services
expense within noninterest expense. Certain activities that do not directly support the operations of the business segments or for which the business segments are not considered
financially accountable in evaluating their performance are not charged to the business segments. The income or expenses associated with these corporate activities, including
merger and integration charges, are reported within the Treasury and Corporate Support business segment. Income taxes are assessed to each business segment at a standard tax
rate with the residual tax expense or benefit to arrive at the consolidated effective tax rate included in Treasury and Corporate Support.

Designations, assignments and allocations change from time to time as management systems are enhanced, methods of evaluating performance or product lines change or
business segments are realigned to better respond to the Company’s diverse customer base. During 2024 and 2023, certain organization and methodology changes were made,
including the Company combining its Wealth Management and Investment Services and Corporate and Commercial Banking lines of businesses to create the Wealth, Corporate,
Commercial and Institutional Banking line of business during the third quarter of 2023. Prior period results were restated and presented on a comparable basis.
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Business segment results for the three months ended March 31 were as follows:

Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and
Inslitutional Banking

Consumer and Business Banking

Paymenl Services

|Dofars in Mifions] 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) 1,265 § 1,550 2,014 $ 2,341 3 735 655
Noninterest income 1,113 1,020 423 401 980 (a) 937 (@
Total net revenue 2,378 2,570 2,437 2,742 1,715 1,592
Noninterest expense 1,372 1,340 1,580 1,707 1,025 959
Income (loss) before provision and income taxes 1,006 1,230 857 1,035 690 633
Provision for credit losses 138 (26) 55 7 359 220
Income (loss) before income taxes 868 1,256 802 1,028 331 413
Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment 217 314 201 258 83 103
Net income (loss) 651 942 601 770 248 310
Net (income) loss atiributable to noncontrolling interests — — - — - —_
Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Bancorp 651 $ 942 601 $ 770 $ 248 310
Average Balance Sheet
Loans 170,965 $ 177,011 154,933 $ 167,409 $ 39,803 36,935
Other eamning assets 8,740 6,027 1,879 2179 153 302
Goodwill 4,825 4,614 4,325 4,493 3,332 3,315
Other intangible assets 1,059 1,034 4,696 5,694 300 385
Assets 198,085 201,182 168,177 185,245 46,816 42,858
Noninterest-bearing deposits 58,446 82,403 21,500 41,269 2,791 3,184
Interest-bearing deposits 203,980 196,843 203,343 176,797 97 108
Total deposits 262,428 279,246 224,843 218,066 2,888 3,292
Total U.S. Bancarp shareholders’ equity 21,749 21,536 14,848 16,565 9,965 8,968

Treasury and Corporate Support

Consolidated Company

(Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) 18 122 4,015 $ 4,668
Noninterest income 184 149 2,700 (b 2,507 (b)
Total net revenue 185 271 6,715 (g 7175 (9
Noninterest expense 482 549 4,459 4,555
Income (loss) before provision and income taxes (297) (278) 2,256 2,620
Provision for credit losses 1 226 553 427
Income (loss) before income taxes (298) (504) 1,703 2,193
Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment (124) (186) 377 489
Netl income (loss) (174) (318) 1,326 1,704
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (7) (8) (7) (6)
Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Bancorp (181} $ (324) 1,319 $ 1,698
Average Balance Sheet
Loans 5,369 § 5,395 371,070 $ 386,750
Other eaming assets 214,293 212,356 225,065 220,864
Goodwill —_ —_ 12,482 12,422
Other intangible assets 10 36 6,065 7,049
Assets 238,831 236,162 653,908 665,447
Noninterest-bearing deposits 2,050 2,885 84,787 129,741
Interest-bearing deposits 10,854 6,835 418,274 380,583
Total deposits 12,904 9,720 503,061 510,324
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders' equity 9,105 5,598 55,667 52,667

(a) Presented net of related rewards and rebate cosls and certain partner payments of $739 miliion and $717 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
{b) includes revenue generated from certain coniracts with customers of $2.2 billion and $2.1 billion for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
(c) The Company, as a lessor, originates retail and commercial leases either directly to the consumer or indirectly through dealer networks. Under these arr: the Company

three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, r
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Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated the impact of events that have occurred subsequent to March 31, 2024 through the date the consolidated financial statements were filed with

the SEC. Based on this evaluation, the Company has determined none of these events were required to be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes.
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U

Consolidated Daily Average Balance Sheet and Related Yields and Rates®@

.S. Bancorp

For the Three Months Ended March 31

2024 2023 2024 v 2023
Average Average % Change Average
(Dollars in Millions) (Unaudited) Balances Interest  Yields and Rates Balances Interest  Yields and Rates| Balances
Assets
Investment securities $ 161,236 $ 1,194 2.96 %|$ 166,125 § 1,094 2.64 % (2.9)%
Loans held for sale 2,002 37 7.32 2,481 31 5.10 (18.7)
Loans(®)
Commercial 130,767 2,180 6.70 135,683 1,997 5.96 (3.6)
Commercial real estate 53,037 854 6.48 55,595 803 5.86 (4.6)
Residential mortgages 115,639 1,107 3.83 116,287 1,050 3.62 {.6)
Credit card 27,942 940 13.53 25,569 800 12.69 9.3
Other retail 43,685 642 5.91 53,616 642 4,86 (18.5)
Total loans 371,070 5,723 6.20 386,750 5,292 5.63 4.1
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 50,903 704 5.56 43,305 488 4,57 17.5
Other eaming assets 10,924 137 5.05 8,973 94 4.23 21.7
Total eaming assets 596,135 7.795 5.25 607,614 6,989 4.65 (1.9)
Allowance for loan losses (7,438) (6,944) 71
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities (7.121) (7,519) (5.3)
Other assets 72,333 72,296 .1
Total assets $ 653,909 S 665,447 (1.7)
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Noninterest-bearing deposits $ 84,787 S 128,741 (34.6)%
Interest-bearing deposits
Interest checking 125,011 362 1.17 128,350 283 .89 (3.4)
Money market savings 196,502 1,914 3.92 146,970 979 2.70 33.7
Savings accounts 41,645 26 .25 68,827 13 .07 (39.5)
Time deposits 55,116 582 4.25 35,436 230 2.64 55.5
Total interest-bearing deposits 418,274 2,884 2.77 380,583 1,505 1.60 9.9
Short-term bomrowings
Federal funds purchased 368 5 51 S04 10 4.44 (59.3)
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,847 57 4.69 2,481 19 3.1 954
Commercial paper 7,612 75 3.98 8,251 54 2.67 (7.7)
Other shori-term borrowings® 3,537 134 15.28 24,831 387 6.00 (85.8)
Total short-term borrowings 16,364 271 6.66 36,467 450 5.01 (55.1)
Long-term debt 52,713 625 4.76 41,024 376 3.71 28.5
Total interest-bearing liabilities 487,351 3,780 3.12 458,074 2,331 2.06 6.4
Other liabilities 25,640 24,500 4.7
Shareholders' equity
Preferred equity 6,808 6,808 —
Common equity 48,859 45,859 6.5
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity 55,667 52,667 5.7
Noncontrolling interests 464 465 (.-2)
Total equity 56,131 53,132 5.6
Total liabilities and equity $ 653,909 s 665,447 (1.7)
Net interest income $ 4,015 $ 4,668
Gross interest margin 213 % 2.59%
Gross interest margin without taxable-equivalent increments 2.1 % 2.57 %
Percent of Earning Assets
Interest income 5.25% 4,65 %
Inlerest expense 2855 1.55
Net interest margin 2.70 % 3.10 %|
Net interest margin without taxable-equivalent increments 2.68 % 3.08 %

() Interest and rates are presenied on a fully laxable-equivalent basis based on a federal income tax rate of 21 percent.
(b) Interest income and rates on loans include loan fees, Nonaccrual loans are included in average lpan balances

{c) Interest expense and rates includes interest paid on collateral associated with derivative pasitians,
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Part || — Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings — See the information set forth in “Litigation and Regulatory Matters” in Note 15 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on page
66 of this Report, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors — There are a number of factors that may adversely affect the Company's business, financial results or stock price. Refer to “Risk Factors” in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, for discussion of these risks.

ltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds — See the information set forth in the “Capital Management” section on page 24 of this Report
for information regarding shares repurchased by the Company during the first quarter of 2024, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 6. Exhibits

3.1
3.2
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

31.1
31.2
32

101

104

U.S. Bancorp

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Company's Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2022).
Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on October 19, 2023).

U.S. Bancorp 2024 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Form S-8 (File No. 333-278752) filed on April 17,
2024).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2024 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to the Company's Form §-8 (File No. 333-278752) filed on April 17, 2024).

Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2024 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Form S-8 (File No. 333-278752) filed on April 17, 2024).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under U.S., Bancorp 2024 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.6 to the Company's Form S-8 (File No. 333-278752) filed on April 17, 2024).

Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used for grants
made after January 1, 2024) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used for grants made after
January 1, 2024) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 134.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following financial statements from the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024, formatted in Inline XBRL:
(i) Consolidated Balance Sheet, (ii) Consolidated Statement of Income, (iii) Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Consolidated
Statement of Shareholders' Equity, (v) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of
text and including detailed tags.

Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document and included in Exhibit 101).
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,

thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: May 1, 2024
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U.S. Bancorp

800 Nicollet Mall
Minneapolis, MN 55402

Common Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare acts as our transfer agent and registrar, dividend paying agent and
dividend reinvestment plan administrator, and maintains all shareholder records for the
Company. Inquiries related to shareholder records, stock transfers, changes of
ownership, lost stock certificates, changes of address and dividend payment should be
directed to the transfer agent at:

Computershare

P.O. Box 505000

Louisville, KY 40233

Phone: 888-778-1311 or 201-680-6578 (international calls)
computershare.com/investor

Registered or Certified Mail:
Computershare

462 South 4th Street, Suite 1600
Louisville, KY 40202

Telephone representatives are available weekdays from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m., Central Time,
and automated support is available 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Specific
information about your account is available on Computershare's Investor Center
website,

Independent Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP serves as the independent auditor for U.S. Bancorp.

Common Stock Listing and Trading
U.S. Bancorp common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange
under the ticker symbol USB.

Dividends and Reinvestment Plan

U.8. Bancorp currently pays quarterly dividends on our common stock on or about the
15th day of January, April, July and October, subject to approval by our Board of
Directors. U.S. Bancorp shareholders can choose to participate in a plan that provides
automatic reinvestment of dividends and/or optional cash purchase of additional
shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock. For more information, please contact our
transfer agent, Computershare.

Investor Relations Contact

George Andersen

Senior Vice President, Director of Investor Relations
george.andersen@usbank.com

Phone: 612-303-3620

Media Requests

David R. Palombi

Executive Vice President

Chief Communications Officer
Public Affairs and Communications
david.palombi@usbank.com
Phone: 812-303-3167

Financial Information
U.S. Bancorp news and financial results are available through our website and by mail.

Website For information about U.S. Bancorp, including news, financial results, annual
reports and other documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, visit
usbank.com and click on About Us.

Mail At your request, we will mail to you our quarterly earnings, news releases,
quarterly financial data reported on Form 10-Q, Form 10-K and additional copies of our
annual reports. Please contact:

U.S. Bancorp investor Relations
800 Nicollet Mall

Minneapolis, MN 55402
investorrelations@usbank.com
Phone: 866-775-9668



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Andrew Cecere, certify that:

Q]
(2

@)

4)

()

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of U.S. Bancorp;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(8) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and pracedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

/S/ ANDREW CECERE

Andrew Cecere
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: May 1, 2024



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

1, John C. Stern, certify that:

0]
2

®)

4)

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of U.S. Bancorp;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; .

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periads presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared:

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

/S/ JOHN C. STERN

John C. Stern
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: May 1, 2024



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer of U.S. Bancorp, a Delaware corporation (the "Company”), do hereby certify that:

(1) The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 (the “Form 10-Q") of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and resuits of operations of the Company.

/s/ ANDREW CECERE /s/ JOHN C. STERN
Andrew Cecere John C. Stern
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Dated: May 1, 2024
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PARTI

Item 1. Business
Forward-Looking Statements

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION APPEARS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995: This
report contains forward-looking statements about U.S. Bancorp (“U.S. Bancorp” or the “Company”). Statements that are not historical or current facts,
including statements about beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements and are based on the information available to, and assumptions and
estimates made by, management as of the date hereof. These forward-looking statements cover, among other things, future economic conditions and the
anticipated future revenue, expenses, financial condition, asset quality, capital and liquidity levels, plans, prospects and operations of U.S. Bancorp. Forward-
looking statements often use words such as “anticipates,” “targets,” “expects,” “hopes,” “estimates,” “projects,” “forecasts,” “intends,” “plans,” “goals,”
“believes,” “continue” and other similar expressions or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “may,” “might,” “should,” “would” and *“could.”
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Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially trom those set forth in forward-looking
statements, including the following risks and uncertainties:

» Deterioration in general business and economic conditions or turbulence in domestic or global financial markets, which could adversely affect U.S.
Bancorp’s revenues and the values of its assets and liabilities, reduce the availability of funding to certain financial institutions, lead to a tightening of credit,
and increase stock price volatility;

Turmoil and volatility in the financial services industry, including failures or rumors of failures of other depository institutions, which could affect the ability
of depository institutions, including U.S. Bank National Association ("USBNA"), to attract and retain depositors, and could affect the ability of financial
services providers, including U.S. Bancorp, to borrow or raise capital;

Actions taken by governmental agencies to stabilize the financial system and the effectiveness of such actions;

» Changes to regulatory capital, liquidity and resolution-related requirements applicable to large banking organizations in response to recent developments
affecting the banking sector;

» Changes to statutes, regulations, or regulatory policies or practices, including capital and liquidity requirements, and the enforcement and interpretation of
such laws and regulations, and U.S. Bancorp’s ability to address or satisfy those requirements and other requirements or conditions imposed by regulatory
entities;

» Changes in interest rates;
» Increases in unemployment rates;

» Deterioration in the credit quality of U.S. Bancorp's loan portfolios or in the value of the collateral securing those loans;

Risks related to originating and selling mortgages, including repurchase and indemnity demands, and related to U.S. Bancorp’s role as a loan servicer;

Impacts of cuitent, pending or future litigation and governmental proceedings;

* Increased competition from both banks and non-banks;

Effects of climate change and related physical and transition risks;

» Changes in customer behavior and preferences and the ability to implement technological changes to respond to customer needs and meet competitive
demands:

» Breaches in data security;

» Failures or disruptions in or breaches of U.S. Bancorp’s operational, technology or security systems or infrastructure, or those of third parties;

Failures to safeguard personal information;

Impacts of pandemics, natural disasters, terrorist activities, civil unrest, international hostilities and geopolitical events;
+ Impacts of supply chain disruptions, rising inflation, slower growth or a recession;

» Failure to execute on strategic or operational plans;




» Effects of mergers and acquisitions and related integration;
» Effects of critical accounting policies and judgments;
» Effects of changes in or interpretations of tax laws and regulations;

* Management’s ability to effectively manage credit risk, market risk, operational risk, compliance risk, strategic risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and
reputation risk; and

* The risks and uncertainties more fully discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors™ of the 2023 Annual Report,

In addition, U.S. Bancorp’s acquisition of MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (“MUB”) presents risks and uncertainties, including, among others: the risk that any
revenue synergies and other anticipated benefits of the acquisition may not be realized or may take longer than anticipated to be realized.

In addition, factors other than these risks also could adversely affect U.S. Bancorp’s results, and the reader should not consider these risks to be a complete set
of all potential risks or uncertainties. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak
only as of the date hereof, and U.S. Bancorp undertakes no obligation to update them in light of new information or future events.

General Business Description

U.S. Bancorp is a financial services holding company headquartered in Minneapolis, Minnesota, serving millions of local, national and global customers.
U.S. Bancorp is registered as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the “BHC Act™), and has elected to be treated as a
financial holding company under the BHC Act. The Company provides a full range of financial services, including lending and depository services, cash
management, capital markets, and trust and investment management services. It also engages in credit card services, merchant and ATM processing, mortgage
banking, insurance, brokerage and leasing,

U.S. Bancorp’s banking subsidiary, USBNA, is engaged in the general banking business, principally in domestic markets, and holds all of the Company’s
consolidated deposits of $512.3 billion at December 31, 2023. USBNA provides a wide range of products and services to individuals, businesses, institutional
organizations, governmental entities and other financial institutions. Commercial and consumer lending services are principally offered to customers within the
Company’s domestic markets, to domestic customers with foreign operations and to large national customers operating in specific industries targeted by the
Company, such as healthcare, utilities, oil and gas, and state and municipal government. Lending services include traditional credit products as well as credit
card services, lease financing and import/export trade, asset-backed lending, agricultural finance and other products. Depository services include checking
accounts, savings accounts and time certificate contracts. Ancillary services such as capital markets, treasury management and receivable lock-box collection
are provided to corporate and governmental entity customers. U.S. Bancorp’s bank and trust subsidiaries provide a full range of asset management and
fiduciary services for individuals, estates, foundations, business corporations and charitable organizations.

Other U.S. Bancorp non-banking subsidiaries offer investment and insurance products to the Company’s customers principally within its domestic
markets. and fund administration services to a broad range of mutual and other funds.

Banking and investment services are provided through a network of 2,274 banking offices across 26 states as of December 31, 2023, principally
operating in the Midwest and West regions of the United States. A significant percentage of consumer transactions are completed using USBNA's digital
banking services, both online and through its digital app. The Company operates a network of 4,524 ATMs as of December 31, 2023, and provides 24-hour,
seven day a week telephone customer service. Mortgage banking services are provided through banking offices and loan production offices throughout the
Company’s domestic markets. Lending products may be originated through banking offices, indirect correspondents, brokers or other lending sources. The
Company is also one of the largest providers of corporate and purchasing card services and corporate trust services in the United States. The Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, Elavon, Inc. (“Elavon™), provides domestic merchant processing services directly to merchants. Wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Elavon provide similar merchant services in Canada and segments of Europe. The Company also provides corporate trust and fund administration services in
Europe. These foreign operations are not significant to the Company.

MUFG Union Bank Acquisition

On December 1, 2022, the Company acquired MUB’s core_regional banking franchise from Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. ("MUFG"). Pursuant
to the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement, the Company acquired all the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of MUB for a purchase price
consisting of §5.5 billion in cash and approximately 44 million shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company also received additional MUB cash of
$3.5 billion upon




completion of the acquisition, which is required to be repaid to MUFG on or prior to the fifth anniversary date of the completion of the purchase. On August 3,
2023, the Company completed a debt/equity conversion with MUFG. As a result, the Company repaid $936 million of its debt obligation from the proceeds of
the issuance of 24 million shares of common stock of the Company to an affiliate of MUFG (the “Debt/Equity Conversion™). After the Debt/Equity
Conversion, the Company had a remaining repayment obligation to MUFG of $2.6 billion. On May 26, 2023, the Company merged MUB into USBNA, the
Company’s primary banking subsidiary. The Company’s 2023 results reflect the full financial results of the acquired business.

Business Segments

The Company’s major lines of business are Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking, Consumer and Business Banking, Payment
Services, and Treasury and Corporate Support.

Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking provides core banking, specialized
lending, transaction and payment processing, capital markets, asset management, and brokerage and investment related services to wealth, middle market, large
corporate, government and institutional clients. Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking contributed $3.6 billion of the Company’s net income
in 2023, an increase of $202 million (6.0 percent) compared with 2022.

Consumer and Business Banking Consumer and Business Banking comprises consumer banking, small business banking and consumer lending. Products
and services are delivered through banking offices, telephone servicing and sales, online services, direct mail, ATM processing, mobile devices, distributed
mortgage loan officers, and intermediary relationships including auto dealerships, mortgage banks, and strategic business partners. Consumer and Business
Banking contributed $2.2 billion of the Company’s net income in 2023, an increase of $378 million (20.6 percent) compared with 2022.

Payment Services Payment Services includes consumer and business credit cards, stored-value cards, debit cards, corporate, government and purchasing
card services and merchant processing. Payment Services contributed $1.2 billion of the Company’s net income in 2023, a decrease of $150 million (11.2
percent) compared with 2022.

Treasury and Corporate Support Treasury and Corporate Support includes the Company’s investment portfolios, funding, capital management, interest
rate risk management, income taxes not allocated to the business lines, including most investments in tax-advantaged projects, and the residual aggregate of
those expenses associated with corporate activities that are managed on a consolidated basis. Treasury and Corporate Support recorded a net loss of $1.5 billion
of the Company’s net income in 2023, a decrease of $826 million compared with 2022.

Additional information regarding the Company’s business segments can be found on pages 56 to 58 of the Company’s 2023 Annual Report under the
heading “Line of Business Financial Review,” which is incorporated herein by reference.

Human Capital

The Company’s success depends, in large part, on its ability to attract, develop and retain skilled employees. The Company recognizes that supporting,
engaging and continuously upskilling its workforce is key to meeting evolving corporate and customer needs. To further those efforts, the Company is
dedicated to fostering a diverse, equitable and inclusive work environment; providing pay that is competitive and fair, as well as other benefits and programs
that promote wellness; and supporting employees’ professional development through programs that promote engagement, learning and productivity. As of
December 31, 2023, the Company employed a total of 75,465 employees globally.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion The Company continues to expand its talent pipeline to increase the representation of women at leadership levels and
people of color at all levels, including at the executive and senior management levels. The Company’s hiring program strives to include the inclusion of at least
one woman or one person of color on interview slates for all roles at the Company. In addition, the Company offers various mentorship, leadership and
development opportunities that enable participants, including women and people of color, to enhance networks, key skills and work experiences. The Company
also provides inclusive leadership learning journeys designed to coach and develop its leaders in driving employee and team performance through inclusive
behaviors and best practices.

To help create and sustain an inclusive workforce, the Company sponsors Business Resource Groups (“BRGs™), including Asian heritage, Black heritage,
Nosotros Latinos, Indigenous Peoples, U.S. Bank women, Spectrum LGBTQ, Proud to Serve: Military and Veterans, European Inclusion, and Disability
employee groups, with chapters across the Company and membership available to all employees. These BRGs enable employees from a wide variety of
backgrounds, identities and perspectives to connect in ways that empower them to contribute, innovate and grow. Through these BRGs, employees can come
together to discuss topics of interest to them, develop professional skills and build overall employee engagement,




helping to create and sustain an inclusive workforce that drives business growth and propels accountability for diversity and inclusion within the Company.

These programs, practices and policies are part of the Company’s strategy to have an ethnically and gender diverse employee base. As of December 31,
2023, of the Company’s employees in the United States, 57 percent were women and 39 percent were people of color. As of December 31, 2023, 34 percent of
the Company’s employees at the executive and senior management levels in the United States were women and 21 percent were people of color. In addition, as
of December 31, 2023, of the Company’s 13 directors, 5 were women and 4 were people of color. All diversity information is based on information self-
disclosed by the employee or director to the Company. To provide transparency on progress relating to its commitment to seek and promote diverse talent, the
Company publicly discloses consolidated EEQ-1 data on its website.

Equitable and Competitive Compensation, Health & Wellness Programs Maintaining competitive compensation and benefits practices is a continued
focus for the Company, with periodic peer and benchmarking reviews used to assist with competitive alignment and employee retention. The Company remains
committed to fair pay and continues to prioritize pay equity efforts. To further the Company’s efforts to provide fair and equitable compensation to its
employees, the Company has processes to address any gender and racial pay inequities identified within its workforce. This work starts with fair hiring
practices. The Company also has guidelines in place for both internal and external job postings to assist the Company’s leaders in making fair compensation
decisions based on the demands and responsibilities of each role, candidate experience, and pay related to comparable internal positions. As part of the
Company's efforts to enhance pay transparency, all open positions in the United States have a disclosed compensation range. The Company conducts periodic
reviews of base pay of employee groups across gender and racial categories with the assistance of an independent third-party consultant. Should gender or race-
based disparities in pay be identified, the Company adjusts compensation levels to eliminate those disparities. In the 2023 review, on average, employees of the
Company in the United States who are women were paid greater than 99 percent of what their male counterparts were paid, and employees of the Company in
the United States who are people of color were paid greater than 99 percent of what their white counterparts were paid, in each case taking into account several
factors including comparable jobs, experience and location. The 2023 review excluded employees from the MUB acquisition who had not transitioned into the
Company's pay structures.

The Company also provides its employees with comprehensive benefits programs, including competitive healthcare, retirement, leave, recognition,
wellness, disability, life insurance, time-off, flexible work, and educational assistance programs, based on the Company’s recognition that such benefits are
important to attract and retain employees. In addition to its competitive 401(k) matching program, the Company maintains an active cash balance pension
program for its U.S. employees, including newly hired employees.

The Company continues to support flexible work programs with remote and in-person work arrangements, providing additional optionality and flexibility
for most employees, which helps the Company attract and retain talent. The Company continues to adapt and evolve its flexible work programs as it recognizes
the changes to employee and customer priorities and its customers’ and employees' changing needs.

Employee Engagement and Retention As part of its efforts to develop and retain skilled employees, the Company remains focused on monitoring
employee engagement. The Company’s employee listening program enables the Company to collect quantitative and qualitative feedback from employees on
an ongoing basis, which then supports and informs the Company on human capital strategies and decisions.

As part of its talent strategy, the Company strives to support continuous employee learning and development. The Company provides a number of talent
development opportunities for employees to enhance skills that are critical in the current and future working environment and empowers employees to discover
ways to thrive and grow their careers, which aligns with the Company’s Employment Value Proposition. For example, the Company’s learning programs
include the Digital and Leadership Academies, which focus on digital and core leadership skill development. The Company continues to deploy cultural
sensitivity and customer interaction training for its frontline employees that focuses on building skills to serve all the Company's customers with excellence. In
addition, every employee is automatically included in the Company’s Development Network that provides all employees with opportunities to network, learn,
develop Jeadership skills and contribute to the Company and its communities. Succession planning and talent development processes remain a top priority for
the Company along with continuous improvements to its training and development programs. During 2023, employees completed over 3 million hours of
training through the Company’s enterprise learning programs to better support their professional development and customer and business needs.

Human Capital Governance The Company’s Board of Directors oversees the Company’s human capital management. The Board’s Compensation and
Human Resources Committee discharges the Board’s oversight responsibilities relating to the Company’s compensation programs and employee benefit plans,
overseeing the Company’s human capital strategy and talent management program and employee diversity, equity and inclusion initiatives. Coordinating with
the Compensation and Human Resources Committee, the Board’s Public Responsibility Committee also oversees the Company’s diversity, equity




and inclusion strategy. The Company’s Chief Human Resources Officer regularly reports to the Board’s Compensation and Human Resources Committee on
human capital matters such as human resource practices and programs, including employee benefits and compensation programs. To promote accountability for
the Company’s diversity, equity and inclusion efforts, the Company’s Chief Diversity Officer reports directly to the Chief Executive Ofticer and serves as a
member of its senior management team.

Competition

The financial services industry is highly competitive. The Company competes with other commercial banks, savings and loan associations, mutual
savings banks, finance companies, mortgage banking companies, credit unions, investment companies, credit card companies and a variety of other financial
services, advisory and technology companies. The financial services industry continues to undergo rapid technological change with frequent introductions of
new technology-driven products and services, including innovative ways that customers can make payments or manage their accounts, such as through the use
of mobile payments, digital wallets or digital currencies. In recent years, competition has increased from institutions not subject to the same regulatory
restrictions as domestic banks and bank holding companies, including by financial technology companies, or “fintechs,” which may offer bank-like products or
services that compete directly with the Company’s products and services. Competition is based on a number of factors, including, among others, customer
service, quality and range of products and services offered, price, reputation, interest rates on loans and deposits, lending limits and customer convenience,
including the ability to address customer needs by using technology to provide products and services that customers want to adopt. The Company’s ability to
continue to compete effectively also depends in large part on its ability to attract new employees and retain and motivate existing employees, while managing
compensation and other costs. For additional information relating to how the Company attracts and retains employees, see “Human Capital” above.

Government Policies

The operations of the Company’s various businesses are affected by federal and state laws and legislative changes and by policies of various regulatory
authorities of the numerous states in which they operate, the United States and foreign governments. These laws, rules and policies include, for example,
statutory maximum legal lending rates, domestic monetary policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve™), United
States fiscal policy, international currency regulations and monetary policies and capital adequacy and liquidity constraints imposed by bank regulatory
agencies.

Supervision and Regulation

U.S. Bancorp and its subsidiaries are subject to the extensive regulatory framework applicable to bank holding companies (“BHCs”) and their
subsidiaries. This regulatory framework is intended primarily for the protection of depositors, the deposit insurance fund (the “DIF”) of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”), consumers, the stability of the financial system in the United States, and the health of the national economy, and not for
investors in the Company.

This section summarizes certain provisions of the principal laws and regulations applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries. The descriptions are not
intended to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full text of the statutes and regulations described below.

General As a BHC, the Company is subject to regulation under the BHC Act and to inspection, examination and supervision by the Federal Reserve.
USBNA and its subsidiaries are subject to regulation, examination and supervision primarily by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”) and
also by the FDIC, the Federal Reserve, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “CEPB”), the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and the
Commodities Futures Trading Commission (the “CFTC”) in certain areas.

Supervision and regulation by the responsible regulatory agencies generally include comprehensive annual reviews of all major aspects of the Company’s
and USBNA'’s business and condition, regular on-site examinations, and imposition of periodic reporting requirements and limitations on investments and
certain types of activities. If an applicable regulatory agency deems the Company to be operating in a manner that is inconsistent with safe and sound banking
practices, such agency can require the entry into informal or formal supervisory agreements, including board resolutions, memoranda of understanding, written
agreements and consent or cease and desist orders, pursuant to which the Company would be required to take identified corrective actions to address cited
concerns and to refrain from taking certain actions. Supervision and examinations are confidential, and the outcomes of these actions generally are not made
public.

Banking and other financial services statutes, regulations and policies are continually under review by the United States Congress, state legislatures and
federal and state regulatory agencies. In addition to Jaws and regulations, state and federal bank regulatory agencies may issue policy statements, interpretive
letters and similar written guidance applicable to the




Company and its subsidiaries. Any change in the statutes, regulations or regulatory policies applicable to the Company, including changes in their interpretation
or implementation, could have a material effect on its business or organization.

As a BHC with over $100 billion in total consolidated assets, the Company is subject to the Dodd-Frank Act’s enhanced prudential standards, as applied
to “Category III” institutions under the federal banking regulators’ rules that tailor how enhanced prudential standards apply to large U.S. banking
organizations (the “Tailoring Rules™). The Tailoring Rules also apply certain enhanced prudential standards to its subsidiary depository institution, USBNA, as
described in more detail below.

In connection with the Company’s acquisition of MUB, the Company committed (the “Federal Reserve Commitments”) to submit to the Federal Reserve
quarterly implementation plans for complying with requirements applicable to “Category II” institutions (i.e., institutions with $700 billion or more in total
assets or $75 billion or more in cross-jurisdictional activities). The Company also committed to meet requirements applicable to Category 11 institutions by the
earlier of (i) the date required under the Tailoring Rules; and (ii) December 31, 2024, if the Federal Reserve notifies the Company by January 1, 2024, that the
Company must comply with such rules. On October 16, 2023, the Federal Reserve granted the Company relief from both of these commitments. As a result, the
Company will continue to be subject to the regulatory capital and liquidity requirements applicable to Category Il institutions until otherwise required under
the Tailoring Rules (i.e., until the Company’s total average consolidated assets for the then most recent four quarters equal $700 billion or more or the amount
of the Company’s average cross-jurisdictional activities for the then most recent four quarters equals $75 billion or more).

Supervisory Ratings Federal banking regulators regularly examine the Company and its insured depository institution subsidiary, USBNA. Following
those exams, the Company (under the Federal Reserve’s Large Financial Institution Rating System) and USBNA (under the CAMELS rating system) are
assigned supervisory ratings. Disclosure of these ratings to third parties is not allowed without permission of the issuing regulator. A downgrade in these ratings
could limit the Company’s ability to pursue acquisitions or conduct other expansionary activities for a period of time, require new or additional regulatory
approvals before engaging in certain other business activities or investments, affect USBNA’s deposit insurance assessment rates, limit the Company's access to
funding through government-sponsored liquidity programs, and impose additional recordkeeping and corporate governance requirements, as well as generally
increase regulatory scrutiny of the Company.

BHC Activities The Company is a BHC under the BHC Act and has elected to be a financial holding company (“FHC”). BHCs that qualify and elect to
be treated as FHCs may engage in, and affiliate with financial companies engaging in, a broader range of activities than would otherwise be permitted for a
BHC.

If an FHC or a depository institution controlled by an FHC ceases to be well-capitalized or well-managed, the Federal Reserve may impose cotrective
capital and managerial requirements on the FHC and may place limitations on its ability to conduct all of the business activities that FHCs are generally
permitted to conduct and its ability to make certain acquisitions. See “Permissible Business Activities” below. Disclosure of any failure to meet these standards
is not allowed without permission of the Federal Reserve. If the failure to meet these standards persists, the FHC may be required to divest its depository
institution subsidiaries or cease all activities other than those activities that may be conducted by BHCs that are not FHCs. In addition, if 2 depository
institution controlled by an FHC does not receive a Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”) rating of at least “satisfactory” at its most recent examination, the
Federal Reserve will prohibit the FHC from conducting new business activities that FHCs are generally permitted to conduct and from making certain
acquisitions.

The Federal Reserve also requires BHCs to meet certain applicable capital and management standards. Failure by the Company to meet these standards
could limit the Company from engaging in any new activity or acquiring other companies without the prior approval of the Federal Reserve.

Permissible Business Activities As an FHC, the Company may affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies and engage in other activities that
are financial in nature or incidental or complementary to activities that are financial in nature. “Financial in nature” activities include securities underwriting,
dealing and market making; sponsoring mutual funds and investment companies; insurance underwriting and agency; merchant banking; and activities that the
Federal Reserve, in consultation with the Secretary of the United States Treasury, determines to be financial in nature or incidental to such financial activity.
“Complementary activities” are activities that the Federal Reserve determines upon application to be complementary to a financial activity and that do not pose
a safety and soundness risk.

The Company generally is not required to obtain Federal Reserve approval to acquire a company engaged in activities that are financial in nature or
incidental to activities that are financial in nature, as long as the Company meets the capital, managerial and CRA requirements to qualify as an FHC. However,
the Company is required to receive approval for an acquisition in which the total consolidated assets to be acquired exceed $10 billion. FHCs are also required
to obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve before they may acquire more than five percent of the voting shares or substantially all of the




assets of an unaffiliated BHC, bank or savings association. In addition, banks must receive approval before they may acquire, merge with, acquire substantially
all of the assets of or assume any deposits of a bank or savings association and may be required to receive approval for acquisitions of other companies.

Interstate Banking A BHC may acquire banks in states other than its home state, subject to any state requirement that the bank has been organized and
operating for a minimum period of time (not to exceed five years). Also, such an acquisition is not permitted if the BHC controls, prior to or following the
proposed acquisition, more than 10 percent of the total amount of deposits of insured depository institutions nationwide or, if the acquisition is the BHC’s
initial entry into the state, more than 30 percent of the deposits of insured depository institutions in the state (or any lesser or greater amount set by the state).
Banks may merge across state lines to create interstate branches and are permitted to establish new branches in another state to the same extent as banks
chartered by that state.

Regulatory Approval for Acquisitions In determining whether to approve a proposed bank acquisition, federal bank regulators will consider a number of
factors, including the effect of the acquisition on competition, financial condition and future prospects (including current and projected capital ratios and
levels); the competence, experience and integrity of management and its record of compliance with laws and regulations; the convenience and needs of the
communities to be served (including the acquiring institution’s record of compliance under the CRA); the effectiveness of the acquiring institution in
combating money laundering activities; and the extent to which the transaction would result in greater or more concentrated risks to the stability of the United
States banking or financial system. In addition, approval of interstate transactions requires that the acquiror satisfy regulatory standards for well-capitalized and
well-managed institutions.

Source of Strength The Company is required to act as a source of strength to USBNA, and to commit capital and financial resources to support USBNA
in circumstances where the Company might not otherwise do so. Under these requirements, the Federal Reserve may in the future require the Company to
provide financial assistance to USBNA, should it experience financial distress. Capital loans by the Company to USBNA would be subordinate in right of
payment to deposits and certain other debts of USBNA.

OCC Heightened Standards USBNA is subject to the OCC’s guidelines establishing heightened standards for large national banks, which establish
minimum standards for the design and implementation of a risk governance framework for banks. The OCC may take action against institutions that fail to
meet these standards.

Enhanced Prudential Standards Under the Dodd-Frank Act, as modified by the Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief and Consumer Protection Act and
the Tailoring Rules, large bank holding companies, such as the Company, are subject to certain enhanced prudential standards based on the banking
organization’s size and certain “risk-based indicators.” The prudential standards include enhanced risk-based capital and leverage requirements, enhanced
liquidity requirements, enhanced risk management and risk committee requirements, a requirement to submit a resolution plan, single-counterparty credit limits
and stress tests. Certain of the enhanced prudential standards applicable to the Company are described below in further detail.

Dividend Restrictions The Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from its subsidiaries. Typically, the majority of the Company’s operating funds
are received in the form of dividends paid to the Company by USBNA. Federal law imposes limitations on the payment of dividends by national banks. In
general, dividends payable by USBNA and the Company’s trust bank subsidiaries, as national banking associations, are limited by rules that compare dividends
to net income for periods defined by regulation.

The OCC, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC also have authority to prohibit or limit the payment of dividends by the banking organizations they
supervise (including the Company and USBNA) if, in the banking regulator’s opinion, payment of a dividend would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice in
light of the financial condition of the banking organization.

In addition, the Federal Reserve’s final rule implementing the stress capital buffer (“SCB”) provides that a BHC must receive prior approval for any
dividend, stock repurchase or other capital distribution, other than a capital distribution on a newly issued capital instrument, if the BHC is required to resubmit
its capital plan. The rule also provides that a BHC must resubmit its capital plan if, among other things, the BHC determines there has been or will be a
material change in the BHC’s risk profile, financial condition, or corporate structure since the BHC last submitted its capital plan.

Capital Requirements The Company is subject to certain regulatory risk-based capital and leverage requirements under capital rules adopted by the
Federal Reserve, and USBNA is subject to substantially similar rules adopted by the OCC. These rules implement the Basel Committee’s framework for
strengthening the regulation, supervision and risk management of banks (“Basel III”), as well as certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. These quantitative
calculations are minimums, and the Federal Reserve and OCC may determine that a banking organization, based on its size, complexity or risk profile, must
maintain a higher level of capital in order to operate in a safe and sound manner.




Under the Tailoring Rules, the Company and USBNA are each currently subject to “Category I1I” standards, and are “standardized approach™ banking
organizations that are subject to rules that provide for simplified capital requirements relating to the threshold deductions for mortgage servicing assets,
deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences that a banking organization could not realize through net operating loss cary backs, and investments in
the capital of unconsolidated financial institutions, as well as the inclusion of minority interests in regulatory capital. Growth in total consolidated assets
(including assets obtained in acquisitions) or cross-jurisdictional activity (as defined in the Tailoring Rules) could affect the Company’s continued classification
as a “Category III” institution, which could result in the Company and its insured depository institution subsidiary becoming “advanced approaches” banking
organizations, a requirement to recognize elements of accumulated other comprehensive income in regulatory capital, as well as other more stringent capital,
liquidity, and other regulatory requirements.

Under the United States Basel ITI-based capital rules, the Company is subject to a minimum common equity tier 1 (“*CET1"") capital ratio (CET1 capital
to risk-weighted assets) of 4.5 percent, a minimum tier 1 capital ratio of 6.0 percent and a minimum total capital ratio of 8.0 percent. At December 31, 2023,
the Company exceeded these minimum capital ratio requirements. The Company is also subject to the SCB, which is based on the results of the Federal
Reserve’s supervisory stress tests and the Company’s planned common stock dividends, and, if deployed by the Federal Reserve, up to a 2.5 percent common
equity tier 1 countercyclical capital buffer. These additional requirements must be satisfied entirely with capital that qualifies as CET1. Although the Federal
Reserve has not to date raised the countercyclical capital buffer above zero percent, the countercyclical capital buffer could change in the future. The SCB
generally is assigned on an annual basis and becomes effective on October 1 of each year, subject to a 2.5 percent floor, and may vary over time. As of
December 31, 2023, the SCB applicable to the Company is 2.5 percent. If the Federal Reserve were to raise the countercyclical capital buffer, or if the SCB
applicable to the Company were to exceed 2.5 percent, this would also change the effective minimum capital ratios to which the Company is subject. For
USBNA, the buffer requirement consists of the static capital conservation buffer equal to 2.5 percent of risk-weighted assets.

Banking organizations that fail to meet the effective minimum ratios will be subject to constraints on capital distributions, including dividends and share
repurchases, and certain discretionary executive compensation, with the severity of the constraints depending on the extent of the shortfall and “eligible
retained income” (defined as the greater of (i) net income for the four preceding quarters, net of distributions and associated tax effects not reflected in net
income; and (ii) the average of all net income over the preceding four quarters).

United States banking organizations are also subject to a minimum tier 1 leverage ratio of 4.0 percent. As a Category I1I banking organization, the
Company is also subject to a minimum Supplementary Leverage Ratio (“SLR”) of 3.0 percent that takes into account both on-balance sheet and certain off-
balance sheet exposures. At December 31, 2023, the Company exceeded the applicable minimum tier 1 leverage ratio and SLR requirements.

In July 2023, the U.S. federal bank regulatory authorities proposed a rule implementing the Basel Committee’s finalization of the post-crisis regulatory
capital reforms, commonly referred to as “Basel III Endgame.” The proposal provides for a July 1, 2025 effective date, subject to a three-year transition period.
The proposal would set stricter criteria for the use of intenal models by replacing the market risk rule with the “Fundamental Review of the Trading Book,”
and would introduce new standardized approaches for credit risk, operational risk and credit valuation adjustment risk, which would replace the current
models-based approaches. In addition, under the proposed rule, also subject to a phase-in period, Category I1I banking institutions, such as the Company, would
no longer be permitted to opt out of including certain components of accumulated other comprehensive income in regulatory capital, which would result in
unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities being included in the calculation of the Company’s regulatory capital ratios. The Company
continues to evaluate the potential effects of the proposed rule, and the effects on the Company will depend on the final form of any rulemaking. However, the
Company expects that any final rule would result in the Company being required to maintain increased levels of regulatory capital.

In 2020, the United States federal banking agencies adopted a rule that allowed banking organizations, including the Company and USBNA, to elect to
delay temporarily the estimated effects of adopting the current expected credit loss accounting standard (“CECL”) on regulatory capital until January 2022 and
subsequently to phase in the effects through January 2025. Through the 2023 stress test cycle, the Federal Reserve has not yet incorporated CECL into the
calculation of the allowance for credit losses in supervisory stress tests, and the Federal Reserve issued guidance in December 2023 to indicate that it will
maintain the current framework for allowance for credit losses in the supervisory stress test through the 2024 stress test cycle. For further discussion of CECL,
see Notes 1 and 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2023 Annual Report. The Company and USBNA elected to delay and subsequently
phase in the regulatory capital impact of CECL in accordance with this rule.

For additional information regarding the Company’s regulatory capital, see “Capital Management” in the 2023 Annual Report.




Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review As required by the Federal Reserve’s Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review (“CCAR”) rules, the
Company submits a capital plan to the Federal Reserve on an annual basis. As part of the CCAR process, the Federal Reserve evaluates the Company’s plans to
make capital distributions, including by repurchasing stock or making dividend payments, under a number of macroeconomic and Company-specific
assumptions based on the Company’s and the Federal Reserve’s stress tests described under “Stress Testing” below. These capital plans consist of a number of
mandatory elements, including an assessment of a company’s sources and uses of capital over a nine-quarter planning horizon assuming both expected and
stressful conditions; a detailed description of a company’s process for assessing capital adequacy; and a demonstration of a company’s ability to maintain
capital above each minimum regulatory capital ratio (without taking the buffers into account) under expected and stressful conditions.

Stress Testing The Federal Reserve’s CCAR framework and the Dodd-Frank Act stress testing framework require BHCs subject to Category III standards
such as the Company to conduct an annual internal stress test in connection with its annual capital plan submission as well as biennial company-run stress tests,
and subject such BHCs to annual supervisory stress tests conducted by the Federal Reserve. Among other things, the company-run stress tests employ stress
scenarios developed by the Company as well as stress scenarios provided by the Federal Reserve and incorporate the Dodd-Frank Act capital actions (as
opposed to the Company’s planned capital actions), which are intended to normalize capital distributions across large U.S. BHCs. The Federal Reserve
conducts CCAR and Dodd-Frank Act supervisory stress tests employing stress scenarios and intemal supervisory models and incorporates the Company’s
planned capital actions and the Dodd-Frank Act capital actions, respectively, into its stress tests. The Federal Reserve and the Company are currently required
to publish the results of the annual supervisory and biennial company-run stress tests, respectively, no later than June 30 of each applicable year. If the
Company were to become a “Category II” institution for purposes of the Tailoring Rules, the Company would become subject to annual (rather than biennial)
company-run stress fests.

Under the OCC’s rules, national banks with assets in excess of $250 billion, including USBNA, are required to submit company-run stress test results to
the OCC concurrently with their parent BHC’s CCAR submission to the Federal Reserve. The stress test is based on the OCC’s stress scenarios (which are
typically the same as the Federal Reserve’s stress scenarios) and capital actions that are appropriate for the economic conditions assumed in each scenario.

Basel III Liguidity Requirements As Category III banking organizations, the Company and USBNA are each subject to a minimum liquidity coverage
ratio ("LCR") under the Tailoring Rules. The LCR is designed to ensure that BHCs have sufficient high-quality liquid assets to survive a significant liquidity
stress event lasting for 30 calendar days. In addition, the Company and USBNA are subject to the net stable funding ratio ("NSFR") rule, which is designed to
promote stable, longer-term funding of assets and business activities over a one-year time horizon. Under the Tailoring Rules and NSFR rule, the Company and
USBNA, as Category III banking organizations with less than $75 billion of weighted short-term wholesale funding, qualify for reduced LCR and NSFR
requirements calibrated at 85 percent of the full requirements. If the Company were to become a “Category II”” institution for purposes of the Tailoring Rules,
the Company would become subject to the full (100 percent) LCR and NSFR requirements, as well as daily (rather than monthly) liquidity reporting
requirements.

Prompt Corrective Action The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act (“FDICIA”™) provides a framework for regulation of depository
institutions and their affiliates (including parent holding companies) by federal banking regulators. As part of that framework, the FDICIA requires the relevant
federal banking regulator to take “prompt corrective action” with respect to an FDIC-insured depository institution, such as USBNA, if that institution does not
meet certain capital adequacy standards. Supervisory actions by the appropriate federal banking regulator under the “prompt corrective action” rules generally
depend upon an institution’s classification within five capital categories. An institution that fails to remain well-capitalized becomes subject to a series of
restrictions that increase in severity as its capital condition weakens. Such restrictions may include a prohibition on capital distributions, restrictions on asset
growth or restrictions on the ability to receive regulatory approval of applications. The FDICIA also provides for enhanced supervisory authority over
undercapitalized institutions, including authority for the appointment of a conservator or receiver for the institution.

Prompt corrective action regulations apply only to banks and not to BHCs such as the Company. However, the Federal Reserve is authorized to take
appropriate action at the BHC level, based on the undercapitalized status of the BHC’s subsidiary banking institutions. In certain instances, relating to an
undercapitalized bank, the BHC would be required to guarantee the performance of the undercapitalized subsidiary’s capital restoration plan and could be liable
for civil money damages for failure to fulfill those guarantee commitments.

Long-Term Debt Requirements In August 2023. the Federal Reserve, OCC and FDIC issued a proposed rule that would require, among other institutions,
each Category Il U.S. BHC, including the Company, and each insured depository institution with $100 billion or more in total consolidated assets that is a
consolidated subsidiary of a Category 111 U.S. BHC, such as USBNA, to have minimum levels of outstanding long-term debt. The proposed rule is intended to
improve the resolvability of the banking organizations covered by the rule. Under the proposed rule, covered banking organizations would be required to
maintain long-term debt in an amount that is equal to the greater of (i) 6% of the organization’s risk-weighted
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assets; (ii) 3.5% of the organization’s average total consolidated assets; and (iii) 2.5% of the organization’s total leverage exposure, if the organization is subject
to the SLR rule. The requirement would be phased in over three years, with covered banking organizations being required to meet 25% of the requirement
within one year after finalization of the rule, 50% after two years and 100% after three years. The Company continues to evaluate the potential effects of the
proposed rule. Although any effects on the Company and USBNA will depend on the final form of any rulemaking, the Company expects that under any final
rule, it and USBNA would be required to maintain substantially more long-term debt than it currently maintains.

Deposit Insurance The DIF provides insurance coverage for certain deposits, up to a standard maximum deposit insurance amount of $250,000 per
depositor. Deposits at USBNA are insured up to the applicable limits. The DIF is funded through assessments on insured depository institutions, including
USBNA, based on the risk each institution poses to the DIF. The FDIC may increase USBNA’s insurance premiums based on various factors, including the
FDIC’s assessment of its risk profile.

In addition, large insured depository institutions, including USBNA, are subject to enhanced deposit account recordkeeping and related information
technology system requirements meant to facilitate prompt payment of insured deposits if such an institution were to fail.

In October 2022, the FDIC finalized a rule to increase the initial base deposit insurance assessment rate schedules for all insured depository institutions
by two basis points, beginning with the first quarterly assessment period of 2023. The increased assessment rate is intended to improve the likelihood that the
DIF reserve ratio would reach the required minimum of 1.35 percent by the statutory deadline of September 30, 2028.

In November 2023, the FDIC released a final rule to impose a special assessment to recover the losses to the DIF resulting from failures of other banking
institutions during 2023. The Company expects the special assessments will be tax deductible. As a result of this rule, in the fourth quarter of 2023, the
Company recognized additional noninterest expense of $734 million for the FDIC special assessment.

Depositor Preference Under federal law, in the event of the liquidation or other resolution of an insured depository institution, the claims of a receiver of
the institution for administrative expense and the claims of holders of domestic deposit liabilities have priority over the claims of other unsecured creditors of
the institution, including holders of publicly issued senior or subordinated debt and depositors in non-domestic offices. As a result, those debtholders and
depositors would be treated differently from, and could receive, if anything, substantially less than, the depositors in domestic offices of the depository
institution.

Orderly Liquidation Authority Upon the insolvency of a BHC, such as the Company, the FDIC may be appointed as conservator or receiver of the BHC if
the Secretary of the Treasury determines (upon the written recommendation of the FDIC and the Federal Reserve and after consultation with the President of
the United States) that certain conditions set forth in the Dodd-Frank Act regarding the potential impact on financial stability of a financial company’s failure
have been met. FDIC rules set forth a comprehensive method for the receivership of a covered financial company. Acting as a conservator or receiver, the FDIC
would have broad powers to transfer any assets or liabilities of a BHC without the approval of its creditors.

Resolution Plans The Company is required by the Federal Reserve and the FDIC to submit a periodic plan for the rapid and orderly resolution of the
Company and its significant legal entities in the event of future material financial distress or failure. If the Federal Reserve and the FDIC jointly determine that
the resolution plan is not credible and such deficiencies are not cured in a timely manner, the regulators may jointly impose on the Company more stringent
capital, leverage or liquidity requirements or restrictions on the Company’s growth, activities or operations. If the Company were to fail to address the
deficiencies in its resolution plan when required, it could eventually be required to divest certain assets or operations. As a Category III banking organization,
the Company is required to submit resolution plans on a triennial cycle (altemating between targeted and full submissions). The Company submitted its
targeted resolution plan in December 2021 and is scheduled to file its next full resolution plan in July 2024. In addition, in connection with the MUB
acquisition, the Company committed to the Federal Reserve that it would, within six months of completing the acquisition of MUB, provide the Federal
Reserve and the FDIC with an interim update to its resolution plan. The Company submitted the update to its resolution plan within the required time period.

In August 2023, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC released proposed guidance for 2024 and subsequent resolution plan submissions that would apply to
certain institutions including Category III institutions such as the Company. The guidance addresses the core elements of an organization's resolution strategy
and is intended, among other things, to reduce inconsistencies in the amounts and types of information filed by different organizations. The guidance is also
intended to reflect the regulators' experience with bank failures that occurred during 2023. The effects on the Company's resolution planning, including the
timing of submission, will depend on the final form of any guidance.
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USBNA is required to file periodically separate resolution plans with the FDIC that should enable the FDIC, as receiver, to resolve USBNA under
applicable receivership provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act in a manner that ensures that depositors receive access to their insured deposits within
one business day of the institution’s failure, maximizes the net present value return from the sale or disposition of its assets and minimizes the amount of any
loss to the institution’s creditors. In June 2021, the FDIC issued a Statement on Resolution Plans for Insured Depository Institutions (the “FDIC Statement™).
Among other things, the FDIC Statement established a three-year filing cycle for banks with $100 billion or more in total assets and provided details regarding
the content that filers will be expected to prepare. Under this filing cycle, USBNA submitted its most recent resolution plan to the FDIC in November 2022, In
August 2023, the FDIC issued a proposed rule that would require insured depository institutions with $100 billion or more in total assets, such as USBNA, to
submit biennial resolution plans that include a comprehensive strategy from the point of potential failure to liquidation, which would be required to ensure
timely access to insured deposits, maximize value from the disposition of assets, minimize losses to creditors and address potential risks to the U.S. economy or
financial stability. Under the proposed rule, USBNA would be required to file resolution plans biennially beginning in 2025. The effects of the proposed rule on
USBNA, including the timing of submission, will depend on the final form of any rulemaking.

In addition, in connection with the approval by the OCC of the merger of MUB into USBNA, USBNA committed (the “OCC Commitments™) to the
OCC that it would (i) develop a list of business lines and/or portfolios (each an “object of sale™) that could be sold quickly in the event of stress; and @i1)
prepare a plan, including a timeline, to effectuate such separability, including through the establishment of “data rooms” for each object of sale. USBNA was
required to submit these items to the OCC for a written determination of no supervisory objection within six months of consummation of the merger of MUB
into USBNA. USBNA submitted all items within the required timeframe.

Recovery Plans The OCC has established enforceable guidelines for recovery planning by insured national banks with average total consolidated assets
of $250 billion or more, including USBNA. The guidelines provide that a covered bank should develop and maintain a recovery plan that is appropriate for its
individual risk profile, size, activities, and complexity, including the complexity of its organizational and legal entity structure. The guidelines state that a
recovery plan should, among other elements, (i) establish triggers, which are quantitative or qualitative indicators of the risk or existence of severe stress that
should always be escalated to management or the board of directors, as appropriate, for purposes of initiating a response; (ii) identify a wide range of credible
options that a covered bank could undertake to restore financial and operational strength and viability; and (iii) address escalation procedures, management
reports, and communication procedures. USBNA’s recovery plan was reviewed and approved pursuant to these guidelines in December 2023.

Transactions with 4ffiliates There are various legal restrictions on the extent to which the Company and its non-bank subsidiaries may borrow or
otherwise engage in certain types of transactions with USBNA or its subsidiaries. Under the Federal Reserve Act and the Federal Reserve’s Regulation W,
USBNA and its subsidiaries are subject to quantitative and qualitative limits on extensions of credit (including credit exposure arising from repurchase and
reverse repurchase agreements, securities borrowing and derivative transactions), purchases of assets, and certain other transactions with the Company or its
other non-bank subsidiaries and affiliates. Additionally, transactions between USBNA or its subsidiaries, on the one hand, and the Company or its other non-
bank subsidiaries and affiliates, on the other hand, are required to be on arm’s length terms. Transactions between USBNA and its affiliates and the Company
and its other non-bank subsidiaries and its affiliates must be consistent with standards of safety and soundness.

Anti-Money Laundering and Sanctions The Company is subject to several federal laws that are designed to combat money laundering and terrorist
financing, and to restrict transactions with persons, companies, or foreign govermments sanctioned by United States authorities. This category of laws includes
the Bank Secrecy Act (the “BSA”), the Money Laundering Control Act, the USA PATRIOT Act (collectively, “AML laws™), and implementing regulations for
the International Emergency Economic Powers Act and the Trading with the Enemy Act, as administered by the United States Treasury Department’s Office of
Foreign Assets Control (“sanctions laws”).

As implemented by federal banking and securities regulators and the U.S. Department of the Treasury, AML laws obligate depository institutions and
broker-dealers to verify their customers’ identity, verify the identity of beneficial owners of legal entity customers, conduct customer due diligence, report on
suspicious activity, file reports of certain transactions in currency, and conduct enhanced due diligence on certain accounts. Sanctions laws prohibit United
States persons and certain foreign affiliates from engaging in any transaction with a restricted person or restricted country. Depository institutions and broker-
dealers are required by their respective federal regulators to maintain policies and procedures in order to ensure compliance with the above obligations. Federal
regulators regularly examine BSA/Anti-Money Laundering (“AML”) and sanctions compliance programs to ensure their adequacy and effectiveness, and the
frequency and extent of such examinations and related remedial actions have been increasing.

In January 2021, the Anti-Money Laundering Act of 2020 (“AMLA”), which amends the BSA, was enacted. Among other things, the AMLA codified a
risk-based approach to anti-money laundering compliance for financial institutions;




required the development of standards by the U.S. Department of the Treasury for evaluating technology and internal processes for BSA compliance; and
expanded enforcement- and investigation-related authority, including a significant expansion in the available sanctions for certain BSA violations. Many of the
statutory provisions in the AMLA will require additional rulemakings, reports and other measures, and the impact of the AMLA will depend on, among other
things, rulemaking and implementation guidance. In June 2021, the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network, a bureau of the U.S. Department of the Treasury,
issued the priorities for anti-money laundering and countering the financing of terrorism policy required under the AMLA. The priorities include corruption,
cybercrime, terrorist financing, fraud, transnational crime, drug trafficking, human trafficking and proliferation financing.

Community Reinvestment Act USBNA is subject to the provisions of the CRA. Under the terms of the CRA, banks have a continuing and affirmative
obligation, consistent with safe and sound operation, to help meet the credit needs of their communities, including providing credit to individuals residing in
low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. The OCC assesses USBNA on its record in meeting the credit needs of the community served by USBNA,
including low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. CRA assessments also are considered by the Federal Reserve or OCC when reviewing applications by
banking institutions to acquire, merge or consolidate with another banking institution or its holding company, to establish a new branch office that will accept
deposits, or to relocate an office. In the case of a BHC applying for approval to acquire a bank or other BHC, the Federal Reserve will assess the CRA records
of each subsidiary depository institution of the applicant BHC, and those records may be the basis for denying the application. USBNA received an
“Outstanding” CRA rating in its most recent examination, covering the period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2020. Prior to merging into
USBNA, MUB received an “Outstanding™ CRA rating in its most recent examination, covering the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2018.

In October 2023, the OCC, together with the Federal Reserve and FDIC, issued a final rule to modernize the CRA regulatory framework. The final rule is
intended, among other things, to strengthen the achievement of the core purpose of the CRA, to adapt to changes in the banking industry, including the
expanded role of mobile and online banking, and to tailor performance standards to account for differences in bank size and business models. The final rule
tracks the proposed rule issued by the agencies in May 2022 and adjusts CRA evaluations based on bank size and type, with many of the changes applying only
to banks with over $2 billion in assets and several applying only to banks with over $10 billion in assets, such as USBNA. The final rule introduces major
changes to the CRA regulatory framework: (i) the delineation of assessment areas; (ii) the overall evaluation framework and performance standards and
metrics; (iii) the definition of community development activities; and (iv) data collection and reporting. The final rule will become effective on April 1, 2024,
but most provisions of the rule will not become applicable until January 1, 2026. The Company continues to evaluate the effect of the final rule on USBNA,
and any effects may depend on further guidance from the regulators with respect to interpretive and implementation-related issues that may arise.

Regulation of Brokerage, Investment Advisory and Insurance Activities The Company conducts a broad range of securities activities, both retail and
institutional, in the United States through U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc., PFM Fund Distributors, Inc. and U.S. Bancorp Advisors, LLC (collectively, “broker-
dealer entities™). These activities are subject to regulations of the SEC, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority and other authorities, including state
regulators. These regulations generally cover licensing of securities personnel, interactions with customers and counterparties, trading operations, securities
underwriting compensation and arrangements, customer suitability, recordkeeping, reporting and communications. Securities regulators impose capital
requirements on the Company’s broker-dealer entities and conduct audits or other periodic reviews of their sales practice and financial operations. In addition,
the Company’s broker-dealer entities are members of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation, which oversees the liquidation of member broker-dealers
that close when the broker-dealer is bankrupt or in financial distress and imposes membership fee assessments and other reporting requirements on the broker-
dealer entities.

The operations of the First American family of funds, the Company’s proprietary money market fund complex, also are subject to regulation by the SEC,
including rules requiring a floating net asset value for institutional prime and tax-free money market funds and permitting the board of directors of the money
market funds the ability to limit redemptions during periods of stress (allowing for the use of liquidity fees and redemption gates during such times). In July
2023, the SEC finalized amendments to the rules that govern money market funds. These amendments will, among other things, increase liquidity requirements
for money market funds by requiring funds to hold greater proportions of their total assets in securities that can be liquidated in one business day, and will
require institutional prime and institutional tax-exempt money market funds to impose liquidity fees on investors that redeem their investments during times of
stress.

The Company’s operations in the areas of insurance brokerage and reinsurance of credit life insurance are subject to regulation and supervision by
various state insurance regulatory authorities, including the licensing of insurance brokers and agents.




Regulation of Derivatives and the Swaps Marketplace Under the Dodd-Frank Act, USBNA, as a CFTC registered swap dealer, is subject to rules
regarding the regulation of the swaps marketplace and over-the-counter derivatives, including rules that require swap dealers and major swap participants to
register with the CFTC, to meet robust business conduct standards to lower risk and promote market integrity, to meet certain recordkeeping and reporting
requirements so that regulators can better monitor the markets, to centrally clear and trade swaps on regulated exchanges or execution facilities, and to be
subject to certain capital and margin requirements. CFTC rules also require USBNA to be a member of the National Futures Association, a self-regulatory
organization with authority over swap dealers.

In addition, the OCC’s rules concerning swap margin and capital requirements for swap dealers regulated by the OCC mandate the exchange of initial
and variation margin for non-cleared swaps and non-cleared security-based swaps between swap entities regulated by five federal agencies and certain
counterparties. The amount of margin will vary based on the relative risk of the non-cleared swap or non-cleared security-based swap. Other rules generally
exempt inter-affiliate transactions from initial margin requirements to the extent a depository institution’s total exposure to all affiliates is less than 15 percent
of its tier 1 capital.

The Volcker Rule Section 13 of the BHC Act and its implementing regulations, commonly referred to as the “Volcker Rule,” prohibit banking entities
from engaging in proprietary trading, and prohibit certain interests in, or relationships with, hedge funds or private equity funds. The Volcker Rule applies to
the Company, USBNA and their affiliates, and compliance requirements are tailored based on the size and scope of trading activities. The Company has a
Volcker Rule compliance program in place that covers all of its subsidiaries and affiliates, including USBNA.

Privacy and Data Protection Federal and state laws contain extensive consumer privacy and data protection provisions. The Gramm Leach-Bliley Act
(“GLBA?) requires financial institutions to periodically disclose their privacy policies and practices relating to sharing nonpublic personal information and
enables retail customers to opt out of the sharing of such information with nonaffiliated third parties under certain circumstances. Other federal and state laws
and regulations impact the Company’s ability to share certain information with affiliates and non-affiliates for marketing and/or non-marketing purposes, or to
contact customers with marketing offers. The GLBA also requires financial institutions to implement a comprehensive information security program. Security
and privacy policies and procedures for the protection of personal and confidential information are in effect across all the Company’s businesses and
geographic locations.

Data privacy and data protection are areas of increasing legislative focus in the United States, and several U.S. states have enacted comprehensive
consumer privacy laws that impose compliance obligations with respect to personal information. The Company has made and will make operational
adjustments in accordance with the requirements of applicable privacy and data protection laws. For example, the Company is subject to the California
Consumer Protection Act of 2018 and its implementing regulations, as amended in 2020 by the California Privacy Rights Act (the "CCPA"), which provided
residents of California with specific rights with respect to the collection of their personal information. The process of drafting and finalizing implementing
regulations for the CCPA is ongoing. The Company continues to evaluate the new regulations, and the effects on the Company will depend on the form of any
additional rulemakings.

Similar comprehensive consumer privacy laws have been adopted by other states where the Company does business. Each of these state laws, however,
includes an entity level exemption for “financial institutions” that are subject to the GLBA like the Company. The United States Congress has also proposed
legislation relating to data privacy and data protection, and the federal government may in the future pass such Jegislation.

In addition, in the European Union (“EU”), privacy law is governed by the General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR?), which is directly binding and
applicable in each EU member state. The GDPR contains enhanced compliance obligations and increased penalties for non-compliance compared to the prior
law governing data privacy in the EU and is regularly enforced by European regulators. Canada is in the process of replacing its federal privacy law, the
Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act, with a new privacy framework that the Company expects will impose additional compliance
obligations on the Company’s Canadian operations.

In October 2023, the CFPB issued a proposed rule regarding personal financial data rights that would apply to financial institutions that offer consumer
deposit accounts and credit card issuers. Under the proposed rule, USBNA would be required to provide consumers and their authorized third parties electronic
access to 24 months of transaction data, certain account information, account balance. upcoming bill information, information to initiate payment to and from
accounts, and the terms and conditions under which an account or credit card was provided. USBNA would be prohibited from imposing any fees or charges
for maintaining or providing access to such data. USBNA would also be obligated to comply with data accuracy, retention and other requirements contained in
the proposed rule. The Company continues to evaluate the proposed rule, and the impact on USBNA and the Company will depend on the final form of any
rulemaking.

Like other lenders, USBNA and other subsidiaries of the Company use consumer reports in their underwriting activities. Use of such information is
regulated under the Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA”), and the FCRA also regulates




reporting information to consumer reporting agencies, prescreening individuals for credit offers, sharing of consumer reports between affiliates, and using
affiliate credit data for marketing purposes. Similar state laws may impose additional requirements on the Company and its subsidiaries. A significant overhaul
of the FCRA is expected to be issued in the first half of 2024, which will impact USBNA and its subsidiaries.

The federal banking regulators, as well as the SEC, CFPB, CFTC, and related self-regulatory organizations, regularly issue guidance on cybersecurity
that is intended to enhance cyber risk management among financial institutions. A financial institution’s management is required to maintain sufficient business
continuity planning processes to ensure the rapid recovery, resumption and maintenance of the institution’s operations after a cybersecurity incident. A financial
institution is also expected to develop appropriate processes 1o enable recovery of data and business operations if the institution or its critical service providers
experience a cybersecurity incident.

In November 2021, the United States federal bank regulatory agencies adopted a rule regarding notification requirements for banking organizations
related to significant computer-security incidents. Under the final rule, which was effective April 1, 2022, a banking organization, such as the Company and
USBNA, is required to notify their primary federal regulator within 36 hours of a computer-security incident that results in actual harm to the confidentiality,
integrity, or availability of an information system or the information that the system processes, stores or transmits, which has materially disrupted or degraded,
or is reasonably likely to materially disrupt or degrade, the banking organization’s ability to deliver services to a material portion of its customer base,
jeopardize the viability of key operations of the banking organization, or impact the stability of the financial sector. Similarly, the Office of the Superintendent
of Financial Institutions in Canada requires Federally Regulated Financial Institutions to report qualifying technology and cybersecurity incidents under the
provisions of the August 13, 2021 Technology and Cyber Security Incident Reporting Advisory.

Consumer Protection USBNA’s retail banking activities are subject to a variety of federal and state statutes and regulations designed to protect
consumers. These laws and regulations require, among other things, disclosures of the cost of credit and terms of deposit accounts, provide substantive
consumer rights, prohibit discrimination in credit transactions, regulate the use of credit report information, provide financial privacy protections, prohibit
unfair, deceptive and abusive practices and subject USBNA to substantial regulatory oversight. Violations of applicable consumer protection laws can result in
significant potential liability from litigation brought by customers, including actual damages, restitution and attomeys’ fees, and may also result in significant
reputational harm. USBNA’s regulators may also seek to enforce consumer protection requirements and obtain these and other remedies, including regulatory
sanctions and civil money penalties.

USBNA and its subsidiaries are subject to supervision and regulation by the CFPB with respect to federal consumer laws. The CFPB has undertaken
numerous rule-making and other injtiatives, including launching an initiative to reduce the amounts and types of fees financial institutions may charge,
including by recently proposing a rule that would significantly reduce the permissible amount of credit card late fees, issuing informal guidance and taking
enforcement actions against certain financial institutions. The CFPB’s rulemaking, examination and enforcement authority has affected and will continue to
affect financial institutions that provide consumer financial products and services, including the Company, USBNA and the Company’s other subsidiaries.
These regulatory activities may limit the types of financial services and products the Company may offer, which in tumn may reduce the Company’s revenues.

Executive and Incentive Compensation Guidelines adopted by the federal banking agencies prohibit excessive compensation as an unsafe and unsound
practice and describe compensation as “excessive” when the amounts paid are unreasonable or disproportionate to the services performed by an executive
officer, employee, director or principal stockholder. The Federal Reserve has issued comprehensive guidance on incentive compensation policies (the
“Incentive Compensation Guidance™) intended to ensure that the incentive compensation policies of banking organizations do not undermine safety and
soundness organizations by encouraging excessive risk-taking. The Incentive Compensation Guidance is based upon the key principles that a banking
organization’s incentive compensation arrangements should (i) provide incentives that do not encourage risk-taking beyond the organization’s ability to
effectively identify and manage risks; (ii) be compatible with effective internal controls and risk management; and (iii) be supported by strong corporate
governance, including active and effective oversight by the organization’s board of directors. The Incentive Compensation Guidance states that enforcement
actions may be taken against a banking organization if its incentive compensation arrangements or related risk-management control or governance processes
pose arisk to the organization’s safety and soundness and the organization is not taking prompt and effective measures to correct the deficiencies.

During 2016, the federal bauk regulatory agencies and the SEC proposed revised rules on incentive-based payment arrangements at specified regulated
entities having at least $1 billion of total assets. These proposed rules have not been finalized.

In October 2022, the SEC adopted a final rule directing national securities exchanges and associations, including the New York Stock Exchange (the
“NYSE”), to implement listing standards that require all listed companies to adopt policies mandating the recovery or “clawback” of excess incentive-based
compensation earned by a current or former executive




officer during the three fiscal years preceding a required accounting restatement, including to correct an error that would result in a material misstatement if the
error were corrected in the current period. The excess compensation would be based on the amount the executive officer would have received had the
incentive-based compensation been determined using the restated financial statements. The NYSE and other exchanges issued proposed standards in February
2023, which were approved by the SEC in June 2023. The final standards became effective on October 2, 2023 and the Company adopted a clawback policy
within 60 days after the NYSE's listing standard became effective, in compliance with the NYSE's listing standard.

Climate-Related Financial Risk Management In October 2023, the United States federal banking agencies issued a set of principles relating to the
management of climate-related financial risks. The principles apply to banking organizations with over $100 billion in total consolidated assets, including the
Company and USBNA. The principles are intended to provide a framework for large banking organizations to guide their efforts to identify, measure, monitor,
and mitigate physical and transition risks associated with climate change. Among other guidance, the principles describe how climate-related financial risks can
be addressed in connection with specific risk categories, including credit risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, and legal and compliance risk.

Other Supervision and Regulation As a public company, the Company is subject to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC thereunder, as administered by the
SEC. As a listed company on the NYSE, the Company is subject to the rules of the NYSE for listed companies.

Capital Covenants

The Company has entered into several transactions involving the issuance of capital securities (“Capital Securities™) by certain Delaware statutory trusts
formed by the Company (the “Trusts™), the issuance by the Company of preferred stock (“‘Preferred Stock™) or the issuance by a subsidiary of USBNA of
preferred stock exchangeable for the Company’s Preferred Stock under certain circumstances (“Exchangeable Preferred Stock™). Simultaneously with the
closing of certain of those transactions, the Company entered into a replacement capital covenant, as amended from time to time (as amended, each, a
“Replacement Capital Covenant” and collectively, the “Replacemnent Capital Covenants™) for the benefit of persons that buy, hold or sell a specified series of
long-term indebtedness of the Company or USBNA (the “Covered Debt™). Each of the Replacement Capital Covenants provides that neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries (including any of the Trusts) will repay, redeem or purchase any of the Preferred Stock, Exchangeable Preferred Stock or the Capital
Securities and the securities held by the Trust (the “Other Securities™), as applicable, on or before the date specified in the applicable Replacement Capital
Covenant, unless the Company has received proceeds from the sale of qualifying securities that (a) have equity-like characteristics that are the same as, or more
equity-like than, the applicable characteristics of the Preferred Stock, the Exchangeable Preferred Stock, the Capital Securities or Other Securities, as
applicable, at the time of repayment, redemption or purchase, and (b) the Company has obtained the prior approval of the Federal Reserve, if such approval is
then required by the Federal Reserve or, in the case of the Exchangeable Preferred Stock, the approval of the OCC.

The Company will provide a copy of any Replacement Capital Covenant to a holder of the relevant Covered Debt upon request. For copies of any of
these documents, holders should write to Investor Relations, U.S. Bancorp, 800 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402, or call (866) 775-9668.




The following table identifies the closing date for each transaction, issuer, series of Capital Securities, Preferred Stock or Exchangeable Preferred Stock
issued in the relevant transaction, Other Securities, if any, and applicable Covered Debt as of February 20, 2024, for those securities that remain outstanding.

Closing Capital Securities, Preferred Stock

Date Issuer or Exchangeable Preferred Stock
— S s e

Other Securities Covered Debt

U.S. Bancorp’s 40,000,000 Depositary Shares ($25 Not Applicable U.S. Bancorp’s 7.50% Subordinated

per Depositary Share) each representing a 1/1000% Debentures due 2026 (CUSIP No.
interest in a share of Series B Non-Cumulative 911596AL8)

Perpetual Preferred Stock

(a) USB Realty Corp. is a subsidiary of USBNA.
(b)  Under certain circumstances, upon the direction of the OCC, each share of USB Realty Corp. s Series A Preferred Stock will be automatically exchanged for one share of
U.S. Bancorp s Series C Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock.

Available Information

U.S. Bancorp’s internet website can be found at www.usbank.com. U.S. Bancorp makes available free of charge on its website, by clicking on “About
us” and then clicking on “Investor relations” and then clicking on "SEC & Other Filings," its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as well as all other
reports filed by U.S. Bancorp with the SEC as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

Additional Information

Additional information in response to this Item 1 can be found in the 2023 Annual Report on pages 56 to 58 under the heading “Line of Business
Financial Review.” That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Information in response to this Item 1A can befound in the 2023 Annual Report on pages 140 to 155 under the heading “Risk Factors.” That information
- is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 1C. Cybersecurity

The Company is committed to managing risks that may impact the Company and incorporating risk considerations into its business activities at all levels,
including strategic planning, risk identification inventory and assessment, and day-to-day business decisions. The Company’s Board of Directors has approved
arisk management framework that establishes governance and risk management requirements for all the Company’s key risk areas and risk-taking activities.
The Board oversees management’s performance relative to the risk management framework and risk appetite. Management is responsible for defining the
various risks facing the Company, formulating risk management policies and procedures, and managing risk exposures on a day-to-day basis. The Company’s
Executive Risk Committee (ERC), which is chaired by the Chief Risk Officer, oversees execution of the risk management framework. The ERC is supported
by management’s senior operating committees, cach responsible for a specified risk category. The Company’s Information Security Risk Committee
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(ISRC), which is co-chaired by the Chief Information Security Officer (CISO) and the Chief Technology Risk Officer, is a senior operating committee under
this risk governance structure and is responsible for the management of information security risk at the Company. The ISRC provides direction and oversight of
the information security risk management framework and corporate control programs of the Company, including significant information security risk events,
and mitigation strategies. Further, the ISRC facilitates communication across business lines to provide for effective and consistent information security risk
identification and control infrastructure to mitigate and manage material information security risks. The ISRC serves as an escalation, decision making, and
approval body for information security risk items, including key policies and programs, issue resolution, emerging risks, and key program adherence. The
ISRC escalates matters as appropriate to executive management, the ERC, which reports to the Board’s Risk Management Committee, or a relevant committee
of the Board. Generally, each of the ERC and ISRC meet at least monthly.

As part of the Company’s risk management framework, risk management programs and processes are in place to incorporate risk considerations into day-
to-day business activities across the Company’s risk categories, business lines, and functions. Risk programs may manage all or certain components of a
particular risk type. The Company’s cybersecurity risk program provides centralized planning and management of related and interdependent work with a focus
on risks from cybersecurity threats. The Company’s cybersecurity risk program is integrated into the Company’s overall business and operational strategies and
requires that the Company allocate appropriate resources to maintain the program.

The Company’s processes for assessing, identifying, and managing material risks from cybersecurity threats is integrated into the Company’s overall risk
govemance and oversight structures through its “three lines of defense model for establishing effective checks and balances within the risk management
framework. In this model, specific to cybersecurity threats, the first line of defense is Information Security Services (ISS), which is responsible for identifying
and implementing cybersecurity controls in accordance with policy requirements and industry best practices, to meet regulatory requirements and to safeguard
the business. The second line of defense, Cybersecurity Risk Oversight within the Company's Operational Risk Management group, provides reporting and
escalation of emerging risks related to cybersecurity and other concemns to senior management, the ERC, the ISRC, other designated senior operating
committees, and the Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors. The third line of defense, the Company’s internal audit function, provides
independent assessment and assurance regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s governance, risk management, and control processes with respect to
cybersecurity threats, and provides challenge and recommendations for improvement.

The Company uses reporting and metrics frameworks and regular intemal and external oversight to assess the health of the cybersecurity risk program.
At the first level, the ISS team identifies, assesses, and manages cybersecurity risk and threats. The Company manages cybersecurity issues and findings
through remediation and/or closure, with escalation processes if an issue or finding cannot be remediated within required timeframes. The Company engages
external assessors, consultants, and auditors to review the Company’s cybersecurity risk program against those of industry peers. The Company also uses
consultants periodically to provide recommendations to improve and enhance the program. Additionally, the Company continually works to align its policies
and practices with industry-accepted information security practices as provided by the National Institute of Standards and Technology Cybersecurity
Framework (NIST CSF), Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (PCI DSS), and other applicable standards, laws, and regulations.

The Company also maintains a third-party risk management program responsible for the oversight of outsourced operations, which enables the Company
to oversee and identify risks related to engaging third-party service providers, including risks from cybersecurity threats to third-party service providers. The
Company conducts due diligence using a risk-based approach in selecting and monitoring third-party service providers. The Company also obtains contractual
assurances from third-party service providers relating to their security responsibilities, controls, reporting, and roles and responsibilities as it pertains to
cybersecurity incident response policies and notification requirements. As appropriate, the Company obtains independent reviews of the third parties’ security
through audit reports and testing and conducts verification and validation with third parties to confirm cybersecurity and information security risks are
appropriately identified, measured, mitigated, monitored, and reported by the third party to the Company.

As part of its responsibility to oversee the management, business, and strategy of the Company, the Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves
the Company’s risk management framework annually through its Risk Management Committee and oversees the Company’s risk management processes by
informing itself about the Company’s key risks and evaluating whether management has reasonable risk management and control processes in place to address
those risks. The Board carries out its risk management oversight responsibilities primarily through its committees. Each Board committee is responsible for
overseeing certain risks under its charter. The Board’s Risk Management Committee, with support from its Cybersecurity and Technology Subcommittee, has
primary oversight responsibility for cybersecurity risk, including risks from any cybersecurity threats. The Risk Management Committee monitors the
Company’s compliance with the risk management framework and risk limits established under the Company’s risk appetite statement approved by the Board.
The Risk Management Committee also oversees the Company’s independent risk management function. The Board’s Risk Management Committee has a
Cybersecurity and Technology Subcommittee that provides dedicated oversight to




cybersecurity risk management and cyber resiliency and certain technology matters. The Risk Management Committee and its Cybersecurity and Technology
Subcommittee receive quarterly reports from management on cybersecurity issues, including cybersecurity threats. The Board’s Risk Management Committee
and Audit Committee also hold a joint meeting annually at which they receive a report from the Company’s CISO on cybersecurity threats facing the Company
and its preparedness to meet and respond to those threats. In addition, the full Board typically holds an annual cybersecurity education session, which features
the perspective of an outside expert on current cybersecurity topics. The Company also typically conducts an annual executive-level cybersecurity exercise to
test its cyber incident response, completeness of playbooks, and communication protocols. This exercise involves Board members, managing committee
members, third-party companies, and regulators as appropriate.

The Company’s risk management framework includes its risk appetite statement, which is approved annually by the Board’s Risk Management
Committee and defines acceptable levels of risk-taking and risk limits and establishes the governance and oversight activities over risk management and
reporting. Management monitors and measures the Company’s risk appetite using a quantitative risk scorecard, which consists of risk appetite metrics and
associated limits reported to the Board’s Risk Management Committee on a quarterly basis. The Company’s risk appetite statement includes specific
information security metrics and associated limits. These limits also inform how matters, including cybersecurity incidents or threats, are escalated to specific
members of management, appropriate senior operating committee (including the ISRC and/or ERC), and/or the Board of Directors or appropriate Board
committee. The Board’s Risk Management Committee oversees the Company’s risk profile relative to its risk appetite and compliance with risk limits.

The members of the Company’s management that are primarily responsible for assessing and managing risks from cybersecurity threats, including
monitoring risk appetite metrics and limits related to cybersecurity, include the Company’s CISO, Chief Risk Officer, and Chief Information and Technology
Officer.

The Company’s CISO is primarily responsible for the implementation of defense capabilities and risk mitigation strategies. The Company’s CISO,
Timothy J. Held, has over 26 years of information technology and cybersecurity experience. He holds the title of Executive Vice President and Chief
Information Security Officer and has been in his role since 2018, having served as the Company’s Deputy CISO from 2015 to 2018 and Head of Cyber
Defense, Threat Intelligence, and Incident Response from 2012 to 2018. The CISO is supported by his direct reports and their teams, many of whom hold
cybersecurity-related certifications.

The Company’s CISO reports to the Vice Chair and Chief Risk Officer, Jodi L. Richard, who has served in that position since October 2018. She served
as Executive Vice President and Chief Operational Risk Officer of the Company from January 2018 until October 2018, having served as Senior Vice President
and Chief Operational Risk Officer from 2014 until January 2018. Prior to that time, Ms. Richard held various senior leadership roles at HSBC from 2003 until
2014, including Executive Vice President and Head of Operational Risk and Internal Control at HSBC North America from 2008 to 2014.

Venkatachari Dilip, the Company’s Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Information and Technology Officer, has oversight of technology-related
risk management issues and controls that align to the NIST CSF. Mr. Dilip previously was an Executive Vice President from September 2018 to April 2023 and
has served as Chief Information and Technology Officer since joining the Company in September 2018. From May 2014 until July 2017, he served as Vice
President at McKinsey Digital where he helped banks accelerate their digital transformation. From April 2009 to September 2013, he served as CEO at
Compass Labs leading an innovative marketing analytics company. From March 2006 until April 2008, he served as Director of Products at Google where he
led product teams for mobile ads and Google Checkout. From March 2004 until March 2006, he served as Vice President of PayPal/eBay and on the Board of
PayPal Europe, where he was responsible for Payments Services, Risk and Fraud Management. Previously, Mr. Dilip co-founded and led startup companies
CashEdge and CommerceSoft from 1996 until 2003.

The CISO and his leadership team generally meet each business day to discuss security item triage and emerging threats and trends identified by the
Threat Intelligence Team. The CISO shares pertinent information from those meetings with the Chief Risk Officer. During a cyber incident, which could
involve the Company or a third-party service provider to the Company, the Company’s Cyber Security Incident Response Team (CSIRT) leads the response and
internal communication. CSIRT manages low and moderate severity incidents, and Enterprise Crisis Management manages high and very high severity
incidents. The risk rating of an incident may change throughout the incident investigation period as new information is learned or the environment changes.
Depending on severity level, CSIRT or Enterprise Crisis Management distributes incident communications to senior management, including the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Board of Directors or appropriate Board committee, and if applicable, the Company’s regulators.

ISS leadership reports prevention, detection, mitigation, and remediation activities through various working groups and committees. Certain working
groups meet with the CISO monthly to review completed risk assessments, and items that require escalation are reported up using the internal committee
structure and ad hoc communications if time sensitive.
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Additionally, working group and committee meetings report up issues to Operational Risk Management, which may decide to open a formal Risk Management
Issue (RMI) based on the severity of the issue or other factors and which are subject to specific governance processes. All security-related RMI remediation
activities are reviewed with the Chief Risk Officer and Chief Information and Technology Officer on a bi-weekly basis.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, the Company has not identified any specific risks from cybersecurity threats that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to affect, the Company’s business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition, other than the risks described under
“Risk Factors — Operations and Business Risk™ in the 2023 Annual Report.

Item 2. Properties

U.S. Bancorp and its significant subsidiaries occupy headquarter offices under a long-term lease in Minneapolis, Minnesota. The Company also leases 5
freestanding operations centers in Kansas City, Little Rock, Atlanta, Minneapolis and Chicago. The Company owns 8 principal operations centers in Cincinnati,
Fargo, Knoxville, Oshkosh, Olathe, Owensboro, Portland and St. Paul. At December 31, 2023, the Company’s subsidiaries owned and operated a total of 1,219
facilities and leased an additional 1,576 facilities. The Company believes its current facilities are adequate to meet its needs. Additional information with
respect to the Company’s premises and equipment is presented in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in the 2023 Annual
Report. That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Information in response to this Item 3 can be found in Note 23 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in the 2023 Annual Report
under the heading, “Litigation and Regulatory Matters.” That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not Applicable.

PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company announced on December 22, 2020 that its Board of Directors had approved an authorization to repurchase $3.0 billion of its common
stock beginning January 1, 2021. The Company suspended all common stock repurchases at the beginning of the third quarter of 2021, except for those done
exclusively in connection with its stock-based compensation programs, due to its acquisition of MUB. The Company will evaluate its share repurchases in
connection with the potential capital requirements given the proposed regulatory capital rules and related landscape. Capital distributions, including dividends
and stock repurchases, are subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors and compliance with regulatory requirements. The following table
provides a detailed analysis of all shares of common stock of the Company purchased by the Company or any affiliated purchaser during the fourth quarter of
2023:

Total Number of

Total Number Average Shares Purchased as Approximate Dollar Value of Shares

of Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly  that May Yet Be Purchased Under

Period Purchased — per Share Announced Program the Program (In Millions)

October 1-31 _ ST TS S T 4381080 e ER T R e
November 1-30 4,183 37.20 4.183 1,330

December 1-31 ; NG B S A9 59906 4531 ' 359226 \ 1314
Total 636,860 @ $41.29 376,860 $1,314

(a) Includes 260,000 shares of common stock purchased, at an average price per share of $36.34, in open-market transactions by USBNA, the Company s banking subsidiary,
in its capacity as trustee of the U.S. Bank 401(k) Savings Plan, which is the Company s employee retirement savings plan.
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Additional Information

Additional information in response to this Item 5 can be found in the 2023 Annual Report on page 139 under the heading “U.S. Bancorp Supplemental
Financial Data (Unaudited).” That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 6. [Reserved]

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Information in response to this Item 7 can be found in the 2023 Annual Report on pages 22 to 58 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis.” That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Information in response to this Item 7A can be found in the 2023 Annual Report on pages 35 to 55 under the heading “Corporate Risk Profile.” That
information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Information in response to this Item 8 can be found in the 2023 Annual Report on pages 64 to 139 under the headings “Report of Management,” “Report
of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” “U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Balance
Sheet,” “U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Statement of Income,” “U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,” “U.S. Bancorp Consolidated
Statement of Shareholders’ Equity,” “U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows,” “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,” “U.S. Bancorp
Consolidated Daily Average Balance Sheet and Related Yields and Rates (Unaudited)” and “U.S. Bancorp Supplemental Financial Data (Unaudited).” That
information is incorporated into this report by reference.

The consolidated financial statements included in the 2023 Annual Report reflect a correction of a transposition error of the previously reported
December 31, 2022 carrying amount of loans in Note 22. The correct amount was reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and other disclosures of the
carrying amount of loans in the Company's previously reported consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022. The
correction in Note 22 had no other impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Infonmation in response to this Iltem 9A can be found in the 2023 Annual Report on page 63 under the heading “Controls and Procedures™ and on pages
64 and 65 under the headings “Report of Management™ and “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.” That information is incorporated into
this report by reference.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

Not Applicable.
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PART IIX

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies to its principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal
accounting officer. The Company’s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct can be found at www.usbank.com by clicking on “About us” and then clicking on
“Investor relations™ and then clicking on “Corporate Governance” and then clicking on “Govermnance documents” and then clicking on “Code of Ethics” and
then clicking on “Code of Ethics and Business Conduct.” The Company intends to satisfy the disclosure requirements under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding
amendments to, or waivers from, certain provisions of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that apply to its principal executive officer, principal financial
officer and principal accounting officer by posting such information on its website, at the address and location specified above.

Information About the Company’s Managing Committee!

Andrew Cecere

Mr. Cecere is Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Cecere, 63, has served as President of U.S. Bancorp since January
2016, Chief Executive Officer since April 2017 and Chairman since April 2018. He also served as Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer from January
2015 to January 2016 and was U.S. Bancorp’s Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer from February 2007 until January 2015. Until that time, he served as
Vice Chairman, Wealth Management and Investment Services, of U.S. Bancorp since the merger of Firstar Corporation and U.S. Bancorp in February 2001.
Previously, he had served as an executive officer of the former U.S. Bancorp, including as Chief Financial Officer from 2000 through 2001.

Souheil S. Badran

Mr. Badran is Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Operations Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Badran, 59, has served in this position since joining
U.S. Bancorp in December 2022. From January 2019 until November 2022, he served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer at
Northwestern Mutual, having also served as Chief Innovation Officer from January 2019 until September 2019. Previously Mr. Badran served as President of
Alibaba’s Alipay business in the Americas from August 2016 until August 2018. From 2015 to 2016, Mr. Badran served as CEQ at Edo Interactive, and from
2011 to 2015, he served as Senior Vice President and General Manager at Digital River.

Elcio R.T. Barcelos

Mr. Barcelos is Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Barcelos, 53, has served in this position since
joining U.S. Bancorp in September 2020. From April 2018 until August 2020, he served as Senior Vice President and Chief People and Places Officer of the
Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae), having served as Senior Vice President, Human Resources of the DXC Technology Company from April
2017 to March 2018. Previously, Mr. Barcelos served as Senior Vice President and Head of Human Resources for the Enterprise Services business of Hewlett
Packard Enterprise Company from June 2015 to April 2017, and in other human resources senior leadership positions at Hewlett-Packard Company and
Hewlett Packard Enterprise Company from July 2009 to June 2015. He previously served in various leadership roles at Wells Fargo and Bank of America.

James L. Chosy
Mr. Chosy is Senior Executive Vice President and General Counsel of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Chosy, 60, has served in this position since March 2013. He
also served as Corporate Secretary of U.S. Bancorp from June 2022 until December 2023 and from March 2013 until April 2016. From 2001 to 2013, he served
as the General Counsel and Secretary of Piper Jaffray Companies. From 1995 to 2001, Mr. Chosy was Vice President and Associate General Counsel of U.S.
Bancorp, having also served as Assistant Secretary of U.S. Bancorp from 1995 through 2000 and as Secretary from 2000 until 2001.

Gregory G. Cunningham
Mr. Cunningham is Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Diversity Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Cunningham, 60, has served in this position since
July 2020. From July 2019 until July 2020, he served as Senior Vice President and Chief Diversity Officer of U.S. Bancorp, having served as Vice President of
Customer Engagement of U.S. Bancorp from October

! This section includes the biographies of the members of the Managing Committee of U.S. Bancorp. Each member of the Managing Committee, except for
Gregory G. Cunningham, Revathi N. Dominski, Stephen L. Philipson and Dominic V. Venturo, is deemed to be an executive officer of U.S. Bancorp.




2015, when he joined U.S. Bancorp, until July 2019. Previously, Mr. Cunningham served in various roles in the marketing department of Target Corporation
from January 1998 until March 2015.

Venkatachari Dilip

Mr. Dilip is Senior Executive Vice President and Chiet Information and Technology Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Dilip, 64, previously was an Executive
Vice President from September 2018 to April 2023 and has served as Chief Information and Technology Officer since September 2018, when he joined U.S.
Bancorp. From May 2014 until July 2017, he served as Vice President at McKinsey Digital where he helped banks accelerate their digital transformation. From
April 2009 to September 2013, he served as CEO at Compass Labs leading an innovative marketing analytics company. From March 2006 until April 2008, he
served as Director of Products at Google where he led product teams for mobile ads and Google Checkout. From March 2004 until March 2006, he served as
Vice President of PayPal/eBay and on the Board of PayPal Europe, where he was responsible for Payments Services, Risk and Fraud Management. Previously,
Mr. Dilip co-founded and led startup companies CashEdge and CommerceSoft from 1996 until 2003.

Terrance R. Dolan
Mr. Dolan is Vice Chair and Chief Administration Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Dolan, 62, has served in this position since September 2023. From
August 2016 to August 2023, he served as Vice Chair and Chief Financial Officer of U.S. Bancorp. From July 2010 to July 2016, he served as Vice Chair,
Wealth Management and Investment Services, of U.S. Bancorp. From September 1998 to July 2010, Mr. Dolan served as U.S. Bancorp’s Controller. He
additionally held the title of Executive Vice President from January 2002 until June 2010 and Senior Vice President from September 1998 until January 2002.

Revathi N. Dominski
Ms. Dominski is Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Social Responsibility Officer of U.S. Bancorp and President of the U.S. Bank Foundation.
Ms. Dominski, 53, has served as Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Social Responsibility Officer since April 2023. She joined U.S. Bancorp in June
2015 as President of the U.S. Bank Foundation and Senior Vice President of Corporate Social Responsibility. Before joining U.S. Bancorp, Ms. Dominski spent
21 years with Target Corporation in leadership positions including sourcing, merchandising, merchandise planning and operations before moving to Target's
Corporate Social Responsibility team, where she served as Senior Director of Education and Community Relations.

Gunjan Kedia
Ms. Kedia is Vice Chair, Wealth, Corporate, Commercial and Institutional Banking, of U.S. Bancorp. Ms. Kedia, 53, has served in this position since
June 2023. From December 2016 to June 2023, she served as Vice Chair, Wealth Management and Investment Services, of U.S. Bancorp. From October 2008
until May 2016, she served as Executive Vice President of State Street Corporation where she led the core investment servicing business in North and South
America and served as a member of State Street’s management committee, its senior most strategy and policy committee. Previously, Ms. Kedia was an
Executive Vice President of global product management at Bank of New York Mellon from 2004 to 2008 and a Partner and associate at McKinsey from 1996
to 2004.

Shailesh M. Kotwal
Mr. Kotwal is Vice Chair, Payment Services, of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Kotwal, 59, has served in this position since joining U.S. Bancorp in March 2015.
From July 2008 until May 2014, he served as Executive Vice President of TD Bank Group with responsibility for retai! banking products and services and as
Chair of its enterprise payments council. From 2006 until 2008, he served as President, International, of eFunds Corporation. Previously, Mr. Kotwal served in
various leadership roles at American Express Company from 1989 until 2006, including responsibility for operations in North and South America, Europe and
the Asia-Pacific regions.

Stephen L. Philipson

Mr. Philipson is Senior Executive Vice President and Head of Global Markets and Specialized Finance of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Philipson, 45, has served in
this position since April 2023. From October 2017 to April 2023, he served as head of Fixed Income and Capital Markets. Previously, he led Credit &
Municipal Fixed Income at U.S. Bank and, prior to that, held roles in fixed income and capital markets at Wachovia/Wells Fargo Securities and Morgan
Stanley.

Jodi L. Richard

Ms. Richard is Vice Chair and Chief Risk Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Ms. Richard, 55, has served in this position since October 2018. She served as
Executive Vice President and Chief Operational Risk Officer of U.S. Bancorp from January




2018 until October 2018, having served as Senior Vice President and Chief Operational Risk Officer from 2014 until January 2018. Prior to that time, Ms.
Richard held various senior leadership roles at HSBC from 2003 until 2014, including Executive Vice President and Head of Operational Risk and Internal
Control at HSBC North America from 2008 to 2014. Ms. Richard started her career at the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency in 1990 as a national bank
examiner.

Mark G. Runkel
Mr. Runkel is Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Transformation Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Runkel, 47, has served in this position since
August 2021. From December 2013 to August 2021, he served as Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer. From February 2011 until
December 2013, he served as Senior Vice President and Credit Risk Group Manager of U.S. Bancorp Retail and Payment Services Credit Risk Management,
having served as Senior Vice President and Risk Manager of U.S. Bancorp Retail and Small Business Credit Risk Management from June 2009 until February
2011. From March 2005 until May 2009, he served as Vice President and Risk Manager of U.S. Bancorp.

John C. Stern
Mr. Stern is Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Stern, 46, has served as Senior Executive Vice President
since April 2023 and Chief Financial Officer since September 2023. He also served as Head of Finance from May 2023 to August 2023. He served as
Executive Vice President from July 2013 through April 2023. From May 2021 until May 2023, he served as President of the Global Corporate Trust and
Custody business of U.S. Bancorp. Previously, he served as Treasurer from July 2013 to May 2021 and has held various other leadership positions in his nearly
25 years at U.S. Bancorp.

Dominic V. Venturo
Mr. Venturo is Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Digital Officer of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Venturo, 57, has served in this position since July 2020.
From January 2015 until July 2020, he served as Executive Vice President and Chief Innovation Officer of U.S. Bancorp, having served as Senior Vice
President and Chief Innovation Officer of U.S. Bancorp Payment Services from January 2010 until January 2015. From January 2007 to December 2009, Mr.
Venturo served as Senior Vice President and Chief Innovation Officer of U.S. Bancorp Retail Payment Solutions. Prior to that time, he served as Senior Vice
President and held product management positions in various U.S. Bancorp Payment Services business lines from December 1998 to December 2006.

Timothy A. Welsh

Mr. Welsh is Vice Chair, Consumer and Business Banking, of U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Welsh, 58, has served in this position since March 2019. Prior to that, he
served as Vice Chair, Consumer Banking Sales and Support since joining U.S. Bancorp in July 2017. From July 2006 until June 2017, he served as a Senior
Partner at McKinsey & Company where he specialized in financial services and the consumer experience. Previously, Mr. Welsh served as a Partner at
McKinsey from 1999 to 2006.

Additional Information

Additional information in response to this Item 10 can be found in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Proposal 1 — Election of directors,” “Other
matters — Delinquent Section 16(a) reports,” “Corporate governance — Committee responsibilities” and “Corporate governance — Committee member
qualifications.” That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation

Information required to be furnished in response to this Item 11 can be found in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Compensation discussion and
analysis,” “Compensation Committee report,” “Corporate governance — Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” “Executive
compensation” and “Director compensation.” That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information in response to this Item 12 can be found in the Proxy Statement under the headings "Equity compensation plan information" and “Security
ownership of certain beneficial owners and management.” That information is incorporated into this report by reference.

24




Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information in response to this Item 13 can be found in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Corporate governance — Director independence,”
“Corporate Governance — Committee member qualifications™ and “Certain relationships and related transactions.” That information is incorporated into this
report by reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information in response to this Item 14 can be found in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Audit Committee report and payment of fees to auditor
— Fees to independent auditor” and “Audit Committee report and payment of fees to auditor — Administration of engagement of independent auditor.” That
information is incorporated into this report by reference.

PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

List of documents filed as part of this report:

1. Financial Statements
« Report of Management
* Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
» Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on the Financial Statements
+ U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2023 and 2022
» U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Statement of Income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023
» U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023
* U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023
» U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023
» Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
» U.S. Bancorp Consolidated Daily Average Balance Sheet and Related Yields and Rates (Unaudited)
» U.S. Bancorp Supplemental Financial Data (Unaudited)

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules for the Company have been included in the consolidated financial statements or the related footnotes, or are either
inapplicable or not required.

3. Exhibits

Shareholders may obtain a copy of any of the exhibits to this report upon payment of a fee covering the Company’s reasonable expenses in furnishing the
exhibits. You can request exhibits by writing to Investor Relations, U.S. Bancorp, 800 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402.

31 Restated Certificate of Incorporation. Filed as Exhibit 3.4 to Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2022.
M3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws, Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed on October 19, 2023,
4.1 Pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii)(A) of Regulation S-K, copies of instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt are not filed.

U.S. Bancorp agrees to furnish a copy thereof to the SEC upon request.




42
M10.0

MD10.1(a)

ODy0.1(b)
H2y0.2
02103
MDB)0.4
MD10.5(a)

MD10.5b)
D1.6

M@10.7(a)
M®10.7(b)

1®10.8(a)
MD10.8(b)
M@10.8(c)
W710.9(a)
(DD10.9(b)

M@190.10
M@10.11

M@10.12
MD10.13

N D10.14

Description of U.S. Bancorp’s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 3, 2023, by and between U.S. Bancorp and MUFG Bank, 1.td. Filed
as Exhibit 10,1 to Form 8-K i n August 3, 2023.

1L.S. Bancorp 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.
Amendment No. | to U.S. Bancorp 2001 Sto
11.8. Bancorp Annual Executive Incentive Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on January 16, 2019.

U.S. Bancorp Executive Deferral Plan, as amended. Filed as Exhibit 10.7 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.
LS. Bank Non-Qualified Retirement Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2020.

U.S. Bancorp Executive Employees Deferred Compensation Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.18 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003. |

2011 Amendment of U.S. Bancorp Executive Employees Deferred Compensation Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.9(b)_to Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011,

U.S. Bank Executive Employees Deferred Compensation Plan (2003 Statement). Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-g filed on November 2,
2022.

U.S. Bancorp Qutside Directors Deferred Compensation Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.19 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

2011 Amendment of U.S. Bancorp Outside Directors Deferred Compensation Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.11(b)_ to Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011,

U.S. Bank Outside Directors Deferred Compensation Plan (2005 Statement). Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on December 21,
2005,

year ended December 31, 2002.

Amendment of the [ Bank Qutside Directors Deferred Compensati 2005 Statement), Filed as Exhibit 10.3(b).to Form 8-K
d on January 7, 2009.

Second Amendment of the U.S. Bank Outside Directors Deferred Compensation Plan (2003 Statement). Filed as Exhibit 10.12(c) to Form

10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under U.S. Bancory 1 Stock Incentive Plan, Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2004,

Form of Amendment to Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreements under U.S. Bancorp 2001 Stock Incentive Plan dated as of
December 31, 2008. Filed as Exhibit 10.5(b)_to Form 8-K filed on January 7, 2009.

U.S. Bancorp Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2010.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers (as approved January 16, 2012) under U.S. Bancorp Amended and
Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on January 18, 2012.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers (as approved November 14, 2012) under 1.S. Bancorp Amended
and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on November 19, 2012.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers (as approved December 9, 2013) under 1.8, Bancorp Amended
and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2013.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers under 1.S. Bancorp Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive
Plan to be used atter December 31, 2014, Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on December 31, 2014,
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Form of 2007 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under U.S. Bancorp Amended and Restated 2007
Stock Incentive Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q/A for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2007.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under U.S. Bancorp Amended and Restated 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan to be used after December 31, 2008, Filed ag Exhibit 10.11(a).to Farm 8-K filed on January 7. 2009.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Emplovee Directors under U.S. Bancorp Amended and Restated 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan to be used after December 31, 2013. Filed as Exhibit 10.37 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

1L.S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on April 23, 2015.

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (in use for grants made
through 2016). Filed as Exhibit 10.4 ta Form 8-K filed on April 23, 2015.

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 20135 Stock Incentive Plan (used for grants made after
January 1, 2017). Filed as Exhibit 10.44 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under U,S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (in use for
grants made through 2016). Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on April 23, 2015.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under U.S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used for
grants made after January 1, 2017), Filed as Exhibit 10.42 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (used
for grants made during 2019), Filed as Exhibit 10.34 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Baneorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used for grants
made January 1, 2018 — June 30, 2018). Filed as Exhibit 10.40 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 20135 Stock Incentive Plan (used for grants
made July 1, 2018 — December 31, 2019). Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018.

Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancarp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used
for grants made during 2020), Filed as Exhibit 10.36 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used for grants
made during 2020), Filed as Exhibit 10.37 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used
for grants made after January 1, 2021). Filed as Exhibit 10.30 to Form_10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2020.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used for grants
made after January 1, 2021). Filed as Exhibit 10.31 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used
for grants made after January 1, 2024).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Executive Officers under U.S. Bancorp 2015 Stock Incentive Plan (used for grants
made after January 1, 2024).

2023 Annual Report, pages 21 through 158.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP,
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24 Power of Attorney.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

97 .S, Bancorp Incentive-Based Compensation Recovery Policy, dated as of December 1, 2023.

101 The following financial statements from the Company’s Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2023, formatted in Inline XBRL:

(i) Consolidated Balance Sheet, (ii) Consolidated Statement of Income, (jii) Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, (iv)
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity, (v) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, tagged as blocks of text and including detailed tags.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document and included in Exhibit 101).

(1)  Exhibit has been previously filed with the SEC and is incorporated herein as an exhibit by reference to the prior filing.
(2) Management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

(3) Certain appendices have been omitted. The Company will furnish copies of any such appendix to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission upon its
request.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary
Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
February 20, 2024, on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

U.S. BANCORP

By /s/ ANDREW CECERE

Andrew Cecere
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below on February 20, 2024, by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated.

Signature anil Title

/s/ ANDREW CECERE

Andrew Cecere,

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, Director
(principal executive officer)

/s/ JOHN C. STERN

John C. Stern,

Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

/s/ LISA R. STARK

Lisa R. Stark,

Executive Vice President and Controller
(principal accounting officer)

WARNER L. BAXTER*

Wamer L. Baxter, Director

DOROTHY J. BRIDGES*

Dorothy J. Bridges, Director

ELIZABETH L. BUSE*
Elizabeth L. Buse, Director

ALAN B. COLBERG*
Alan B. Colberg, Director

KIMBERLY N. ELLISON-TAYLOR*

Kimberly N. Ellison-Taylor, Director

KIMBERLY J. HARRIS*

Kimberly J. Harris, Director

ROLAND A. HERNANDEZ*

Roland A. Hernandez, Director

RICHARD P. MCKENNEY*
Richard P, McKenney, Director
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YUsUF I. MEHDI*
Yusuf I. Mehdi, Director

LORETTA E. REYNOLDS*

Loretta E. Reynolds, Director

JOBN P. WIEHOFF*
John P. Wiehoff, Director

SCoTT W. WINE*
Scott W. Wine, Director

Andrew Cecere, by signing his name hereto, does hereby sign this document on behalf of each of the above named directors of the registrant pursuant to
powers of attorney duly executed by such persons.

Dated: February 20, 2024

By: /s/ ANDREW CECERE

Andrew Cecere
Attomey-In-Fact
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Exhibit 4.2

DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT’S SECURITIES
REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

U.S. Bancorp (“USB") has registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), (1) its common stock, (2) depositary shares representing shares of Series A preferred stock, (3) depositary shaves representing
shares of Series B preferred stock, (4) depositary shares representing shaves of Series K preferred stock, (35) depositary shares
representing shares of Series L preferred stock, (6) depositary shares representing shares of Series M preferred stock, (7) depositary
shares representing shares of Series O preferred stock and (8) its 0.850% Medium-Term Notes, Series X (Senior), due June 7, 2024.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following description of the capital stock of USB and certain other matters does not purport to be complete and is
subject, in all respects, to the provisions of the restated certificate of incorporation (the “Certificate of Incorporation”) and
amended and restated bylaws (the “Bylaws”’) of USB, as well as applicable Delaware law and applicable provisions of the
Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act (the “LIBOR Act”) and implementing rules thereunder issued by the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System (the “LIBOR Rule”). The following description is qualified by reference to the Certificate of
Incorporation, the certificate of designations for each series of preferred stock of USB and the Bylaws, copies of which are
incorporated by reference as exhibits to USB s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Authorized Capital Stock

The authorized capital stock of USB consists of 4,000,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share
(*Common Stock™), and 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share (“Preferred Stock”). As of December 31,
2023, there were 1,557,993,055 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding and 243,510 shares of Preferred Stock issued and
outstanding, of which:

* 20,010 were designated as Series A Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock™),
12,510 of which were issued and.outstanding;

* 40,000 were designated as Series B Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred Stock”),
40,000 of which were issued and outstanding;

* 40,000 were designated as Series ] Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series J Preferred Stock™),
40,000 of which were issued and outstanding;

= 23,000 were designated as Series K Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series K Preferred Stock”),
23,000 of which were issued and outstanding;

* 20,000 were designated as Series L Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series L Preferred Stock™),
20,000 of which were issued and outstanding;




* 30,000 were designated as Series M Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series M Preferred Stock™),
30,000 of which were issued and outstanding;

* 60,000 were designated as Series N Fixed Rate Reset Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series N
Preferred Stock™), 60,000 of which were issued and outstanding; and

* 20,000 were designated as Series O Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series O Preferred Stock”),
18,000 of which were issued and outstanding.

All outstanding shares of USB’s capital stock are fully paid and non-assessable.
Common Stock

Holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share. Unless a greater number of affirmative votes is
required by the Certificate of Incorporation, the Bylaws, the rules or regulations of any stock exchange on which the Common Stock
is traded, or as otherwise required by law or pursuant to any regulation applicable to USB, if a quorum exists at any meeting of
stockholders, stockholders may take action on all matters, other than the election of directors, by a majority of the voting power of
the stock present, in person or by proxy, at the meeting and entitled to vote on the matter. A nominee for director will be elected if
the votes cast for such nominee’s election exceed the votes cast against such nominee’s election; provided, however, that if USB’s
board of directors determines that the number of nominees for director exceeds the number of directors to be elected at such meeting
by the date that is 10 days prior to the date that USB first mails its notice of meeting for such meeting to the stockholders, each of
the directors to be elected at such meeting will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at such meeting assuming a quorum is
present. Holders of shares of Common Stock do not have the right to cumulate their votes in the election of directors.

Subject to the prior or equal rights, if any, of any series of Preferred Stock outstanding, the holders of Common Stock are
entitled to such dividends as may from time to time be declared by USB’s board of directors from any funds legally available for
dividends. USB is subject to varjous general regulatory policies and requirements relating to the payment of dividends on its capital
stock, including requirements to maintain adequate capital above regulatory minimums. The Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board”) is authorized to determine, under certain circumstances relating to the financial
condition of a bank holding company, such as USB, that the payment of dividends would be an unsafe or unsound practice and to
prohibit payment thereof. In addition, USB is subject to Delaware state laws relating to the payment of dividends.

Holders of shares of Common Stock do not have any preemptive right to purchase or subscribe for any additional securities
of USB.

In the event of liquidation of USB, after the payment or provision for payment of all debts and liabilities and subject to the
prior or equal rights, if any, of the Preferred Stock of any and all outstanding series, the holders of Common Stock will be entitled to
share ratably in the remaining assets of USB. Shares of USB Common Stock are fully paid and non-assessable.




The Common Stock has no conversion rights.

The transfer agent and registrar for USB Common Stock is Computershare, Inc. USB’s Common Stock is listed on the NYSE
under the symbol “USB.”

Preferred Stock
General

USB’s board of directors or a duly authorized committee thereof has the authority, without further action by USB’s
stockholders, unless action is required by applicable laws or regulations or by the terms of any Preferred Stock, to provide for the
issuance of Preferred Stock in one or more series and to fix the voting rights, designations, preferences, and relative, participating,
optional or other special rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, by adopting a resolution or resolutions creating
and designating such series.

The rights of holders of Common Stock will be subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of holders of any
Preferred Stock. Any issuance of Preferred Stock may adversely affect the interests of holders of the Common Stock by limiting the
control which such holders may exert by exercise of their voting rights, by subordinating their rights in liquidation to the rights of
the holders of the Preferred Stock, and otherwise.

As of December 31, 2023, the following depositary shares representing shares of Preferred Stock have been registered
pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act:

* Depositary Shares each representing a 1/100th interest in a share of Series A Preferred Stock;

+ Depositary Shares each representing a 1/1,000" interest in a share of Series B Preferred Stock;

* Depositary Shares each representing a 1/1,000th interest in a share of Series K Preferred Stock;

* Depositary Shares each representing a 1/1,000th interest in a share of Series L Preferred Stock;

* Depositary Shares each representing a 1/1,000th interest in a share of Series M Preferred Stock; and
* Depositary Shares, each representing a 1/1,000th interest in a share of Series O Preferred Stock.

The depositary shares representing the Series J Preferred Stock and the Series N Preferred Stock described herein have not
been registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act.

Series A Preferred Stock
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General — The depositary is the sole holder of the Series A Preferred Stock, as described below under the section entitled
“—Description of Depositary Shares,” and all references herein to the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock mean the depositary.
However, the holders of depositary shares will be entitled, through the depositary, to exercise the rights and preferences of the
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock, as described below under “—Description of Depositary Shares.” The holders of the Series A
Preferred Stock have no preemptive rights with respect to any shares of USB’s capital stock or any of its other securities convertible
into or carrying rights or options to purchase any such capital stock.

The holders of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive non-cumulative cash dividends when, as and if declared
out of assets legally available for payment of dividends. In the event USB does not declare dividends or does not pay dividends in
full on the Series A Preferred Stock on any date on which dividends are due, then such unpaid dividends will not cumulate and will
no longer accrue and be payable.

The Series A Preferred Stock is perpetual and will not be convertible into shares of USB’s Common Stock or any other class
or series of USB’s capital stock, and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other obligation for their repurchase or retirement.

Rank — With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series A Preferred Stock ranks equally
with the Series B Preferred Stock, the Series I Preferred Stock, the Series K Preferred Stock, the Series L Preferred Stock, the Series
M Preferred Stock, the Series N Preferred Stock and the Series O Preferred Stock and with any future class or series of USB’s
capital stock that ranks on a par with the Series A Preferred Stock in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets on
USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up. Such capital stock is referred to as “Parity Stock.” With respect to the payment of
dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series A Preferred Stock ranks senior to USB’s Common Stock and any other future
class or series of USB’s capital stock over which the Series A Preferred Stock has preference or priority in the payment of dividends
or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up. USB’s Common Stock and any such capital stock are
referred to as “Junior Stock.” USB may not issue any class or series of capital stock having a preference or priority in the payment of
dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up over the Series A Preferred Stock without
the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least 66-2/3% of all of the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock and all other
Parity Stock, at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series.

In particular, during a dividend period (as defined below) and subject to certain exceptions, no dividend will be paid or
declared and no distribution will be made on any Junior Stock, other than a dividend payable solely in Junior Stock, no shares of
Junior Stock may be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB, directly or indirectly (other than as a
result of reclassification of Junior Stock for or into Junior Stock, or the exchange or conversion of one share of Junior Stock for or
into another share of Junior Stock, and other than through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other
shares of Junior Stock), nor will any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the




redemption of any such securities by USB, and no shares of Parity Stock may be purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for
consideration by USB otherwise than pursuant to pro rata offers to purchase all, or a pro rata portion, of the Series A Preferred Stock
and such Parity Stock except by conversion into or exchange for Junior Stock, unless full dividends for such dividend period on all
outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set aside.

Dividends — Dividends on shares of the Series A Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. Holders of the Series A Preferred
Stock will be entitled to receive, if, when and as declared by USB’s board of directors or a duly authorized committee of the board,
out of assets legally available for the payment of dividends under Delaware law, non-cumulative cash dividends payable quarterly in
arrears on each January 15, April 15, July 15 or October 15 (or, if such day is not a business day, the next business day). The period
from and including the date of issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock or any dividend payment date to but excluding the next
dividend payment date is referred to as a “dividend period.” Dividends on each share of Series A Preferred Stock will accrue on the
liquidation preference amount of $100,000 per share at a rate per annum equal to the greater of (i) three-month LIBOR! (computed
as provided below) plus 1.02% or (ii) 3.50%. In the case that any date on which dividends are payable on the Series A Preferred
Stock is not a business day, then payment of the dividend payable on that date will be made on the next succeeding day that is a
business day. However, no interest or other payment will be paid in respect of the delay. The record date for payment of dividends on
the Series A Preferred Stock will be the last day of the immediately preceding calendar month during which the dividend payment
date falls. The amount of dividends payable for any dividend period will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year and the number
of days actually elapsed. For purposes of the Series A Preferred Stock, a “business day” means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday,
Thursday or Friday on which banking institutions in Minneapolis, Minnesota, New York, New York or Wilmington, Delaware are
not authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close.

For any dividend period, three-month LIBOR will be determined by the calculation agent on the second London Banking
Day immediately preceding the first day of such dividend period in the following manner:

* Three-month LIBOR will be the rate (expressed as a percentage per annum) for deposits in U.S. dollars for a three-month
period commencing on the first day of a dividend period that appears on Reuters Screen LIBORO1 Page as of 11:00 a.m.
(London time) on the second London Banking Day preceding the first day of that dividend period.

+ Ifthe rate described above does not appear on Reuters Screen LIBORO1, three-month LIBOR will be determined on the
basis of the rates at which deposits in U.S. dollars for a three-month period commencing on the first day of that dividend
period and in a princjpal amount of not less than $1,000,000 are offered to prime banks in the London

! Following the cessation of representative three-month LIBOR, after June 30, 2023, this three-month LIBOR rate transitioned to three-month CME Term
SOFR plus a tenor spread adjustment of 0.26161% in accordance with the LIBOR Act and LIBOR Rule.




interbank market by four major banks in the London interbank market selected by USB, at approximately 11:00 a.m.,
London time, on the second London Banking Day preceding the first day of that dividend period. U.S. Bank National
Association, as Calculation Agent for the Series A Preferred Stock, will request the principal London office of each of such
banks to provide a quotation of its rate. If at least two such quotations are provided, three-month LIBOR with respect to that
dividend period will be the arithmetic mean (rounded upward if necessary to the nearest .00001 of 1%) of such quotations.

+ If fewer than two quotations are provided, three-month LIBOR with respect to that dividend period will be the arithmetic
mean (rounded upward if necessary to the nearest .00001 of 1%) of the rates quoted by three major banks in New York, New
York, selected by the Calculation Agent, at approximately 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the first day of that dividend
period for loans in U.S. dollars to leading European banks for a three-month period commencing on the first day of that
dividend period and in a principal amount of not less than $1,000,000.

» Ifthe banks selected by the Calculation Agent to provide quotations are not quoting as described above, three-month LIBOR
for that dividend period will be the same as three-month LIBOR as determined for the previous dividend period.

The calculation agent’s establishment of three-month LIBOR and calculation of the amount of dividends for each dividend
period will be on file at USB’s principal offices, will be made available to any holder of Series A Preferred Stock upon request and
will be final and binding in the absence of manifest error.

“London Banking Day” means any day on which commercial banks are open for general business (including dealings in
deposits in U.S. dollars) in London.

“Reuters Screen LIBORO1 Page” means the display designated on the Reuters 3000 Xtra (or such other page as may replace
that page on that service or such other service as may be nominated by the British Bankers’ Association for the purpose of displaying
London interbank offered rates for U.S. dollar deposits).

The right of holders of the Series A Preferred Stock to receive dividends is non-cumulative. If USB’s board of directors does
not declare a dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock or declares less than a full dividend in respect of any dividend period, the
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock will have no right to receive any dividend or a full dividend, as the case may be, for that
dividend period, and USB will have no obligation to pay a dividend or to pay full dividends for that dividend period, whether or not
dividends are declared and paid for any future dividend period with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, Junior
Stock or any other class or series of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock.

When dividends are not paid in full upon the Series A Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock, dividends upon that stock
will be declared on a proportional basis so that the




amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that accrued dividends for the current dividend period
per share on the Series A Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any accumulations, on such Parity Stock, bear to each
other. No interest will be payable in respect of any dividend payment on the Series A Preferred Stock that may be in arrears.

Redemption — The Series A Preferred Stock is not subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar
provisions.

So long as full dividends on all outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock for the then-current dividend period have
been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof is set aside, and subject to receipt of the regulatory approvals
discussed below, USB may redeem the Series A Preferred Stock in whole or in part at any time, at a redemption price equal to
$100,000 per share plus dividends that have been declared but not paid plus accrued and unpaid dividends for the then current
dividend period to the redemption date.

If shares of the Series A Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption will be given by first class mail to the
holders of record of the Series A Preferred Stock to be redeemed, mailed not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption thereof (provided that, if the depositary shares representing the Series A Preferred Stock are held in book-
entry form through DTC, USB may give such notice in any manner permitted by the DTC). Each notice of redemption will include a
statement setting forth: (i) the redemption date, (ii) the number of shares of the Series A Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less
than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder, (iii) the
redemption price, (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing shares of Series A Preferred Stock are to be surrendered
for payment of the redemption price and (v) that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on the redemption date.
If notice of redemption of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock has been duly given and if the funds necessary for such redemption
have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock so called for redemption, then, on
and after the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on such shares of Series A Preferred Stock, such shares of Series A
Preferred Stock will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the right to
receive the redemption price.

In case of any redemption of only part of the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be
redeemed will be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as USB may determine to be fair and equitable.

Under the Federal Reserve Board’s risk-based capital guidelines applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of
the Series A Preferred Stock is subject to prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board.

Rights Upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up — In the event of USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock at the time




outstanding will be entitled to receive a liquidating distribution in the amount of the liquidation preference of $100,000 per share,
plus any authorized, declared and unpaid dividends for the then-current dividend period to the date of liquidation, out of USB’s
assets legally available for distribution to USB’s stockholders, before any distribution is made to holders of USB’s Common Stock
or any Junior Stock and subject to the rights of the holders of any class or series of securities ranking senior to or on parity with the
Series A Preferred Stock upon liquidation and the rights of USB’s depositors and other creditors.

If the amounts available for distribution upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up are not sufficient to satisfy the
full liquidation rights of all the outstanding Series A Preferred Stock and all stock ranking equal to the Series A Preferred Stock, then
the holders of each series of Preferred Stock will share ratably in any distribution of assets in proportion to the full respective
preferential amount to which they are entitled. After the full amount of the liquidation preference is paid, the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of USB’s assets.

For such purposes, USB’s consolidation or merger with or into any other entity, the consolidation or merger of any other
entity with or into USB, or the sale of all or substantially all of USB’s property or business will not be deemed to constitute USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Voting Rights — Except as provided below, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock will have no voting rights.

Whenever dividends on any shares of the Series A Preferred Stock or any other class or series of Parity Stock have not been
declared and paid for an amount equal to six or more quarterly dividend periods, whether consecutive or not (a “Nonpayment”), the
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock
having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) will be entitled to vote as a single class for the election of a total of two additional
members of USB’s board of directors (the “Preferred Directors”), provided that the election of any such directors will not cause USB
to violate the corporate governance requirement of the New York Stock Exchange (or any other exchange on which USB’s securities
may be listed) that listed companies must have a majority of independent directors and provided further that USB’s board of
directors will at no time include more than two Preferred Directors. In that event, the number of directors on USB’s board of
directors will automatically increase by two and, at the request of any holder of Series A Preferred Stock, a special meeting of the
holders of Series A Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series A Preferred
Stock as to payment of dividends and for which dividends have not been paid, will be called for the election of the two directors
(unless such request is received less than 90 days before the date fixed for the next annual or special meeting of the stockholders, in
which event such election will be held at such next annual or special meeting of stockholders), followed by such election at each
subsequent annual meeting. These voting rights will continue until full dividends have been paid regularly on the shares of the Series
A Preferred Stock and any other




class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series A Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends for at least four
consecutive dividend periods following the Nonpayment.

If and when full dividends have been regularly paid for at least four consecutive dividend periods following a Nonpayment
on the Series A Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Parity Stock, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock will be
divested of the foregoing voting rights (subject to revesting in the event of each subsequent Nonpayment) and the term of office of
each Preferred Director so elected will terminate and the number of directors on USB’s board of directors will automatically
decrease by two. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time without cause by the holders of record of a majority of the
outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred
Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) when they have the voting rights described above. So long as a Nonpayment
continues, any vacancy in the office of a Preferred Director (other than prior to the initial election of the Preferred Directors) may be
filled by the written consent of the Preferred Director remaining in office, or if none remains in office, by a vote of the holders of the
outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other class of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock
having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders. The Preferred Directors
will each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter.

If the holders of Series A Preferred Stock become entitled to vote for the election of directors, the Series A Preferred Stock
may be considered a class of voting securities under interpretations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. As a result, certain
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock may become subject to regulations under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as
amended (the “Bank Holding Company Act”) and/or certain acquisitions of the Series A Preferred Stock may be subject to prior
approval by the Federal Reserve Board.

So long as any shares of Series A Preferred Stock remain outstanding:

+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock and all
other Parity Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series, will be required to issue, authorize
or increase the authorized amount of, or to issue or authorize any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the
right to purchase, any class or series of stock ranking senior to the Series A Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock with
respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and

» the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock at the
time outstanding, voting separately as a class, will be required to amend the provisions of USB’s Certificate of Incorporation
or the Certificate of Designations of the Series A Preferred Stock or any other series of Preferred Stock so as to materially
and adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the




Series A Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; provided, however, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued
Series A Preferred Stock or authorized Preferred Stock or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued
amount, of other series of Preferred Stock and/or Junior Stock will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences,
privileges or rights of the Series A Preferred Stock.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would
otherwise be required will be effected, all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock have been redeemed or called for
redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of the Series A
Preferred Stock to effect such redemption.

Series B Preferred Stock

General — The depositary is the sole holder of the Series B Preferred Stock, as described below under the section entitled
“—Description of Depositary Shares,” and all references herein to the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock mean the depositary.
However, the holders of depositary shares will be entitled, through the depositary, to exercise the rights and preferences of the
holders of the Series B Preferred Stock, as described below under ““—Description of Depositary Shares.” The holders of the Series B
Preferred Stock have no preemptive rights with respect to any shares of USB’s capital stock or any of its other securities convertible
into or carrying rights or options to purchase any such capital stock.

The holders of Series B Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive non-cumulative cash dividends when, as and if declared
out of assets legally available for payment of dividends. In the event USB does not declare dividends or does not pay dividends in
full on the Series B Preferred Stock on any date on which dividends are due, then such unpaid dividends will not cumulate and will
no longer accrue and be payable.

The Series B Preferred Stock is perpetual and will not be convertible into shares of USB’s Common Stock or any other class
or series of USB’s capital stock, and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other obligation for their repurchase or retirement.

Rank — With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series B Preferred Stock ranks equally
with the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series J Preferred Stock, the Series K Preferred Stock, the Series L Preferred Stock, the Series
M Preferred Stock, the Series N Preferred Stock and the Series O Preferred Stock and with any future class or series of USB’s
capital stock that ranks on a par with the Series B Preferred Stock in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets on
USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series B
Preferred Stock ranks senior to USB’s Common Stock and any other future class or series of USB’s capital stock over which the
Series B Preferred Stock has preference or priority in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation,
dissolution or winding up. USB may not issue any class of series of capital stock having a preference or priority in the payment of
dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up over the Series B
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Preferred Stock without the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least 66-2/3% of all of the shares of the Series B
Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock, at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series.

In particular, during a dividend period and subject to certain exceptions, no dividend will be paid or declared and no
distribution will be made on any Junior Stock, other than a dividend payable solely in Junior Stock, no shares of Junior Stock may be
repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB, directly or indirectly (other than as a result of
reclassification of Junior Stock for or into Junior Stock, or the exchange or conversion of one share of Junior Stock for or into
another share of Junior Stock, and other than through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares
of Junior Stock), nor will any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such securities by
USB, and no shares of Parity Stock may be purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB otherwise than
pursuant to pro rata offers to purchase all, or a pro rata portion, of the Series B Preferred Stock and such Parity Stock except by
conversion into or exchange for Junior Stock, unless full dividends for such dividend period on all outstanding shares of Series B
Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set aside.

Dividends — Dividends on shares of the Series B Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. Holders of Series B Preferred Stock
will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by USB’s board of directors or a duly authorized committee of the board, out of
assets legally available for the payment of dividends under Delaware law, non-cumulative cash dividends payable quarterly in
arrears on each January 15, April 15, July 15 or October 15 (or, if such day is not a business day, the next business day). Dividends
on each share of Series B Preferred Stock will accrue on the liquidation preference amount of $25,000 per share at a rate per annum
equal to the greater of (1) three-month LIBOR? (computed as provided below) plus 0.60% or (2) 3.50%. In the case that any date on
which dividends are payable on the Series B Preferred Stock is not a business day, then payment of the dividend payable on that date
will be made on the next succeeding day that is a business day. However, no interest or other payment will be paid in respect of the
delay. The record date for payment of dividends on the Series B Preferred Stock will be the last day of the immediately preceding
calendar month during which the dividend payment date falls. The amount of dividends payable for any dividend period will be
calculated on the basis of a 360-day year and the number of days actually elapsed. For purposes of the Series B Preferred Stock, the
term “business day” means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday on which banking institutions are not authorized
or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close in New York, New York.

For any dividend period, three-month LIBOR will be determined by the calculation agent on the second London Banking
Day immediately preceding the first day of such dividend period in the following manner:

2 Following the cessation of representative three-month LIBOR, after June 30, 2023, this three-month LIBOR rate transitioned to three-month CME Term
SOFR plus a tenor spread adjustment of 0.26161% in accordance with the LIBOR Act and LIBOR Rule.
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Three-month LIBOR will be the offered rate per annum for three-month deposits in U.S. dollars, beginning on the first day of
such period, as that rate appears on Moneyline Telerate Page 3750 as of 11:00 A.M., London time, on the second London
Banking Day immediately preceding the first day of such dividend period.

If the rate described above does not appear on Moneyline Telerate page 3750, three-month LIBOR will be determined on the
basis of the rates, at approximately 11:00 A.M., London time, on the second London Banking Day immediately preceding the
first day of such dividend period, at which deposits of the following kind are offered to prime banks in the London interbank
market by four major banks in that market selected by USB: three-month deposits in U.S. dollars, beginning on the first day
of such dividend period, and in a principal amount of not less than $1,000,000. The calculation agent will request the
principal London office of each of these banks to provide a quotation of its rate. If at least two quotations are provided, three-
month LIBOR for the second London Banking Day immediately preceding the first day of such dividend period will be the
arithmetic mean of the quotations.

If fewer than two quotations are provided as described above, three-month LIBOR for the second London Banking Day
immediately preceding the first day of such dividend period will be the arithmetic mean of the rates for loans of the following
kind to leading European banks quoted, at approximately 11:00 A.M. New York City time on the second London Banking
Day immediately preceding the first day of such dividend period, by three major banks in New York City selected by USB:
three-month loans of U.S. dollars, beginning on the first day of such dividend period, and in a principal amount of not less

than $1,000,000.

If fewer than three banks selected by USB are quoting as described above, three-month LIBOR for the new dividend period
will be three-month LIBOR in effect for the prior dividend period.

The calculation agent’s establishment of three-month LIBOR and calculation of the amount of dividends for each dividend
period will be on file at USB’s principal offices, will be made available to any holder of Series B Preferred Stock upon request and
will be final and binding in the absence of manifest error.

The term “Moneyline Telerate Page” means the display on Moneyline Telerate, Inc., or any successor service, on the page or
pages referred to above or any replacement page or pages on that service.

The right of holders of the Series B Preferred Stock to receive dividends is non-cumulative. If USB’s board of directors does

not declare a dividend on the Series B Preferred Stock or declares less than a full dividend in respect of any dividend period, the
holders of the Series B Preferred Stock will have no right to receive any dividend or a full dividend, as the case may be, for that
dividend period, and USB will have no obligation to pay a dividend or to pay full dividends for that dividend period, whether or not
dividends are declared and paid for any
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future dividend period with respect to the Series B Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, Junior Stock or any other class or series of USB’s
authorized Preferred Stock.

When dividends are not paid in full upon the Series B Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock, dividends upon that stock
will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that
accrued dividends for the current dividend period per share on the Series B Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any
accumulations, on such Parity Stock, bear to each other. No interest will be payable in respect of any dividend payment on the Series
B Preferred Stock that may be in arrears.

Redemption —The Series B Preferred Stock is not subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar
provisions.

The Series B Preferred Stock is redeemable at USB’s option, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per
share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any undeclared dividends.

If shares of the Series B Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption will be given by first class mail to the
holders of record of the Series B Preferred Stock to be redeemed, mailed not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption thereof (provided that, if the depositary shares representing the Series B Preferred Stock are held in book-
entry form through DTC, USB may give such notice in any manner permitted by the DTC). Each notice of redemption will include a
statement setting forth: (i) the redemption date, (ii) the number of shares of the Series B Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less
than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder, (iii) the
redemption price, (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing shares of Series B Preferred Stock are to be surrendered
for payment of the redemption price and (v) that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on the redemption date.
If notice of redemption of any shares of Series B Preferred Stock has been duly given and if the funds necessary for such redemption
have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of any shares of Series B Preferred Stock so called for redemption, then, on
and after the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on such shares of Series B Preferred Stock, such shares of Series B
Preferred Stock will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the right to
receive the redemption price.

In case of any redemption of only part of the shares of the Series B Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be
redeemed will be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as USB may determine to be fair and equitable.

Under the Federal Reserve Board’s risk-based capital guidelines applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of
the Series B Preferred Stock is subject to prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board.




Additionally, the Series B Preferred Stock is subject to a “Replacement Capital Covenant,” which will limit USB’s right to
redeem the Series B Preferred Stock. In the Replacement Capital Covenant, USB covenants to redeem or repurchase shares of Series
B Preferred Stock only if and to the extent that (a) the total redemption or repurchase price is equal to or less than the sum, as of the
date of redemption or repurchase, of (i) 133.33% of the aggregate net cash proceeds USB or its subsidiaries have received during the
180 days prior to such date from the issuance and sale of Common Stock plus (ii) 100% of the aggregate net cash proceeds USB or
its subsidiaries have received during the 180 days prior to such date from the issuance of certain other specified securities that (A)
have equity-like characteristics that satisfy the requirements of the Replacement Capital Covenant, which means generally that such
other securities have characteristics that are the same as, or more equity-like than, the applicable characteristics of the Series B
Preferred Stock at that time, and (B) qualify as tier 1 capital of USB under the risk-based capital guidelines of the Federal Reserve
Board; and (b) USB has obtained the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board, if such approval is then required by the Federal
Reserve Board.

Rights Upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up — In the event of USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the
holders of the Series B Preferred Stock at the time outstanding will be entitled to receive a liquidating distribution in the amount of
the liquidation preference of $25,000 per share, plus any authorized, declared and unpaid dividends for the then-current dividend
period to the date of liquidation, out of USB’s assets legally available for distribution to USB’s stockholders, before any distribution
is made to holders of USB’s Common Stock or any Junior Stock and subject to the rights of the holders of any class or series of
securities ranking senior to or on parity with the Series B Preferred Stock upon liquidation and the rights of USB’s depositors and
other creditors.

If the amounts available for distribution upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up are not sufficient to satisfy the
full liquidation rights of all the outstanding Series B Preferred Stock and all stock ranking equal to the Series B Preferred Stock, then
the holders of each series of Preferred Stock will share ratably in any distribution of assets in proportion to the full respective
preferential amount to which they are entitled. After the full amount of the liquidation preference is paid, the holders of Series B
Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of USB’s assets.

For such purposes, USB’s consolidation or merger with or into any other entity, the consolidation or merger of any other
entity with or into USB, or the sale of all or substantially all of USB’s property or business will not be deemed to constitute USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Voting Rights — Except as provided below, the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock will have no voting rights.

Whenever dividends on any shares of the Series B Preferred Stock or any other class or series of Parity Stock have not been
declared and paid for an amount equal to six or more quarterly dividend periods, whether consecutive or not, the holders of the
Series B Preferred
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Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights,
whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends
did not exist) will be entitled to vote as a single class for the election of a total of two additional members of USB’s board of
directors, provided that the election of any such directors will not cause USB to violate the corporate governance requirement of the
New York Stock Exchange (or any other exchange on which USB’s securities may be listed) that listed companies must have a
majority of independent directors and provided further that USB’s board of directors will at no time include more than two Preferred
Directors. In that event, the number of directors on USB’s board of directors will automatically increase by two and, at the request of
any holder of Series B Preferred Stock, a special meeting of the holders of Series B Preferred Stock and any other class or series of
Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series B Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends and for which dividends have not
been paid, will be called for the election of the two directors (unless such request is received less than 90 days before the date fixed
for the next annual or special meeting of the stockholders, in which event such election will be held at such next annual or special
meeting of stockholders), followed by such election at each subsequent annual meeting. These voting rights will continue until full
dividends have been paid regularly on the shares of the Series B Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that
ranks on parity with the Series B Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends for at least four consecutive dividend periods following
the Nonpayment.

If and when full dividends have been regularly paid for at least four consecutive dividend periods following a Nonpayment
on the Series B Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Parity Stock, the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock will be
divested of the foregoing voting rights (subject to revesting in the event of each subsequent Nonpayment) and the term of office of
each Preferred Director so elected will terminate and the number of directors on USB’s board of directors will automatically
decrease by two. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time without cause by the holders of record of a majority of the
outstanding shares of the Series B Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred
Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) when they have the voting rights described above. So long as a Nonpayment
continues, any vacancy in the office of a Preferred Director (other than prior to the initial election of the Preferred Directors) may be
filled by the written consent of the Preferred Director remaining in office, or if none remains in office, by a vote of the holders of the
outstanding shares of Series B Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other class of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock
having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders. The Preferred Directors
will each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter.

If the holders of Series B Preferred Stock become entitled to vote for the election of directors, the Series B Preferred Stock

may be considered a class of voting securities under interpretations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. As a result, certain
holders of the Series B Preferred Stock may become subject to regulations under the Bank Holding Company Act and/or
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certain acquisitions of the Series B Preferred Stock may be subject to prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board.

So long as any shares of Series B Preferred Stock remain outstanding:

* the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series B Preferred Stock and all
other Parity Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series, will be required to issue, authorize
or increase the authorized amount of, or to issue or authorize any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the
right to purchase, any class or series of stock ranking senior to the Series B Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock with
respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and

+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series B Preferred Stock at the
time outstanding, voting separately as a class, will be required to amend the provisions of USB’s Certificate of Incorporation
or the Certificate of Designations of the Series B Preferred Stock or any other series of Preferred Stock so as to materially
and adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series B Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; provided,
however, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued Series B Preferred Stock or authorized Preferred Stock
or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of other series of Preferred Stock and/or
Junior Stock will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series B Preferred
Stock.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would
otherwise be required will be effected, all outstanding shares of Series B Preferred Stock have been redeemed or called for
redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of the Series B
Preferred Stock to effect such redemption.

Series J Preferred Stock

General — The depositary is the sole holder of the Series J Preferred Stock, as described below under the section entitled
“—Description of Depositary Shares,” and all references herein to the holders of the Series J Preferred Stock mean the depositary.
However, the holders of depositary shares will be entitled, through the depositary, to exercise the rights and preferences of the
holders of the Series J Preferred Stock, as described below under “—Description of Depositary Shares.” The holders of the Series J
Preferred Stock have no preemptive rights with respect to any shares of USB’s capital stock or any of its other securities convertible
into or carrying rights or options to purchase any such capital stock.

The holders of Series J Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive non-cumulative cash dividends when, as and if declared out
of assets legally available for payment of dividends. In the event USB does not declare dividends or does not pay dividends in full
on the Series J Preferred
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Stock on any date on which dividends are due, then such unpaid dividends will not cumulate and will no longer accrue and be
payable.

The Series J Preferred Stock is perpetual and will not be convertible into shares of USB’s Common Stock or any other class
or series of USB’s capital stock, and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other obligation for their repurchase or retirement.

Rank — With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series J Preferred Stock ranks equally
with the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series B Preferred Stock, the Series K Preferred Stock, the Series L Preferred Stock, the Series
M Preferred Stock, the Series N Preferred Stock and the Series O Preferred Stock and with any future class or series of USB’s
capital stock that ranks on a par with the Series J Preferred Stock in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets on
USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series J
Preferred Stock ranks senior to USB’s Common Stock and any other future class or series of USB’s capital stock over which the
Series J Preferred Stock has preference or priority in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation,
dissolution or winding up. USB may not issue any class of series of capital stock having a preference or priority in the payment of
dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up over the Series J Preferred Stock without
the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least 66-2/3% of all of the shares of the Series J Preferred Stock and all other
Parity Stock, at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series.

In particular, during a dividend period and subject to certain exceptions, no dividend will be paid or declared and no
distribution will be made on any Junior Stock, other than a dividend payable solely in Junior Stock, no shares of Junior Stock may be
repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB, directly or indirectly (other than as a result of
reclassification of Junior Stock for or into Junior Stock, or the exchange or conversion of one share of Junior Stock for or into
another share of Junior Stock, and other than through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares
of Junior Stock), nor will any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such securities by
USB, and no shares of Parity Stock may be purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB otherwise than
pursuant to pro rata offers to purchase all, or a pro rata portion, of the Series J Preferred Stock and such Parity Stock except by
conversion into or exchange for Junior Stock, unless full dividends for such dividend period on all outstanding shares of Series J
Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set aside.

Dividends — Dividends on shares of the Series J Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. Holders of Series J Preferred Stock
will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by USB’s board of directors or a duly authorized committee of the board, out of
assets legally available for the payment of dividends under Delaware law, non-cumulative cash dividends. Dividends on each share
of Series J Preferred Stock will accrue on the liquidation preference amount of $25,000 per share at a rate per annum equal to
(1) from the date of issuance of the Series J Preferred Stock to but excluding April 15, 2027 at a rate per annum equal to 5.300%
payable
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semi-annually in arrears on each April 15 and October 15, through and including, April 15, 2027 and (2) from and including April
15,2027, at a rate per annum equal to three-month LIBOR? (computed as provided below) plus 2.914% payable quarterly in arrears
on each January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15, commencing on July 15, 2027. In the case that any date or on prior April 15,
2027 on which dividends are payable on the Series J Preferred Stock is not a business day, then payment of the dividend payable on
that date will be made on the next succeeding day that is a business day, without any interest or other payment in respect of such
delay, and if any date after April 15, 2027 on which dividends otherwise would be payable is not a business day, then payment of any
dividend otherwise payable on that date will be made on the next succeeding business day unless that day falls in the next calendar
month, in which case payment of any dividend otherwise payable on that date will be the immediately preceding business day, and
dividends will accrue to the actual payment date. The record date for payment of dividends on the Series J Preferred Stock will be
the last day of the immediately preceding calendar month during which the dividend payment date falls. The amount of dividends
payable for any period prior to April 15, 2027 will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months
and dividends for periods thereafter will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year and the actual number of days elapsed. For
purposes of the Series I Preferred Stock, the term “business day” means, for dividend periods prior to April 15, 2027, each Monday,
Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday on which banking institutions are not authorized or obligated by law, regulation or
executive order to close in New York, New York, and for dividend periods on and after April 15, 2027, it means any date that would
be considered a Business Day for dividend periods prior to April 15, 2027 that is also a London Banking Day. Dividends on the
Series J Preferred Stock will not be declared, paid or set aside for payment to the extent such act would cause USB to fail to comply
with any applicable laws and regulations, including applicable capital adequacy guidelines.

For any dividend period beginning on or after April 15, 2027, three-month LIBOR will be determined by the calculation agent on
the second London Banking Day immediately preceding the first day of such dividend period in the following manner:

= Three-month LIBOR will be the offered rate per annum for three-month deposits in U.S. dollars, beginning on the first day of
such period, as that rate appears on the Designated LIBOR Page as of 11:00 A.M., London time, on the second London
Banking Day immediately preceding the first day of such dividend period.

* If'the rate described above does not appear on the Designated LIBOR Page, three-month LIBOR will be determined on the
basis of the rates at which deposits in U.S. dollars for a three-month period commencing on the first day of that dividend
period and in a principal amount of not less than $1,000,000 are offered to prime banks in the London interbank market by
four major banks in the London interbank market selected by USB, at approximately 11:00 a.m. (London time), on the
second London Banking Day preceding the first day of that dividend period. The calculation agent will request the principal

3 Following the cessation of representative three-month LIBOR, after June 30, 2023, this three-month LIBOR rate transitioned to three-month CME Term
SOFR plus a tenor spread adjustment of 0.26161% in accordance with the LIBOR Act and LIBOR Rule.
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London office of each of such banks to provide a quotation of its rate. If at least two such quotations are provided, three-
month LIBOR with respect to that dividend period will be the arithmetic mean of such quotations.

» If fewer than two quotations are provided as described above, three-month LIBOR will be the arithmetic mean of the rates
quoted by three major banks in New York, New York, selected by the calculation agent, at approximately 11:00 a.m. (New
York City time), on the first day of that dividend period for loans in U.S. dollars to leading European banks for a three-month
period commencing on the first day of that dividend period and in a principal amount of not less than $1,000,000.

« If fewer than three banks are not quoting as described above, three-month LIBOR for the new dividend period will be three-
month LIBOR in effect for the prior dividend period or, in the case of the first dividend period beginning on or after April 15,
2027, the most recent rate that could have been determined had the dividend rate been a floating rate during the period prior
to April 15, 2027.

The calculation agent’s establishment of three-month LIBOR and calculation of the amount of dividends for each dividend
period will be on file at USB’s principal offices, will be made available to any holder of Series J Preferred Stock upon request and
will be final and binding in the absence of manifest error.

The term “Designated LIBOR Page” means the display on Bloomberg Page BBAM (or any successor or substitute page of
such service, or any successor to such service selected by USB), for the purpose of displaying the London interbank offered rates for
U.S. dollars.

The right of holders of the Series J Preferred Stock to receive dividends is non-cumulative. If USB’s board of directors does
not declare a dividend on the Series J Preferred Stock or declares less than a full dividend in respect of any dividend period, the
holders of the Series J Preferred Stock will have no right to receive any dividend or a full dividend, as the case may be, for that
dividend period, and USB will have no obligation to pay a dividend or to pay full dividends for that dividend period, whether or not
dividends are declared and paid for any future dividend period with respect to the Series J Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, Junior
Stock or any other class or series of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock.

When dividends are not paid in full upon the Series J Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock, dividends upon that stock
will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that
accrued dividends for the current dividend period per share on the Series J Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any
accumulations, on such Parity Stock, bear to each other. No interest will be payable in respect of any dividend payment on the Series
J Preferred Stock that may be in arrears.

Redemption —The Series J Preferred Stock is not subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar
provision.
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The Series J Preferred Stock will be redeemable at USB’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on or after April 15, 2027 at
a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any undeclared
dividends.

In addition, within 90 days following the occurrence of a Regulatory Capital Treatment Event, USB, at its option, subject to
the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, at any time, all (but not less than all) of the shares of Series J
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends,
without accumulation of any undeclared dividends. For purposes of the Series J Preferred Stock, “Regulatory Capital Treatment
Event” means the good faith determination by USB that, as a result of (i) any amendment to, or change in, the laws or regulations of
the United States or any political subdivision of or in the United States that is enacted or becomes effective after the initial issuance
of any share of Series J Preferred Stock, (ii) any proposed change in those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial
issuance of any share of Series J Preferred Stock, or (iii) any official administrative decision or judicial decision or administrative
action or other official pronouncement interpreting or applying those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial issuance
of any share of Series J Preferred Stock, there is more than an insubstantial risk that USB will not be entitled to treat the full
liquidation value of the shares of Series J Preferred Stock then outstanding as “additional tier 1 capital” (or its equivalent) for
purposes of the capital adequacy guidelines of the Federal Reserve Board (or, as and if applicable, the capital adequacy guidelines or
regulations of any successor Appropriate Federal Banking Agency), as then in effect and applicable, for as long as any share of
Series J Preferred Stock is outstanding,.

If shares of the Series J Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption will be given by first class mail to the
holders of record of the Series J Preferred Stock to be redeemed, mailed not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the date
fixed for redemption thereof (provided that, if the depositary shares representing the Series J Preferred Stock are held in book-entry
form through DTC, USB may give such notice in any manner permitted by the DTC). Each notice of redemption will include a
statement setting forth: (i) the redemption date, (ii) the number of shares of the Series J Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less
than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder, (iii) the
redemption price, (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing shares of Series J Preferred Stock are to be surrendered
for payment of the redemption price and (v) that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on the redemption date.
If notice of redemption of any shares of Series J Preferred Stock has been duly given and if the funds necessary for such redemption
have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of any shares of Series J Preferred Stock so called for redemption, then, on
and after the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on such shares of Series J Preferred Stock, such shares of Series J
Preferred Stock will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the right to
receive the redemption price.
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In case of any redemption of only part of the shares of the Series J Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be
redeemed will be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as USB may determine to be fair and equitable.

Under the Federal Reserve Board’s risk-based capital guidelines applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of
the Series J Preferred Stock is subject to prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board.

Rights Upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up — In the event of USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the
holders of the Series J Preferred Stock at the time outstanding will be entitled to receive a liquidating distribution in the amount of
the liquidation preference of $25,000 per share, plus any authorized, declared and unpaid dividends for the then-current dividend
period to the date of liquidation, out of USB’s assets legally available for distribution to USB’s stockholders, before any distribution
is made to holders of USB’s Common Stock or any Junior Stock and subject to the rights of the holders of any class or series of
securities ranking senior to or on parity with the Series J Preferred Stock upon liquidation and the rights of USB’s depositors and
other creditors.

If the amounts available for distribution upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up are not sufficient to satisfy the
full liquidation rights of all the outstanding Series J Preferred Stock and all stock ranking equal to the Series J Preferred Stock, then
the holders of each series of Preferred Stock will share ratably in any distribution of assets in proportion to the full respective
preferential amount to which they are entitled. After the full amount of the liquidation preference is paid, the holders of Series J
Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of USB’s assets.

For such purposes, USB’s consolidation or merger with or into any other entity, the consolidation or merger of any other
entity with or into USB, or the sale of all or substantially all of USB’s property or business will not be deemed to constitute USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Voting Rights — Except as provided below, the holders of the Series J Preferred Stock will have no voting rights.

Whenever dividends on any shares of the Series J Preferred Stock or any other class or series of Parity Stock have not been
declared and paid for an amount equal to six or more quarterly dividend periods (whether consecutive or not) or their equivalent, the
holders of the Series J Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock
having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) will be entitled to vote as a single class for the election of a total of two additional
members of USB’s board of directors, provided that the election of any such directors will not cause USB to violate the corporate
governance requirement of the New York Stock Exchange (or any other exchange on which USB’s securities may be listed) that
listed companies must have a majority of independent directors and provided further that USB’s board of directors will at no
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time include more than two Preferred Directors. In that event, the number of directors on USB’s board of directors will automatically
increase by two and, at the request of any holder of Series J Preferred Stock, a special meeting of the holders of Series J Preferred
Stock and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series J Preferred Stock as to payment of
dividends and for which dividends have not been paid, will be called for the election of the two directors (unless such request is
received less than 90 days before the date fixed for the next annual or special meeting of the stockholders, in which event such
election will be held at such next annual or special meeting of stockholders), followed by such election at each subsequent annual
meeting. These voting rights will continue until full dividends have been paid regularly on the shares of the Series J Preferred Stock
and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series J Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends for
at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their equivalent following the Nonpayment.

If and when full dividends have been regularly paid for at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their
equivalent following a Nonpayment on the Series J Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Parity Stock, the holders of the
Series J Preferred Stock will be divested of the foregoing voting rights (subject to revesting in the event of each subsequent
Nonpayment) and the term of office of each Preferred Director so elected will terminate and the number of directors on USB’s board
of directors will automatically decrease by two. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time without cause by the holders of
record of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Series J Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of
USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be
entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) when they have the voting rights described
above. So long as a Nonpayment continues, any vacancy in the office of a Preferred Director (other than prior to the initial election
of the Preferred Directors) may be filled by the written consent of the Preferred Director remaining in office, or if none remains in
office, by a vote of the holders of the outstanding shares of Series J Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other class
of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be
entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) to serve until the next annual meeting of
stockholders. The Preferred Directors will each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter.

If the holders of Series J Preferred Stock become entitled to vote for the election of Preferred Directors, the Series J Preferred
Stock may be considered a class of voting securities under interpretations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. As a result, certain
holders of the Series J Preferred Stock may become subject to regulations under the Bank Holding Company Act and/or certain
acquisitions of the Series J Preferred Stock may be subject to prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board.

So long as any shares of Series J Preferred Stock remain outstanding:

+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series J Preferred Stock and all
other Parity Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series, will be required to issue, authorize
or increase the
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authorized amount of, or to issue or authorize any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the right to purchase,
any class or series of stock ranking senior to the Series J Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock with respect to payment
of dividends or the distribution of assets upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and

+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series J Preferred Stock at the
time outstanding, voting separately as a class, will be required to amend the provisions of USB’s Certificate of Incorporation
or the Certificate of Designations of the Series J Preferred Stock or any other series of Preferred Stock so as to materially and
adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series J Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; provided,
however, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued Series J Preferred Stock or authorized Preferred Stock or
the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of other series of Preferred Stock and/or Junior
Stock will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series J Preferred Stock.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would
otherwise be required will be effected, all outstanding shares of Series J Preferred Stock have been redeemed or called for
redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of the Series J
Preferred Stock to effect such redemption.

Series K Preferred Stock

General — The depositary is the sole holder of the Series K Preferred Stock, as described below under the section entitled
“—Description of Depositary Shares,” and all references herein to the holders of the Series K Preferred Stock mean the depositary.
However, the holders of depositary shares will be entitled, through the depositary, to exercise the rights and preferences of the
holders of the Series K Preferred Stock, as described below under “—Description of Depositary Shares.” The holders of the Series K
Preferred Stock have no preemptive rights with respect to any shares of USB’s capital stock or any of its other securities convertible
into or carrying rights or options to purchase any such capital stock.

The holders of Series K Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive non-cumulative cash dividends when, as and if declared
out of assets legally available for payment of dividends. In the event USB does not declare dividends or does not pay dividends in
full on the Series K Preferred Stock on any date on which dividends are due, then such unpaid dividends will not cumulate and will
no longer accrue and be payable.

The Series K Preferred Stock is perpetual and will not be convertible into shares of USB’s Common Stock or any other class
or series of USB’s capital stock, and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other obligation for their repurchase or retirement.

Rank — With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series K Preferred Stock ranks equally
with the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series B Preferred




Stock, the Series J Preferred Stock, the Series L Preferred Stock, the Series M Preferred Stock, the Series N Preferred Stock and the
Series O Preferred Stock and with any future class or series of USB’s capital stock that ranks on a par with the Series K Preferred
Stock in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up. With respect to
the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series K Preferred Stock ranks senior to USB’s Common Stock and any
other future class or series of USB’s capital stock over which the Series K Preferred Stock has preference or priority in the payment
of dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up. USB may not issue any class of series of
capital stock having a preference or priority in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation,
dissolution or winding up over the Series K Preferred Stock without the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least 66-
2/3% of all of the shares of the Series K Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock, at the time outstanding, voting as a single class
without regard to series.

In particular, during a dividend period and subject to certain exceptions, no dividend will be paid or declared and no
distribution will be made on any Junior Stock, other than a dividend payable solely in Junior Stock, no shares of Junior Stock may be
repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB, directly or indirectly (other than as a result of
reclassification of Junior Stock for or into Junior Stock, or the exchange or conversion of one share of Junior Stock for or into
another share of Junior Stock, and other than through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares
of Junior Stock), nor will any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such securities by
USB, and no shares of Parity Stock may be purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB otherwise than
pursuant to pro rata offers to purchase all, or a pro rata portion, of the Series K Preferred Stock and such Parity Stock except by
conversion into or exchange for Junior Stock, unless full dividends for such dividend period on all outstanding shares of Series K
Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set aside.

Dividends — Dividends on shares of the Series K Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. Holders of Series K Preferred
Stock will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by USB’s board of directors or a duly authorized committee of the board,
out of assets legally available for the payment of dividends under Delaware law, non-cumulative cash dividends. Dividends on each
share of Series K Preferred Stock will accrue on the liquidation preference amount of $25,000 per share at a rate per annum equal to
5.50% payable quarterly in arrears on each January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15. If any day on which dividends are payable
on the Series K Preferred Stock is not a business day, then payment of the dividend payable on that date will be made on the next
succeeding day that is a business day, without any interest or other payment in respect of such delay. The record date for payment of
dividends on the Series K Preferred Stock will be the last day of the immediately preceding calendar month during which the
dividend payment date falls. The amount of dividends payable for any period will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months. For purposes of the Series K Preferred Stock, the term “business day” means each Monday,
Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday on which banking institutions are not authorized or obligated by law, regulation or
executive order to close in New York, New York. Dividends on the Series K

24




Preferred Stock will not be declared, paid or set aside for payment to the extent such act would cause USB to fail to comply with any
applicable laws and regulations, including applicable capital adequacy guidelines.

The right of holders of the Series K Preferred Stock to receive dividends is non-cumulative. If USB’s board of directors does not
declare a dividend on the Series K Preferred Stock or declares less than a full dividend in respect of any dividend period, the holders
of the Series K Preferred Stock will have no right to receive any dividend or a full dividend, as the case may be, for that dividend
period, and USB will have no obligation to pay a dividend or to pay full dividends for that dividend period, whether or not dividends
are declared and paid for any future dividend period with respect to the Series K Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, Junior Stock or any
other class or series of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock.

When dividends are not paid in full upon the Series K Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock, dividends upon that stock
will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that
accrued dividends for the current dividend period per share on the Series K Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any
accumulations, on such Parity Stock, bear to each other. No interest will be payable in respect of any dividend payment on the Series
K Preferred Stock that may be in arrears.

Redemption —The Series K Preferred Stock is not subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar
provision.

The Series K Preferred Stock will be redeemable at USB’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on or after October 15,
2023 at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any
undeclared dividends.

In addition, within 90 days following the occurrence of a Regulatory Capital Treatment Event, USB, at its option, subject to
the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, at any time, all (but not less than all) of the shares of Series K
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends,
without accumulation of any undeclared dividends. For purposes of the Series K Preferred Stock, “Regulatory Capital Treatment
Event” means the good faith determination by USB that, as a result of (i) any amendment to, or change in, the laws or regulations of
the United States or any political subdivision of or in the United States that is enacted or becomes effective after the initial issuance
of any share of Series K Preferred Stock, (ii) any proposed change in those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial
issuance of any share of Series K Preferred Stock, or (iii) any official administrative decision or judicial decision or administrative
action or other official pronouncement interpreting or applying those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial issuance
of any share of Series K Preferred Stock, there is more than an insubstantial risk that USB will not be entitled to treat the full
liquidation value of the shares of Series K Preferred Stock then outstanding as “additional tier 1 capital” (or its equivalent) for
purposes of the capital adequacy guidelines of the Federal Reserve Board (or, as and if applicable, the capital adequacy guidelines or
regulations of any successor Appropriate Federal
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Banking Agency), as then in effect and applicable, for as long as any share of Series K Preferred Stock is outstanding.

[f shares of the Series K Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption will be given by first class mail to the
holders of record of the Series K Preferred Stock to be redeemed, mailed not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption thereof (provided that, if the depositary shares representing the Series K Preferred Stock are held in book-
entry form through DTC, USB may give such notice in any manner permitted by the DTC). Each notice of redemption will include a
statement setting forth: (i) the redemption date, (ii) the number of shares of the Series K Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less
than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder, (iii) the
redemption price, (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing shares of Series K Preferred Stock are to be surrendered
for payment of the redemption price and (v) that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on the redemption date.
If notice of redemption of any shares of Series K Preferred Stock has been duly given and if the funds necessary for such redemption
have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of any shares of Series K Preferred Stock so called for redemption, then, on
and after the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on such shares of Series K Preferred Stock, such shares of Series K
Preferred Stock will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the right to
receive the redemption price.

In case of any redemption of only part of the shares of the Series K Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be
redeemed will be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as USB may determine to be fair and equitable.

Under the Federal Reserve Board’s risk-based capital guidelines applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of
the Series K Preferred Stock is subject to prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board.

Rights Upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up — In the event of USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the
holders of the Series K Preferred Stock at the time outstanding will be entitled to receive a liquidating distribution in the amount of
the liquidation preference of $25,000 per share, plus any authorized, declared and unpaid dividends for the then-current dividend
period to the date of liquidation, out of USB’s assets legally available for distribution to USB’s stockholders, before any distribution
is made to holders of USB’s Common Stock or any Junior Stock and subject to the rights of the holders of any class or series of
securities ranking senior to or on parity with the Series K Preferred Stock upon liquidation and the rights of USB’s depositors and
other creditors.

If the amounts available for distribution upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up are not sufficient to satisfy the
full liquidation rights of all the outstanding Series K Preferred Stock and all stock ranking equal to the Series K Preferred Stock, then
the holders of each series of Preferred Stock will share ratably in any distribution of assets in proportion to the full respective
preferential amount to which they are entitled. After the full amount of the liquidation
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preference is paid, the holders of Series K Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of
USB’s assets.

For such purposes, USB’s consolidation or merger with or into any other entity, the consolidation or merger of any other
entity with or into USB, or the sale of all or substantially all of USB’s property or business will not be deemed to constitute USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Voting Rights — Except as provided below, the holders of the Series K Preferred Stock will have no voting rights.

Whenever dividends on any shares of the Series K Preferred Stock or any other class or series of Parity Stock have not been
declared and paid for an amount equal to six or more quarterly dividend periods (whether consecutive or not) or their equivalent, the
holders of the Series K Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock
having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) will be entitled to vote as a single class for the election of a total of two additional
members of USB’s board of directors, provided that the election of any such directors will not cause USB to violate the corporate
governance requirement of the New York Stock Exchange (or any other exchange on which USB’s securities may be listed) that
listed companies must have a majority of independent directors and provided further that USB’s board of directors will at no time
include more than two Preferred Directors. In that event, the number of directors on USB’s board of directors will automatically
increase by two and, at the request of any holder of Series K Preferred Stock, a special meeting of the holders of Series K Preferred
Stock and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series K Preferred Stock as to payment of
dividends and for which dividends have not been paid, will be called for the election of the two directors (unless such request is
received less than 90 days before the date fixed for the next annual or special meeting of the stockholders, in which event such
election will be held at such next annual or special meeting of stockholders), followed by such election at each subsequent annual
meeting. These voting rights will continue until full dividends have been paid regularly on the shares of the Series K Preferred Stock
and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series K Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends for
at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their equivalent following the Nonpayment.

If and when full dividends have been regularly paid for at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their
equivalent following a Nonpayment on the Series K Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Parity Stock, the holders of the
Series K Preferred Stock will be divested of the foregoing voting rights (subject to revesting in the event of each subsequent
Nonpayment) and the term of office of each Preferred Director so elected will terminate and the number of directors on USB’s board
of directors will automatically decrease by two. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time without cause by the holders of
record of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Series K Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of
USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be
entitled to vote for the election of

27




directors if such default in dividends did not exist) when they have the voting rights described above. So long as a Nonpayment
continues, any vacancy in the office of a Preferred Director (other than prior to the initial election of the Preferred Directors) may be
filled by the written consent of the Preferred Director remaining in office, or if none remains in office, by a vote of the holders of the
outstanding shares of Series K Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other class of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock
having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders. The Preferred Directors
will each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter.

If the holders of Series K Preferred Stock become entitled to vote for the election of Preferred Directors, the Series K
Preferred Stock may be considered a class of voting securities under interpretations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. As a
result, certain holders of the Series K Preferred Stock may become subject to regulations under the Bank Holding Company Act
and/or certain acquisitions of the Series K Preferred Stock may be subject to prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board.

So long as any shares of Series K Preferred Stock remain outstanding:

+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series K Preferred Stock and all
other Parity Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series, will be required to issue, authorize
or increase the authorized amount of, or to issue or authorize any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the
right to purchase, any class or series of stock ranking senior to the Series K Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock with
respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and

+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series K Preferred Stock at the
time outstanding, voting separately as a class, will be required to amend the provisions of USB’s Certificate of Incorporation
or the Certificate of Designations of the Series K Preferred Stock or any other series of Preferred Stock so as to materially
and adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series K Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; provided,
however, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued Series K Preferred Stock or authorized Preferred Stock
or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of other series of Preferred Stock and/or
Junior Stock will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series K Preferred
Stock.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would
otherwise be required will be effected, all outstanding shares of Series K Preferred Stock have been redeemed or called for
redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of the Series K
Preferred Stock to effect such redemption.

Series L Preferred Stock

28




General — The depositary is the sole holder of the Series L Preferred Stock, as described below under the section entitled
“—Description of Depositary Shares,” and all references herein to the holders of the Series L Preferred Stock mean the depositary.
However, the holders of depositary shares will be entitled, through the depositary, to exercise the rights and preferences of the
holders of the Series L Preferred Stock, as described below under “—Description of Depositary Shares.” The holders of the Series L
Preferred Stock have no preemptive rights with respect to any shares of USB’s capital stock or any of its other securities convertible
into or carrying rights or options to purchase any such capital stock.

The holders of Series L Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive non-cumulative cash dividends when, as and if declared
out of assets legally available for payment of dividends. In the event USB does not declare dividends or does not pay dividends in
full on the Series L Preferred Stock on any date on which dividends are due, then such unpaid dividends will not cumulate and will
no longer accrue and be payable.

The Series L Preferred Stock is perpetual and will not be convertible into shares of USB’s Common Stock or any other class
or series of USB’s capital stock, and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other obligation for their repurchase or retirement.

Rank — With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series L Preferred Stock ranks equally
with the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series B Preferred Stock, the Series J Preferred Stock, the Series K Preferred, the Series M
Preferred Stock, the Series N Preferred Stock and the Series O Preferred Stock and with any future class or series of USB’s capital
stock that ranks on a par with the Series L Preferred Stock in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets on USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series L
Preferred Stock ranks senior to USB’s Common Stock and any other future class or series of USB’s capital stock over which the
Series L Preferred Stock has preference or priority in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation,
dissolution or winding up. USB may not issue any class of series of capital stock having a preference or priority in the payment of
dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up over the Series L Preferred Stock without
the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least 66-2/3% of all of the shares of the Series L Preferred Stock and all other
Parity Stock, at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series.

In particular, during a dividend period and subject to certain exceptions, no dividend will be paid or declared and no
distribution will be made on any Junior Stock, other than a dividend payable solely in Junior Stock, no shares of Junior Stock may be
repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB, directly or indirectly (other than as a result of
reclassification of Junior Stock for or into Junior Stock, or the exchange or conversion of one share of Junior Stock for or into
another share of Junior Stock, and other than through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares
of Junior Stock), nor will any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such securities by
USB, and no shares of Parity Stock may be purchased, redeemed or otherwise
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acquired for consideration by USB otherwise than pursuant to pro rata offers to purchase all, or a pro rata portion, of the Series L
Preferred Stock and such Parity Stock except by conversion into or exchange for Junior Stock, unless full dividends for such
dividend period on all outstanding shares of Series L Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the
payment thereof set aside.

Dividends — Dividends on shares of the Series L. Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. Holders of Series L Preferred Stock
will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by USB’s board of directors or a duly authorized committee of the board, out of
assets legally available for the payment of dividends under Delaware law, non-cumulative cash dividends. Dividends on each share
of Series L Preferred Stock will accrue on the liquidation preference amount of $25,000 per share at a rate per annum equal to 3.75%
payable quarterly in arrears on each January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15. If any day on which dividends are payable on the
Series L Preferred Stock is not a business day, then payment of the dividend payable on that date will be made on the next
succeeding day that is a business day, without any interest or other payment in respect of such delay. The record date for payment of
dividends on the Series L Preferred Stock will be the last day of the immediately preceding calendar month during which the
dividend payment date falls. The amount of dividends payable for any period will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months. For purposes of the Series L Preferred Stock, the term “business day” means each Monday,
Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday on which banking institutions are not authorized or obligated by law, regulation or
executive order to close in New York, New York. Dividends on the Series L Preferred Stock will not be declared, paid or set aside for
payment to the extent such act would cause USB to fail to comply with any applicable laws and regulations, including applicable
capital adequacy guidelines.

The right of holders of the Series L Preferred Stock to receive dividends is non-cumulative. If USB’s board of directors does not
declare a dividend on the Series L Preferred Stock or declares less than a full dividend in respect of any dividend period, the holders
of the Series L Preferred Stock will have no right to receive any dividend or a full dividend, as the case may be, for that dividend
period, and USB will have no obligation to pay a dividend or to pay full dividends for that dividend period, whether or not dividends
are declared and paid for any future dividend period with respect to the Series L Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, Junior Stock or any
other class or series of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock.

When dividends are not paid in full upon the Series L Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock, dividends upon that stock
will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that
accrued dividends for the current dividend period per share on the Series L Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any
accumulations, on such Parity Stock, bear to each other. No interest will be payable in respect of any dividend payment on the Series
L Preferred Stock that may be in arrears.

Redemption —The Series L Preferred Stock is not subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar
provision.




The Series L Preferred Stock will be redeemable at USB’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on or after January 15,
2026 at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any
undeclared dividends.

In addition, within 90 days following the occurrence of a Regulatory Capital Treatment Event, USB, at its option, subject to
the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, at any time, all (but not less than all) of the shares of Series L
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends,
without accumulation of any undeclared dividends. For purposes of the Series L Preferred Stock, “Regulatory Capital Treatment
Event” means the good faith determination by USB that, as a result of (i) any amendment to, or change in, the laws or regulations of
the United States or any political subdivision of or in the United States that is enacted or becomes effective after the initial issuance
of any share of Series L Preferred Stock, (ii) any proposed change in those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial
issuance of any share of Series L Preferred Stock, or (iii) any official administrative decision or judicial decision or administrative
action or other official pronouncement interpreting or applying those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial issuance
of any share of Series L Preferred Stock, there is more than an insubstantial risk that USB will not be entitled to treat the full
liquidation value of the shares of Series L Preferred Stock then outstanding as “additional tier 1 capital” (or its equivalent) for
purposes of the capital adequacy guidelines of the Federal Reserve Board (or, as and if applicable, the capital adequacy guidelines or
regulations of any successor Appropriate Federal Banking Agency), as then in effect and applicable, for as long as any share of
Series L Preferred Stock is outstanding.

If shares of the Series L Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption will be given by first class mail to the
holders of record of the Series L Preferred Stock to be redeemed, mailed not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption thereof (provided that, if the depositary shares representing the Series L Preferred Stock are held in book-
entry form through DTC, USB may give such notice in any manner permitted by the DTC). Each notice of redemption will include a
statement setting forth: (i) the redemption date, (ii) the number of shares of the Series L Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less
than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder, (iii) the
redemption price, (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing shares of Series L Preferred Stock are to be surrendered
for payment of the redemption price and (v) that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on the redemption date.
If notice of redemption of any shares of Series L Preferred Stock has been duly given and if the funds necessary for such redemption
have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of any shares of Series L Preferred Stock so called for redemption, then, on
and after the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on such shares of Series L Preferred Stock, such shares of Series L
Preferred Stock will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the right to
receive the redemption price.




In case of any redemption of only part of the shares of the Series L Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be
redeemed will be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as USB may determine to be fair and equitable.

Under the Federal Reserve Board’s risk-based capital guidelines applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of
the Series L Preferred Stock is subject to prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board.

Rights Upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up — In the event of USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the
holders of the Series L Preferred Stock at the time outstanding will be entitled to receive a liquidating distribution in the amount of
the liquidation preference of $25,000 per share, plus any authorized, declared and unpaid dividends for the then-current dividend
period to the date of liquidation, out of USB’s assets legally available for distribution to USB’s stockholders, before any distribution
is made to holders of USB’s Common Stock or any Junior Stock and subject to the rights of the holders of any class or series of
securities ranking senior to or on parity with the Series L Preferred Stock upon liquidation and the rights of USB’s depositors and
other creditors.

If the amounts available for distribution upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up are not sufficient to satisfy the
full liquidation rights of all the outstanding Series L Preferred Stock and all stock ranking equal to the Series L Preferred Stock, then
the holders of each series of Preferred Stock will share ratably in any distribution of assets in proportion to the full respective
preferential amount to which they are entitled. After the full amount of the liquidation preference is paid, the holders of Series L
Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of USB’s assets.

For such purposes, USB’s consolidation or merger with or into any other entity, the consolidation or merger of any other
entity with or into USB, or the sale of all or substantially all of USB’s property or business will not be deemed to constitute USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Voting Rights — Except as provided below, the holders of the Series L Preferred Stock will have no voting rights.

Whenever dividends on any shares of the Series L Preferred Stock or any other class or series of Parity Stock have not been
declared and paid for an amount equal to six or more quarterly dividend periods (whether consecutive or not) or their equivalent, the
holders of the Series L Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock
having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) will be entitled to vote as a single class for the election of a total of two additional
members of USB’s board of directors, provided that the election of any such directors will not cause USB to violate the corporate
governance requirement of the New York Stock Exchange (or any other exchange on which USB’s securities may be listed) that
listed companies must have a majority of independent directors and provided further that USB’s board of directors will at no




time include more than two Preferred Directors. In that event, the number of directors on USB’s board of directors will automatically
increase by two and, at the request of any holder of Series L Preferred Stock, a special meeting of the holders of Series L Preferred
Stock and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series L Preferred Stock as to payment of
dividends and for which dividends have not been paid, will be called for the election of the two directors (unless such request is
received less than 90 days before the date fixed for the next annual or special meeting of the stockholders, in which event such
election will be held at such next annual or special meeting of stockholders), followed by such election at each subsequent annual
meeting. These voting rights will continue until full dividends have been paid regularly on the shares of the Series L Preferred Stock
and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series L Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends for
at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their equivalent following the Nonpayment.

If and when full dividends have been regularly paid for at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their
equivalent following a Nonpayment on the Series L Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Parity Stock, the holders of the
Series L Preferred Stock will be divested of the foregoing voting rights (subject to revesting in the event of each subsequent
Nonpayment) and the term of office of each Preferred Director so elected will terminate and the number of directors on USB’s board
of directors will automatically decrease by two. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time without cause by the holders of
record of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Series L Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of
USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be
entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) when they have the voting rights described
above. So long as a Nonpayment continues, any vacancy in the office of a Preferred Director (other than prior to the initial election
of the Preferred Directors) may be filled by the written consent of the Preferred Director remaining in office, or if none remains in
office, by a vote of the holders of the outstanding shares of Series L Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other class
of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be
entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) to serve until the next annual meeting of
stockholders. The Preferred Directors will each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter.

If the holders of Series L Preferred Stock become entitled to vote for the election of Preferred Directors, the Series L
Preferred Stock may be considered a class of voting securities under interpretations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. As a
result, certain holders of the Series L Preferred Stock may become subject to regulations under the Bank Holding Company Act
and/or certain acquisitions of the Series L Preferred Stock may be subject to prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board.

So long as any shares of Series L Preferred Stock remain outstanding:

« the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at ]Jeast two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series L Preferred Stock and all
other Parity Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series, will be required to issue, authorize
or increase the
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authorized amount of, or to issue or authorize any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the right to purchase,
any class or series of stock ranking senior to the Series L Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock with respect to payment
of dividends or the distribution of assets upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and

*+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series L Preferred Stock at the
time outstanding, voting separately as a class, will be required to amend the provisions of USB’s Certificate of Incorporation
or the Certificate of Designations of the Series L Preferred Stock or any other series of Preferred Stock so as to materially
and adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series L Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; provided,
however, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued Series L Preferred Stock or authorized Preferred Stock
or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of other series of Preferred Stock and/or
Junior Stock will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series L Preferred
Stock.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would
otherwise be required will be effected, all outstanding shares of Series L Preferred Stock have been redeemed or called for
redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of the Series L
Preferred Stock to effect such redemption.

Series M Preferred Stock

General — The depositary is the sole holder of the Series M Preferred Stock, as described below under the section entitled
“—Description of Depositary Shares,” and all references herein to the holders of the Series M Preferred Stock mean the depositary.
However, the holders of depositary shares will be entitled, through the depositary, to exercise the rights and preferences of the
holders of the Series M Preferred Stock, as described below under “—Description of Depositary Shares.” The holders of the Series
M Preferred Stock have no preemptive rights with respect to any shares of USB’s capital stock or any of its other securities
convertible into or carrying rights or options to purchase any such capital stock.

The holders of Series M Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive non-cumulative cash dividends when, as and if declared
out of assets legally available for payment of dividends. In the event USB does not declare dividends or does not pay dividends in
full on the Series M Preferred Stock on any date on which dividends are due, then such unpaid dividends will not cumulate and will
no longer accrue and be payable.

The Series M Preferred Stock is perpetual and will not be convertible into shares of USB’s Common Stock or any other class
or series of USB’s capital stock, and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other obligation for their repurchase or retirement.

Rank — With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series M Preferred Stock ranks equally
with the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series B Preferred




Stock, the Series J Preferred Stock, the Series K Preferred Stock, the Series L Preferred Stock, the Series N Preferred Stock and the
Series O Preferred Stock and with any future class or series of USB’s capital stock that ranks on a par with the Series M Preferred
Stock in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up. With respect to
the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series M Preferred Stock ranks senior to USB’s Common Stock and any
other future class or series of USB’s capital stock over which the Series M Preferred Stock has preference or priority in the payment
of dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up. USB may not issue any class of series of
capital stock having a preference or priority in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation,
dissolution or winding up over the Series M Preferred Stock without the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least 66-
2/3% of all of the shares of the Series M Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock, at the time outstanding, voting as a single class
without regard to series.

In particular, during a dividend period and subject to certain exceptions, no dividend will be paid or declared and no
distribution will be made on any Junior Stock, other than a dividend payable solely in Junior Stock, no shares of Junior Stock may be
repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB, directly or indirectly (other than (i) as a result of
reclassification of Junior Stock for or into Junior Stock, or the exchange or conversion of one share of Junior Stock for or into
another share of Junior Stock, (ii) through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares of Junior
Stock, (iii) purchases of shares of Junior Stock pursuant to a contractually binding requirement to buy such Junior Stock existing
prior to the commencement of the then-current dividend period, including under a contractually binding stock repurchase plan, (iv)
any purchase, redemption or other acquisition of Junior Stock pursuant to any employee, consultant or director incentive or benefit
plans or arrangements of USB’s or any of USB’s subsidiaries (including any employment, severance or consulting arrangements
adopted before or after the issuance of the Series M Preferred Stock) and (v) in connection with any underwriting, stabilization,
market-making or similar transactions in USB’s capital stock by an investment banking subsidiary of USB in the ordinary course of
such subsidiary’s business), nor will any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such
securities by USB, and no shares of Parity Stock may be purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB
otherwise than pursuant to pro rata offers to purchase all, or a pro rata portion, of the Series M Preferred Stock and such Parity Stock
except by conversion into or exchange for Junior Stock, unless full dividends for the most recently completed dividend period on all
outstanding shares of Series M Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set aside.

Dividends — Dividends on shares of the Series M Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. Holders of Series M Preferred
Stock will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by USB’s board of directors or a duly authorized committee of the board,
out of assets legally available for the payment of dividends under Delaware law, non-cumulative cash dividends. Dividends on each
share of Series M Preferred Stock will accrue on the liquidation preference amount of $25,000 per share at a rate per annum equal to
4.00% payable quarterly in arrears on each January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15. If any day on which dividends are payable
on the Series M Preferred Stock is not a business day, then payment of the dividend payable on that




date will be made on the next succeeding day that is a business day, without any interest or other payment in respect of such delay.
The record date for payment of dividends on the Series M Preferred Stock will be the last day of the immediately preceding calendar
month during which the dividend payment date falls. The amount of dividends payable for any period will be computed on the basis
of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Dollar amounts resulting from that calculation will be rounded to three
decimal places, with $0.0005 being rounded upward. For purposes of the Series M Prefetred Stock, the term “business day” means
each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday on which banking institutions are not authorized or obligated by law,
regulation or executive order to close in New York, New York. Dividends on the Series M Preferred Stock will not be declared, paid
or set aside for payment to the extent such act would cause USB to fail to comply with any applicable laws and regulations,
including applicable capital adequacy guidelines.

The right of holders of the Series M Preferred Stock to receive dividends is non-cumulative. If USB’s board of directors does not
declare a dividend on the Series M Preferred Stock or declares less than a full dividend in respect of any dividend period, the holders
of the Series M Preferred Stock will have no right to receive any dividend or a full dividend, as the case may be, for that dividend
period, and USB will have no obligation to pay a dividend or to pay full dividends for that dividend period, whether or not dividends
are declared and paid for any future dividend period with respect to the Series M Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, Junior Stock or any
other class or series of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock.

When dividends are not paid in full upon the Series M Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock, dividends upon that stock
will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that
accrued dividends for the current dividend period per share on the Series M Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any
accumulations, on such Parity Stock, bear to each other. No interest will be payable in respect of any dividend payment on the Series
M Preferred Stock that may be in arrears.

Redemption —The Series M Preferred Stock is not subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar
provision.

The Series M Preferred Stock will be redeemable at USB’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on or after April 15, 2026
at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any undeclared
dividends.

In addition, within 90 days following the occurrence of a Regulatory Capital Treatment Event, USB, at its option, subject to
the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, at any time, all (but not less than all) of the shares of Series
M Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends,
without accumulation of any undeclared dividends. For purposes of the Series M Preferred Stock, “Regulatory Capital Treatment
Event” means the good faith determination by USB that, as a result of (i) any amendment to, or change in, the laws or regulations of
the United States or any political subdivision of or in the United States that is enacted or becomes effective




after the initial issuance of any share of Series M Preferred Stock, (ii) any proposed change in those laws or regulations that is
announced after the initial issuance of any share of Series M Preferred Stock, or (iii) any official administrative decision or judicial
decision or administrative action or other official pronouncement interpreting or applying those laws or regulations that is announced
after the initial issuance of any share of Series M Preferred Stock, there is more than an insubstantial risk that USB will not be
entitled to treat the full liquidation value of the shares of Series M Preferred Stock then outstanding as “additional tier 1 capital” (or
its equivalent) for purposes of the capital adequacy guidelines of the Federal Reserve Board (or, as and if applicable, the capital
adequacy guidelines or regulations of any successor Appropriate Federal Banking Agency), as then in effect and applicable, for as
long as any share of Series M Preferred Stock is outstanding.

If shares of the Series M Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption will be given by first class mail to the
holders of record of the Series M Preferred Stock to be redeemed, mailed not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption thereof (provided that, if the depositary shares representing the Series M Preferred Stock are held in book-
entry form through DTC, USB may give such notice in any manner permitted by the DTC). Each notice of redemption will include a
statement setting forth: (i) the redemption date, (ii) the number of shares of the Series M Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less
than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder, (iif) the
redemption price, (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing shares of Series M Preferred Stock are to be surrendered
for payment of the redemption price and (v) that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on the redemption date.
If notice of redemption of any shares of Series M Preferred Stock has been duly given and if the funds necessary for such
redemption have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of any shares of Series M Preferred Stock so called for
redemption, then, on and after the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on such shares of Series M Preferred Stock, such
shares of Series M Preferred Stock will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate,
except the right to receive the redemption price.

In case of any redemption of only part of the shares of the Series M Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be
redeemed will be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as USB may determine to be fair and equitable.

Under the Federal Reserve Board’s risk-based capital guidelines applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of
the Series M Preferred Stock is subject to prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board.

Rights Upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up — In the event of USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the
holders of the Series M Preferred Stock at the time outstanding will be entitled to receive a liquidating distribution in the amount of
the liquidation preference of $25,000 per share, plus any authorized, declared and unpaid dividends for the then-current dividend
period to the date of liquidation, out of USB’s assets legally available for distribution to USB’s stockholders, before any distribution
is made to holders of USB’s Common




Stock or any Junior Stock and subject to the rights of the holders of any class or series of securities ranking senior to or on parity
with the Series M Preferred Stock upon liquidation and the rights of USB’s depositors and other creditors.

If the amounts available for distribution upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up are not sufficient to satisfy the
full liquidation rights of all the outstanding Series M Preferred Stock and all stock ranking equal to the Series M Preferred Stock,
then the holders of each series of Preferred Stock will share ratably in any distribution of assets in proportion to the full respective
preferential amount to which they are entitled. After the full amount of the liquidation preference is paid, the holders of Series M
Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of USB’s assets.

For such purposes, USB’s consolidation or merger with or into any other entity, the consolidation or merger of any other
entity with or into USB, or the sale of all or substantially all of USB’s property or business will not be deemed to constitute USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Voting Rights — Except as provided below, the holders of the Series M Preferred Stock have no voting rights.

Whenever dividends on any shares of the Series M Preferred Stock or any other class or series of Parity Stock have not been
declared and paid for an amount equal to six or more quarterly dividend periods (whether consecutive or not) or their equivalent, the
holders of the Series M Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock
having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) will be entitled to vote as a single class for the election of a total of two additional
members of USB’s board of directors, provided that the election of any such directors will not cause USB to violate the corporate
governance requirement of the New York Stock Exchange (or any other exchange on which USB’s securities may be listed) that
listed companies must have a majority of independent directors and provided further that USB’s board of directors will at no time
include more than two Preferred Directors. In that event, the number of directors on USB’s board of directors will automatically
increase by two and, at the request of any holder of Series M Preferred Stock, a special meeting of the holders of Series M Preferred
Stock and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series M Preferred Stock as to payment of
dividends and for which dividends have not been paid, will be called for the election of the two directors (unless such request is
received less than 90 days before the date fixed for the next annual or special meeting of the stockholders, in which event such
election will be held at such next annual or special meeting of stockholders), followed by such election at each subsequent annual
meeting. These voting rights will continue until full dividends have been paid regularly on the shares of the Series M Preferred Stock
and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series M Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends for
at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their equivalent following the Nonpayment.




If and when full dividends have been regularly paid for at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their
equivalent following a Nonpayment on the Series M Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Parity Stock, the holders of the
Series M Preferred Stock will be divested of the foregoing voting rights (subject to revesting in the event of each subsequent
Nonpayment) and the term of office of each Preferred Director so elected will terminate and the number of directors on USB’s board
of directors will automatically decrease by two. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time without cause by the holders of
record of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Series M Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of
USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be
entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) when they have the voting rights described
above. So long as a Nonpayment continues, any vacancy in the office of a Preferred Director (other than prior to the initial election
of the Preferred Directors) may be filled by the written consent of the Preferred Director remaining in office, or if none remains in
office, by a vote of the holders of the outstanding shares of Series M Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other class
of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be
entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) to serve until the next annual meeting of
stockholders. The Preferred Directors will each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter.

If the holders of Series M Preferred Stock become entitled to vote for the election of Preferred Directors, the Series M
Preferred Stock may be considered a class of voting securities under interpretations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. As a
result, certain holders of the Series M Preferred Stock may become subject to regulations under the Bank Holding Company Act
and/or certain acquisitions of the Series M Preferred Stock may be subject to prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board.

So long as any shares of Series M Preferred Stock remain outstanding:

+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series M Preferred Stock and all
other Parity Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series, will be required to issue, authorize
or increase the authorized amount of;, or to issue or authorize any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the
right to purchase, any class or series of stock ranking senior to the Series M Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock with
respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and

* the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series M Preferred Stock at the
time outstanding, voting separately as a class, will be required to amend the provisions of USB’s Certificate of Incorporation
or the Certificate of Designations of the Series M Preferred Stock or any other series of Preferred Stock so as to materially
and adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series M Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; provided,
however, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued Series M Preferred Stock or authorized Preferred Stock
or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of




other series of Preferred Stock and/or Junior Stock will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges
or rights of the Series M Preferred Stock.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would
otherwise be required will be effected, all outstanding shares of Series M Preferred Stock have been redeemed or called for
redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of the Series M
Preferred Stock to effect such redemption.

Series N Preferred Stock

General — The depositary is the sole holder of the Series N Preferred Stock, as described below under the section entitled
“—Description of Depositary Shares,” and all references herein to the holders of the Series N Preferred Stock mean the depositary.
However, the holders of depositary shares will be entitled, through the depositary, to exercise the rights and preferences of the
holders of the Series N Preferred Stock, as described below under “—Description of Depositary Shares.” The holders of the Series N
Preferred Stock have no preemptive rights with respect to any shares of USB’s capital stock or any of its other securities convertible
into or carrying rights or options to purchase any such capital stock.

The holders of Series N Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive non-cumulative cash dividends when, as and if declared
out of assets legally available for payment of dividends. In the event USB does not declare dividends or does not pay dividends in
full on the Series N Preferred Stock on any date on which dividends are due, then such unpaid dividends will not cumulate and will
no longer accrue and be payable.

The Series N Preferred Stock is perpetual and will not be convertible into shares of USB’s Common Stock or any other class
or series of USB’s capital stock, and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other obligation for their repurchase or retirement.

Rank — With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series N Preferred Stock ranks equally
with the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series B Preferred Stock, the Series J Preferred Stock, the Series K Preferred Stock, the Series
L Preferred Stock, the Series M Preferred Stock and the Series O Preferred Stock and with any future class or series of USB’s capital
stock that ranks on a par with the Series N Preferred Stock in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets on USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series N
Preferred Stock ranks senior to USB’s Common Stock and any other future class or series of USB’s capital stock over which the
Series N Preferred Stock has preference or priority in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation,
dissolution or winding up. USB may not issue any class of series of capital stock having a preference or priority in the payment of
dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up over the Series N Preferred Stock without
the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least 66-2/3% of all of the shares of the Series N Preferred Stock and all other
Parity Stock, at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series.
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In particular, during a dividend period and subject to certain exceptions, no dividend will be paid or declared and no
distribution will be made on any Junior Stock, other than a dividend payable solely in Junior Stock, no shares of Junior Stock may be
repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB, directly or indirectly (other than (i) as a result of
reclassification of Junior Stock for or into Junior Stock, or the exchange or conversion of one share of Junior Stock for or into
another share of Junior Stock, (ii) through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares of Junior
Stock, (iii) purchases of shares of Junior Stock pursuant to a contractually binding requirement to buy such Junior Stock existing
prior to the commencement of the then-current dividend period, including under a contractually binding stock repurchase plan, (iv)
any purchase, redemption or other acquisition of Junior Stock pursuant to any employee, consultant or director incentive or benefit
plans or arrangements of USB’s or any of USB’s subsidiaries (including any employment, severance or consulting arrangements
adopted before or after the issuance of the Series N Preferred Stock) and (v) in connection with any underwriting, stabilization,
market-making or similar transactions in USB’s capital stock by an investment banking subsidiary of USB in the ordinary course of
such subsidiary’s business), nor will any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such
securities by USB, and no shares of Parity Stock may be purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB
otherwise than pursuant to pro rata offers to purchase all, or a pro rata portion, of the Series N Preferred Stock and such Parity Stock
except by conversion into or exchange for Junior Stock, unless full dividends for the most recently completed dividend period on all
outstanding shares of Series N Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set aside.

Dividends — Dividends on shares of the Series N Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. Holders of Series N Preferred
Stock will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by USB’s board of directors or a duly authorized committee of the board,
out of assets legally available for the payment of dividends under Delaware law, non-cumulative cash dividends. Dividends on each
share of Series N Preferred Stock will accrue on the liquidation preference amount of $25,000 per share, payable quarterly in arrears
on each January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15 (each, a “dividend payment date”). Dividends declared will accrue (i) from the
original issue date to, but excluding, January 15, 2027 (the “first reset date™), at a rate per annum of 3.70% and (ii) from and
including the first reset date, during each reset period (as defined below), at a rate per annum equal to the five-year treasury rate (as
defined below) as of the most recent reset dividend determination date (as defined below), plus a spread of 2.541%. In the event that
USB issues additional shares of Series N Preferred Stock after the original issue date, dividends on such shares may accrue from the
original issue or any other date specified by USB at the time such additional shares are issued.

As used herein:

“dividend period” is the period from, and including, a dividend payment date to, but excluding, the next dividend payment
date, except that the initial dividend period will commence on and include the original issue date of the Series N Preferred Stock.




“five-year treasury rate” will be determined by the calculation agent on the applicable reset dividend determination date as
the average of the yields on actively traded U.S. treasury securities adjusted to constant maturity, for five-year maturities, for the five
business days preceding the applicable reset dividend determination date appearing (or, if fewer than five business days so appear,
for such number of business days appearing) under the caption “Treasury Constant Maturities” in the most recently published H.15.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if USB or USB’s designee (which may be an affiliate of USB), after consulting with USB,
determines on the relevant reset dividend determination date that the then-current reference rate (which as of the original issue date
of the Series N Preferred Stock is the five-year treasury rate) cannot be determined in the manner applicable for such reference rate
(a “rate substitution event”), USB or such designee, after consulting with USB, may determine whether there is an industry-accepted
successor rate to the then-applicable reference rate (such successor rate, the “replacement rate”). If USB or such designee, after
consultation with USB, determines there is such a replacement rate, then the replacement rate will replace the then-current reference
rate for all purposes relating to the Series N Preferred Stock (including the dividend rate) on such reset dividend determination date
and thereafter. In addition, if a replacement rate is selected, USB or USB’s designee (which may be an affiliate of USB), after
consulting with USB, may then adopt and make changes to (i) the reset date, the reset period, the reset dividend determination date,
the day count convention, the business day convention, the definition of business day and the rounding conventions to be used and
(ii) any other relevant methodology or definition for determining or otherwise calculating such replacement rate, including any
spread or adjustment factor needed to make such replacement rate comparable to the then-current reference rate (which as of the
original issue date of the Series N Preferred Stock is the five-year treasury rate), in each case in a manner that is substantially
consistent with industry-accepted practices for the use of such replacement rate (the “adjustments”). If USB or USB’s designee
(which may be an affiliate of USB), after consulting with USB, determines that there is no such replacement rate, then the reference
rate for the applicable reset dividend determination date will be deemed to be the same rate determined for the prior reset dividend
determination date or, in the case of the first reset dividend determination date, 3.70%.

“H.15” means the daily statistical release designated as such, or any successor publication, published by the Federal Reserve
Board or any successor.

“reference rate” means, initially, the five-year treasury rate; provided that if a rate substitution event has occurred with
respect to the five-year treasury rate or the then-current reference rate, then “reference rate” means the applicable replacement rate.

“reset date” means the first reset date and each date falling on the fifth anniversary of the preceding reset date, subject to
adjustment as provided above. Reset dates, including the first reset date, will not be adjusted for business days.

“reset dividend determination date” means, in respect of any reset period, the day falling three business days prior to the
beginning of such reset period.

42




“reset period” means the period from and including the first reset date to, but excluding, the next following reset date and
thereafter each period from, and including, each reset date to, but excluding, the next following reset date, subject to adjustment as
provided above.

The applicable dividend rate for each reset period from and including the first reset date will be determined by the calculation
agent, as of the applicable reset dividend determination date. Promptly upon such determination, the calculation agent will notify
USB of the dividend rate for the reset period. Any calculation or determination by the calculation agent with respect to the dividend
rate will be made in the calculation agent’s sole discretion and will be conclusive and binding absent manifest error.

Any determination, decision or selection that may be made by USB or USB’s designee pursuant to the provisions of the
Series N Preferred Stock (including provisions relating to a rate substitution event, such as any determination with respect to tenor,
rate or adjustment, or of the occurrence or non-occurrence of an event, circumstance or date, and any decision to take or refrain from
taking any action or make or refrain from making any selection) will be made in USB’s or such designee’s sole discretion, will be
conclusive and binding absent manifest error and will become effective without consent from the holders of the Series N Preferred
Stock.

If any day on which dividends are payable on the Series N Preferred Stock is not a business day, then payment of the
dividend payable on that date will be made on the next succeeding day that is a business day, without any interest or other payment
in respect of such delay. The record date for payment of dividends on the Series N Preferred Stock will be the last day of the
immediately preceding calendar month during which the dividend payment date falls. The amount of dividends payable for any
period will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Dollar amounts resulting from that
calculation will be rounded to three decimal places, with $0.0005 being rounded upward. For purposes of the Series N Preferred
Stock, the term “business day” means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday on which banking institutions are not
authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close in New York, New York. Dividends on the Series N Preferred
Stock will not be declared, paid or set aside for payment to the extent such act would cause USB to fail to comply with any
applicable laws and regulations, including applicable capital adequacy guidelines.

The right of holders of the Series N Preferred Stock to receive dividends is non-cumulative. If USB’s board of directors does not
declare a dividend on the Series N Preferred Stock or declares less than a full dividend in respect of any dividend period, the holders
of the Series N Preferred Stock will have no right to receive any dividend or a full dividend, as the case may be, for that dividend
period, and USB will have no obligation to pay a dividend or to pay full dividends for that dividend period, whether or not dividends
are declared and paid for any future dividend period with respect to the Series N Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, Junior Stock or any
other class or series of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock.




When dividends are not paid in full upon the Series N Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock, dividends upon that stock
will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that
accrued dividends for the current dividend period per share on the Series N Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any
accumulations, on such Parity Stock, bear to each other. No interest will be payable in respect of any dividend payment on the Series
N Preferred Stock that may be in arrears.

Redemption —The Series N Preferred Stock is not subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar
provision.

The Series N Preferred Stock will be redeemable at USB’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on or after January 15,
2027 at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any
undeclared dividends.

In addition, within 90 days following the occurrence of a Regulatory Capital Treatment Event, USB, at its option, subject to
the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, at any time, all (but not less than all) of the shares of Series N
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends,
without accumulation of any undeclared dividends. For purposes of the Series N Preferred Stock, “Regulatory Capital Treatment
Event” means the good faith determination by USB that, as a result of (i) any amendment to, or change in, the laws or regulations of
the United States or any political subdivision of or in the United States that is enacted or becomes effective after the initial issuance
of any share of Series N Preferred Stock, (ii) any proposed change in those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial
issuance of any share of Series N Preferred Stock, or (iii) any official administrative decision or judicial decision or administrative
action or other official pronouncement interpreting or applying those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial issuance
of any share of Series N Preferred Stock, there is more than an insubstantial risk that USB will not be entitled to treat the full
liquidation value of the shares of Series N Preferred Stock then outstanding as “additional tier 1 capital” (or its equivalent) for
purposes of the capital adequacy guidelines of the Federal Reserve Board (or, as and if applicable, the capital adequacy guidelines or
regulations of any successor Appropriate Federal Banking Agency), as then in effect and applicable, for as long as any share of
Series N Preferred Stock is outstanding.

If shares of the Series N Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption will be given by first class mail to the
holders of record of the Series N Preferred Stock to be redeemed, mailed not less than 10 days nor more than 60 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption thereof (provided that, if the depositary shares representing the Series N Preferred Stock are held in book-
entry form through DTC, USB may give such notice in any manner permitted by the DTC). Each notice of redemption will include a
statement setting forth: (i) the redemption date, (ii) the number of shares of the Series N Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less
than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder, (iii) the
redemption price, (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing shares of Series N Preferred Stock are to be surrendered
for payment of '
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the redemption price and (v) that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on the redemption date. If notice of
redemption of any shares of Series N Preferred Stock has been duly given and if the funds necessary for such redemption have been
set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of any shares of Series N Preferred Stock so called for redemption, then, on and after
the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on such shares of Series N Preferred Stock, such shares of Series N Preferred
Stock will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the right to receive the
redemption price.

In case of any redemption of only part of the shares of the Series N Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be
redeemed will be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as USB may determine to be fair and equitable.

Under the Federal Reserve Board’s risk-based capital guidelines applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of
the Series N Preferred Stock is subject to prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board.

Rights Upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up — In the event of USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the
holders of the Series N Preferred Stock at the time outstanding will be entitled to receive a liquidating distribution in the amount of
the liquidation preference of $25,000 per share, plus any authorized, declared and unpaid dividends for the then-current dividend
period to the date of liquidation, out of USB’s assets legally available for distribution to USB’s stockholders, before any distribution
is made to holders of USB’s Common Stock or any Junior Stock and subject to the rights of the holders of any class or series of
securities ranking senior to or on parity with the Series N Preferred Stock upon liquidation and the rights of USB’s depositors and
other creditors.

If the amounts available for distribution upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up are not sufficient to satisfy the
full liquidation rights of all the outstanding Series N Preferred Stock and all stock ranking equal to the Series N Preferred Stock, then
the holders of each series of Preferred Stock will share ratably in any distribution of assets in proportion to the full respective
preferential amount to which they are entitled. After the full amount of the liquidation preference is paid, the holders of Series N
Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of USB’s assets.

For such purposes, USB’s consolidation or merger with or into any other entity, the consolidation or merger of any other
entity with or into USB, or the sale of all or substantially all of USB’s property or business will not be deemed to constitute USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Voting Rights — Except as provided below, the holders of the Series N Preferred Stock have no voting rights.

Whenever dividends on any shares of the Series N Preferred Stock or any other class or series of Parity Stock have not been
declared and paid for an amount equal to six or more

45




quarterly dividend periods (whether consecutive or not) or their equivalent, the holders of the Series N Preferred Stock (together
with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the
holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) will
be entitled to vote as a single class for the election of a total of two additional members of USB’s board of directors, provided that
the election of any such directors will not cause USB to violate the corporate governance requirement of the New York Stock
Exchange (or any other exchange on which USB’s securities may be listed) that listed companies must have a majority of
independent directors and provided further that USB’s board of directors will at no time include more than two Preferred Directors.
In that event, the number of directors on USB’s board of directors will automatically increase by two and, at the request of any
holder of Series N Preferred Stock, a special meeting of the holders of Series N Preferred Stock and any other class or series of
Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series N Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends and for which dividends have not
been paid, will be called for the election of the two directors (unless such request is received less than 90 days before the date fixed
for the next annual or special meeting of the stockholders, in which event such election will be held at such next annual or special
meeting of stockholders), followed by such election at each subsequent annual meeting. These voting rights will continue until full
dividends have been paid regularly on the shares of the Series N Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that
ranks on parity with the Series N Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends for at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods
or their equivalent following the Nonpayment.

If and when full dividends have been regularly paid for at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their
equivalent following a Nonpayment on the Series N Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Parity Stock, the holders of the
Series N Preferred Stock will be divested of the foregoing voting rights (subject to revesting in the event of each subsequent
Nonpayment) and the term of office of each Preferred Director so elected will terminate and the number of directors on USB’s board
of directors will automatically decrease by two. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time without cause by the holders of
record of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Series N Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of
USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be
entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) when they have the voting rights described
above. So long as a Nonpayment continues, any vacancy in the office of a Preferred Director (other than prior to the initial election
of the Preferred Directors) may be filled by the written consent of the Preferred Director remaining in office, or if none remains in
office, by a vote of the holders of the outstanding shares of Series N Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other class
of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be
entitled to vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) to serve until the next annual meeting of
stockholders. The Preferred Directors will each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter.

If the holders of Series N Preferred Stock become entitled to vote for the election of Preferred Directors, the Series N

Preferred Stock may be considered a class of voting securities under interpretations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. As a
result, certain holders of the
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Series N Preferred Stock may become subject to regulations under the Bank Holding Company Act and/or certain acquisitions of the
Series N Preferred Stock may be subject to prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board.

So long as any shares of Series N Preferred Stock remain outstanding;:

the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series N Preferred Stock and all
other Parity Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series, will be required to issue, authorize
or increase the authorized amount of, or to issue or authorize any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the
right to purchase, any class or series of stock ranking senior to the Series N Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock with
respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and

the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series N Preferred Stock at the
time outstanding, voting separately as a class, will be required to amend the provisions of USB’s Certificate of Incorporation
or the Certificate of Designations of the Series N Preferred Stock or any other series of Preferred Stock so as to materially
and adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series N Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; provided,
however, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued Series N Preferred Stock or authorized Preferred Stock
or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of other series of Preferred Stock and/or
Junior Stock will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series N Preferred
Stock.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would

otherwise be required will be effected, all outstanding shares of Series N Preferred Stock have been redeemed or called for
redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of the Series N
Preferred Stock to effect such redemption.

Series O Preferred Stock

General — The depositary is the sole holder of the Series O Preferred Stock, as described below under the section entitled

“—Description of Depositary Shares,” and all references herein to the holders of the Series O Preferred Stock mean the depositary.
However, the holders of depositary shares will be entitled, through the depositary, to exercise the rights and preferences of the
holders of the Series O Preferred Stock, as described below under “—Description of Depositary Shares.” The holders of the Series O
Preferred Stock have no preemptive rights with respect to any shares of USB’s capital stock or any of its other securities convertible
into or carrying rights or options to purchase any such capital stock.

The holders of Series O Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive non-cumulative cash dividends when, as and if declared

out of assets legally available for payment of dividends. In the event USB does not declare dividends or does not pay dividends in
full on the Series O Preferred
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Stock on any date on which dividends are due, then such unpaid dividends will not cumulate and will no longer accrue and be
payable.

The Series O Preferred Stock is perpetual and will not be convertible into shares of USB’s Common Stock or any other class
or series of USB’s capital stock, and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other obligation for their repurchase or retirement.

Rank — With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series O Preferred Stock ranks equally
with the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series B Preferred Stock, the Series J Preferred Stock, the Series K Preferred Stock, the Series
L Preferred Stock, the Series M Preferred Stock and the Series N Preferred Stock and with any future class or series of USB’s capital
stock that ranks on a par with the Series O Preferred Stock in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets on USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, the Series O
Preferred Stock ranks senior to USB’s Common Stock and any other future class or series of USB’s capital stock over which the
Series O Preferred Stock has preference or priority in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation,
dissolution or winding up. USB may not issue any class of series of capital stock having a preference or priority in the payment of
dividends or in the distribution of assets on USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up over the Series O Preferred Stock without
the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least 66-2/3% of all of the shares of the Series O Preferred Stock and all other
Parity Stock, at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series.

In particular, during a dividend period and subject to certain exceptions, no dividend will be paid or declared and no
distribution will be made on any Junior Stock, other than a dividend payable solely in Junior Stock, no shares of Junior Stock may be
repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB, directly or indirectly (other than (i) as a result of
reclassification of Junior Stock for or into Junior Stock, or the exchange or conversion of one share of Junjor Stock for or into
another share of Junior Stock, (ii) through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares of Junior
Stock, (iii) purchases of shares of Junior Stock pursuant to a contractually binding requirement to buy such Junior Stock existing
prior to the commencement of the then-current dividend period, including under a contractually binding stock repurchase plan, (iv)
any purchase, redemption or other acquisition of Junior Stock pursuant to any employee, consultant or director incentive or benefit
plans or arrangements of USB’s or any of USB’s subsidiaries (including any employment, severance or consulting arrangements
adopted before or after the issuance of the Series O Preferred Stock) and (v) in connection with any underwriting, stabilization,
market-making or similar transactions in USB’s capital stock by an investment banking subsidiary of USB in the ordinary course of
such subsidiary’s business), nor will any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such
securities by USB, and no shares of Parity Stock may be purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by USB
otherwise than pursuant to pro rata offers to purchase all, or a pro rata portion, of the Series O Preferred Stock and such Parity Stock
except by conversion into or exchange for Junior Stock, unless full dividends for the most recently completed dividend period on all
outstanding shares of Series O Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set aside.
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Dividends — Dividends on shares of the Series O Preferred Stock will not be mandatory. Holders of Series O Preferred
Stock will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by USB’s board of directors or a duly authorized committee of the board,
out of assets legally available for the payment of dividends under Delaware law, non-cumulative cash dividends. Dividends on each
share of Series O Preferred Stock will accrue on the liquidation preference amount of $25,000 per share at a rate per annum equal to
4.50% payable quarterly in arrears on each January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15. If any day on which dividends are payable
on the Series O Preferred Stock is not a business day, then payment of the dividend payable on that date will be made on the next
succeeding day that is a business day, without any interest or other payment in respect of such delay. The record date for payment of
dividends on the Series O Preferred Stock will be the last day of the immediately preceding calendar month during which the
dividend payment date falls. The amount of dividends payable for any period will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months. Dollar amounts resulting from that calculation will be rounded to three decimal places, with
$0.0005 being rounded upward. For purposes of the Series O Preferred Stock, the term “business day” means each Monday,
Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday on which banking institutions are not authorized or obligated by law, regulation or
executive order to close in New York, New York. Dividends on the Series O Preferred Stock will not be declared, paid or set aside
for payment to the extent such act would cause USB to fail to comply with any applicable laws and regulations, including applicable
capital adequacy guidelines.

The right of holders of the Series O Preferred Stock to receive dividends is non-cumulative. If USB’s board of directors does not
declare a dividend on the Series O Preferred Stock or declares less than a full dividend in respect of any dividend period, the holders
of the Series O Preferred Stock will have no right to receive any dividend or a full dividend, as the case may be, for that dividend
period, and USB will have no obligation to pay a dividend or to pay full dividends for that dividend period, whether or not dividends
are declared and paid for any future dividend period with respect to the Series O Preferred Stock, Parity Stock, Junior Stock or any
other class or series of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock.

When dividends are not paid in full upon the Series O Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock, dividends upon that stock
will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that
accrued dividends for the current dividend period per share on the Series O Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any
accumulations, on such Parity Stock, bear to each other. No interest will be payable in respect of any dividend payment on the Series
O Preferred Stock that may be in arrears.

Redemption —The Series O Preferred Stock is not subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar
provision.

The Series O Preferred Stock will be redeemable at USB’s option, in whole or in part, at any time on or after April 15, 2027

at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any undeclared
dividends.
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In addition, within 90 days following the occurrence of a Regulatory Capital Treatment Event, USB, at its option, subject to
the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, at any time, all (but not less than all) of the shares of Series O
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, at a redemption price equal to $25,000 per share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends,
without accumulation of any undeclared dividends. For purposes of the Series O Preferred Stock, “Regulatory Capital Treatment
Event” means the good faith determination by USB that, as a result of (i) any amendment to, or change in, the laws or regulations of
the United States or any political subdivision of or in the United States that is enacted or becomes effective after the initial issuance
of any share of Series O Preferred Stock, (ii) any proposed change in those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial
issuance of any share of Series O Preferred Stock, or (iii) any official administrative decision or judicial decision or administrative
action or other official pronouncement interpreting or applying those laws or regulations that is announced after the initial issuance
of any share of Series O Preferred Stock, there is more than an insubstantial risk that USB will not be entitled to treat the full
liquidation value of the shares of Series O Preferred Stock then outstanding as “additional tier 1 capital” (or its equivalent) for
purposes of the capital adequacy guidelines of the Federal Reserve Board (or, as and if applicable, the capital adequacy guidelines or
regulations of any successor Appropriate Federal Banking Agency), as then in effect and applicable, for as long as any share of
Series O Preferred Stock is outstanding.

If shares of the Series O Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption will be given by first class mail to the
holders of record of the Series O Preferred Stock to be redeemed, mailed not less than 10 days nor more than 60 days prior to the
date fixed for redemption thereof (provided that, if the depositary shares representing the Series O Preferred Stock are held in book-
entry form through DTC, USB may give such notice in any manner permitted by the DTC). Each notice of redemption will include a
statement setting forth: (i) the redemption date, (ii) the number of shares of the Series O Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less
than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder, (iii) the
redemption price, (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing shares of Series O Preferred Stock are to be surrendered
for payment of the redemption price and (v) that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on the redemption date.
If notice of redemption of any shares of Series O Preferred Stock has been duly given and if the funds necessary for such redemption
have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of any shares of Series O Preferred Stock so called for redemption, then, on
and after the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on such shares of Series O Preferred Stock, such shares of Series O
Preferred Stock will no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the right to
receive the redemption price.

In case of any redemption of only part of the shares of the Series O Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be
redeemed will be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as USB may determine to be fair and equitable.
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Under the Federal Reserve Board’s risk-based capital guidelines applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of
the Series O Preferred Stock is subject to prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board.

Rights Upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up — In the event of USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the
holders of the Series O Preferred Stock at the time outstanding will be entitled to receive a liquidating distribution in the amount of
the liquidation preference of $25,000 per share, plus any authorized, declared and unpaid dividends for the then-current dividend
period to the date of liquidation, out of USB’s assets legally available for distribution to USB’s stockholders, before any distribution
is made to holders of USB’s Common Stock or any Junior Stock and subject to the rights of the holders of any class or series of
securities ranking senior to or on parity with the Series O Preferred Stock upon liquidation and the rights of USB’s depositors and
other creditors.

If the amounts available for distribution upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up are not sufficient to satisfy the
full liquidation rights of all the outstanding Series O Preferred Stock and all stock ranking equal to the Series O Preferred Stock, then
the holders of each series of Preferred Stock will share ratably in any distribution of assets in proportion to the full respective
preferential amount to which they are entitled. After the full amount of the liquidation preference is paid, the holders of Series O
Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of USB’s assets.

For such purposes, USB’s consolidation or merger with or into any other entity, the consolidation or merger of any other
entity with or into USB, or the sale of all or substantially all of USB’s property or business will not be deemed to constitute USB’s
liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Voting Rights — Except as provided below, the holders of the Series O Preferred Stock have no voting rights.

Whenever dividends on any shares of the Series O Preferred Stock or any other class or series of Parity Stock have not been
declared and paid for an amount equal to six or more quarterly dividend periods (whether consecutive or not) or their equivalent, the
holders of the Series O Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s authorized Preferred Stock
having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote for the election of
directors if such default in dividends did not exist) will be entitled to vote as a single class for the election of a total of two additional
members of USB’s board of directors, provided that the election of any such directors will not cause USB to violate the corporate
governance requirement of the New York Stock Exchange (or any other exchange on which USB’s securities may be listed) that
listed companies must have a majority of independent directors and provided further that USB’s board of directors will at no time
include more than two Preferred Directors. In that event, the number of directors on USB’s board of directors will automatically
increase by two and, at the request of any holder of Series O Preferred Stock, a special meeting of the holders of Series O Preferred
Stock and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series O Preferred Stock as to payment
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of dividends and for which dividends have not been paid, will be called for the election of the two directors (unless such request is
received less than 90 days before the date fixed for the next annual or special meeting of the stockholders, in which event such
election will be held at such next annual or special meeting of stockholders), followed by such election at each subsequent annual
meeting. These voting rights will continue until full dividends have been paid regularly on the shares of the Series O Preferred Stock
and any other class or series of Preferred Stock that ranks on parity with the Series O Preferred Stock as to payment of dividends for
at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their equivalent following the Nonpayment.

If and when full dividends have been regularly paid for at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods or their equivalent
following a Nonpayment on the Series O Preferred Stock and any other class or series of Parity Stock, the holders of the Series O
Preferred Stock will be divested of the foregoing voting rights (subject to revesting in the event of each subsequent Nonpayment)
and the term of office of each Preferred Director so elected will terminate and the number of directors on USB’s board of directors
will automatically decrease by two. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time without cause by the holders of record of a
majority of the outstanding shares of the Series O Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other classes of USB’s
authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to
vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) when they have the voting rights described above. So long
as a Nonpayment continues, any vacancy in the office of a Preferred Director (other than prior to the initial election of the Preferred
Directors) may be filled by the written consent of the Preferred Director remaining in office, or if none remains in office, by a vote
of the holders of the outstanding shares of Series O Preferred Stock (together with holders of any and all other class of USB’s
authorized Preferred Stock having equivalent voting rights, whether or not the holders of such Preferred Stock would be entitled to
vote for the election of directors if such default in dividends did not exist) to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders. The
Preferred Directors will each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter.

If the holders of Series O Preferred Stock become entitled to vote for the election of Preferred Directors, the Series O
Preferred Stock may be considered a class of voting securities under interpretations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. As a
result, certain holders of the Series O Preferred Stock may become subject to regulations under the Bank Holding Company Act
and/or certain acquisitions of the Series O Preferred Stock may be subject to prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board.

So long as any shares of Series O Preferred Stock remain outstanding:

+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series O Preferred Stock and all
other Parity Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a single class without regard to series, will be required to issue, authorize
or increase the authorized amount of, or to issue or authorize any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the
right to purchase, any class or series of stock ranking senior to the Series O Preferred Stock and all other Parity Stock with
respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon USB’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and
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+ the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all of the shares of the Series O Preferred Stock at the
time outstanding, voting separately as a class, will be required to amend the provisions of USB’s Certificate of Incorporation
or the Certificate of Designations of the Series O Preferred Stock or any other series of Preferred Stock so as to materially
and adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series O Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; provided,
however, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued Series O Preferred Stock or authorized Preferred Stock
or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of other series of Preferred Stock and/or
Junior Stock will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series O Preferred
Stock.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would
otherwise be required will be effected, all outstanding shares of Series O Preferred Stock have been redeemed or called for
redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds have been set aside by USB for the benefit of the holders of the Series O
Preferred Stock to effect such redemption.

Description of Depositary Shares

In this “Description of Capital Stock,” references to “holders” of depositary shares mean those who own depositary shares
registered in their own names, on the books that USB or the depositary maintain for this purpose, and not indirect holders who own
beneficial interests in depositary shares registered in street name or issued in book-entry form through DTC.

This “Description of Capital Stock” summarizes specific terms and provisions of the depositary shares relating to USB’s
outstanding series of Preferred Stock. As described above, all of USB’s outstanding series of Preferred Stock were offered as
fractional interests in such shares of Preferred Stock in the form of depositary shares. Each depositary share represents a fractional
ownership interest in a share of Preferred Stock, and will be evidenced by a depositary receipt. The shares of each series of Preferred
Stock represented by depositary shares have been deposited under a deposit agreement among USB, U.S. Bank National
Association, as depositary, and the holders from time to time of the depositary receipts evidencing the depositary shares. Subject to
the terms of the deposit agreement, each holder of a depositary share will be entitled, through the depositary, in proportion to the
applicable fraction of a share of Preferred Stock represented by such depositary share, to all the rights and preferences of the
applicable series of Preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights).

The depositary will distribute any cash dividends or other cash distributions received in respect of the deposited Preferred
Stock to the record holders of depositary shares relating to the underlying Preferred Stock in proportion to the number of depositary
shares held by the holders. The depositary will distribute any property received by it other than cash to the record holders of
depositary shares entitled to those distributions, unless it determines that the distribution cannot be made proportionally among those
holders or that it is not feasible to make a distribution. In




that event, the depositary may, with USB’s approval, sell the property and distribute the net proceeds from the sale to the holders of
the depositary shares in proportion to the number of depositary shares they hold. Record dates for the payment of dividends and
other matters relating to the depositary shares will be the same as the corresponding record dates for the applicable series of
Preferred Stock. The amounts distributed to holders of depositary shares will be reduced by any amounts required to be withheld by
the depositary or by USB on account of taxes or other governmental charges.

If USB redeems any shares of Preferred Stock represented by depositary shares, the corresponding depositary shares will be
redeemed from the proceeds received by the depositary resulting from the redemption of the Preferred Stock held by the depositary.
The redemption price per depositary share will be equal to the fraction of the share of Preferred Stock represented by the depositary
share, plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any undeclared dividends. Whenever USB redeems shares
of Preferred Stock held by the depositary, the depositary will redeem, as of the same redemption date, the number of depositary
shares representing the shares of Preferred Stock so redeemed. In case of any redemption of less than all of the outstanding
depositary shares, the depositary shares to be redeemed will be selected by the depositary pro rata or in such other manner
determined by the depositary to be equitable. In any such case, USB will redeem depositary shares only in increments equal to the
denominator of the fraction of the share of Preferred Stock represented by one depositary share.

When the depositary receives notice of any meeting at which the holders of the applicable series of Preferred Stock are
entitled to vote, the depositary will mail the information contained in the notice to the record holders of the depositary shares relating
to such Preferred Stock. Each record holder of the depositary shares on the record date, which will be the same date as the record
date for the applicable series of Preferred Stock, may instruct the depositary to vote the amount of the Preferred Stock represented by
the holder’s depositary shares. To the extent possible, the depositary will vote the amount of the Preferred Stock represented by
depositary shares in accordance with the instructions it receives. USB will agree to take all reasonable actions that the depositary
determines are necessary to enable the depositary to vote as instructed. If the depositary does not receive specific instructions from
the holders of any depositary shares, it will vote all depositary shares of that series held by it proportionately with instructions
received.

Anti-Takeover Provisions

Provisions of federal banking law, the Delaware General Corporation Law and USB’s Certificate of Incorporation and
Bylaws described below may be deemed to have an anti-takeover effect and, together with the ability of USB’s board of directors to
issue shares of Preferred Stock and to set the voting rights, preferences and other terms of Preferred Stock, may discourage, delay or
prevent takeover attempts not first approved by USB’s board of directors. These provisions also could discourage, delay or prevent
the removal of incumbent directors or the assumption of control by stockholders. USB believes that these provisions are appropriate
to protect its interests and USB’s stockholders.
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Restrictions on Ownership. The Bank Holding Company Act requires a “bank holding company” (as defined in the Bank
Holding Company Act) to obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve Board prior to acquiring more than five percent (5%) of USB’s
outstanding Common Stock. Any person, other than a bank holding company, is required to obtain prior approval of the Federal
Reserve Board to acquire ten percent (10%) or more of USB’s outstanding Common Stock under the Change in Bank Control Act.
Any holder of twenty-five percent (25%) or more of USB’s outstanding Common Stock, other than an individual, is subject to
regulation as a bank holding company, under the Bank Holding Company Act.

Stockholder Action by Written Consent. USB’s Certificate of Incorporation authorizes action by the stockholders of USB
only pursuant to a meeting and not by a written consent.

Special Meetings of Stockholders. USB’s Bylaws provide that special meetings of stockholders may be called only by
USB’s board of directors, USB’s chief executive officer or by USB’s secretary at the written request (a “Special Meeting Request™)
of holders of record of at least 25% of the voting power of the outstanding stock of USB entitled to vote on the matter or matters to
be brought before the proposed special meeting (the “Requisite Percentage™) (such percentage to be based on the number of
outstanding voting shares of USB most recently disclosed prior to the date of the request for the special meeting by USB in its filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)). A Special Meeting Request must be signed by each stockholder
requesting the special meeting (each, a “Requesting Stockholder””) and must be accompanied by a notice setting forth the
information specified in USB’s Bylaws. Requesting Stockholders who collectively hold at least the Requisite Percentage on the date
the Special Meeting Request is submitted to USB’s secretary must: (i) continue to hold at least the number of shares of stock set
forth in the Special Meeting Request with respect to each such Requesting Stockholder through the date of the special meeting; and
(i) submit a written certification (an “Ownership Certification”) confirming the continuation of such holdings on the business day
immediately preceding the special meeting, which Ownership Certification must include the information specified in USB’s Bylaws.

A special meeting requested by stockholders will not be held if: (i) the Special Meeting Request does not comply with the
substantive and procedural requirements of the Certificate of Incorporation; (ii) the Special Meeting Request relates to an item of
business that is not a proper subject for stockholder action under applicable law; (iii) the Special Meeting Request is received by
USB during the period commencing 90 days prior to the first anniversary of the date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of
stockholders and ending on the date of the next annual meeting; (iv) an annual or special meeting of stockholders that included a
substantially similar item of business (“Similar Business”) (as determined in good faith by USB’s board of directors) was held not
more than 120 days before the Special Meeting Request was received by USB’s secretary; provided, however, that this clause
(iv) does not apply if a material corporate event relating to the item of business has occurred since the date of such prior annual or
special meeting; (v) two or more special meetings of stockholders called pursuant to the request of stockholders have been held
within the 12-month period before the Special Meeting Request was received by the secretary; (vi) USB’s board of directors has
called or calls for an annual or
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special meeting of stockholders to be held within 90 days after the Special Meeting Request is received by USB’s secretary, and
USB’s board of directors determines in good faith that the business to be conducted at such meeting includes the Similar Business;
or (vii) such Special Meeting Request was made in a manner that involved a violation of the proxy rules of the SEC or other
applicable law.

Advance Notice to Nominate Directors. Nominations of persons for election as directors at a meeting of stockholders called
for the purpose of electing directors may be made: (i) as specified in the notice of meeting (or any supplement thereto) given by or at
the direction of USB’s board of directors, including nominations made as described below under “—Stockholder Nominations
Included in USB’s Proxy Materials” or nominations to be made pursuant to a Special Meeting Request; or (ii) by any stockholder in
the following manner.

For any nomination to be properly made by a stockholder, other than nominations described below under “—Stockholder
Nominations Included in USB’s Proxy Materials” or nominations to be made pursuant to a Special Meeting Request, the stockholder
must: (i) be a stockholder of record both at the time of giving of the notice referred to in the following clause and at the time of the
meeting of stockholders called for the purpose of electing directors and be entitled to vote at such meeting; and (ii) give written
notice to USB’s secretary so as to be received at USB’s principal executive offices not less than (A) with respect to an annual
meeting of stockholders, 120 days in advance of the date of USB’s previous year’s annual meeting of stockholders, except that if no
annual meeting was held in the previous year or the date of the annual meeting has been changed by more than 30 days from the date
contemplated at the time of the previous year’s proxy statement, such notice must be so received by the later of: (1) the close of
business on the date 90 days prior to the meeting date; or (2) the close of business on the tenth day following the date on which such
meeting date is first publicly announced or disclosed; and (B) with respect to a special meeting of stockholders for the election of
directors, the close of business on the seventh day following the date on which the notice of such meeting is first given to
stockholders.

The required notice must contain the information specified in USB’s Bylaws. To be eligible as a nominee for election or reelection
as a director, an individual must deliver (in accordance with the time periods prescribed for delivery of notice under USB’s Bylaws)
to USB’s secretary at USB’s principal executive offices a completed written questionnaire with respect to the matters specified in
USB’s Bylaws and a written representation and agreement as to the matters specified in USB’s Bylaws.

Stockholder Nominations Included in USB’s Proxy Materials. If expressly requested in a Nomination Notice (as defined
below), USB will, subject to certain exceptions specified in USB’s Bylaws, include in its proxy statement for any annual meeting of
stockholders specified information regarding person(s) nominated for election (the “Nominee(s)”) by a Nominating Stockholder (as
defined below), including any statement included in support of the election of the Nominee(s) to the board by the Nominating
Stockholder in the Nomination Notice for inclusion in the proxy statement and other information that USB or its board of directors
determines, in their discretion, to include in the proxy statement relating to the nomination of the
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Nominee(s), including a statement in opposition to the nomination. Any Nominee(s) will also be included on USB’s form of proxy
and ballot.

A Nomination Notice may only be submitted by an Eligible Holder (as defined below) or group of up to 20 Eligible Holders
that has (individually and collectively, in the case of a group) satisfied, as determined by USB’s board of directors, all applicable
conditions and complied with all applicable procedures set forth in USB’s Bylaws (such Eligible Holder or group of Eligible Holders
being a “Nominating Stockholder”), including those described below.

USB is not be required to include in the proxy statement for an annual meeting of stockholders more Nominees than that
number of directors constituting the greater of (A) two and (B) 20% of the total number of USB directors on the last day on which a
Nomination Notice may be submitted.

An “Eligible Holder” is a person who has either: (A) been a record holder of the Minimum Number (as defined below) of
shares of Common Stock continuously throughout the three-year period preceding and including the date of submission of the
Nomination Notice, and continues to own at least such shares of Common Stock through the date of the annual meeting; or
(B) provides to the secretary, within the time period specified in USB’s Bylaws, appropriate evidence of continuous ownership of
such shares for such three-year period from one or more securities intermediaries.

An Eligible Holder or group of up to 20 Eligible Holders may submit a Nomination Notice only if the person or group (in the
aggregate) has continuously owned at least 3% of the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the most recent date for
which such amount is given in any filing by USB with the SEC prior to the submission of the Nomination Notice for the three—year
period specified above.

To nominate a Nominee (or Nominees), the Nominating Stockholder must, no earlier than 150 calendar days and no later
than 120 calendar days before the anniversary of the date that USB mailed its proxy statement for the prior year’s annual meeting of
stockholders, submit to the secretary at USB’s principal executive office a notice (the “Nomination Notice™) containing all of the
information and accompanied by the documents specified in USB’s Bylaws; provided, however, that if the annual meeting is not
scheduled to be held within a period that commences 30 ddys before such anniversary date and ends 30 days after such anniversary
date (an annual meeting date outside such period being referred to herein as an “Other Meeting Date™), the Nomination Notice will
be given in the manner provided herein by the later of the close of business on the date that is 180 days prior to such Other Meeting
Date or
the tenth day following the date such Other Meeting Date is first publicly announced or disclosed:

Advance Notice of Other Proposals. For business other than a nomination for director to be properly brought before an annual
meeting by a stockholder, the stockholder must have given written notice to the secretary so as to be received at USB’s principal
executive offices not less than 120 days in advance of the date of USB’s proxy statement released to stockholders in
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connection with the previous year’s annual meeting of stockholders, except that if no annual meeting was held in the previous year
or the date of the annual meeting has been changed by more than 30 days from the date contemplated at the time of the previous
year’s proxy statement, such notice must be so received a reasonable time before the solicitation is made. Each such notice must set
forth as to each matter the stockholder proposes to bring before the annual meeting the information specified in USB’s Bylaws.

DESCRIPTION OF NOTES

The following description of the 0.850% Medium-Term Notes, Series X (Senior), due June 7, 2024 (the “Notes”) of USB was
provided in the pricing supplement dated May 31, 2017 and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”)
on June 1, 2017, and USB's pricing supplement dated November 22, 2019 and filed with the Commission on November 22, 2019.
The following description is qualified by reference to such pricing supplements and the description of the general terms and
provisions of the Notes set forth in (i) USB's prospectus dated April 21, 2017 and filed with the Commission on April 21, 2017 and
(ii) USB's prospectus supplement dated April 21, 2017 and filed with the Commission on April 21, 2017. The following description of
specified provisions of the senior indenture, dated as of October 3, 1991, as amended by a first supplemental indenture, dated as of
April 21, 2017, and as further amended or supplemented from time to time (the “Indenture”), between USB and Citibank, N.A., as
trustee, and the Noles is gualified by reference to the actual provisions of the Indenture, including the definitions contained in the
Indenture of some of the terms used below, and the Notes, copies of which arve incorporated by reference as exhibits to USB s Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

The Notes are a tranche of USB’s Medium-Term Notes, Series X (Senior). As of December 31, 2020, the outstanding
aggregate principal amount of the Notes was €1,175,000,000.

The Notes were issued in minimum denominations of €100,000 and integral multiples of €1,000 in excess thereof.

USB may from time to time, without giving notice to or seeking the consent of the holders of the Notes, issue additional debt
securities having the same terms (except for the issue date, the offering price and, if applicable, the first interest payment date) and
ranking equally and ratably with the Notes. Any such additional debt securities having such similar terms, together with the Notes,
will constitute a single series of debt securities for all purposes under the Indenture, including, without limitation, waivers,
amendments and redemptions.

The Notes are USB’s general unsecured and unsubordinated obligations, rank equally with all of USB’s existing and future
unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness from time to time outstanding and are considered part of the same series of notes as any
of USB’s other Medium-Term Notes, Series X (Senior), previously issued or issued in the future. The Notes will not be subject to
any sinking fund provisions and will not be convertible into or exchangeable for any of USB’s equity interests.
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The Notes are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “USB24B”,
Interest and Principal Payments

The entire principal amount of the Notes will mature and become payable, together with unpaid interest, if any, accrued
thereon on June 7, 2024 (the “Stated Maturity Date”) unless redeemed earlier as described below under “— Redemption for Tax
Reasons.” The principal of each Note payable at maturity or earlier redemption, together with unpaid interest, if any, will be paid in
euro against presentation and surrender at the office or agency maintained for such purpose.

The Notes bear interest at a rate of 0.850% per year. Interest on the Notes is payable annually in arrears on June 7 (each an
“Interest Payment Date”). Interest payable on an Interest Payment Date will be paid to the persons in whose names the Notes are
registered at the close of business on the regular record date; provided, however, that interest payable at the Stated Maturity Date or
earlier redemption date will be payable to the person to whom principal shall be payable. The regular record date for the Notes will
be May 23, whether or not a Business Day, immediately preceding the related Interest Payment Date; provided, however, that so
long as the relevant global note is held by or on behalf of a common depositary for Euroclear Bank SA/NV (“Euroclear™),
Clearstream Banking S.A. (“Clearstream”) or any other clearing system, “record date” shall be a day when Euroclear, Clearstream or
such other clearing system, as the case may be, is open for business. Interest payable on an Interest Payment Date will be computed
on the basis of an Actual/Actual (ICMA) (as defined in the rulebook of the International Capital Market Association) day count
convention.

If any Interest Payment Date, the Stated Maturity Date or earlier redemption date falls on a day that is not a Business Day,
the related payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest will be made on the next succeeding Business Day as if made on the
date the applicable payment was due, and no interest will accrue on the amount so payable for the period from and after such Interest
Payment Date, the Stated Maturity Date or such redemption date, as the case may be, to the date of such payment on the next
succeeding Business Day. For purposes of the Notes, “Business Day” means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, (i) which is
not a day on which banking institutions in The City of New York or London are authorized or required by law, regulation or
executive order to close and (ii) on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET
2) system (the TARGET 2 system) or any successor thereto, is open.

So long as the relevant global note is held on behalf of Euroclear, Clearstream or any other clearing system, notices to
holders of Notes represented by the global note may be given by delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear, Clearstream or such
other clearing system, as the case may be.

Currency of Payment

Principal, premium, if any, and interest payments in respect of the Notes, including any payments made upon any redemption
of the Notes, will be payable in euro.
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If the euro is unavailable in USB’s good faith judgment for the payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest with respect
to the Notes, including any payments made upon any redemption of the Notes, due to the imposition of exchange controls or other
circumstances beyond USB’s control, is no longer used by the member states of the European Monetary Union that have adopted the
euro as their currency or is no longer used for the settlement of transactions by public institutions of or within the international
banking community (and is not replaced by another currency), USB is entitled to satisfy its obligations to holders of the Notes by
making that payment in U.S. dollars on the basis of the Market Exchange Rate as computed by the exchange rate agent on the
second Business Day before that payment is due, or if such Market Exchange Rate is not then available, on the basis of the most
recently available Market Exchange Rate on or before the date that payment is due or as otherwise determined by USB in good faith,
if the foregoing is impracticable. Any payment in respect of the Notes so made in U.S. dollars will not constitute a default under the
Indenture. Neither the trustee nor the paying agent shall be responsible for obtaining exchange rates, effecting conversions or
otherwise handling redenominations.

The “Market Exchange Rate” means the noon buying rate in The City of New York for cable transfers of euros as certified
for customs purposes (or, if not so certified, as otherwise determined) by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

In the event that the euro is no longer used by the member states of the European Monetary Union that have adopted the euro
as their currency or an official redenomination of the euro, USB’s obligations with respect to payments on the Notes shall, in all
cases, be regarded immediately following such redenomination as providing for the payment of that amount of euros representing
the amount of such obligations immediately before such redenomination. The Notes do not provide for any adjustment to any
amount payable under the Notes as a result of any change in the value of the euro relative to any other currency due solely to
fluctuations in exchange rates.

All determinations referred to above made by the exchange rate agent will be at its sole discretion and will, in the absence of
clear error, be conclusive for all purposes and binding on the holders of the Notes.

Payment of Additional Amounts

USB will, subject to the exceptions and limitations set forth below, pay as additional interest such additional amounts
(*Additional Amounts™) as are necessary in order that the net amount of such payment of the principal of and interest on a Note to a
holder who is 2 U.S. Alien (as such term is defined below), after deduction for any present or future tax, assessment or governmental
charge of (a) the United States (as such term is defined below), or a political subdivision or authority thereof or therein or (b) any
other jurisdiction in which any paying agent appointed by USB is organized or the location from which payment is made, or any
political subdivision or authority thereof (each of (a) and (b), a “Relevant Jurisdiction™), imposed by withholding with respect to the
payment, will not be less than the amount provided for in such Note to be then due and payable. However, the foregoing obligation
to pay Additional Amounts shall not apply:
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to any tax, assessment or governmental charge that would not have been so imposed but for the existence of any present
or former connection between such holder (or between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder of, or
holder of power over, such holder, if such holder is an estate, trust, partnership or corporation) and a Relevant
Jurisdiction, including, without limitation, such holder (or such fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member, shareholder or
holder of a power) being considered as:

o being or having been present or engaged in a trade or business in the Relevant Jurisdiction or having had a
permanent establishment therein;

o having a current or former relationship with the Relevant Jurisdiction, including a relationship as a citizen or
resident or being treated as a resident thereof; or

o Dbeing or having been, for United States federal income tax purposes, a “controlled foreign corporation,” a
“passive foreign investment company” (including a qualified electing fund), a corporation that has accumulated
earnings to avoid United States federal income tax or a private foundation or other tax-exempt organization;

to any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed by reason of the holder (i) owning or having owned,
directly or indirectly, actually or constructively, 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of
USB entitled to vote, (ii) receiving interest described in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”) or (iii) being a controlled foreign corporation with respect to the United States that is related to
USB by actual or constructive stock ownership;

to any holder who is a fiduciary or partnership or other than the sole beneficial owner of the Note, but only to the extent
that a beneficiary or settlor with respect to such fiduciary or member of such partnership or a beneficial owner of the
Note would not have been entitled to the payment of such Additional Amounts had such beneficiary, settlor, member or
beneficial owner been the holder of such Note;

to any tax, assessment or governmental charge that would not have been imposed or withheld but for the failure of the
holder to comply with certification, identification or information reporting requirements under the Relevant Jurisdiction’s
income tax laws, without regard to any tax treaty, with respect to the payment, concerning the nationality, residence,
identity or connection with the Relevant Jurisdiction of the holder or a beneficial owner of such Note, if such compliance
is required by the Relevant Jurisdiction’s income tax laws, without regard to any tax treaty, as a precondition to relief or
exemption from such tax, assessment or governmental charge;

to any tax, assessment or governmental charge that would not have been so imposed or withheld but for the presentation
by the holder of such Note for payment on a date




more than 30 days after the date on which such payment became due and payable or the date on which payment thereof is
duly provided for, whichever occurs later;

*+ to any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, transfer, excise, wealth or personal property tax or any similar tax, assessment or
governmental charge;

* toany tax, assessment or governmental charge that is payable otherwise than by withholding by USB or the paying agent
from the payment of the principal of or interest on such Note;

* fo any tax, assessment or governmental charge required to be withheld by any paying agent from such payment of
principal of or interest on any Note, if such payment can be made without such withholding by any other paying agent;

*  to any withholding or deduction on or in respect of any Note pursuant to sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, and the
regulations, administrative guidance and official interpretations promulgated thereunder (“FATCA”), any agreement
between USB and the United States or any authority thereof entered into for FATCA purposes or any fiscal or regulatory
legislation, rules or practices adopted pursuant to any intergovernmental agreement entered into in connection with the
implementation of FATCA; or

* to any tax imposed as a result of any combination of the above.

The term “United States” means the United States of America, the States thereof (including the District of Columbia) and any
other political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein affecting taxation, and the term “U.S. Alien” means any beneficial
owner of a Note other than a beneficial owner of a Note that is (A) a citizen or resident of the United States; (B) a corporation,
partnership or other entity treated as a corporation or a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes created or organized in or
under the laws of the United States, any of its states or the District of Columbia; (C) an estate whose income is subject to U.S.
federal income tax regardless of its source; or (D) a trust which is subject to the supervision of a court within the United States and
the control of one or more United States persons as described in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code or that has a valid election in effect
under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a United States person.

Redemption for Tax Reasons

If USB has or will become obliged to pay Additional Amounts as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or
regulations of a Relevant Jurisdiction affecting taxation, or any change in official position regarding the application or interpretation
of such laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment becomes effective on or after June 7, 2017, and USB determines
that such obligation cannot be avoided by the use of reasonable measures then available to it, USB may, at its option, at any time,
having given not less than 10 nor more than 60 days’ prior written notice to holders of the Notes, redeem, in whole, but not in part,
the Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of their principal amount, together with unpaid interest, if any, on the Notes accrued
to, but excluding, the redemption date, provided that no such notice of
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redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which USB would be obliged to pay such Additional
Amounts if a payment in respect to the Notes were due on such date. Prior to the transmission or publication of any notice of
redemption pursuant to this paragraph, USB will deliver to the trustee an officer’s certificate stating that it is entitled to effect such
redemption and setting forth a statement of facts and including a written opinion of independent counsel selected by USB showing
that the conditions precedent to its right to so redeem the Notes has occurred.

Restrictive Covenants
Subject to the provisions described under the section “—Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets,” the Indenture prohibits:

» the issue, sale or other disposition of shares of or securities convertible into, or options, warrants or rights to subscribe for
or purchase shares of, voting stock of a principal subsidiary bank;

¢ the merger or consolidation of a principal subsidiary bank with or into any other corporation; or

» the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of a principal subsidiary bank,

if, after giving effect to the transaction and issuing the maximum number of shares of voting stock that can be issued after the
conversion or exercise of the convertible securities, options, warrants or rights, USB would own, directly or indirectly, 80% or less
of the shares of voting stock of the principal subsidiary bank or of the successor bank or the bank which acquires the assets.

In the Indenture, USB also agreed that it will not create, assume, incur or cause to exist any pledge, encumbrance or lien, as
security for indebtedness for money borrowed on:

» any shares of or securities convertible into voting stock of a principal subsidiary bank that USB owns directly or
indirectly; or

* options, warrants or rights to subscribe for or purchase shares of, voting stock of a principal subsidiary bank that USB
owns directly or indirectly,

without providing that the senior debt securities of all series, including the Notes, will be equally secured if, after treating the pledge,
encumbrance or lien as a transfer to the secured party, and after giving effect to the issuance of the maximum number of shares of
voting stock issuable after conversion or exercise of the convertible securities, options, warrants or rights, USB would own, directly
or indirectly 80% or less of the shares of voting stock of the principal subsidiary bank.

The Indenture defines the term “principal subsidiary bank” as U.S. Bank National Association.




The Indenture does not contain covenants specifically designed to protect holders from a highly leveraged transaction in
which USB is involved.

Events of Default

The only events that constitute events of default under the Indenture with respect to the Notes are:

USB’s failure to pay any interest on any Note when due, which failure continues for 30 days;
USB’s failure to pay any principal of or premium on any Note when due;
USB’s failure to make any sinking fund payment, when due, for any Note, if applicable;

USB’s failure to perform any other covenant in the Indenture (other than a covenant included in the Indenture solely for
the benefit of a series of senior debt securities other than the Notes), which failure continues for 60 days after written
notice;

default in the payment of indebtedness for money borrowed under any indenture or instrument under which USB has or a
principal subsidiary bank has outstanding indebtedness in an amount in excess of $5,000,000 which has become due and
has not been paid, or whose maturity has been accelerated and the default has not been cured or acceleration annulled
within 60 days after written notice; and

some events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization which involve USB or a principal subsidiary bank.

If an event of default occurs and is continuing on any Notes outstanding under the Indenture, then the trustee or the holders
of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes may declare the principal amount (or, if any of the Notes are
original issue discount notes, the amount payable at acceleration of maturity of such Notes to such holders) of all of the Notes to be
due and payable immediately, by notice as provided in the Indenture. At any time after a declaration of acceleration has been made
on the Notes, but before the trustee has obtained a judgment for payment, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of
the outstanding Notes may, under some circumstances, rescind and annul this acceleration.

Subject to provisions in the Indenture relating to the duties of the trustee during a default, the trustee will not be under any
obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the Indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders of any Notes
then outstanding under the Indenture, unless the holders offer to the trustee reasonable indemnity. The holders of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any
proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee for such series, or exercising any trust or power conferred on such trustee.
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USB must furnish to the trustee, annually, a statement regarding its performance on some of its obligations under the
Indenture and any default in its performance.

Modification and Waiver

Except as otherwise specifically provided in the Indenture, modifications and amendments of the Indenture generally will be
permitted only with the consent of the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes affected
by the modification or amendment. However, none of the following modifications are effective against any holder without the
consent of the holders of each outstanding Note affected by the modification or amendment:

changing the stated maturity of the principal of or any installment of principal or interest on any debt security;
reducing the principal amount of, or premium or interest on any debt security;
changing any of USB’s obligations to pay additional amounts;

reducing the amount of principal of an original issue discount debt security that would be due and payable at declaration
of acceleration of its maturity;

changing the place for payment where, or coin or currency in which, any principal of, or premium or interest on, any debt
security is payable;

impairing the right to take legal action to enforce any payment of or related to any debt security;

reducing the percentage in principal amount of outstanding debt securities of any series required to modify, amend, or
waive compliance with some provisions of the Indenture or to waive some defaults; or

modifying any of the above provisions.

The holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes can waive, as far as that series is
concerned, USB’s compliance with some restrictive provisions of the Indenture.

The holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes may waive any past default under
the Indenture, except:
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a default in the payment of principal of, or premium, or interest on any senior debt security; or

a default in a covenant or provision of the Indenture that cannot be modified or amended without the consent of the
holder of each outstanding debt security of the series affected.




The Indenture provides that, in determining whether holders of the requisite principal amount of the outstanding Notes have
given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, or whether a quorum is present at a meeting of
holders of Notes:

» the principal amount of an original issue discount note considered to be outstanding will be the amount of the principal of
that original issue discount debt security that would be due and payable as of the date that the principal is determined at
declaration of acceleration of the maturity of that original issue discount note; and

+ the principal amount of a note denominated in a foreign currency or currency unit that is deemed to be outstanding will
be the U.S. dollar equivalent, determined on the date of original issuance for that note, of the principal amount (or, in the
case of an original issue discount note, the U.S. dollar equivalent, determined on the date of original issuance for that
debt security, of the amount determined as provided in the bullet point above).

Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets

Without the consent of the holders of the outstanding Notes, USB cannot consolidate with or merge into another corporation,
partnership or trust, or convey, transfer or lease substantially all of its properties and its assets, to a corporation, partnership or trust
organized or validly existing under the laws of any domestic jurisdiction unless:

» the successor entity assumes USB’s obligations on the Notes and under the Indenture;

» immediately after the transaction, USB would not be in default under the Indenture and no event which, after notice or
the lapse of time, would become an event of default under the Indenture, shall have occurred and be continuing; and

+ other conditions are met.
Trustee, Paying Agent and Exchange Rate Agent

The Trustee for the Notes is Citibank, N.A. USB has designated Elavon Financial Services DAC as its paying agent and U.S.
Bank Trust National Association as its exchange rate agent for the Notes.

Governing Law
The Indenture is, and the Notes are, governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
Book-Entry Delivery and Settlement

The Notes were issued in the form of one or more global notes in fully registered form, without coupons, and were deposited
with, or on behalf of, a common depositary for, and in respect of interests held through, Euroclear and Clearstream. Except as
described herein, certificates will not be issued in exchange for beneficial interests in the global notes.
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Exchange of Global Notes for Certificated Notes

Subject to certain conditions, the Notes represented by the global notes are exchangeable for notes in definitive form of like
tenor in minimum denominations of €100,000 principal amount and multiples of €1,000 in excess thereof if:

»  Clearstream, Euroclear or any successor thereto notifies USB that it is unwilling to act as a clearing system for the Notes;
+ USB, at its option, notifies the trustee in writing that it elects to cause the issuance of certificated notes; or

» there has occurred and is continuing an event of default with respect to the Notes.

In all cases, definitive notes delivered in exchange for any global note or beneficial interest therein will be registered in the
names, and issued in any approved denominations, requested by or on behalf of the common depositary (in accordance with its
customary procedures).
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